
Yolo County Housing
Yolo County, California

December 12, 2018

MINUTES

 
The Yolo County Housing met on the 12th day of December, 2018, in regular session in its Chambers in
the Erwin W. Meier Administration Building, 625 Court Street, Woodland, California at 3:00 p.m.

Present: Will Arnold; Enrique Fernandez; Pierre Neu; Karen Vanderford 

Absent: Mark Johannessen; Jim Provenza 

Staff Present: Lisa Baker, CEO 
Hope Welton, Agency Counsel 
Janis Holt, General Director 
Julie Dachtler, Clerk 

 

 

               

CALL TO ORDER

 
1.  Pledge of Allegiance.
 

2.  Consider approval of the agenda.
 
 

Minute Order No. 18-33: Approved agenda after Commissioners were sworn in.
 
MOTION: Neu. SECOND: Fernandez. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu,
Vanderford. ABSENT: Johannessen, Provenza.
 

 

3.  Public Comment: Opportunity for members of the public to address the Housing
Authority on subjects not otherwise on the agenda relating to Housing Authority
business. The Board reserves the right to impose a reasonable limit on time afforded
to any topic or to any individual speaker.

 
 

There was no public comment.
 

 



ANNOUNCEMENT

 
4.  Swearing in of New Commissioners
 
 

The Clerk swore in new Commissioners Will Arnold, Enrique Fernandez, Pierre
Neu and Karen Vanderford.
 

 

REGULAR AGENDA

 
5.     Election of Officers   
 
 

Minute Order No. 18-34: Approved retaining the prior Board's Chair and
Vice-Chair for this meeting and deferred the Election of Officers to the January
2019 meeting.
 
MOTION: Neu. SECOND: Fernandez. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu,
Vanderford. ABSENT: Johannessen, Provenza.
 

 

6.     Select Date and Time of January Meeting   
 
 

Wednesday, January 23, 2019 at 3:00 p.m. was chosen for the next meeting
date.
 

 

CONSENT AGENDA

 
 

Minute Order No. 18-35: Approved Consent Agenda items 7-13. Additionally
comment was made by CEO Lisa Baker on Agenda Item No. 9.
 
MOTION: Vanderford. SECOND: Neu. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu,
Vanderford. ABSENT: Johannessen, Provenza.
 

 

7.     Review and Approve the Minutes of October 10, 2018   
 
 



 
Approved the minutes of October 10, 2018 on Consent.
 

 

8.     Review, Approve and Adopt Resolution to Correct the Housing Choice Voucher
Payment Program Standard for One-Bedroom Units Located in Davis, CA in
Accordance with Federal Requirements (Holt, Jimenez-Perez)

  

 
 

Approved Resolution No. 18-12 on Consent.
 

 

9.     Receive and File Correspondence from Residents (Baker)   
 
 

Approved recommended action on Consent.
 

 

10.     Receive and File Correspondence from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development naming YCH a National Voucher High Performer

  

 
 

Approved recommended action on Consent.
 

 

11.     Review, Approve and Adopt Resolution Recognizing the Service of Commissioner
Angel Barajas

  

 
 

Approved Resolution No. 18-13 on Consent.
 

 

12.     Review, Approve and Adopt Resolution Recognizing the Service of Commissioner
Mark Johannessen

  

 
 

Approved Resolution No. 18-14 on Consent.
 

 

13.     Review, Approve and Adopt Resolution Recognizing the Service of Commissioner
Helen Thomson

  

 
 



 
Approved Resolution No. 18-15 on Consent.
 

 

PUBLIC HEARING

 
14.     Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of a Resolution Approving the Revised

Admissions and Continued Occupancy Plan (ACOP) for the Low Rent Public Housing
Program (Holt, Dogias)

  

 
 

Minute Order No. 18-36: Held public hearing and approved recommended action
by Resolution No. 18-16.
 
MOTION: Neu. SECOND: Vanderford. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu,
Vanderford. ABSENT: Johannessen, Provenza.
 

 

PRESENTATIONS

 
15.  Introduction of New Employee, Sanjna Duvvar, Computer Learning Center Coordinator
 
 

Isaac Blackstock presented new employee, Sanjna Duvvar, Computer Learning
Center Coordinator.
 

 

16.  Presentation of Resolution Recognizing the Service of Commissioner Angel Barajas
 
 

The presentation of the resolution to Commissioner Angel Barajas was not done
due to his absence.
 

 

17.  Presentation of Resolution Recognizing the Service of Commissioner Mark
Johannessen

 
 

The presentation of the resolution to Commissioner Mark Johannessen was not
done due to his absence.
 

 

18.  Presentation of Resolution Recognizing the Service of Commissioner Helen Thomson



 
 

Chair Arnold presented the resolution recognizing the service of Commissioner
Helen Thomson.
 

 

REGULAR AGENDA

 
19.     Review, Approve and Adopt Revised YCH Emergency Operations Plan (Holt, Baker)   
 
 

Minute Order No. 18-37: Approved recommended action.
 
MOTION: Fernandez. SECOND: Neu. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu,
Vanderford. ABSENT: Johannessen, Provenza.
 

 

20.     Review, Approve and Adopt Resolution for FEMA grant 4308-DR-CA (Baker, Brock)   
 
 

Minute Order No. 18-38: Approved recommended action by Resolution No.
18-17.
 
MOTION: Neu. SECOND: Fernandez. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu,
Vanderford. ABSENT: Johannessen, Provenza.
 

 

21.     Review and Approve License Agreement with the State of California to Operate the
Davis Migrant Center as Winter Emergency Housing for Families Displaced by the
Paradise Camp Fire (Baker)

  

 
 

Minute Order No. 18-39: Approved recommended action by Agreement No.
18-03.
 
MOTION: Neu. SECOND: Vanderford. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu, 
Vanderford. ABSENT: Johannessen, Provenza.
 

 

22.     Review and Approve the Rates to be Applied to Generated Solar Power to be Billed to
Residents (Gillette, Baker)

  

 
 



 
Minute Order No. 18-40: Approved recommended action.
 
MOTION: Arnold. SECOND: Vanderford. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu, 
Vanderford. ABSENT: Johannessen, Provenza.
 

 

23.     Review, Approve and Accept the FY 2017-2018 Audit Reports for Yolo County
Housing (Gillette)

  

 
 

Minute Order No. 18-41: Approved recommended action.
 
MOTION: Fernandez. SECOND: Vanderford. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu, 
Vanderford. ABSENT: Johannessen, Provenza.
 

 

24.  Receive Comments from CEO 
 
 

Received comments from CEO Lisa Baker.
 

 

25.  Receive Comments from Commissioners 
 
 

Received comments from Commissioners.
 

 

ADJOURNMENT

 
Next meeting is January 23, 2019 at 3:00 p.m.

 



           

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING
AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING

December 12, 2018 
PLEASE NOTE TIME 3:00 p.m.

 

 
YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 

HOUSING COMMISSION

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAMBERS
625 COURT STREET, ROOM 206
WOODLAND, CALIFORNIA 95695 

 
LISA A. BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

HOPE WELTON
AGENCY COUNSEL 

             



             
Reminder: Please turn off cell phones.

 

CALL TO ORDER

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

2. Consider approval of the agenda.  
 

3. Public Comment: Opportunity for members of the public to address the Housing Authority on
subjects not otherwise on the agenda relating to Housing Authority business. The Board
reserves the right to impose a reasonable limit on time afforded to any topic or to any
individual speaker.

 

 

ANNOUNCEMENT

 

4. Swearing in of New Commissioners  
 

REGULAR AGENDA

 

5.   Election of Officers
 

6. Select Date and Time of January Meeting  
 

CONSENT AGENDA

 

7.   Review and Approve the Minutes of October 10, 2018
 

8.   Review, Approve and Adopt Resolution to Correct the Housing Choice Voucher Payment
Program Standard for One-Bedroom Units Located in Davis, CA in Accordance with Federal
Requirements (Holt, Jimenez-Perez)

 

9.   Receive and File Correspondence from Residents (Baker)
 

10.   Receive and File Correspondence from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development naming YCH a National Voucher High Performer

 

11.   Review, Approve and Adopt Resolution Recognizing the Service of Commissioner Angel
Barajas

 

12.   Review, Approve and Adopt Resolution Recognizing the Service of Commissioner Mark



12.   Review, Approve and Adopt Resolution Recognizing the Service of Commissioner Mark
Johannessen

 

13.   Review, Approve and Adopt Resolution Recognizing the Service of Commissioner Helen
Thomson

 

PUBLIC HEARING

 

14.   Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of a Resolution Approving the Revised Admissions and
Continued Occupancy Plan (ACOP) for the Low Rent Public Housing Program (Holt, Dogias)

 

PRESENTATIONS

 

15. Introduction of New Employee, Sanjna Duvvar, Computer Learning Center Coordinator  
 

16. Presentation of Resolution Recognizing the Service of Commissioner Angel Barajas  
 

17. Presentation of Resolution Recognizing the Service of Commissioner Mark Johannessen  
 

18. Presentation of Resolution Recognizing the Service of Commissioner Helen Thomson  
 

REGULAR AGENDA

 

19.   Review, Approve and Adopt Revised YCH Emergency Operations Plan (Holt, Baker)
 

20.   Review, Approve and Adopt Resolution for FEMA grant 4308-DR-CA (Baker, Brock)
 

21.   Review and Approve License Agreement with the State of California to Operate the Davis
Migrant Center as Winter Emergency Housing for Families Displaced by the Paradise Camp
Fire (Baker)

 

22.   Review and Approve the Rates to be Applied to Generated Solar Power to be Billed to
Residents (Gillette, Baker)

 

23.   Review, Approve and Accept the FY 2017-2018 Audit Reports for Yolo County Housing
(Gillette)

 

24. Receive Comments from CEO   
 

25. Receive Comments from Commissioners   
 



ADJOURNMENT

 

Next meeting is TBD
 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing agenda was posted by Friday, December 7, 2018
by 5:00 p.m. at the following places:
 

On the bulletin board at the east entrance of the Erwin W. Meier Administration Building, 625
Court Street, Woodland, California; and

 

On the bulletin board outside the Board of Supervisors Chambers, Room 206 in the Erwin W.
Meier Administration Building, 625 Court Street, Woodland, California; and

 

On the bulletin board of Yolo County Housing, 147 West Main Street, Woodland, California.
 

On the Yolo County website: www.yolocounty.org.
 

Julie Dachtler, Clerk of the Board

By:________________________
Clerk                                       

 

NOTICE
If requested, this agenda can be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a
disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and the Federal
Rules and Regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Persons seeking an alternative format
should contact the Clerk of the Board for further information. In addition, a person with a disability who
requires a modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate
in a public meeting should telephone or otherwise contact the Clerk of the Board as soon as possible
and at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. The Clerk of the Board may be reached at (530) 666-8195
or at the following address:
 

Yolo County Housing
c/o Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

County of Yolo
625 Court Street, Room 204, Woodland, CA 95695

 
 

http://www.yolocounty.org


 

Yolo County Housing  
Yolo County, California 

 
 

Meeting Date:  December 12, 2018   To: County Counsel                             
Yolo County Housing                                

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Swearing in of New Commissioners 
 

  

 

The Clerk swore in new Commissioners Will Arnold, Enrique Fernandez, Pierre Neu 
and Karen Vanderford. 
 
 

 
 
 

  4. 
 











 

Yolo County Housing  
Yolo County, California 

 
 

Meeting Date:  December 12, 2018   To: County Counsel                             
Yolo County Housing                                

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Election of Officers 
 

  

 

Minute Order No. 18-34: Approved retaining the prior Board's Chair and Vice-Chair for 
this meeting and deferred the Election of Officers to the January 2019 meeting. 
 
MOTION: Neu. SECOND: Fernandez. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu, Vanderford. 
ABSENT: Johannessen, Provenza. 
 
 

 
 
 

  5. 
 



Working together to provide quality affordable housing and community development services for all 

  

Yolo County Housing  
 147 W. Main Street  Woodland:    (530) 662-5428                              
 WOODLAND, CA 95695  Sacramento: (916) 444-8982 
     TTY:              (800) 545-1833, ext. 626         
 
 

 
DATE:   December 12, 2018 
 
TO:  Housing Commission 
   
FROM:  Lisa A. Baker, Chief Executive Officer 
   
SUBJECT: Election of Chair and Vice Chair for 2018-2019 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS:  
 
That the Commissioners elect a Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson of the Housing 
Commission for the balance of calendar year 2018 and for calendar year 2019. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
 
The Agency’s By-Laws require, and good governance demands, that the Agency elect a 
Chairperson and Vice Chairperson from among its members to serve the Housing 
Commission. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
No fiscal impact 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the Housing Commission elect officer positions of Chairperson and 
Vice Chairperson. 
 
 
 



 

Yolo County Housing  
Yolo County, California 

 
 

Meeting Date:  December 12, 2018   To: County Counsel                             
Yolo County Housing                                

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Select Date and Time of January Meeting 
 

  

 

Wednesday, January 23, 2019 at 3:00 p.m. was chosen for the next meeting date. 
 
 

 
 
 

  6. 
 



Yolo County Housing 
                      Yolo County, California 
 
   To: Co. Counsel                            
      Yolo County Housing      

    
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR    
 
Excerpt of Minute Order No. 18-35 Item No.     7   , of the Yolo County Housing meeting of December 12, 
2018. 
 
MOTION: Vanderford. SECOND: Neu. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu, Vanderford. ABSENT: Johannessen, 
Provenza. 

 

 
1. Review and Approve the Minutes of October 10, 2018 

 

  

 

Approved the minutes of October 10, 2018 on Consent. 
 

 

  7. 



Yolo County Housing
Yolo County, California

October 10, 2018

MINUTES

 
The Yolo County Housing met on the 10th day of October, 2018, in regular session in its
Chambers in the Erwin W. Meier Administration Building, 625 Court Street, Woodland,
California at 3:00 p.m.

Present: Will Arnold; Mark Johannessen; Pierre Neu; Helen Thomson; Jim Provenza; Karen
Vanderford 

Absent: Angel Barajas 

Staff Present: Lisa Baker, CEO 
Hope Welton, Agency Counsel 
Julie Dachtler, Clerk 

 

 

               

CALL TO ORDER

 
1.  Pledge of Allegiance.
 

2.  Consider approval of the agenda.
 
 

Minute Order No. 18-28: Approved agenda as submitted noting Agenda
Item No. 11 was removed to a future meeting.
 
MOTION: Neu. SECOND: Thomson. AYES: Arnold, Johannessen, Neu,
Thomson, Vanderford. ABSENT: Barajas.
 

 

3.  Public Comment: Opportunity for members of the public to address the Housing
Authority on subjects not otherwise on the agenda relating to Housing Authority
business. The Board reserves the right to impose a reasonable limit on time
afforded to any topic or to any individual speaker.

 
 



 

There was no public comment.
 

 

PRESENTATIONS

 
4.  Presentation: Honorable Mention in Risk Management to YCH from the HAI

Group for Remote Lock = Peace of Mind
 
 

CEO Lisa Baker presented the Honorable Mention in Risk Management to
YCH from the HAI Group for Remote Lock = Peace of Mind.
 

 

CONSENT AGENDA

 
 

Minute Order No. 18-29: Approved Consent Agenda Item Nos. 5-8.
 
MOTION: Thomson. SECOND: Johannessen. AYES: Arnold,
Johannessen, Neu, Thomson, Vanderford. ABSENT: Barajas.
 

 

5.     Review and Approve the Minutes of August 21, 2018   
 
 

Approved the minutes of August 21, 2018 on Consent.
 

 

6.     Review, Approve and Adopt Resolution Setting Flat Rent Schedule in
Conventional Public Housing (Dogias)

  

 
 

Approved Resolution No. 18-09 on Consent.
 

 

7.     Receive and File Correspondence from Fannie Mae for Appointment of Lisa A.
Baker to Fannie Mae’s Public Housing Authorities Duty to Serve Advisory
Council (Baker)

  

 
 



 

Approved recommended action on Consent.
 

 

8.     Receive and File Unaudited Financial Report for the Year Ending June 30, 2018
(Gillette)

  

 
 

Approved recommended action on Consent.
 

 

REGULAR AGENDA

 
9.     Review, Approve and Authorize the CEO to Extend Time to Domus

Development to Enter into a Housing Assistance Payment (AHAP) Contract for
Project Based Vouchers (Baker, Holt, Jimenez-Perez)

  

 
 

Dan Maguire, City of Winters, and Maurice Ramirez, Domus Development,
addressed the Board of Commissioners on this item. 
 

  

Minute Order No. 18-30: Approved recommended action.
 
MOTION: Neu. SECOND: Vanderford. AYES: Arnold, Johannessen, Neu,
Thomson, Vanderford. ABSENT: Barajas.
 

  
 

10.     Review, Approve and Adopt Resolution Amending Housing Choice Voucher
Payment Standards in Accordance with Federal Requirements (Jimenez-Perez,
Inman, Holt)

  

 
 

Minute Order No. 18-31: Approved recommended action by Resolution
No. 18-10.
 
MOTION: Thomson. SECOND: Neu. AYES: Arnold, Johannessen, Neu,
Thomson, Vanderford. ABSENT: Barajas.
 

 

11.     Review, Approve and Adopt the Revised YCH Emergency Operations Plan   



11.     Review, Approve and Adopt the Revised YCH Emergency Operations Plan
(Holt, Castillo)

  

 
 

Agenda Item No. 11 was moved to a future meeting.
 

 

12.     Review, Approve and Adopt Resolution Adopting the 2018 Yolo County
Operational Area Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan and YCH Annex
(Castillo, Holt)

  

 
 

Minute Order No. 18-32: Approved recommended action by Resolution
No. 18-11.
 
MOTION: Johannessen. SECOND: Neu. AYES: Arnold, Johannessen,
Neu, Thomson, Vanderford. ABSENT: Barajas.
 

 

13.  Receive comments from CEO 
 
 

CEO Lisa Baker provided updates on the following items: 

Delayed move-in at West Beamer Place;
Project Based Vouchers orientation for 17 homeless individuals;
Fannie Mae's Public Housing Authorities Duty to Serve Advisory
Council in which Lisa is now serving on;
Solar arrays project;
Westucky Water Project;
AB287 - Modernization Bill for migrant housing authored by
Assemblymember Cecilia Aguiar-Curry;
Potential reconfiguration of the Pacifico Student Cooperative Housing
to bring in more social services to this complex;
Change of Governments for the Housing Commission with new
members being sworn in at the December meeting.

 

14.  Receive comments from Commissioners 
 
 

There were no comments.
 

 



ADJOURNMENT

 
Next meeting is December 12, 2018
 



Yolo County Housing 
                      Yolo County, California 
 
   To: Co. Counsel                            
      Yolo County Housing      

    
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR    
 
Excerpt of Minute Order No. 18-35 Item No.     8   , of the Yolo County Housing meeting of December 12, 
2018. 
 
MOTION: Vanderford. SECOND: Neu. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu, Vanderford. ABSENT: Johannessen, 
Provenza. 

 

 
1. Review, Approve and Adopt Resolution to Correct the Housing Choice Voucher Payment 

Program Standard for One-Bedroom Units Located in Davis, CA in Accordance with Federal 
Requirements (Holt, Jimenez-Perez) 

 

  

 

Approved Resolution No. 18-12 on Consent. 
 

 

  8. 



Yolo County Housing

 147 W. Main Street      Woodland:    (530) 662-5428 

 WOODLAND, CA 95695  Sacramento: (916) 444-8982 

 TTY: (800) 545-1833, ext. 626

DATE: December 12, 2018 

TO: YCH Housing Commission 

FROM: Lisa Baker, CEO 

PREPARED BY:      Irma Jiménez-Pérez, Housing Assistance Supervisor 
Janis Holt, General Director 

SUBJECT: Review, Approve and Adopt Resolution to Correct the Housing
Choice Voucher Program Payment Standard for One-Bedroom 
Units Located in Davis, CA, in Accordance with Federal 
Requirements 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: 

1. Approve and adopt resolution to make correction to One-Bedroom
Payment Standard for Units Located in Davis, CA

2. Authorize the CEO to Implement Corrected Payment Standards
Effective December 1, 2018

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION: 

On October 10, 2018, the Yolo County Housing Commission approved the           
implementation of the updated Payment Standards for the Housing Choice Voucher           
program. By law, without federal approval and without a waiver, Payment standards            
must be no less than 90% and can be no more than 110% of the Fair Market Rent                  
(FMR).  

Discussion 

The payment standard for one-bedroom units located in Davis, California was           
calculated incorrectly when staff rounded up fifty cents to $1 instead of down. The              
payment standard amount must be rounded down to be within the maximum 110% of              
the FMR, as allowed by 24 CFR 982.503. The original approved Payment Standard for              
a 1-bedroom in Davis was $1117; to meet federal requirements, it must be rounded              
down to $1116. 

Staff is asking the Commission to approve the correction to the Payment Standard             
scheduled as follows: 



 

 
Effective December 1, 2018, the payment standard for one-bedroom units located           
in Davis, CA will be set at 110% for the FMR, in the amount of $1,116 
 
The following tables demonstrate Yolo County FY 2019 FMR and the Payment            
Standards Schedule:  
 

FY 2019 Yolo, CA HUD Metro FMR Area by Unit Bedrooms effective 10/1/2018 
Bedroom Size 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 

FMR $953 $1015 $1342 $1935 $2357 $2711 $3064 
 
 

Payment Standards Effective 12/01/2018 
Bedroom Size 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 
 
City of Davis 

 
$953 

 
1117 

 
$1476 

 
$1935 

 
$2357 

 
$2711 

 
$3064 

 
 
All Other 
County Areas 
 
 

 
$858 

 
$1015 

 
$1342 

 
$1896 

 
$2239 

 
$2575 

 
$2911 

 
 

Corrected Payment Standards Effective 12/01/2018 
Bedroom Size 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 
 
City of Davis 

 
$953 

 
1116 

 
$1476 

 
$1935 

 
$2357 

 
$2711 

 
$3064 

 
 
All Other 
County Areas 
 
 

 
$858 

 
$1015 

 
$1342 

 
$1896 

 
$2239 

 
$2575 

 
$2911 

 
CONCLUSION: 
Staff recommends that the Housing Commission approve the recommended action and 
authorize the CEO to implement. 

 
 

Attachment: Resolution 
 
 
 
 
 
 





Yolo County Housing 
                      Yolo County, California 
 
   To: Co. Counsel                            
      Yolo County Housing      

    
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR    
 
Excerpt of Minute Order No. 18-35 Item No.     9   , of the Yolo County Housing meeting of December 12, 
2018. 
 
MOTION: Vanderford. SECOND: Neu. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu, Vanderford. ABSENT: Johannessen, 
Provenza. 

 

 
1. Receive and File Correspondence from Residents (Baker) 

 

  

 

Approved recommended action on Consent. 
 

 

  9. 









Yolo County Housing 
                      Yolo County, California 
 
   To: Co. Counsel                            
      Yolo County Housing      

    
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR    
 
Excerpt of Minute Order No. 18-35 Item No.     10   , of the Yolo County Housing meeting of December 12, 
2018. 
 
MOTION: Vanderford. SECOND: Neu. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu, Vanderford. ABSENT: Johannessen, 
Provenza. 

 

 
Receive and File Correspondence from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development naming YCH a National Voucher High Performer 

 

  

 

Approved recommended action on Consent. 
 

 

  10. 



 Yolo County Housing

147 W. Main Street Woodland:    (530) 662-5428 
WOODLAND, CA 95695 Sacramento: (916) 444-8982 

TTY:              (800) 545-1833, ext. 626 

DATE: December 12, 2018 

TO: YCH Housing Commission 
FROM: Lisa A. Baker, CEO 
PREPARED BY: Janis R. Holt, General Director 
SUBJECT: Receive and File Correspondence from the U.S. Department of         

Housing and Urban Development (HUD) confirming that Yolo        
County Housing is a High Performer in the Housing Choice          
Voucher (HCV) Program 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

That the Housing Commission: 

1. Receive and File the Correspondence

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 

YCH has received correspondence from HUD that the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV)            
Program Section Eight Management Assessment Plan (SEMAP) score it 100%, making           
it a federal high performer in the HCV program. This assessment verifies and validates              
the YCH self-assessment approved by the Commission in August of this year. 

YCH has been a HUD Recognized High Performer for nine consecutive years . 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None. 

CONCLUSION: 

Staff recommends that the Commission receive and file the correspondence. 

Attachment : Correspondence from HUD 

Working together to provide quality affordable housing and community development services for all 







Yolo County Housing 
                      Yolo County, California 
 
   To: Co. Counsel                            
      Yolo County Housing      

    
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR    
 
Excerpt of Minute Order No. 18-35 Item No.     11   , of the Yolo County Housing meeting of December 12, 
2018. 
 
MOTION: Vanderford. SECOND: Neu. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu, Vanderford. ABSENT: Johannessen, 
Provenza. 

 

 
Review, Approve and Adopt Resolution Recognizing the Service of Commissioner Angel 
Barajas 
 
 

  

 

Approved Resolution No. 18-13 on Consent. 
 

 

  11. 



  

  Yolo County Housing  

 147 W. Main Street Woodland:    (530) 662-5428  
 WOODLAND, CA 95695 Sacramento: (916) 444-8982 

 TTY:              (800) 545-1833  
 
 
 
 

DATE: December 12, 2018 
TO: YCH Housing Commission 
FROM: Lisa A. Baker, Chief Executive Officer 
PREPARED BY: Janis Holt, General Director 
SUBJECT: REVIEW, APPROVE AND ADOPT RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING      

THE SERVICE OF ANGEL BARAJAS TO THE HOUSING        
COMMISSION OF YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 

 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

That the Housing Commission adopts the Resolution recognizing Angel Barajas for his            
service to the YCH Housing Commission. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
 
YCH recognizes that in order to fulfill our mission, we require the service, guidance, and               
support of our Housing Commission. We would like to take this opportunity to recognize              
Angel Barajas for his contributions to the agency serving as Commissioner since            
January 24, 2017. Mr. Barajas has served his community and the families served by              
Yolo County Housing and New Hope Community Development Corporation through his           
leadership on the Commission. YCH recognizes his accomplishments, appreciates his          
service and wishes him success in his future endeavors. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Staff recommends that the Housing Commission approve the proposed Resolution.  
 
Attachment:  Resolution  

Working together to provide quality affordable housing and community development services for all 







Yolo County Housing 
                      Yolo County, California 
 
   To: Co. Counsel                            
      Yolo County Housing      

    
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR    
 
Excerpt of Minute Order No. 18-35 Item No.     12   , of the Yolo County Housing meeting of December 12, 
2018. 
 
MOTION: Vanderford. SECOND: Neu. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu, Vanderford. ABSENT: Johannessen, 
Provenza. 

 

 
Review, Approve and Adopt Resolution Recognizing the Service of Commissioner Mark 
Johannessen 
 

  

 

Approved Resolution No. 18-14 on Consent. 
 

 

  12. 



Working together to provide quality affordable housing and community development services for all 

  

    Yolo County Housing  
  147 W. Main Street  Woodland:    (530) 662-5428                              
  WOODLAND, CA 95695  Sacramento: (916) 444-8982 
      TTY:              (800) 545-1833      
 
 

 
 

DATE:  December 12, 2018 

TO:   YCH Housing Commission 

FROM:  Lisa A. Baker, Chief Executive Officer 

PREPARED BY:   Janis Holt, General Director 

SUBJECT: REVIEW, APPROVE AND ADOPT RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING 
THE SERVICE OF MARK JOHANNESSEN TO THE HOUSING 
COMMISSION OF YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 

 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

That the Housing Commission adopts the Resolution recognizing Mark Johannessen for 
his service to the YCH Housing Commission. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
 
YCH recognizes that in order to fulfill our mission, we require the service, guidance, and 
support of our Housing Commission.  We would like to take this opportunity to recognize 
Mark Johannessen for his contributions to the agency serving as Commissioner since 
February 28, 2012.  Mr. Johannessen has served his community and the families 
served by Yolo County Housing and New Hope Community Development Corporation 
through his leadership on the Commission.   YCH recognizes his outstanding 
accomplishments, appreciates his service and wishes him continued success in his 
future endeavors. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Staff recommends that the Housing Commission approve the proposed Resolution.   
 
Attachment:  Resolution    







Yolo County Housing 
                      Yolo County, California 
 
   To: Co. Counsel                            
      Yolo County Housing      

    
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR    
 
Excerpt of Minute Order No. 18-35 Item No.     13   , of the Yolo County Housing meeting of December 12, 
2018. 
 
MOTION: Vanderford. SECOND: Neu. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu, Vanderford. ABSENT: Johannessen, 
Provenza. 

 

 
Review, Approve and Adopt Resolution Recognizing the Service of Commissioner Helen Thomson 
 

  

 

Approved Resolution No. 18-15 on Consent. 
 

 

  13. 



Yolo County Housing

147 W. Main Street Woodland:    (530) 662-5428 
WOODLAND, CA 95695 Sacramento: (916) 444-8982 

TTY:              (800) 545-1833 

DATE: December 12, 2018 
TO: YCH Housing Commission 
FROM: Lisa A. Baker, Chief Executive Officer 
PREPARED BY: Janis Holt, General Director 
SUBJECT: REVIEW, APPROVE AND ADOPT RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING      

THE SERVICE OF HELEN M. THOMSON TO THE HOUSING         
COMMISSION OF YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

That the Housing Commission adopts the Resolution recognizing Helen M. Thomson for            
her service to the YCH Housing Commission. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 

YCH recognizes that in order to fulfill our mission, we require the service, guidance, and               
support of our Housing Commission. We would like to take this opportunity to recognize              
Helen M. Thomson for her contributions to the agency serving as Commissioner since             
January 10, 2012 and from 2006 - 2010, when the Board of Supervisors served as the                
YCH Board of Commissioners. Ms. Thomson has served her community and the            
families served by Yolo County Housing and New Hope Community Development           
Corporation through her leadership on the Commission. YCH recognizes her          
outstanding accomplishments, appreciates her service and wishes her continued         
success in her future endeavors. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the Housing Commission approve the proposed Resolution. 

Attachment:  Resolution
Working together to provide quality affordable housing and community development services for all 







 

Yolo County Housing  
Yolo County, California 

 
 

Meeting Date:  December 12, 2018   To: County Counsel                             
Yolo County Housing                                

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of a Resolution Approving the Revised Admissions 
and Continued Occupancy Plan (ACOP) for the Low Rent Public Housing Program (Holt, 
Dogias) 
 

  

 

Minute Order No. 18-36: Held public hearing and approved recommended action by 
Resolution No. 18-16. 
 
MOTION: Neu. SECOND: Vanderford. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu, Vanderford. 
ABSENT: Johannessen, Provenza. 
 
 

 
 
 

 14. 
 



                     Yolo County Housing  

                   147 W. Main Street          Woodland:    (530) 662-5428  

                  WOODLAND, CA 95695          Sacramento: (916) 444-8982 

                        TTY: (800) 545-1833, ext. 626  
 
 

 

DATE: December 12, 2018 

TO: YCH Housing Commission 

FROM: Lisa A. Baker, CEO 

PREPARED BY: Janis Holt, General Director 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing on Proposed Revised Admissions and Continued        
Occupancy Policy (ACOP) for the Low Rent Public Housing Program 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 

That the Housing Commission: 

1. Hold a Public Hearing and take Public Comment on proposed revised Admissions and             
Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP); and 

2. Adopt the Resolution Approving the ACOP; and 
3.  Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to implement January 1, 2019. 

  

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION 

The Low Rent Public Housing (LRPH) program provides safe, decent, affordable rental housing             
for eligible families in 431 public housing units throughout Yolo County with rents calculated              
based on 30% of gross family income. Public housing is maintained through federal funds in the                
form of operating subsidy from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)              
and the Capital Fund program. Regulations for the LRPH program come from three (3) sources               
– the statutory requirements approved by Congress and authorized by the President, program             
regulations created by HUD, and local regulations adopted by the Public Housing Authority.             
Yolo County Housing (the Public Housing Authority) sets local regulations (which constitute            
YCH’s ordinances) in the YCH Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP). 

HUD expects YCH to develop policies and procedures that are consistent with mandatory             
requirements and to also make clear the additional local regulations YCH has adopted. Both of               
these actions are enshrined in the YCH ACOP. As part of our obligation for participating in the                 
federal program, YCH is responsible for complying with mandatory changes in HUD regulations.  

Overall administration of the public housing program must meet several objectives and            
requirements, including compliance with YCH's adopted regulations, HUD’s public housing          
regulations and federal, state and local fair housing laws and regulations.  

 



 

 

Staff reviewed the ACOP and determined that the format and layout of the policy was difficult                
to follow, presented challenges when explaining to tenants and would better serve the agency              
if it could be linked directly to the Electronic Code of Federal Regulations for HUD regulations                
under Title 24. It was further determined that the current ACOP required a comprehensive              
update for the administration of the public housing program to include recent changes, as well               
as amendments to the Plan, which have been adopted previously as stand alone amendments. 

To complete the comprehensive revision, YCH issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for a              
consulting firm. Through the RFP process, the consulting firm of National Facility Consultants             
(NFC) was selected.  

Staff met with NFC to review the current ACOP which included all Commission approved policy               
changes and stand alone adopted policies. 

ACOP review meetings were held with the Resident Advisory Board (RAB), Legal Services of              
Northern California (LSNC), YCH agency counsel, and internally with management, staff, and the             
CEO to assure that the document remains consistent with previously approved policy while             
meeting current needs and requirements. 

The draft Policy table of contents provides an easy to follow flow from the Introduction and                
Definitions to the Waitlist, then to Admissions and Continued Occupancy. Where there were             
standalone policies (Americans with Disabilities Act [ADA] Reasonable Accommodations,         
Language Assistance Plan), they are now part of eleven appendices to the Plan, making access               
to those specific policies easier for the public, residents and staff.  

The draft Policy constitutes a comprehensive overhaul and serves as a complete replacement             
to the previously adopted Plan that was originally written in December 2001 and which has               
been subsequently updated over the years, with the most recent update in October 2017 for               
wait list preferences. 

The revised Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP) includes four significant           
changes or additions to the Policy. They are as follows: 

Appendix A - Pet Policy (pages 89-92): The pet policy has expanded its definition of household                
pets to include dogs. It defines public housing policy on number and size of pets and/or fish                 
tanks, spay, neuter and license requirements, YCH registration procedures and pet deposits. It             
outlines pet owner responsibilities and identifies policy violations and subsequent actions that            
may be taken by management. In determining the update to the Policy, staff and the consultant                
looked at other similar practices and worked to balance family desires for a pet with overall                
community needs and safety for its members and to encourage responsible pet ownership. 

Appendix B - Assistance Animal Policy (pages 93-98): The assistance animal policy has updated              
guidelines for assistance animals and is consistent, where applicable, with the proposed pet             
policy. This policy will apply to families with approved reasonable accommodations for a             
service or companion animal. Certain restrictions outlined in the pet policy will not apply to               
assistance animals, however, assistance animal owners will be required to follow spay, neuter,             
license requirements, and registration procedures. 

Rent Policy (pages 82-88): Low income public housing tenants pay 30% of their monthly               
adjusted income or a minimum monthly rent of $25.00. The rent policy defines when rent is                

 



 

due, rent collection processes, and consequences for chronic rent delinquency. The policy            
outlines considerations of exemptions for hardship circumstances. Changes to this section           
include the incorporation of recent revisions to HUD regulations on Earned Income            
Disallowance The other proposed revision to the rent policy is an update to repayment              
agreement terms and conditions to help ensure that tenant owed balances are paid, but with               
consideration for the needs of low income tenants where possible. 

The revised rent policy will help staff and residents to be accountable for on-time rent               
payments and collections. The policy will enable staff and residents to meet and intercept signs               
of rent delinquency early with the intention of keeping families housed and tenant collection              
balances low. As families move out of public housing, having a strong rental history with YCH                
will help them continue in their path to self-sufficiency. 

Continued Occupancy for Over-Income Families (page 58-59): HUD published a notice on July             
26, 2018, implementing a statutory requirement through the Housing Opportunity Through the            
Modernization Act of 2016 (HOTMA) that amends the Housing Act of 1937 by placing income               
limitations on public housing tenancy. If a public housing family’s income exceeds 120% of the               
area median income based on family size at the time of annual or interim re-examination and                
the income continues to exceed 120% of median income for 12 months, YCH must submit a                
notice to the family. That notice informs the family that if they exceed the over-income limit                
for the next 12 consecutive months, the family must pay the applicable Fair Market Rent (FMR)                
or the amount of subsidy for the unit - including operating and capital fund - or termination of                  
tenancy within six (6) months of second income determination. 

YCH will now be required to report over-income families annually to HUD.  

Resident Input to the ACOP 

The Resident Advisory Board (RAB) is a jurisdiction-wide group (public housing and voucher             
tenants) who provide input and make recommendations in the development of the PHA Plan.              
Staff met with the RAB regarding the Policy on October 11, 2017 and February 22, 2018. RAB                 
members provided input and were supportive of changes to the pet and assistance animal              
policies. 

On December 5, 2018, the RAB provided the following public comments on the draft ACOP: 

● Recommend that staff hold pet and assistance animal owners accountable for cleaning            
up after their animals and assuring that animals are never left unattended on the              
property. 

○ Staff Response: Embedded in the pet policy it is clearly written that pet owners              
are responsible for the removal of and disposal of pet waste. Failure to dispose              
of waste on YCH grounds will result in a work order charge assessed. In addition               
it states that violation of these rules will be grounds for removal of the pet up to                 
termination of the lease in accordance with State and local law. 

○ The assistance animal policy also states that the resident shall keep their unit             
and common areas picked up including the proper disposal of animal feces. It             
further states that noncompliance with the policy will constitute a material           
violation of the lease and be handled accordingly. 

● Recommend that staff assure that residents have a clear process to dispute charges             
(specifically maintenance charges). 

 



 

○ Staff Response: There is a two step process in which tenants may dispute             
charges within the Policy as follows: 

■ Step #1 is within the Rent Policy (#7), it states the following: “The              
resident agrees to pay for all repairs made to the unit due to resident              
damage or neglect. The resident must pay such charges at the first of the              
month following the receipt of the invoice or bill for the charges. Such             
charges will be made based on actual cost of labor and materials. YCH will              
notify residents of any assessed charges in writing. In the event there is a              
dispute in an assessed charge, the resident must notify the Housing           
Manager within ten days of the date of the letter.”  

■ Step #2 is the Grievance Procedure, Appendix J which outlines a           
step-by-step process and provides a forum and procedure for residents to           
seek the just, effective, and efficient settlement to their         
disputes/grievances.  

● Recommend that staff re-evaluate parking policies and enforcement processes. 
○ Staff Response: The parking policies are not a component of the ACOP;            

however, staff will review the current lease and house rules and evaluate any             
necessary updates. Enforcement of current rules will be addressed with the site            
property management team.  

 
During resident meetings held in October 2018 at the three large public housing campuses,              
staff provided an overview of the draft Policy and the four significant policy changes and took                
resident input on the draft. Residents were notified that they could review the full version of                
the draft Policy electronically on the YCH website, accessible from the YCH Computer Learning              
Centers for those without access to a computer, or they could access a hard copy in their                 
campus housing office. 

Fair Housing Services Input  

On July 18, 2018, Legal Services of Northern California met with staff and reviewed the draft of                 
the ACOP. Staff incorporated recommended wording changes to the draft Policy to remain in              
compliance with fair housing law.  The draft was also reviewed by Agency Counsel. 

Staff posted the draft ACOP electronically to the YCH website on October 25, 2018 and made                
hard copies available at the housing offices located in Winters, West Sacramento and             
Woodland. The 45-day public comment period began October 26, 2018 and closed December             
10, 2018. As of the writing of this staff report, YCH has not received any additional public                 
comment with the exception of the comments from the RAB on December 5, 2018. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None at this time.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Housing Commission adopt the resolution approving the           
updated Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy. 

 

Attachments:  Draft Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy and Resolution 

 

 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

WORKING TOGETHER TO PROVIDE QUALITY AFFORDABLE HOUSING AND COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES FOR ALL 

 
 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING  
 
 

ADMISSIONS AND CONTINUED OCCUPANCY POLICY 
 
 
 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  JANUARY 1, 2019 
 

REVISION/APPROVAL DATE 

 

 
 

 
 

 
  



Table of Contents 

Part A:  INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................................. 4 
INTRODUCTION .......................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Part B:  DEFINITIONS ..................................................................................................................................... 9 
DEFINITION OF FAMILY ............................................................................................................................................ 10 
ANNUAL INCOME .................................................................................................................................................... 13 
TOTAL TENANT PAYMENT ....................................................................................................................................... 18 
OTHER .................................................................................................................................................................... 19 
PREFERENCES .......................................................................................................................................................... 23 

Part C:  ADMISSIONS ................................................................................................................................... 25 
ADMISSIONS ........................................................................................................................................................... 26 
OUTREACH TO HIGHER INCOME FAMILIES ................................................................................................................ 27 
APPLICATION TAKING .............................................................................................................................................. 28 
ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA ............................................................................................................................................... 31 
SCREENING ............................................................................................................................................................. 35 
RECORDS MANAGEMENT AND CONFIDENTIALITY...................................................................................................... 39 
VERIFICATION OF INCOME AND CIRCUMSTANCES ...................................................................................................... 40 
DETERMINATION AND NOTIFICATION OF ELIGIBILITY ................................................................................................. 44 
OCCUPANCY STANDARDS ........................................................................................................................................ 46 
TENANT SELECTION AND ASSIGNMENT PLAN ............................................................................................................ 47 
LEASING OF DWELLING UNITS .................................................................................................................................. 50 
ADMISSION OF ADDITIONAL MEMBERS TO A CURRENT HOUSEHOLD ......................................................................... 51 
OPERATING A BUSINESS IN THE UNIT ....................................................................................................................... 53 
SPECIAL OCCUPANCY PROVISIONS ........................................................................................................................... 54 

Part D:  CONTINUED OCCUPANCY ................................................................................................................. 55 
ELIGIBILITY FOR CONTINUED OCCUPANCY................................................................................................................. 56 
CONTINUED OCCUPANCY FOR OVER-INCOME FAMILIES ............................................................................................ 58 
INSPECTIONS ........................................................................................................................................................... 60 
REEXAMINATIONS ................................................................................................................................................... 62 
TERMINATION OF THE DWELLING LEASE ................................................................................................................... 66 
TRANSFER POLICY ................................................................................................................................................... 68 
ABANDONMENT OF A UNIT ..................................................................................................................................... 74 
COMMUNITY SERVICE AND FAMILY SELF-SUFFICIENCY.............................................................................................. 75 

Part E:  FRAUD ............................................................................................................................................ 80 
FRAUD .................................................................................................................................................................... 81 

Part F:  RENT POLICY ................................................................................................................................... 82 
RENT POLICY ........................................................................................................................................................... 83 

APPENDIX A:  PET POLICY ....................................................................................................................... 90 

APPENDIX B:  ASSISTANCE ANIMAL POLICY ........................................................................................ 94 

APPENDIX C:  SMOKE-FREE HOUSING POLICY .................................................................................. 101 

APPENDIX D:  REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS POLICY ............................................................. 109 



APPENDIX E:  LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE PLAN ................................................................................... 127 

APPENDIX F:  VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE POLICY ............................................................... 143 

APPENDIX G:  TRESPASS WARNING POLICY ..................................................................................... 158 

APPENDIX H:  ZERO TOLERANCE POLICY .......................................................................................... 160 

APPENDIX I:  SECURITY POLICY FOR CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENTS AND DATA .......................... 166 

APPENDIX J:  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ............................................................................................. 170 

APPENDIX K:  DECONCENTRATION POLICY ...................................................................................... 180 
 
 

 



  Yolo County Housing 
 4 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 
 

ADMISSIONS AND CONTINUED OCCUPANCY POLICY 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Part A:  INTRODUCTION 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 5 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

INTRODUCTION 
 

1. Purpose of the ACOP 
 

The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines for YCH staff to follow in determining eligibility 
for admission to and continued occupancy of public housing in accordance with HUD regulations. 

 
2. Nondiscrimination Policy (24 CFR 5.105) 
 

It is the policy of YCH, also referred to as “YCH” and the “PHA”, to comply fully with Title VI of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (as amended by the Community 
Development Act of 1974), Executive Order 11063, Section 3 of the 1968 Civil Rights Act, and with 
all rules and regulations.  
 
YCH Nondiscrimination Statement 
Yolo County Housing, in accordance with applicable Federal and State law and Yolo County 
Housing policy, prohibits discrimination in employment, services, and activities on the basis of 
race, color, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, physical or mental disability or 
genetic information, actual or perceived sex, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity or 
expression, religion, political beliefs, marital status, pregnancy, familial or parental status, 
covered veteran status, source of income, other legally protected status, or association with a 
person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. YCH affirms its 
commitment to equal opportunity and equal access to services.   
 
To further its commitment to full compliance with applicable Civil Rights Acts, YCH will provide 
federal, state, and local information to applicant/participant households regarding discrimination 
and recourse in the event of discrimination.  Such information will be made available during the 
Pre-Occupancy Briefing and all applicable forms and printed material will be made available to 
prospective resident families.  Materials can also be obtained by visiting the YCH website at 
http://www.ych.ca.gov/ . 

 
3. Reasonable Accommodation Policy (refer to Appendix D) 

 
YCH is also committed to making reasonable accommodation for persons with disabilities in an 
effort to maintain a barrier-free environment.  This may include reasonable accommodations 
related to program access or physical access and is not to be construed as special or preferential 
treatment.  Where program modifications are required, they will be related to program access and 
will not supersede any of the requirements outlined in this policy.  Reasonable accommodation 
may include arranging for assistance in reading or interpreting documents, arranging for 
alternative meeting locations for interviews or leasing activities, providing translation assistance, 
or similar actions that are aimed at removing barriers to the program. 
 
In addition, YCH will make reasonable physical modifications to units or buildings if requested and 
verified as required by an applicant or resident.  These could include the addition of a temporary 
or permanent ramp, the addition of grab bars, the installation of equipment to make unit features 
accessible or similar actions that are aimed at removing physical barriers.  Since YCH maintains 

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=6b57996c498d529d8d92f9bf27ffeace&mc=true&node=se24.1.5_1105&rgn=div8
http://www.ych.ca.gov/


  Yolo County Housing 
 6 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

units that are accessible to the mobility or sensory impaired, applicants or residents may be 
offered occupancy in one of these units as a reasonable accommodation; however, the applicant 
or resident is not required to accept such a unit offer. 
 
YCH’s application will include a section where any applicant can request a reasonable 
accommodation and/or modification to make the unit accessible to a person with disabilities.  
Every effort will be made to match the needs of the applicant with appropriate unit features and 
this could include a reasonable modification of unit features to meet the need of the applicant. 
 
For residents who require reasonable accommodation, a request for that accommodation must be 
made to YCH and YCH reserves the right to verify the need or request documentation of how the 
accommodation will address the need.  Unless the reasonable accommodation or modification 
results in undue administrative or financial burden, YCH shall make every attempt to grant the 
reasonable accommodation or modification.  If the applicant or resident requests a reasonable 
modification at their own expense, YCH will grant such request except in cases where the 
modification violates local code or result in irreparable damage to YCH’s property. 
 
Refer to the appendix for the Reasonable Accommodation Policy. 

 
4. Services for Applicants and Residents with Limited English Proficiency  

 
As part of its effort to maintain a barrier-free environment, YCH will make every attempt to meet 
the needs of applicants and residents with limited English proficiency.  Where a particular need is 
identified (i.e. a population generally speaking another language exceeds 5% of the overall eligible 
population), YCH will make every attempt to hire bilingual staff.  YCH will also translate vital 
documents and arrange for translation services. 
 
Regardless, YCH will make every attempt to coordinate with other local agencies; including social 
service and educational institutions; to provide assistance in reading, understanding, or 
completing required documents or providing translation services. 
 
Refer to the Limited Assistance Policy (Appendix E). 
 

5. Privacy Policy  (24 CFR 5.212) 
 

It is the policy of YCH to facilitate the full exercise of rights conferred on individuals under the 
Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C 552A, to ensure the protection of privacy of individuals about whom 
YCH maintains records under its Low-Rent Housing Program, taking into account the California 
Public Records Act and Freedom of Information Act.  
 
Therefore, YCH shall not disclose any personal information contained in such records by any 
means of communication to any person or to another agency unless the individual to whom such 
information pertains requests or consents to such disclosure or unless such disclosure is 
authorized under the applicable provisions of the Privacy Act.  YCH has determined that disclosure 
under any other circumstances would constitute an unwarranted invasion of privacy in violation of 

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=9e12956742fb05f84d56f1806872634b&mc=true&node=se24.1.5_1212&rgn=div8


  Yolo County Housing 
 7 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

the Privacy Act and the United States Constitution.  YCH shall refuse any and all requests for any 
unauthorized and unlawful disclosures.  It is important to note that this privacy policy is applicable  
to the disclosure of participant information and NOT the gathering and use of information 
necessary to ensure full compliance with HUD regulations governing such items including, but not 
limited to, the following: 
 

• determining initial and on-going eligibility 

• applicable allowances and deductions 

• resident rental payments 

• current and past assets 

• outstanding indebtedness to government as a result of prior participation in other 
federally-subsidized housing programs 

 
However, no information regarding applicant/participant households will be solicited unless directly 
attributed to direct or implied responsibilities of YCH. 
 
6. Authority 
 

Eligibility for admission to and occupancy of Low-Income Public Housing is governed by 
requirements of the Department of Housing and Urban Development, coupled with local 
requirements.  This Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP) incorporates these 
requirements and is binding upon applicants, residents, and YCH alike, the latter two through 
inclusion of the ACOP into the Dwelling Lease by reference.  Notwithstanding the above, changes 
in applicable Federal law or regulations may supersede this policy at any point in which they are in 
conflict. 

 
7. Objectives 
 

The objectives of this policy are to: 
 

a. Promote the overall goal of healthy, safe, affordable, decent, and sanitary housing in good 
neighborhoods by: 
 
(i) Ensuring a social and economic mix of low-income residents within each public 

housing neighborhood in order to foster social stability and upward mobility; 
 
(ii) Ensuring the fiscal stability of YCH; and, 
 
(iii) Lawfully denying admissions or continued occupancy to families whose presence 

in a public housing neighborhood is likely to adversely affect the health, safety or 
welfare of other residents or the physical environment of the neighborhood. 

 
b. Facilitate the efficient management of YCH and compliance with Federal Regulations by 

establishing the policy basis for management procedures, record keeping, and auditing. 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 8 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

c. Comply in letter and spirit with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and all other 
applicable Federal Laws and regulations to ensure that admission to and occupancy of 
public housing neighborhoods is conducted without regard to race, color, creed, sex, or 
national origin. 

 
d. Prescribe standards and criteria for resident selection and annual re-examination of 

income and family composition. 
8. Terminology  
 

The term “s/he” used throughout this document is used in the generic sense to include 
male/female, singular/plural as appropriate.  YCH is also referred to as the “YCH” or the “PHA” 
throughout this document. 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 9 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 
 

ADMISSIONS AND CONTINUED OCCUPANCY POLICY 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Part B:  DEFINITIONS 
 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 10 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

DEFINITION OF FAMILY 
(24 CFR 5.403) 

 
Family 
 
1. The term "Family" as used in this policy, regardless of actual or perceived sexual orientation, 

gender identity, or marital status, means: 
 

a. A family with or without children; 
 

 b. An elderly family; 
 

c. A near-elderly family 
 

 d. A disabled family; 
 
 e. A displaced family; 
 
 f. The remaining member of a tenant family over the age of 18 who is on the lease; and 
 
 g. A single person who is not an elderly or displaced person, or a person with disabilities, or 

the remaining member of a tenant family over the age of 18 who is on the lease. 
 
2. The term “Disabled family” as used in this policy means: 
 
 A family whose head, spouse, or co-head is a person with disabilities; or two or more persons with 

disabilities living together; or one or more persons with disabilities living with one or more live-in 
aides. 

 
3. The term “Displaced family” as used in this policy means: 
 
 A family in which each member, or whose sole member, is a person displaced by governmental 

action, or a person whose dwelling has been extensively damaged or destroyed as a result of a 
disaster declared or otherwise formally recognized pursuant to Federal disaster relief laws. 

 
4. The term “Displaced person” as used in this policy means: 
 
 A person displaced by governmental action, or a person whose dwelling has been extensively 

damaged or destroyed as a result of a disaster declared or otherwise formally recognized pursuant 
to Federal disaster relief laws. 

 
5. The term “Elderly family” as used in this policy means: 
 
 A family whose head, spouse, or co-head is a person who is at least 62 years of age; or two or 

more persons who are at least 62 years of age living together; or one or more persons who are at 
least 62 years of age living with one or more live-in aides. 

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=3de51e8e8c4cac55a429b3dc9bd72a3a&mc=true&node=se24.1.5_1403&rgn=div8


  Yolo County Housing 
 11 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
 
6. The term “Elderly person” as used in this policy means: 
 

A person who is at least 62 years of age. 
 
7. The term “Live-in Aide” as used in this policy means: 
 
 A person who resides with one or more elderly persons, or near-elderly persons, or persons with 

disabilities, and who: 
 
 a. Is determined to be essential to the care and well-being of the persons; 
 
 b. Is not obligated to financially or otherwise support the person(s); and 
 
 c. Would not be living in the unit except to provide the necessary supportive services. 
 

A live-in aide cannot become a household member and a household member cannot become a 
live-in aide during the term of tenancy of the head-of-household.  Special circumstances will be 
considered on a case-by-case basis. 

 
8. The term “Near-elderly family” as used in this policy means: 
 
 A family whose head, spouse, or co-head is a person who is at least 50 years of age but below the 

age of 62: or two or more persons, who are at least 50 years of age but below the age of 62, living 
together; or one or more persons who are at least 50 years of age but below the age of 62 living 
with one or more live-in aides. 

 
9. The term “Near-elderly person” as used in this policy means: 
 

A person who is at least 50 years of age but below the age of 62. 
 
10. The term “Person with disabilities” as used in this policy means: 
 
 a. Has a disability as defined in section 223 of the Social Security Act; 
 
 b. Has a physical, mental, or emotional impairment that: 
 
  (i) Is expected to be of a long-continued and indefinite duration; 
 
  (ii) Substantially impedes his or her ability to live independently; and 
 
 (iii) Is of such a nature that such ability could be improved by more suitable housing 

conditions; or 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 12 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 c. Has a developmental disability as defined in section 102 of the Developmental Disabilities 
Assistance and Bill of Rights Act (42 U.S.C. 6001(5)). 

 
 d. Is considered to be a person with disabilities under 2 CA ADC Section 11065. 
 

d. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, no individual shall be considered a person 
with disabilities, for purposes of eligibility for low-income housing under this title, solely 
on the basis of any drug or alcohol dependence.   

 



  Yolo County Housing 
 13 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

ANNUAL INCOME 
 
1. Income 
 

Income is defined at 24 CFR 5.609 and amplified in this policy in those areas within the 
discretion of YCH.  

 
2. Annual Income (24 CFR 5.609) 
 

Annual Income means all amounts, monetary or not, which go to, or on behalf of, the family head 
or spouse (even if temporarily absent) or to any other family member; or are anticipated to be 
received from a source outside the family during the 12-month period following re-examination 
effective date; and, which are exclusive of income that is temporary, nonrecurring, sporadic, and 
exclusive of certain other types of income specified in this policy; and, amounts derived during the 
12-month period from assets to which any member of the family has access. 

 
a. Annual Income includes, but is not limited to: 

 
(i) The full amount, before any payroll deductions, of wages and salaries, overtime 

pay, commissions, fees, tips and bonuses, and other compensation for personal 
services: 

 
(ii) The net income from operation of a business or profession.  Expenditures for 

business expansion or amortization of capital indebtedness shall not be used as 
deductions in determining net income.  An allowance for depreciation of assets 
used in a business or profession may be deducted, based on straight-line 
depreciation, as provided in Internal Revenue Service regulations.  Any 
withdrawal of cash or assets from the operation of a business or profession will be 
included in income, except to the extent the withdrawal is reimbursement of cash 
or assets invested in the operation by the Family; 
 

(iii) Interest, dividends, and other net income of any kind from real or personal 
property.  Expenditures for amortization of capital indebtedness shall not be used 
as deductions in determining net income.  An allowance for depreciation is 
permitted only as authorized in (ii) above of this section.  Any withdrawal of cash 
or assets from an investment will be included in income, except to the extent the 
withdrawal is reimbursement of cash or assets invested by the Family.  Where the 
family has Net Family Assets in excess of $5,000, Annual Income shall include the 
greater of the actual income derived from all Net Family Assets or a percentage of 
the value of such Assets based on the current passbook savings rate, as 
determined by HUD; 

 
(iv) The full amount of periodic payments received from social security, annuities, 

insurance policies, retirement funds, pensions, disability or death benefits and 
other similar types of periodic receipts, including a lump-sum payment for the 
delayed start of a periodic payment; 

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?rgn=div8&node=24:1.1.1.1.5.6.17.3


  Yolo County Housing 
 14 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
(v) Payments in lieu of earnings, such as unemployment and disability compensation, 

worker's compensation, and severance pay (but see "lump sum additions" in this 
policy); 
 

(vi) Welfare assistance; 
 

(a) The amount of the allowance or grant exclusive of the amount 
specifically designated for shelter or utilities; plus, 

 
(b) The maximum amount that the welfare assistance agency could in fact 

allow the family for shelter and utilities.  
 
(vii) Periodic and determinable allowances, such as alimony and child support 

payments, and regular contributions or gifts received from persons not residing in 
the dwelling. 
 

(viii) All regular pay, special pay and allowances of a member of the Armed Forces 
(whether or not living in the dwelling, but see paragraph 5 in the next sub-section 
regarding special pay); 

 
b. Annual Income does not include: 

 
(i) Income from employment of children (including foster children) under the age of 

18 years; 
 

(ii) Payments received for the care of foster children or foster adults; 
 

(iii) Lump-sum additions to family assets, such as inheritances, insurance payments 
(including payments under health and accident insurance and worker's 
compensation), capital gains and settlement for personal or property losses (but 
see "payments in lieu of earnings" in this policy; 

 
(iv) Amounts that are specifically for or in reimbursement of the cost of medical 

expenses, when applicable; 
 

(v) Income of a Live-in Aide, as defined by HUD; 
 

 (vi) Amounts of educational scholarships paid directly to the student or the 
educational institution, and amounts paid by the Government to a veteran, for 
use in meeting the costs of tuition, fees, books, equipment, materials, supplies, 
transportation, and miscellaneous personal expenses of the student.  Any amount 
of such scholarship or payment to a veteran not used for the above purposes that 
are available for subsistence is to be included in income; 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 15 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

(vii) The special pay to a family member in the Armed Forces away from home and 
exposed to hostile fire; 

 
(viii) Temporary, nonrecurring or sporadic income (including gifts); 
 
(ix) Reparation payments paid by a foreign government pursuant to claims filed under 

the laws of that government by persons who were persecuted during the Nazi 
era. 

 
(x) Earnings in excess of $480 for each full-time student 18 years old or older, 

excluding the head of household and spouse; 
 

(xi) Adoption assistance payments in excess of $480 per adopted child; 
 

(xii) Deferred periodic amounts from supplemental security income and social security 
benefits that are received in a lump sum amount or in prospective monthly 
amounts. 

 
(xiii) Amounts received by the family in the form of refunds or rebates under State or 

local law for property taxes paid on the dwelling unit. 
 
(xiv) Amounts paid by a State agency to a family with a member who has a 

developmental disability and is living at home to offset the cost of services and 
equipment needed to keep the developmentally disabled family member at 
home. 

 
(xv) Certain stipends (not to exceed $200/mo) and other income received by 

participants in qualified training, self-sufficiency and work incentive programs.  
Includes CFP training programs.  

 
(xvi) Earned income: 

 
(a) Disallowance of earned income from rent determinations applies when 

a family member becomes employed after being unemployed for at 
least one (1) year, or when income increases during the participation in 
any family self-sufficiency or job training program, or who is or was 
assisted under TANF within six (6) months and whose earned income 
increases. 

 
(b) Upon expiration of the 12-month period of disallowance of earned 

income from rent determinations, earned income shall continue to be 
disallowed for the next twelve (12) months at a rate not to exceed 50% 
of the amount of the total rent increase that would be applicable in the 
absence of the disallowance. 

 



  Yolo County Housing 
 16 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

(xvii) Amounts specifically excluded by any other Federal Statute from consideration 
as income for purposes of determining eligibility or benefits under a category of 
assistance programs that includes assistance under any program to which the 
exclusions set forth in 24 CFR 5.609(c) apply.  When such exclusions are 
mandated by Federal statute or regulation, they will become effective as 
prescribed by the Federal government without the necessity to amend this 
policy. The following is a list of types of benefits that qualify for that exclusion 
effective February 1998.   

 
(a) Relocation payments made pursuant to Title II of the Uniform 

Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 
(42 U.S.C. 4636). 

 
(b) The value of the allotment provided to an eligible household for coupons 

under the Food Stamp Act of 1977 (7 U.S.C. 2017 (b)); 
 
(c) Payment to volunteers under the Domestic Volunteer Service Act of 1973 

(42 U.S.C. 5044(g), 5058); 
 
(d) Payments received under the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act (43 

U.S.C. 1626 (a));  
 

(e) Income derived from certain submarginal land of the United States that is 
held in trust for certain Indian tribes (25 U.S.C. 459e); 

 
(f) Payments or allowances made under the Department of Health and 

Human Services' Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (42 U.S.C. 
8624(f)); 

 
(g) Payments received under programs funded in whole or in part under the 

Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (29 U.S.C. 3101); 
 
(h) Income derived from the disposition of funds of the Grand River Band of 

Ottawa Indians (Pub. L. 94-540, 90 Stat. 2503 2504); 
 
(i) The first $2,000 of per capita shares received from judgment funds 

awarded by the Indian Claims Authority or the Court of Claims (25 U.S.C. 
1407-1408) or from funds held in trust for an Indian tribe by the Secretary 
of the Interior (25 U.S.C. 117); and 

 
(j) Amounts of scholarships funded under Title IV of the Higher Education 

Act of 1965 that are used to cover the cost of attendance at an 
educational institution (See 24 CFR 215.1(c)(6), 236.3(c)(6), 813.106(c)(6), 
and 913.106(c)(6)). 

 



  Yolo County Housing 
 17 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

If it is not feasible to anticipate a level of income over a 12-month period, the income 
anticipated for a shorter period may be annualized, subject to a redetermination at the 
end of the shorter period. 

 
3. Monthly Income - One-twelfth of Annual income.   
 
4. Adjusted Income (24 CFR 5.611) - Adjusted income means annual income less the following: 
 

a. $400 for any elderly or disabled family; 
 
b. The amount by which 10% of the annual family income is exceeded by the sum of: 
 

(i) Unreimbursed medical expenses for any elderly family or disabled family (all 
medical expenses must be Flexible Spending Account (FSA) eligible); 

 
(ii) Unreimbursed reasonable attendant care and auxiliary apparatus expenses for 

each disabled member of the family, to the extent necessary to enable any 
member of such family (including such disabled member) to be employed. 

 
c. Any reasonable childcare expenses necessary to enable a member of the family to be 

employed or to further his or her education; 
 
d. $480 for each member of the family residing in the household (other than the head of 

the household or his or her spouse) who is less than 18 years of age, or is attending 
school or vocational training on a full-time basis, or who is 18 years of age or older and 
is a person with disabilities; 

 
e. The amount of any earned income of a member of the family who is not: 
 

(i) 18 years of age or older, and 
 
(ii) The head of the household (or the spouse of the head of the household). 
 

5. Monthly Adjusted Income - One-twelfth of Adjusted Income. 
 

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=eaa15e8895263d447b6f2672a1990e9f&mc=true&node=se24.1.5_1611&rgn=div8


  Yolo County Housing 
 18 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

TOTAL TENANT PAYMENT 
 

1. Determining the Total Tenant Payment is a two-step process.  Total Tenant Payment shall be the 
highest of the following rounded to the nearest dollar: 

 
a. 30 percent of monthly Adjusted Income; or 
 
b. A minimum rent amount of $25.  Note:  QHWRA (Quality Housing Work Responsibility Act) 

established certain exceptions to the minimum rent requirements relating to hardship, 
which are discussed in the Rent Collection Policy of this ACOP.   

 
After the highest amount has been determined above, that number is compared to the ceiling rent 
or flat rent of the unit size that is or will be occupied by the family, and the lower of the amount 
determined above or the ceiling/flat rent is the Total Tenant Payment.  

 
2. Total Tenant Payment does not include charges for excess utility consumption or other 

miscellaneous charges, such as maintenance charges, late charges, etc. 
 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 19 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

OTHER 
 

 
1. Application:  The term application, for the purposes of this policy, refers to the full application 

completed at the time of the determination of eligibility.  See the definition for pre-application 
below for clarification. 
 

2. Interview: The term interview is defined as in person or by mail. 
 
3. Child Care Expenses:  Amounts anticipated to be paid by the family for the care of children under 

13 years of age during the period for which Annual Income is computed, but only where such care 
is necessary to enable a family member to be gainfully employed or to further his or her education 
and only to the extent such amounts are not reimbursed.  The amount deducted shall reflect 
reasonable charges for childcare, and, in the case of childcare necessary to permit employment, 
the amount deducted shall not exceed the amount of income received from such employment.  
YCH will not normally determine childcare expenses as necessary when the household contains an 
additional unemployed adult who is physically capable of caring for children. 
 

4. Dependent:  A member of the family household (excluding foster children) other than the family 
head or spouse, who is under 18 years of age or is a Disabled Person or Disabled Person, or is a Full 
Time Student.  An unborn child shall not be considered a dependent. 
 

5. Designated Housing:  A development (or developments) or a portion of a development (or 
developments) that has been designated in accordance with 24 CFR Part 945. 
 

6. Disabled Assistance Expenses:  Reasonable expenses that are anticipated, during the period for 
which Annual Income is computed, for attendant care and auxiliary apparatus for a Disabled or 
Disabled Family member and that are necessary to enable a Family member (including the 
Disabled or Disabled member) to be employed, provided that the expenses are neither paid to a 
member of the Family nor reimbursed by an outside source. 

 
7. Employed: Any eligible household member 18 years of age or older and is employed.  The 

employment income must be countable under the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development’s definition of annual income.   

 
8. Enrolled in a Job Training Program: Any eligible household member 18 years of age or older and is 

currently enrolled and participating in a job training program that prepares the applicant to enter or 
renter the job market.  Verification shall be required from the job-training program. 
 

9. Extremely Low-Income Family:  A family’s whose Annual Income does not exceed the higher of 
30% of the area median income, as determined by HUD or the poverty guideline established by 
the Department of Health and Human Services applicable to the family size. 
 

10. Graduate of Job Training Program: Any eligible household member 18 years of age or older is a 
graduate of a job-training program that prepares the applicant to enter or reenter the job market.  
Verification shall be required from the job-training program.   



  Yolo County Housing 
 20 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
11. Head of Household:  Head of Household means the adult member of the family who is held 

primarily responsible and accountable for the family, particularly in regard to lease obligations. 
 
12. Low Income Family:  A family whose Annual Income does not exceed 80 percent of the median 

income for the area, as determined by HUD, with adjustments for smaller and larger families.  
HUD may establish income limits higher or lower than 80 percent of the median income for the 
area on the basis of its finding that such variations are necessary because of the prevailing levels of 
construction costs of unusually high or low family incomes. 

 
13. Medical Expenses:  Those medical expenses, including medical insurance premiums, that are 

anticipated during the period for which Annual Income is computed, and that are not covered by 
Insurance.  Medical expenses, in excess of 10% of Annual Income, are deductible from annual 
income for eligible families.  Medical expenses must be Flexible Spending Account (FSA) eligible.  
Medical expenses must be Internal Revenue Service (IRS) eligible. 

 
14. Military Service:  Military service means the active military service of the United States, which 

includes the Army, Navy, Air Force, Marine Corps, Coast Guard, and since July 29, 1945, the 
Commissioned Corps of the United States Public Health Service.  

 
15. Minor:  A "minor" is a person less that eighteen years of age. (An unborn child may not be counted 

as a minor but is counted for eligibility of a single, pregnant female.)  An infant is a child under the 
age of two.  Unemancipated minors shall not be eligible for participation in the public housing 
program because they cannot be legally held to a contract.   

 
16. Mixed Population Development: A public housing development, or portion of a development, that 

was reserved for elderly families and disabled families at its inception (and has retained that 
character).  If the development was not so reserved at its inception, YCH has obtained HUD 
approval to give preference in tenant selection for all units in the development (or portion of a 
development) to elderly families and disabled families.  These developments formerly were known 
as elderly developments. 

 
 
17. Net Family Assets:  “Net Family Assets” include the value of, or equity in, real property, savings, 

bonds, stocks, and other forms of capital investments after deducting reasonable costs that would 
be incurred in the disposition of such assets.  The value of personal property such as furniture and 
automobiles is to be disregarded in the Net Assets determination.  Also, the interests in Indian 
trust land and equity accounts in HUD homeownership programs is to be disregarded.  (In cases 
where a trust fund has been established and the trust is not revocable by, or under the control of, 
any member of the family or household, the value of the trust fund will not be considered as an 
asset so long as the fund continues to be held in trust.  Any income distributed from the trust fund 
shall be counted when determining Annual Income.)  In determining Net Family Assets, YCH shall 
include the value of any assets disposed of by an applicant or tenant for less than fair market value 
(including a disposition in trust, but not in a foreclosure or bankruptcy sale) during the two years 
preceding the date of application for the program or re-examination, as applicable, in excess of 
the consideration received therefore.  In the case of a disposition as part of a separation or divorce 



  Yolo County Housing 
 21 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

settlement, the disposition will not be considered to be for less than fair market value if the 
applicant or resident received important consideration not measurable in dollar terms. 

 
18. Pre-Application:  The term pre-application, for the purposes of this policy, refers to the initial 

application submitted to YCH.  This pre-application is not reviewed or verified by YCH and 
determinations are made based upon the information submitted by the applicant.  The verification 
and update of the information submitted is required in order to determine eligibility for the 
program or placement on the waiting list. 

 
19. Public Housing Authority/Agency (PHA):  A government entity as authorized by the California 

Health & Safety Code in conformance with the 1937 Housing Act, as amended, to engage in or 
assist in the development or operation of housing for lower income families.  The term “public 
housing” includes dwelling units in a mixed finance development that are assisted with capital 
funds or operating assistance.   
 

20. Rent:  For purposes of determining whether an applicant is entitled to a priority for public housing 
admission based on current rent as a percentage of monthly income (if applicable), rent is defined 
as the actual amount due, calculated on a monthly basis, under a lease or rental agreement 
between a family and the family's current landlord, plus any monthly payments that a family 
makes toward tenant purchased utilities (except telephone) and other housing services.  In 
calculating a family's payments toward utilities and other housing services, YCH will use its 
reasonable estimate of tenant-purchased utilities and other housing services that are normally 
included in rent; or if the family chooses, the family's average monthly utility costs, based on the 
family's utility bills furnished by the family, for the most recent 12-month period, or, where bills 
are not obtainable for the entire period, for an appropriate recent period. 
 

21. Spouse:  Spouse means the husband or wife of the head of household. 
 

22. Tenant Rent:  The amount payable monthly by the Family as rent to YCH.  Where all utilities 
(except telephone) and other essential housing services are supplied by YCH, Tenant Rent equals 
Total Tenant Payment.  Where some or all utilities (except telephone) and other essential housing 
services are not supplied by YCH and the cost thereof is not included in the amount paid as rent, 
Tenant Rent equals Total Tenant Payment less the Utility Allowance. 

 
23. Utility:  Electricity, gas, heating fuel, water, sewage services, and trash and garbage collection. 

Web and tele-communications service is not included as a Utility. 
 
24. Utility Allowance:  If the cost of utility (except web and tele-communications) for an assisted unit is 

not included in the Total Tenant Payment but is the responsibility of the family occupying the unit, 
an amount equal to the estimate made by YCH or HUD, of the monthly cost of a reasonable 
consumption of such utilities and other services for the unit by an energy-conservative household 
of modest circumstances consistent with the requirements of a quality living environment. 

 
25. Utility Reimbursement Payment (URP):  The amount, if any, by which the Utility Allowance for the 

unit, if applicable, exceeds the Total Tenant Payment for the family occupying the unit.  
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 22 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

26. Very Low-Income Family:  A family whose annual income does not exceed 50 percent of the 
median income for the area, as determined by HUD, with adjustments for small and larger 
families. HUD may establish income limits higher or lower than 50 percent of the median income 
for the area on the basis of its finding that such variations are necessary because of unusually high 
or low family incomes. 

 
27. Welfare Assistance:  Welfare or other payments to families or individuals, based on need, that are 

made under programs funded, separately or jointly, by federal, state or local governments. 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 23 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

PREFERENCES 
(24 CFR 960.206) 

 
 

YCH will offer the following preferences for the Public Housing Program.  During the pre-application period, 
families can update their preferences in writing.  Preferences will be verified at the time of full application 
(determination of eligibility) and any change in preference status may change the applicant family’s total 
score and may change their position on the waiting list.   

 
Yolo County Resident The residency preference is limited to the jurisdictional boundaries of the 

County of Yolo.  Use of the residency preference will not have the purpose 
or effect of delaying admission to the program based on the creed, familial 
status, sexual orientation, race, color, ethnic origin, gender, religion, 
disability, or age of any member of an applicant family.  Applicants who 
live or work in the County of Yolo at the time of determination of 
eligibility. [1 Point] 

 
Veteran Preference Any individual who served in the active military, naval, or air service of the 

United States who received an honorable discharge or was released from 
active duty under honorable conditions.  This preference also applies to 
veterans and the surviving spouses of U.S. veterans. [1 Point] 

 
Working Preference Families with at least one adult who is employed and has been employed 

for at least 6 months at an average of at least 20 hours per week at the 
time of determination of eligibility.  This definition includes families where 
at least one adult was employed and is receiving unemployment benefits.  
This preference is automatically extended to elderly families or a family 
whose head or spouse is receiving income based on their permanent 
disability. [1 Point] 

 
Involuntarily Displaced Families who, within 2 years of the determination of eligibility, are 

displaced through no fault of their own for one or more of the following 
reasons.  Families will receive credit for this preference only once, 
regardless of whether or not they qualify under more than one of the 
instances below.  [2 Points] 
 
Natural Disaster 
 
Families that are displaced as a result of a federally-declared natural 
disaster that extensively damaged or destroyed their dwelling. 
 
Governmental Action 
 
Families that are displaced as a result of governmental action or that 
reside in dilapidated housing that is cited by local government officials or a 
local code enforcement agency. This preference applies to housing that 

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=ce1461759bbc14be1858015db1cc0ed3&mc=true&node=se24.4.960_1206&rgn=div8


  Yolo County Housing 
 24 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

does not provide safe, adequate shelter, has one or more critical defects 
or a combination of defects requiring considerable repair or endangers the 
health, safety, and well-being of the family or has been declared unfit for 
habitation. 

 
Victims of Domestic Violence 

 
Families where the head or spouse is the victim of domestic violence.  This 
preference must be documented by a referral from a social service agency, 
restraining order, proof of residency in a domestic violence shelter, or 
other similar means. 
 
Witness Protection 

 
Families that are part of a Witness Protection Program and, after a threat 
assessment, the applicable law enforcement agency recommends housing 
the family to avoid or reduce the risk of violence against the family. 

 
Hate Crime 

 
Families who are displaced due to a family member being the victim of 
one or more hate crimes and the family has vacated the unit because of 
the crime.  Documentation of a hate crime includes a police report clearly 
indicating the nature of the crime or referral from local law enforcement. 

 
Section 8 Participant Families who were terminated by YCH from YCH Section 8 Housing Choice 

Voucher Program solely due to the lack of funding for their assistance. [1 
Point] 

 
At pre-application, the family will be placed on the waiting list based upon their total points, thereafter 
ordered by date and time of application.  Preferences will be verified at the time of full application 
(determination of eligibility) and families must meet the qualification requirements at that time. 
 
Applicants are responsible for updating any information and reporting any changes to their mailing address, 
contact information, preferences, income, and family composition.  Applicants are advised that the failure 
to update information may dramatically affect their position on the waiting list and full eligibility is 
determined from the full application. 
 
In the event of a declared natural disaster in or around the service area, YCH may, at its discretion, provide 
preference to those families displaced as a result of natural disaster and will house evacuees as priority over 
current applicants on the waiting list.  Disaster-affected families that were currently residing in public 
housing prior to the disaster will be first offered a unit in public housing, if available. 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 25 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 
 

ADMISSIONS AND CONTINUED OCCUPANCY POLICY 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Part C:  ADMISSIONS  
 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 26 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

ADMISSIONS 
(24 CFR 960) 

 
1. Non-Discrimination 
 

The selection of residents for occupancy of available units will be in conformance with federal and 
state regulations and applicable Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity Requirements, as outlined 
elsewhere in this policy. 
 

2. Treatment of YCH Employees (24 CFR 982.552) 
 
Employees of YCH strive to provide the highest level of customer service and to conduct 
themselves in a professional manner.  YCH also requires that applicants, residents, and members 
of the general public conduct themselves in a civil and non-abusive manner.  In the event an 
applicant, resident, or member of the public becomes abusive (either verbally or physically), 
uses profanity, or otherwise threatens the safety of any employee, they will be asked to leave 
the premises immediately.  Repeated abuse of YCH employees will result in a call to local law 
enforcement.   
 
YCH reserves the right to deny or terminate assistance in accordance with 24 CFR 982.552 5.c 
(ix) “If the family has engaged in or threatened abusive or violent behavior toward PHA 
personnel”.    
 

3. Income Targeting (24 CFR 960.202) 
 

YCH will admit for occupancy eligible families and strive for no less than 40% of available dwelling 
units occupied by eligible families whose incomes at the time of commencement of occupancy do 
not exceed 30% of the area median income. 

 
4. Deconcentration 
 

YCH will strive to create mixed-income communities and lessen the concentration of very-low 
income families within YCH’s public housing developments through admissions policies designed 
to bring in higher income tenants into lower income developments and lower income tenants 
into higher income developments.  This policy shall not be construed to impose or require any 
specific income or racial quotas for any public housing development owned by YCH. 
 
Refer to the appendix for the Deconcentration Policy. 

 

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=ce1461759bbc14be1858015db1cc0ed3&mc=true&node=pt24.4.960&rgn=div5
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=ce1461759bbc14be1858015db1cc0ed3&mc=true&node=pt24.4.960&rgn=div5#se24.4.960_1202


  Yolo County Housing 
 27 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

OUTREACH TO HIGHER INCOME FAMILIES 
 
1. Outreach to Higher Income Families 
 

YCH encourages program participation by higher income families.  In an effort to create mixed-
income communities and lessen the concentration of very-low income families within YCH’s 
public housing developments, YCH will conduct outreach targeted to higher income working 
families.   

 
2. Incentives 

 
In order to achieve deconcentration, YCH may choose to skip an applicant on the waiting list in 
order to house a family who is willing to accept a unit in a targeted development.  YCH may also 
grant incentive rents (or other incentives) for the purpose of creating mixed income 
communities and lessening the concentration of extremely low and very-low income families in 
one area.  The applicant family shall have sole discretion of determining whether to accept the 
incentive and YCH shall not take any adverse action toward any eligible family for choosing not 
to accept an incentive.  
 

 



  Yolo County Housing 
 28 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

APPLICATION TAKING 
 
The Pre-Application Versus the Application 
 
There is a significant difference between the pre-application and the application.  Applications begin in the 
pre-application process to hold a position on the waiting list.  This in no way guarantees your eligibility for 
housing OR your position on the waiting list since the pre-application is not verified by YCH.  Reporting 
incorrect or insufficient information may result in a significant change in the waiting list position once 
eligibility is determined.  It is critical that all pre-application information be accurate and maintained up-to-
date. 
 
As an applicant nears the top of the waiting list, a full application is taken in accordance with this policy. All 
information is verified to determine full eligibility.  If, for some reason, the information in the full 
application conflicts with the information in the pre-application, this could change the applicants position 
on the waiting list, affect the eligibility for a certain sized unit, or even cause the applicant to be 
determined ineligible.  If an applicant is determined eligible at the full application, they will be offered an 
upcoming unit as one becomes available. 
 
The Application Process 
 
All admissions to public housing shall be made on the basis of a personal interview where an application is 
completed by the applicant family and personnel.  The Application for Admission shall constitute the basic 
legal record of each family applying for admission and shall support YCH’s determinations of eligibility 
status, priority status, rent, and size of unit for which the applicant is qualified.  All supplemental materials 
pertaining to eligibility shall be considered a part of the application record and carefully recorded.  This 
includes verifications of income and family composition and such other data as may be required.  The 
following conditions shall govern the taking and processing of applications: 
 
1. All applicants shall complete a pre-application online and shall provide all information requested in 

the system. 
 
2. As the applicant nears the top of the waiting list, applicants shall complete and sign a full 

application and certify, subject to civil and criminal penalties, to the accuracy of all statements 
made therein.  The application shall include: 

 

• Names and ages of all family members 

• Sex and relationship of all members 

• Street address and phone numbers 

• Mailing address (if P.O. Box or other permanent address) 

• Amount(s) and source(s) of income received by household members 

• Information regarding disabilities (used to determine qualifications or allowances and 
deductions) 

• Information related to qualification for preferences 

• Social Security Numbers 

• Race/ethnicity 

• Requests for specific accommodation needed to fully utilize program and services 



  Yolo County Housing 
 29 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

• Proof of citizenship  

• Proof of student status 

• Previous address 

• Current landlord verification 

• Name of emergency contact person and address 

• Criminal background check (all records, once reviewed, will be discarded) 

• Non-family references 

• Assets 

• Credit check 
 
3. Applications for the public housing program will be completed during a one on one interview 

between the applicant family and YCH personnel and shall be maintained on YCH’s computer 
system.  Applicants shall complete and sign the application and certify, subject to civil and criminal 
penalties, to the accuracy of all statements made therein.  YCH reserves the right to require the 
signature of any or all adult members of the applicant household.   

 
4. Applicants will be required to submit verification documentation as part of the application 

process. Applicants will be given a list of required verifications at the time of their interview with 
designated YCH personnel for the purpose of determining eligibility.   

 
5. Should applicants fail to provide required verification documentation within time frame 

established by YCH, their case will be placed in an inactive status and will be required to reapply. 
 
6. YCH will normally take applications from a central location that will allow for processing by staff 

persons knowledgeable of the rules and regulations governing resident selection and assignment, 
but reserves the right to establish satellite locations for application taking. 

 
7. YCH reserves the right to establish times for taking applications, including by appointment.  YCH 

staff may, at its discretion, provide for application interviews outside normal hours when 
necessary for hardship reasons. 

 
8. Insofar as possible, application interviews shall be conducted in private. 
 
9. Pre-applications shall be updated as applicants report changes in income and family 

circumstances. All modifications to pre-applications shall be properly documented and the 
transaction initialed by the staff member making the change.  In the event an applicant fails to 
report changes and is selected from the waiting list, the pre-application will be considered 
incomplete until the information is verified.  If the change does not require a redetermination of 
eligibility (addition of a minor child, change in income that does not exceed the established 
income limits, or similar minor change), the Pre-application will retain its original pre-application 
date and time.  If the change does require a redetermination of eligibility requiring a new 
background check, credit check, or similar significant change, the pre-application will be assigned a 
new date and time once eligibility is redetermined. 

 
10. All active pre-applications will be purged periodically; however, no less than once every 3 years.  

Notification shall be sent via U. S. Mail to each applicant informing them that unless they confirm 



  Yolo County Housing 
 30 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

their continued interest, the application will be retired from the active file.  The family’s response 
must be in writing and may be delivered in person, by mail, or by fax.  It is the family’s 
responsibility to ensure that YCH receives the confirmation.    In the event that confirmation from 
the family is not received within 15 calendar days, the family will receive a 2nd and final notice 
informing them that they will be removed from the waiting list unless confirmation is received 
within the 15 calendar days of the second notice.  In the event that confirmation is not received 
within 15 calendar days, the family will be removed from the waiting list without further 
notification.  When a notification is returned as undeliverable, the family will be removed from the 
waiting list without further notification.  If a family is removed from the waiting list for failure to 
confirm their continued interest, they may, within 90 calendar days of the date of the second 
notification, request an administrative review to review the application and may be reinstated for 
good cause as determined by YCH.  After 90 calendar days, reinstatement will not be considered. 

 
11. Applicants on YCH waiting lists for any other type of assisted housing have no status with respect 

to the Low-Rent Public Housing Program.  Applicants must submit separate applications for other 
programs.  Applicants will not lose their place on any other YCH wait list should they make an 
application for “Low-Rent” public housing. 
 

12. Once an applicant is housed in a public housing unit, they will be removed from all other public 
housing wait lists as outlined in the Tenant Selection and Assignment Plan. 

 
13. YCH shall maintain such records as are necessary to document the disposition of all applications. 



  Yolo County Housing 
 31 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA 
(24 CFR 960.201) 

 
1. YCH shall use the guidelines and procedures prescribed by HUD at the time of applicant processing 

to make a final determination of household eligibility. 
 
2. All families who are admitted to Public Housing must be individually determined eligible under the 

terms of this policy.  In order to be determined eligible, an applicant family must meet ALL of the 
following requirements: 

 
a. The applicant family must qualify as a family as defined in Part B. 

 
b. The single person applicant must qualify as a single person as defined in Part B. 

 
c. The applicant's Annual Income as defined in Part B (HUD Secretary's definition) must not 

exceed income limits established by the Department of Housing and Urban Development 
for Public Housing in the County of YCH jurisdiction. 

 
d. The applicant family must conform to the Occupancy Standards contained in this policy 

regarding unit size and type and the family will occupy unit as it’s sole place of residence. 
 

e. The applicant must have a satisfactory record in meeting past financial obligations, 
especially in payment of rent.  In situations where an unsatisfactory record is obtained 
YCH shall take into consideration extenuating circumstances such as illness, or other 
incidents beyond the control of the applicant. 

 
f. Section 214 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1980, as amended, 

prohibits the Secretary of the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) from 
making financial assistance available to persons who are other than United States citizens, 
nationals, or certain categories of eligible non-citizens either applying to or residing in 
specified Section 214 covered programs.  Section 214 programs include: Public Housing and 
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program. 

 
g. The applicant family must have properly completed all application requirements, including 

verifications.  Misrepresentation of income, family composition or any other information 
affecting eligibility, rent, unit size, neighborhood assignment, etc. will result in the family 
being declared ineligible.  In the event the misrepresentation is discovered after 
admission, the family may be subsequently evicted, even if the family meets current 
eligibility criteria at that time.  

 
h. Any tenant evicted from federally assisted housing by reason of drug-related criminal 

activity convictions shall not be eligible for federally assisted housing during the 3-year 
period beginning from the date of such eviction, unless the evicted tenant successfully 
completes a rehabilitation program approved by YCH, and/or if the circumstances 
leading to eviction no longer exists. 

 

https://ecfr.io/Title-24/sp24.4.960.b#se24.4.960_1201


  Yolo County Housing 
 32 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

i. If YCH determines that any applicant or household member is a person currently 
engaging in illegal use of drugs, or currently engaged in criminal activity, or a person 
convicted of methamphetamine production, a person subject to sex offender 
registration, a person showing a pattern of alcohol abuse; YCH has the right to use 
criminal conviction records to make such determinations.  Any of the above are subject 
to denial.   In accordance with HUD guidance outlined in PIH Notice 2015-19, YCH will 
not consider an arrest as evidence of criminal activity for the purpose of denial of 
admission to the public housing program.  YCH may consider the conduct of the 
individual is not suitable for tenancy if there is sufficient evidence other than the arrest 
record.  

 
QWHRA further stipulates that individuals convicted of manufacturing or producing 
methamphetamine on federal property will be permanently denied admission to public 
housing and a current resident’s tenancy will be immediately and permanently 
terminated if convicted of manufacturing or producing methamphetamine.     

 
j. Notwithstanding any other provision of the law, YCH shall prohibit admission to public 

housing for any household with a member who YCH determines is illegally using a 
controlled substance; or, YCH determines that it has reasonable cause to believe that 
such household member’s illegal use (or pattern of illegal use) of a controlled substance, 
or abuse (or pattern of abuse) of alcohol, may interfere with the health, safety, or right 
to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other residents. 
 
In determining whether to deny admission to public housing to any household based on 
a pattern of illegal use of a controlled substance or a pattern of abuse of alcohol by a 
household member, YCH may consider whether such household member: 

i.  Has successfully completed a supervised drug or alcohol rehabilitation program 
(as applicable) and is no longer engaging in the illegal use of a controlled 
substance or abuse of alcohol (as applicable);  

 
ii. Has otherwise been rehabilitated successfully and is no longer engaging in the 

illegal use of a controlled substance or abuse of alcohol (as applicable); or 
 
iii. Is participating in a supervised drug or alcohol rehabilitation program (as 

applicable) and is no longer engaging in the illegal use of a controlled substance 
or abuse of alcohol (as applicable).  

 
k. YCH shall prohibit admission for any applicant or member of the applicant’s household 

that YCH determines is subject to a lifetime registration requirement under a state sex 
offender registration program.  YCH will conduct sexual offender registration 
background checks on all household members, ten (10) years of age or older. 

 
3. Substance abuse as described in this policy and drug-related criminal activity as described in this 

policy shall include, but not be limited to, the illegal manufacture, sale, distribution, use, or 
possession with intent to manufacture, sell, distribute, or use, of a controlled substance (as 



  Yolo County Housing 
 33 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

defined in section 102 of the Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. 802), and Section 428 of the FY 
1999 HUD Appropriations Act). 

 
4. Sources of information for eligibility determination may include, but are not limited to, the 

applicant (by means of interviews or home visits), landlords, employers, family social workers, 
parole officers, court records, drug treatment centers, clinics, physicians or police departments 
where warranted by the particular circumstances.  YCH may not deny admission to an applicant 
based solely on an arrest record of the applicant or any member of the applicant’s family.  
Information relative to the acceptance or rejection of an applicant shall be documented in 
accordance with Part C: Verification, and placed in the applicant's file.  Such documentation may 
include reports of interviews, letters or written summaries of telephone conversations with 
reliable sources. At a minimum, such reports shall indicate the date, the source of information, 
including the name and title of the individual contacted, and a summary of the information 
received. 

 
5. In the event of the receipt of unfavorable information with respect to an applicant, consideration 

shall be given to the time, nature, and extent of the applicant's conduct or to factors that might 
indicate a reasonable probability of favorable future conduct or financial prospects.  For example: 

 
a. Evidence of rehabilitation. 

 
b. Evidence of the applicant family's participation or willingness to participate in social 

services or other appropriate counseling service programs and the availability of such 
programs. 

 
c. Evidence of the applicant family's willingness to attempt to increase family income and 

the availability of training or employment programs in the locality. 
 

d. In the case of applicants whose capacity for independent living and discharge of lease 
obligations is in question, the resources actually available in support of the family, such as 
visiting nurses, homemakers or Live-In caretakers. 

 
6. Tenancy at properties for elderly and/or disabled persons will be based upon the applicant’s ability 

to live independently or to live independently with supportive services. 
 
7. YCH will not unnecessarily segregate individuals with disabilities to particular areas or 

developments.  YCH will provide assistance to enable all individuals with disabilities to meet legal 
requirements; for example, YCH could provide interpreters, Braille or taped versions of leases, 
recertifications, and other legal documents, whatever is appropriate. 

 
8. In the event an individual is refused housing based on one or more of the above screening criteria, 

s/he may request in writing an informal review to the General Director, or his/her designee. 
 
9. United States Citizenship and Immigration Service (USCIS) Denial (24 CFR 5).  Assistance to applicant 

shall be denied in accordance with the procedures for any of the following events: 
 

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=b5bcdb42e62773460d032e8b7ec7f2d7&mc=true&node=sp24.1.5.e&rgn=div6


  Yolo County Housing 
 34 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

(i) Evidence of citizenship (i.e. the Declaration) and eligible immigration status is not 
submitted by the date specified or by the expiration of any extension granted; or, 

 
(ii) Evidence of citizenship and eligible immigration status is submitted on a timely 

basis, but USCIS primary and secondary verification does not verify eligible 
immigration status of all family members.   This determination shall not be final 
while the family pursues an administrative process through USCIS. 



  Yolo County Housing 
 35 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

SCREENING 
 
1. Under section 575 of the Quality Housing and Work Responsibility Act (QHWRA), YCH will 

require, as a condition of providing admission to YCH, that each adult member of the household 
provide a signed, written, authorization for YCH to obtain records regarding such member of the 
household from the National Crime Information Center, police department, and other law 
enforcement agencies. 

 
Before an adverse action is taken with respect to an applicant for occupancy on the basis that an 
individual is subject to a lifetime registration requirement under a state sex offender registration 
program, YCH shall provide the applicant with a copy of the registration information and an 
opportunity to dispute the accuracy and relevance of that information. 

 
2. In accordance with the YCH Applicant Screening Policy, each applicant for housing in its dwelling 

units shall be screened in accordance with its existing policies and that appropriate screening 
shall be conducted so that admission shall be denied to a public housing applicant who: 
 
a. was evicted from assisted housing within three years of the projected date of admission 

because of drug-related criminal activity; or 
 

b. has ever been convicted of drug-related criminal activity for the production or manufacture 
of methamphetamine on the premises of federally assisted housing; or 

 
c. YCH determines an applicant is illegally using a controlled substance; or 

 
d. YCH has reasonable cause to believe an applicant illegally uses a controlled substance or 

abuses alcohol in a way that may interfere with the health, safety, or right to peaceful 
enjoyment of the premises by other residents. 

 
e. is subject to a lifetime registration requirement under a state sex offender registration 

program. 
 

The term "appropriate screening" refers to the YCH's applying discretion to consider all available 
information when making a decision to deny admission. 

 
3. To implement this policy, YCH, in addition to existing screening procedures, also will use the 

following procedures: 
 

A. Criminal History—The applicant and all adults listed on the application must sign a 
release allowing YCH to request a criminal history report. The YCH then shall make 
request to the appropriate agency for a criminal history report or local police records.  

 
 If YCH uses information contained in a criminal history report as grounds for denying 

housing assistance and the applicant requests an informal hearing on the denial, a copy 
of the criminal history will be provided to the applicant at the hearing, if permitted by 



  Yolo County Housing 
 36 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

local state, or federal law, and the applicant shall be allowed to dispute the accuracy or 
relevancy of the criminal history report.  

 
B. Illegal Use of a Controlled Substance—Admission shall be denied to any person who YCH 

determines is illegally using a controlled substance. In addition to any information 
regarding illegal use of a controlled substance that appears on the criminal history 
report, YCH also shall rely upon information obtained from other sources, such as local 
police incident reports, landlords, employers, social service agencies, substance abuse 
centers, acquaintances (including current tenants) who may contact the YCH to 
volunteer information, YCH records of complaints received about drug activities 
involving any of its tenants in which the applicant is a participant of such activities, or 
any other appropriate source. YCH shall examine carefully all such information obtained 
from other sources to determine that there is reasonable cause to believe that the 
person's pattern of illegal use of a controlled substance may interfere with the health, 
safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other residents. 

 
C. Alcohol Abuse—Admission shall be denied to any person when YCH determines that 

there is reasonable cause to believe that the person's pattern of abuse of alcohol may 
interfere with the health and/or safety, or the right to peaceful enjoyment of the 
premises by other residents. In making such determination, YCH shall rely upon relevant 
information obtained from local law enforcement agencies, social service agencies, 
landlords, employers, alcohol abuse centers, acquaintances (including current tenants) 
who may contact YCH to volunteer information, or any other appropriate source. YCH 
shall examine carefully all such information obtained to determine whether it has 
reasonable cause to believe that the person's pattern of abuse of alcohol may interfere 
with the health and/or safety, or the right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by 
other residents. 

 
D. Waiver of Policies—YCH may waive policies prohibiting admission if the person 

demonstrates to YCH's satisfaction that the person no longer is engaging in illegal use of 
a controlled substance or abuse of alcohol and: 

 
— has successfully completed a supervised drug or alcohol rehabilitation program; 
 
— has otherwise been rehabilitated successfully; or 
 
— is participating in a supervised drug or alcohol rehabilitation program. 

 
E. Ineligibility if Evicted for Drug-Related Activity—Persons evicted from any federally-

funded public housing program because of drug-related criminal activity are ineligible 
for admission to public housing for a three-year period beginning on the date of such 
eviction. (Drug-related criminal activity is the illegal manufacture, sale, distribution, use 
or possession with intent to manufacture, sell, distribute or use a controlled substance.) 
YCH shall use information contained in its own files, or information obtained from other 
housing agencies to make a determination that the person is ineligible. This requirement 
may be waived if: 



  Yolo County Housing 
 37 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
— the person demonstrates successful completion of a rehabilitation program 

approved by YCH, or 
 
— the circumstances leading to the eviction no longer exist. For example, the 

individual involved in drugs in no longer in the household because the person is 
incarcerated. 

 
Disability Not An Issue—The purpose of the above applicant screening procedures is to 
prohibit admission to YCH's housing of any person that it determines to be likely to 
interfere with the health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by 
other residents. In considering the elements leading to the determination, YCH shall not 
focus on whether the applicant happens to have a disability; rather, the focus shall be 
on whether the person's recent behavior indicates that s/he would  likely continue to 
engage in behavior that would be in non-compliance with the dwelling lease.  

 
4. The applicant’s signed written consent shall expire automatically after YCH has made a final 

decision to either approve or deny the applicant’s application for admittance to public housing. 
 
5. Conditions for Denial 
 

a. The applicant or resident currently owes rent or other amounts to a PHA or to another agency 
in connection with HCV, Public Housing, or any other subsidized affordable housing program 
operated by the PHA.   

 
b. The applicant has committed any fraud in connection with federal housing assistance 

program. 
 

c. New admission has breached an “Agreement to Repay” any monies due YCH.  If the applicant 
owes money as a prior participant, the applicant will not be accepted, nor placed on the 
waiting list, until payment in full has been received. 

 
d. The applicant family must have no record of eviction or for disturbance of neighbors, 

destruction of property, unsafe living habits, unsanitary housekeeping practices, substance 
abuse; or, any ongoing pattern over the last three years of tenancy history that would 
reasonably be expected to adversely affect: 

 
1. The health, safety, or welfare of other residents; 

 
2. The peaceful enjoyment of the neighborhood by other residents; or 

 
3. The physical environment and fiscal stability of the neighborhood. 

 
e. The applicant family must not have a record of grossly unsanitary or hazardous housekeeping 

that meets the definition of a health and safety code violation.  For example, this could include 
the creation of a fire hazards, infestation due to improperly disposed of garbage/trash, serious 



  Yolo County Housing 
 38 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

neglect of the premises affecting neighbors and the community, neglect to mitigate 
mildew/mold issues in unit caused by tenant.  This is verified through photographic or 
documented evidence by previous or current landlords.  When a qualified agency is 
successfully working with the applicant family to improve its housekeeping, the decision as to 
eligibility shall be reached by the General Director and/or s/he designee 

 
f. The applicant must not have a history of non-compliance with rental agreements including 

failure to comply with the terms of the rental agreements on prior residences, such as 
providing shelter to unauthorized persons, keeping pets or other acts in violation of rules and 
regulations.   

 
g. Selected families must have capacity to comply with all terms and conditions of the lease. 

Families needing more information regarding reasonable accommodations, see Appendix D.    
 

h. A former resident who owes a balance to YCH or any other PHA will not be considered for re-
admission until the account is paid in full. 

 
i. Co-signers may be considered for an applicant if income, credit, or landlord reference is in 

question. All co-signers must be approved by the General Director and/or her/his designee.   
 

 
  
 
 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 39 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

RECORDS MANAGEMENT AND CONFIDENTIALITY 
 
1. Records Management 
 

a. All records obtained for the purpose of applicant screening shall be maintained 
confidentially and in accordance with applicable federal and state laws and in 
accordance with YCH Records and Retention Policy.   

 
2. Confidentiality 
 

YCH receiving information for the purpose of applicant screening shall not be disclosed to any 
person who is not an officer, employee, or authorized representative of YCH and who has a job-
related need to have access to the information in connection with admission of applicants, 
eviction of tenants, or termination of assistance.  For judicial eviction proceedings, disclosures 
may be made to the extent necessary.   
 
Any officer, employee, or authorized representative of YCH who knowingly and willfully requests 
or obtains any information concerning an applicant for, or tenant of YCH, under false pretenses, 
or any officer, employee, or authorized representative of YCH who knowingly and willfully 
discloses any such information in any manner to any individual not entitled under law to receive 
it, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and subject to the fines of the state. 
 

 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 40 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

VERIFICATION OF INCOME AND CIRCUMSTANCES 
(24 CFR 960.259) 

 
No applicant family shall be admitted to public housing without thorough verification of income, family 
composition and all other factors pertaining to the applicant's eligibility, rent, unit size and type, priority 
rating, etc.  The same type of verifications are required to process any interim or annual re-examination for 
public housing residents.  Complete and accurate verification documentation shall be maintained for each 
applicant and resident.  Such documentation may include, but is not limited to, the following: 
 
1. Letters or other statements from employers and other pertinent sources giving authoritative 

information concerning all items and amounts of income and deductions, together with other 
eligibility and preference determinations; 

 
2. Third party verification forms supplied by YCH and returned properly completed by employers, 

public welfare agencies, etc.; 
 
3. Originals, photocopies, or carbon copies of documents in the applicant's possession which 

substantiate his statements, or a brief summary of the pertinent contents of such documents 
signed and dated by the staff member who viewed them.  Such documents must be within 60 days 
current. No determinations will be made based upon information/documents more than two (2) 
months old; 

 
4. Statements from self-employed persons, and from persons whose earnings are irregular, such as 

salesmen, etc., sworn to before a Notary, setting forth gross receipts, itemized expenses and net 
income (expenses incurred for business expansion or amortization of capital indebtedness are to 
be included in net income); 

 
5. Memoranda of verification data obtained by personal interview, home visit, telephone, or other 

means, with source, date received, name and title of person receiving the information clearly 
indicated, and a summary of information received; 

 
6. Certified birth certificates, or other substantial proof of age, to support claims to the various 

entitlements in these policies for each member of the household; 
 
7. Proof of disability, or of physical impairment, if necessary to determine the applicant's eligibility as 

a family or entitlement to consideration under the criteria established in these policies, provided 
in written form by the appropriate government agency or medical professional; 

 
8. Statements from landlords, family social workers, parole officers, court records, drug treatment 

centers, clinics, physicians, State Department of Law Enforcement, county sheriff’s department or 
police departments, where warranted in individual cases; 

 
9. Receipts for utility services; 
 
10. For households reporting “zero” income, YCH will require statements and verification from parties 

who are identified as providing non-cash contributions such as groceries and clothing; 

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=8debc0c43078e4c7607c4fe6f1b63c83&mc=true&node=se24.4.960_1259&rgn=div8


  Yolo County Housing 
 41 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
11. When verification cannot be accomplished by either form of third party verification or review of 

documents, the applicant/resident will be required to submit a notarized statement.  
 
12. Verification of Citizenship/Eligible Immigrant Status (24 CFR 5.512) 
 

To be eligible for assistance, individuals must be U.S. citizens or eligible immigrants.  Individuals 
who are neither may elect not to contend their status.  Eligible immigrants must fall into one of the 
categories specified by federal regulations and must have their status verified by Citizenship and 
Immigration Service (USCIS).  Each family member must declare his or her status once.  Assistance 
cannot be delayed, denied, or terminated while verification of status is pending. 

 
a. Citizens or Nationals of the United States.  A signed declaration of U.S. citizenship under 

penalty of perjury. YCH will also require either a U. S. Birth Certificate or a U. S. Passport. 
 

b. Eligible Immigrants who were Participants and 62 years of age or over on June 19, 1995.  A 
signed declaration of eligible immigration status and provide proof of age. 

 
c. Noncitizens with eligible immigration status.  A signed declaration of status and verification 

consent form and original immigration documents that are copied front and back and 
returned to the family.  YCH will verify the status through the USCIS SAVE system.  If this 
primary verification fails to verify status, YCH will request within ten (10) days that the 
USCIS conduct a manual search. 

 
d. Ineligible family members who do not claim to be citizens or eligible immigrant must be 

listed on a statement of ineligible family members signed by the head of household or 
spouse. 

 
e. Noncitizen students on student visas are ineligible members even though they are in the 

country lawfully.  They must provide their student visa but their status will not be verified 
and they do not sign a declaration but are listed on the statement of ineligible members. 

 
Failure to Provide.  If an applicant or participant family member fails to sign required declarations 
and consent forms or provide documents, as required, they must be listed as an ineligible member.  
If the entire family fails to provide and sign as required, the family may be denied or terminated for 
failure to provide required information. 

 
Time of Verification.  For applicants, verification of U.S. citizenship/eligible immigrant status occurs 
at the same time as the final verification other factors of eligibility.  For participants, it is done at the 
first regular recertification after June 19, 1995.  For family members added after other members 
have been verified, the verification occurs at the first recertification after the new member moves 
in.  Once verification has been completed for any covered program, it need not be repeated. 
 
Extensions of Time to Provide Documents.  Extensions must be given for persons who declare their 
eligible immigration status but need time to obtain the required documents.  The length of the 
extension shall be based on individual circumstances.   

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=b5bcdb42e62773460d032e8b7ec7f2d7&mc=true&node=sp24.1.5.e&rgn=div6#se24.1.5_1512


  Yolo County Housing 
 42 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
Acceptable Documents of Eligible Immigration.  The regulations stipulate that only the following 
documents are acceptable unless changes are published in the Federal Register. 

 

• Resident Alien Card (I-551) 

• Alien Registration Receipt Card (I-151) 

• Arrival-Departure Record (I-94) 

• Temporary Resident Card (I-688) 

• Employment Authorization Card (I-688B) 

• Receipt issued by the USCIS for issuance of replacement of any of the above documents 
that shows individual’s entitlement has been verified. 

 
13. YCH shall require the family head and other such family members as it designates to execute a 

HUD-approved release and consent authorizing any depository or private source of income, or any 
Federal, state, or local agency to furnish or release to YCH and to HUD such information as YCH or 
HUD determines to be necessary.  Because eligibility for Federal Housing Assistance is not based 
on a "declaration system" but upon verification of actual income and family circumstances, YCH is 
not limited to verification of data supplied by applicants or residents.  Failure of an applicant to 
cooperate with YCH in obtaining verifications will result in the application being declared 
incomplete and inactive.  A tenant who fails to cooperate or to release information may be 
evicted.  In addition, interim rent reductions will not be made for residents until after receipt of all 
required verifications.  In consideration of the privacy rights of residents and applicants, YCH shall 
restrict its requests to those matters of income, family composition and other family circumstance 
which are related to eligibility, rent, unit size and type, admission priority rating, or other lawful 
determinations made by YCH.  If the verified data as listed in this policy are not more than two 
months old at the time an applicant is selected for admission, and the applicant certifies by 
written statement that no change has occurred in his status, the data will be considered as 
reflecting the applicant family's status at the time of admission.  If data are more than two months 
old, all factors are to be re-verified and findings recorded.  As part of the application record of 
each applicant determined to be eligible for admission, the admitting officer or his supervisor shall 
certify that an investigation has been made of such family and that on the basis of this 
investigation, it has been determined that the applicant and his family meet all the conditions 
governing eligibility. 

 
14. Special verification requirements for earned income disallowance 

 
All residents who desire to claim an earned income exclusion under the earned income 
disallowance, must report the new earned income or increased income within fifteen (15) 
calendar days after they begin.  Failure to accurately and promptly report changes in 
employment or increased income (or other changes in income or family circumstances affecting 
eligibility for the same) will result in denial or loss of the earned income exclusions.  If such 
failure results in the resident paying lower rent than s/he would have otherwise been required 
to pay, the resident is subject to the same penalties for any other failure to report income, 
including retroactive rent.  Residents qualifying under the earned income disallowance must 
report all changes in income within fifteen (15) calendar days after they occur. 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 43 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

In addition to such other verification as YCH shall require any resident or applicant claiming an 
earned income exclusion to supply documentation in a form prescribed by YCH from employers 
and social services agencies, as applicable. 
 
No resident is automatically entitled to an earned income exclusion.  Determination of the 
eligibility for the earned income exclusion is the sole responsibility of YCH.  Notwithstanding the 
above, it is the responsibility of the resident to supply the complete and accurate information 
that YCH requires to make an eligibility determination. 
 
In the event that YCH determines that the information supplied by the resident and/or training 
agency is not adequate to determine eligibility, YCH may require additional information beyond 
that originally submitted.  No exclusions will be granted until all required information is 
obtained and verified. 
 
An adverse decision on the eligibility of an existing resident for an earned income exclusion may 
be appealed through the resident grievance procedure (subject to limitations of that procedure, 
especially as they pertain to the inapplicability of the procedure to policy issues), but YCH shall 
not be liable for any retroactive payments due to reversal of an initial determination. 
 
As with other interim rent changes, any reduction in rents, which result from the application of 
this policy, shall be effective on the first day of the month following that month in which the 
eligibility for the deduction is determined.  YCH shall not be liable for retroactive reductions if 
the resident fails to report the change within the required time period.  

 
Rent increases resulting from expiration of the earned income disallowance period provided 
under the earned income exclusion, are effective on the first day of the following month.  All 
other rent increases resulting from the application of this policy, are implemented in the same 
manner as other increases resulting from changes in income or benefits.  If the resident 
complies in an accurate and timely manner with all reporting requirements, (including 
requirements to report any changes in training or employment status which affect eligibility for 
exclusions) any increase in rent will be effective on the first day of the second month after the 
income changes are reported.  Failure to meet reporting requirements will result in rent 
increase retroactive to the date the change actually took place. 
 

15. Summary of Verified Data: A summary of verified information shall be prepared upon receipt of all 
required verification documentation and shall include the following determinations: 

 
a. Eligibility -- the applicant meets the definition of Family as defined in this policy and 

income is within the appropriate income limits for admission. 
b. Preferences 
c. Date and time of completed application 
d. Size of unit needed by family 
e. Income Exclusions and Rent to be paid 



  Yolo County Housing 
 44 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

DETERMINATION AND NOTIFICATION OF ELIGIBILITY 
(24 CFR 960.208) 

 
1. As YCH forecasts unit availability, a certain number of pre-applicants will be pulled from the top of 

the waiting list and a full application is taken.  YCH will verify the applicant’s preference and will 
determine the applicant family's eligibility for public housing in accordance with the provisions of 
this policy.  In the event an applicant family retains their position on the waiting list, the family will 
be offered housing based upon their rank.  If the preference cannot be verified or is determined to 
be invalid, the family will be ranked on the waiting list based on the new preference 
determination.   

 
2. Applicants that appear to be eligible will be notified that its eligibility determination is tentative in 

nature, being largely based on declarations made by the applicant family and is subject to further 
reviews prior to admission. 

 
3. Thorough investigation of each application will be conducted during the Applicant Interviews. 

Eligibility will be verified by YCH staff within the provisions of this policy.  The Applicant Interview 
will be conducted at the time that the application is submitted for review. 

 
4. In all cases, YCH reserves the right to withdraw any determination of eligibility, tentative or 

otherwise, when additional information indicates that the prior determination was inappropriate. 
 
5. In the event an applicant family is determined to be ineligible, the PHA must send a formal notice 

of rejection to an applicant who is rejected for admission.  The applicant family shall also be 
informed in writing of the basis for this determination.  An applicant family does not have the right 
to use the Tenant Grievance Procedure, but will be given, upon request, the opportunity for an 
informal review to present such facts as it wishes.  The applicant family will be advised that should 
an informal review be desired, a written request to this effect must be received by YCH within 15 
calendar days of the date of the notification of ineligibility. 

  
 YCH notice in writing will include the following: 

• Clearly state the reason for the rejection; 

• State the time period and process for requesting an informal review;  

• If the denial is for criminal activity, include language offering the applicant a copy of the 
criminal records and an opportunity to dispute the accuracy and relevance of the record; 
and 

• Provide notice to the applicant that a person with a disability has the opportunity to 
request consideration for reasonable accommodations. 

 
6. Informal Review 
 

a. If a request for a review is received within the specified fifteen (15) calendar day period 
YCH will notify the applicant, in writing, of the scheduled time and date of review. 

 
b. The review will be conducted by person(s) other than those who made or approved the 

decision and their subordinates.  

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=05142cb78f721949001b312e2407e3ed&mc=true&node=se24.4.960_1208&rgn=div8


  Yolo County Housing 
 45 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
c. The applicant shall be provided the opportunity to controvert evidence and arguments in 

support of their eligibility.  Evidence may be considered without regard to admissibility 
under rules of evidence applicable to judicial proceedings. 

 
d. The applicant will be apprised that they may be represented by legal counsel or other 

representative at his/her own expense. 
 

e. YCH will present fact based evidence for its decision.  The applicant may also present 
his/her position.   

 
f. Upon completion of the review and based solely on the facts provided, a written final 

decision will be provided to the applicant family and YCH within 15 calendar days. The 
decision shall state the basis for the decision.   

 
g. YCH will not be bound by a decision of the informal review where it is determined by the 

General Director or designee that the reviewer exceeded his/her authority or has made a 
determination which is inconsistent with HUD regulations, federal statute, or state or local 
law that imposes obligations on applicants or residents.  

 
h. If the decision to deny is overturned as a result of the informal review, processing for 

residency will resume.  
 
i. The record of such review/determination will be maintained by the YCH Eligibility Division. 
 
 
 

 



  Yolo County Housing 
 46 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

OCCUPANCY STANDARDS 
 
To avoid overcrowding and prevent wasted space, units are to be leased in accordance with the occupancy 
standards set forth below.  If there should be a dwelling unit that cannot be filled with a family of 
appropriate size, after all possible efforts have been made to stimulate applications, a family eligible for 
the next smaller size unit may be offered such unit.  This shall be with the understanding that the family is 
subject to later transfer to a unit of the proper size.  
 
Generally, YCH assigns units on the basis of two persons per bedroom regardless of the age, sex, or 
relationship of the members of the household.  YCH considers the living room able to be used as a sleeping 
area, if necessary, in order to accommodate individual family needs.  YCH does not dictate where family 
members sleep or who occupies which room or rooms in the unit. 
 
A live-in aide may reside in the unit to provide necessary supportive services for a member of the assisted 
family who is a person with disabilities.  A live-in aide will be allocated one bedroom.  This principle also 
applies when a person with disabilities chooses to reside in certain special housing types: congregate 
housing, a group home, shared housing, or a cooperative. 
 

Unit 
Size 

Minimum # of 
Persons/Household 

Maximum # of 
Persons/Household 

0 BR 1 2 

1 BR 1 3 

2 BR 3 5 

3 BR 4 7 

4 BR 6 9 

5 BR 8 11 

 
 YCH may grant exceptions to the above occupancy standards, at its sole discretion, for a reasonable 
accommodation.  At YCH’s discretion, YCH may admit a family into a larger unit in order to meet the 
specific needs of the family or to improve occupancy.  This determination shall be made on a case-by-case 
basis. 



  Yolo County Housing 
 47 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

TENANT SELECTION AND ASSIGNMENT PLAN 
(24 CFR 960.202) 

 
1. Applicant Ranking 
 

Applications will be filed and selected by unit type and size; by preference; and by date and time 
of application.  If an applicant claims a preference or preferences, they are ranked by preference 
score and then by date and time of application within that score.  Applicants who claim no 
preference are placed below all preference applicants by date and time of application. 

 
2. Waiting List 

 
YCH has a total of six (6) waiting lists, by geographical area) as follow and applicants are free to 
apply for any, some, or all of the areas: 
 

Woodland, (CA 44-1 and CA 44-7) 
Winters (CA 44-2, CA 44-8, CA 44-18, and CA 44-25) 
Esparto (CA 44-4) 
Knights Landing (CA 44-5) 
Yolo (CA 44-6) 
West Sacramento (CA 44-15, CA 44-17 and CA 44-28) 

 
There is no further subdivision within each waiting list (i.e. an applicant cannot designate a specific 
property in areas where there are more than one property).  The application on each waiting list is 
treated independently, even if it is the same family. 

 
3. Waiting List Skipping 
 

YCH may skip a higher-income eligible applicant family to the top of the waiting list (either 
jurisdiction-wide or site-based waiting lists) if a dwelling unit in a development becomes vacant 
and the development requires a higher income family to meet YCH’s income targeting goals. 
 
YCH may also skip a lower-income eligible applicant family to the top of the waiting list (either 
jurisdiction-wide or site-based waiting lists) if a dwelling unit in a development becomes vacant 
and the development requires a lower income family to meet YCH’s income targeting goals. 

 
4. Applicant Selection and Assignment 
 

YCH will select applicants for participation without discrimination based on race, color, sex, creed, 
or national origin nor deny any family or individuals the opportunity to apply for assistance under 
the Low-Rent Housing Program.  Neither will YCH discriminate because of religion, age, physical or 
mental disability, medical condition, pregnancy, parenthood, familial status, marital status, 
military or veteran status, political affiliation, actual or perceived sexuality, or gender identity. 
 
The selection of residents for occupancy of available units will be in conformance with all HUD 
guidelines and regulations and applicable Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity Requirements. 

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=ce1461759bbc14be1858015db1cc0ed3&mc=true&node=pt24.4.960&rgn=div5#se24.4.960_1202


  Yolo County Housing 
 48 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
 
5. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Dwelling Units 
 

a. When a unit that meets a specific need (e.g., a unit designed to accommodate a disabled 
person requiring the use of a wheelchair) becomes available, that unit will be offered in 
the following order: 

 

• The unit will be offered first to a current resident of another unit managed by YCH 
having disabilities and requiring the accessibility features of the vacant unit. 

• If no such resident exists, the unit will be offered to the next eligible applicant on 
the waiting list requiring that special unit. 

• If there are no applicants on the waiting list needing a specially designed unit, the 
unit will then be offered to those eligible qualified applicants in their normal 
sequence.  

 
b. Elderly applicants will be given preference for units designed specifically for elderly 

occupancy.  Near Elderly Single Persons will be given preference over Non-Elderly Single 
Persons for units designed specifically for elderly occupancy. 

 
6. Dwelling Unit Offers 
 
One unit offer:  YCH operates site-based wait lists in its’ public housing portfolio.  If YCH makes a unit offer 
to an applicant from the designated site wait list and that unit is rejected, the applicant will be removed 
from that site-based wait list.  The family will remain on any and all other site-based wait lists.  (For 
example, a family is determined eligible for Vista Montecito in Esparto.  If the family denies the unit 
because they want to live in West Sacramento, the family will be removed from the Vista Montecito wait 
list but will remain on all other site-based wait list unless they request “in writing” to be removed.) 
 
When the applicant is matched to the specific unit, that dwelling unit becomes "unrentable" until the offer 
is made and accepted or rejected.  In order to reduce vacancy loss, it is necessary that processing from this 
point move as quickly as possible.  To that end, the following conditions shall apply to dwelling unit offers: 
 

a. As an applicant moves nears the top of the waiting list, YCH will contact the applicant 
family to determine continued interest, to update the application for final processing, to 
alert the applicant that an offer is likely in the very near future, and to inform the 
applicant about the requirements for move-in (i.e. utility deposits, security deposits, etc). 
 

b. Upon availability for occupancy, an applicant will be offered a unit and the opportunity to 
see it. 

 
c. Upon offer of an apartment, the applicant shall have 5 (five) calendar days to accept or 

reject the unit offered.  Additional business days may be granted if necessary to allow the 
applicant to inspect the apartment or as a reasonable accommodation. Failure to give an 
answer within the prescribed time period shall be counted as rejection of the offer. 



  Yolo County Housing 
 49 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
d. Upon acceptance of the offer, the applicant will then be assigned a deadline for move-in. 

Before the end of this period, the applicant must complete all outstanding pre-occupancy 
requirements, such as joint unit inspection, establishment of utility services, leasing 
interview, and lease execution.  Failure to complete move-in requirements within the 
assigned period will result in withdrawal of the offer and inactivation of the application. 
 

7. Unit Refusals 
 

a. Applicants will be made one (1) offer of a unit of appropriate size and type from the site-
based wait list.  Should the family reject the offer, the family will be removed from that 
site-based wait list unless the family refuses for good cause (see h) 
 

b. Applicants not responding to an offer of housing by YCH shall be ruled ineligible and their 
application will be removed to the inactive/ineligible file and so documented. 

 
e. An applicant will have five (5) calendar days to accept or reject an offer of housing after 

receipt of notice of unit availability.  Failure to respond to a notice of unit availability will 
be treated as a no response. 
 

f. Any other wait list the applicant may be on will remain unaffected. 
 
g. In accordance with the YCH Reasonable Accommodation Policy appendix to the ACOP, a 

unit refusal may be reasonable as an accommodation due to disability.  (Example:  Unit 
offer is two story and the disabled individual has difficulty climbing stairs.) 

 
h. Good Cause for refusal of unit: 
 

• Unit is not ready for move-in at the time of the offer of housing. Ready for move 
in means the unit has no Uniform Physical Condition Standard (UPCS deficiencies. 

• Inaccessibility to source of employment, education, or job training, children’s day 
care, educational program for children with disabilities, so that accepting the unit 
offer would require the family undue hardship. 

• The family demonstrates to YCH’s satisfaction that accepting the offer will place a 
family member’s life, health or safety in jeopardy.   

• A health professional verifies temporary hospitalization or recovery from illness of 
the head of household, other household members or live in aide. 

• Elderly or disabled family makes the decision not to occupy or accept occupancy 
in designated housing as outlined in “g”. 

 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 50 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

LEASING OF DWELLING UNITS 
(24 CFR 966 Subpart A) 

 
1. Lease Agreement 
 

a. The head of the household and all adult household members age 18 years and older of 
each family accepted as a tenant are required to execute a lease agreement in such form 
as YCH shall require prior to actual admission.  One copy of the lease will be given to the 
lessee and the original will be filed as part of the permanent records established for the 
family. 

 
 The head of household according to the Lease will be legally responsible for the family 

unit and will be held liable for the conduct of the family members and guests and for the 
needs of the family. 
 

b. Each lease shall specify the unit to be occupied, the date of admission, the size of the unit 
to be occupied, all family members who will live in the unit, the rent to be charged, the 
date rent is due and payable, other charges under the lease, and the terms of occupancy.  
It shall be explained in detail to all adult members of the household before execution of 
the lease.  All adult members of the household must sign the lease in front of the 
appropriate YCH representative. 
 

c. The lease shall be kept current at all times. If a resident family transfers to a different unit 
in the same or another YCH community, the existing lease will be canceled.  A new lease 
will be executed for the unit to which the family is to move by the head of household and 
will be signed by all adult members of the household.   

 
d. In accordance and in conformance to state and federal law, YCH will append documents to 

the lease and reserves the right to do so. 
 

e. Cancellation of a tenant's lease is to be in accordance with provisions of the lease.  In 
general, it is YCH’s adopted policy to cancel leases for good cause.   

 
2. Security Deposit 
 

Prior to occupancy, the resident shall provide a security deposit to YCH as designated in the Lease 
Agreement.   
 
Security deposits shall be returned to the tenant in accordance with state law. 
 

 

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=5eaffb6f90b8d626710ebe2100cd66cc&mc=true&node=sp24.4.966.a&rgn=div6


  Yolo County Housing 
 51 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

ADMISSION OF ADDITIONAL MEMBERS TO A CURRENT HOUSEHOLD 
 
1. Application Procedure – The Head of Household that wishes to add members to their household 

must submit a written application to their property manager/housing specialist.   
 

2. Eligibility Criteria: 
 

a. All new member(s) must be determined eligible in accordance with Part C eligibility 
criteria of this document 

 
b. Minor children added to the household must meet the definition of family.   

Documentation of foster status, temporary custody, permanent custody, legal guardian 
status, or adoption must be provided before adding minor children to the household. 

 
c. The unit in which new members are requesting admission shall not be overcrowded and 

shall be maintained in accordance with Part C of this document. 
 

3. Application Denial.  YCH may deny the application for any of the following reasons: 
 

a. Applicant(s) do not meet Eligibility Criteria as defined in Part C of this document. 
 
b. The dwelling unit is overcrowded or would exceed the Occupancy Standards as defined in 

Part C of this document. 
 
c. Applicant(s) do not meet the criteria for family as established in Part B of this document. 
 
d. The live in aide applies to become a household member.  

 
 
4. Additions that do not Require Approval of the Applications.  YCH shall not deny approval for any of 

the following: 
 

a. Newborn infants of members currently on the lease. 
 
b. Minor children of members currently on the lease who was removed from their care and 

who are otherwise eligible and being returned. 
 
5. House Guests.   A house guest is defined as a person temporarily staying in the unit with consent 

of a tenant or other member of the household who has express or implied authority to so consent 
on behalf of the tenant.   House guests staying with the family for a period in excess of fourteen 
(14) consecutive days or a total of 30 cumulative calendar days during any 12 month period shall 
be permitted only upon advance written consent of the Real Estate Services Supervisor or 
designee.   

 
YCH may require the resident family or guest to provide documentation of the guest’s residency 
elsewhere.  Examples of this documentation include a current lease or proof of ownership, current 



  Yolo County Housing 
 52 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

household bills in the name of the guest at another location, or a notarized statement from the 
owner of the guest’s residence. 
 
YCH may inspect the unit to assess the guest’s status and verify that the guest has not been added 
to the household.  If YCH determines the guest is residing in the unit, the resident will be required 
to add the person to the household, subject to those requirements. 
 
Former residents who have been evicted and would be considered trespassing on YCH property 
are not permitted as overnight guests. 
 
Violation of the guest policy may result in the guest being placed on YCH’s no trespass list. 



  Yolo County Housing 
 53 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 OPERATING A BUSINESS IN THE UNIT 
 
Prior to making a determination the resident shall request YCH's permission in writing and include in the 
request a complete outline of business activities and other data as requested by YCH.  When a resident 
desires to operate a legal business from the leased unit, YCH shall use the following factors in determining 
whether or not such activities are incidental to the primary use of the leased unit: 
 

 
a. The effect on YCH Insurance Coverage; 
 
b. Utility Consumption; 
 
c. Possible Damage to the leased unit; 
 
d. Estimated traffic and parking; 
 
e. Disturbance of other residents; 

 
i. Local Building codes, requirements for license or governmental approval 

 
j. Local Zoning Ordinances; 
 

 



  Yolo County Housing 
 54 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

SPECIAL OCCUPANCY PROVISIONS 
 
1. Occupancy by Police Officers (24 CFR 960.505) 
 

YCH may allow a police officer (s) who is not otherwise eligible for residence in public housing to 
reside in a dwelling unit for the purpose of increasing security for residents of YCH. 
 
A “police officer” means any person determined by YCH to be, during the period of residence of 
that person in public housing, employed on a full-time basis as a duly licensed professional 
police officer by a federal, state, or local government or by any agency thereof. 
 
Terms and Conditions of Tenancy 
 
YCH shall make known to federal, state, city and county law enforcement agencies within YCH’s 
jurisdiction of YCH’s policy to allow police officers to reside in a public housing dwelling unit.  
Police officers will be required to submit proof of family size and proof of full-time employment 
as a police officer.  The police officer will be charged ceiling or flat rent for the unit.  The police 
officer(s) will be required to sign a dwelling lease and will be bound by the provisions of the 
lease.  Family composition and proof of employment will be re-examined not to exceed 12 
months of occupancy of the unit.  Loss of status of full-time employment as a police officer will 
result in an interim re-examination to determine income eligibility.  If the resident does not 
meet income eligibility requirements following loss of full-time employment as a police officer, 
the resident will be issued a notice to vacate the unit. 
 
Police officer(s) will be assigned vacant units within the developments stipulated above.  If the 
development(s) is/are 100% occupied, and a police officer has completed the required 
paperwork for occupancy of a dwelling unit, the next available dwelling unit in the target 
developments will be offered to the police officer.  Current residents will not be required to 
vacate units for occupancy by police officers unless the resident agrees to move and there is a 
comparable unit available for the family.  In such a case, YCH will pay moving expenses for the 
family. 

 
  

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=ce1461759bbc14be1858015db1cc0ed3&mc=true&node=pt24.4.960&rgn=div5#se24.4.960_1505


  Yolo County Housing 
 55 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 
 

ADMISSIONS AND CONTINUED OCCUPANCY POLICY 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Part D:  CONTINUED OCCUPANCY 
 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 56 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

ELIGIBILITY FOR CONTINUED OCCUPANCY 
 
For residents to be considered eligible for continued occupancy, the following must apply: 
 
1. Who qualifies as a family as defined by federal requirements and this policy (see definition in Part 

B of this policy). 
 
2. Who conform to the Occupancy Standard established for lower income housing. (see Part C of this 

policy) 
 
3. Whose past performance in meeting financial obligations, especially rent, and other charges, is 

satisfactory; and 
 
4. Whose family members have no record of disturbance of neighbors, destruction of property, 

unsafe living habits, unsanitary housekeeping practices, substance abuse, or any other history that 
may be reasonably expected to adversely affect: 
 
a. The health, safety, or welfare of other residents 
b. The peaceful enjoyment of the neighborhood by other residents 
c. The physical environment of the neighborhood. 
 

5. Who are in continued compliance with Section B of this policy.  
 

6. Who have not been involved in drug related or criminal activity. 
 
7. Who have not been convicted of a crime. 
 
8. Who are not currently engaging in the use of controlled substances and/or engaging in alcohol 

abuse. 
 
9. Who is not subject to a lifetime registration requirement under the state sex offender registration 

program. 
 
10. Who meet the community service requirements as outlined in Part D of this policy, Community & 

Self Sufficiency requirements in accordance with the CFR.   
 
11. Who continues to occupy the apartment on a full time basis. Failure to occupy the unit, in 

accordance with the lease, but in any event no longer than 180 days without prior notice to 
property management. 
 

12. In the event that the Head of Household moves or no longer a tenant, the remaining member(s) of 
a resident family may be permitted to remain in occupancy provided that YCH, in its sole 
judgment, determines that the remaining person(s) is (are): 
 
a. Otherwise eligible for Continued Occupancy, and 



  Yolo County Housing 
 57 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

b. Capable of carrying out all lease obligations, including but not limited to rent payment, 
care of the apartment, and proper conduct, and 

c. Willing to assume all lease obligation of the prior leaseholder, including all payments 
under the lease, and 

d. Legally competent to execute a lease in his (their) own name.   
 

13.  The applicant family must not have a record of grossly unsanitary or hazardous housekeeping that 
meets the definition of a health and safety code violation.  For example, this could include the 
creation of a fire hazards, infestation due to improperly disposed of garbage/trash, serious neglect 
of the premises affecting neighbors and the community, neglect to mitigate mildew/mold issues in 
unit caused by tenant.  This is verified through photographic or documented evidence by previous 
or current landlords.  When a qualified agency is successfully working with the applicant family to 
improve its housekeeping, the decision as to eligibility shall be reached by the General Director 
and/or s/he designee 

 
14. Citizenship/Eligible Immigration Status 
 

In order to remain eligible for continued occupancy, a family member must be a U.S. citizen or 
eligible immigrant.  Individuals who are neither may elect not to contend their status.  Eligible 
immigrants are persons who are in one of the six immigrant categories as specified by HUD. 

 
For the Citizenship/Eligible Immigration requirements the status of each member of the family is 
considered individually before the family’s status is defined. 

 
a. Mixed Families:  A family is eligible for assistance as long as at least one member is a citizen 

or eligible immigrant.  Families that include eligible and ineligible individuals are called 
“mixed”.  Such families will be given notice that their assistance will be pro-rated and that 
they may request a hearing if they contest this determination. 

 
b. No eligible members:  Families that include no eligible members will be ineligible for 

assistance.  Such families will be denied admission and offered an opportunity for a 
hearing. 

 
c. Non-citizen students:  Defined by HUD in the noncitizen regulations and are not eligible for 

assistance. 



  Yolo County Housing 
 58 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 CONTINUED OCCUPANCY FOR OVER-INCOME FAMILIES 
 
Introduction 
 
The Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD) published a notice in the July 26, 2018 Federal 
Register implementing a statutory requirement from the Housing Opportunity through the 
Modernization Act of 2016 (HOTMA) that amends the Housing Act of 1937 to place an income limitation 
on a public housing tenancy for families. 
 
This notice implements the requirement to begin tracking over-income public housing residents through 
the recertification process. The law requires that after a family’s income has exceeded 120 percent of 
the area median income (AMI) for two consecutive years, YCH must terminate the family’s tenancy 
within six months of the second income determination or charge the family a monthly rent equal to the 
greater of (1) the applicable Fair Market Rent (FMR); or (2) the amount of monthly subsidy for the unit 
including amounts from the operating and capital fund. The income limit established by HOTMA is 
referred to as the “over-income limit.” A PHA must notify a family of the potential changes to monthly 
rent after one year of the family’s income exceeding the over-income limit.  

The existing regulation at 24 Code of Federal Regulations 960.261, which authorizes discretionary 
termination of tenancies of families whose incomes exceed the applicable income limits for admission to 
the program, remains in effect. 

Implementation of the Over-Income Limit 

When YCH becomes aware, through an annual reexamination or an interim reexamination for an 
increase in income, that a family’s income exceeds the applicable income limit, YCH must document that 
the family exceeds the threshold to compare with the family’s income one year later. 

If, one year after the initial determination by YCH that a family’s income exceeds the over-income limit 
(defined as 120% of area median income), the family’s income continues to exceed the over-income 
limit, YCH must provide written notification to the family that their income has exceeded the over-
income limit for one-year, and that if the family’s income continues to exceed the over-income limit for 
the next 12 consecutive months, the family will be subject to either a higher rent equal to the greater of 
(1) the applicable Fair Market Rent (FMR) or (2) the amount of subsidy for the unit including amounts 
from the operating capital fund, as determined by regulations; or termination of tenancy within 6 
months of the second income determination. If a family requests an interim reexamination, which then 
demonstrates that a family’s income has dropped below the over-income limit, the family is no longer 
considered over-income. If YCH becomes aware, through a subsequent annual reexamination or an 
interim reexamination that the family’s income has increased to an amount that exceeds the over-
income limit, the family will begin a new two-year clock. 

If, however, YCH discovers through an annual or interim reexamination that a previously over-income 
family has income that is now below the over-income limit, the family is no longer subject to these 
provisions. The family is entitled to a new two-year grace period if the family’s income once again 
exceeds the over-income limit. 

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=8432bd046f44f206da719035c65d8f8a&mc=true&node=pt24.4.960&rgn=div5#se24.4.960_1261


  Yolo County Housing 
 59 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YCH will submit a report annually to HUD regarding the number of families residing in public housing 
with incomes exceeding the over-income limit and the number of families on the waiting lists for 
admission to public housing projects. These reports will be publicly available.   



  Yolo County Housing 
 60 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

INSPECTIONS 
 
Inspections 
 
1. Move-In Inspections 
 

Prior to occupancy, a representative of the participant family and designated YCH staff will 
accomplish a physical inspection of the dwelling unit.  The YCH representative will demonstrate to 
the family representative the operation of the unit appliances, fixtures, shut-off valves, electrical 
panel, fire extinguishers, and smoke detectors. 
 
The condition of the dwelling unit will be recorded on an inspection form provided by YCH.  The 
inspection form will be signed by the family representative and YCH representative.  Any repairs 
noted will be effectuated prior to occupancy if the repairs are of such a nature that occupancy of 
the unit either (1) cannot occur, or (2) the unit in its present condition is unacceptable to the 
family.  If the repairs to be effectuated do not prohibit occupancy by the participant family, and is 
acceptable to the family in its current condition, such repairs will be completed within thirty (30) 
days of move-in.  A copy of the completed inspection form will be provided to the participant 
family and a copy will be retained in the family’s occupancy file. 

 
2. Annual Inspections 

 
YCH shall maintain its public housing properties in a condition that complies with standards that 
meet or exceed the uniform physical condition standards established by HUD. Such housing 
standards shall ensure that dwelling units are safe and habitable. 
 
In the event an inspection is scheduled and there are unattended minors present in the unit, the 
inspection shall be rescheduled.  Staff will not enter a unit if unattended minors are present and 
the inspection will be rescheduled.  In the event this inspection has to be rescheduled more 
than one time, it shall be considered a failed inspection under the terms of the lease. 
 
YCH shall make an annual inspection of each public housing development to determine whether 
units in the development are maintained in accordance with the Secretary’s requirements, as 
well as spot inspections where there exists a threat to health and/or safety.  YCH shall retain the 
results of such inspections and, upon request of the Secretary, the Inspector General for the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development, or any other auditor conducting an audit 
under section 5(h), shall make such results available. 
 
Inspections shall be conducted using YCH’s forms and shall document unreported maintenance 
problems and verify if the unit is being kept in a decent, safe, and sanitary manner.  Copies of the 
inspection(s) will be provided to the family, noting any deficiencies to be corrected by the family 
or YCH.  Where the family has been advised to take corrective action, YCH staff will conduct a 
follow-up inspection within five (5) working days, if such corrective action is of a general nature.   
Where the corrective action to be taken is necessary to remedy an immediate threat to health 
and/or safety, the reinspection will occur within twenty-four (24) hours.  Non-compliance by the 



  Yolo County Housing 
 61 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

family can result in termination of tenancy.  Inspection repairs that are the result of tenant 
damage shall be charged in accordance with the Maintenance Charge Policy. 

 
3. Move-Out Inspections 
 

Prior to the family vacating a dwelling unit, the family can request an initial inspection with a 
member of YCH staff of the rental premises up to two weeks prior to vacating the unit. YCH staff 
will provide the tenant with an itemized list of potential charge.  The family will have time 
between the initial inspection and the termination of tenancy to remedy identified deficiencies. 
The benefit of the initial inspection is it allows the tenant to remedy identified deficiencies to 
avoid reductions to the security deposit or additional charges. 
 
The actual move-out inspection will not be conducted until the family has vacated the unit.  The 
condition of the dwelling unit will be recorded on the inspection form utilized for the pre-
occupancy inspection of the same dwelling unit, allowing for a comparison of pre- and post-
occupancy condition.  Any claim against the family for tenant caused damages will be based upon 
this comparison. 
 
Following move-out by the family, renovation, and/or redecoration of the dwelling unit because of 
the family’s occupancy will be accomplished.  Charges for items of repair, renovation, and/or 
redecoration of the dwelling unit made necessary by abuse, negligence, or deliberate destruction 
by the family will be assessed against the family’s security deposit.  Should the security deposit 
prove insufficient relative to the actual cost of such repairs, YCH management will take all actions 
at its disposal to collect the remaining balance from the family.  

 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 62 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

REEXAMINATIONS 
(24 CFR 960.257) 

 
1. Purpose 
 

Reexaminations of income and family circumstances are conducted for the following purposes: 
 

a. To comply with the Federal requirements relating to annual re-examinations. 
 
b. To determine if each family remains eligible for continued occupancy under the terms of 

the lease and this policy. 
 
c. To determine if the unit size and type is still appropriate to the family's needs and in 

compliance with the Occupancy Standards. 
 
d. To establish the Total Tenant Payment and the tenant rent to be charged to the family. 

 
2. Annual Re-examinations 
 

Annual re-examinations are necessary to comply with the federal requirement that each family, 
excluding families paying flat rent, have its eligibility re-examined at least every twelve months.  
Families paying flat rents shall have its eligibility re-examined every three (3) years.  Families 
paying flat rents will, however, be required to update information related to family composition 
each year. 
 
Determination of resident rent will be made based upon information collected during the 
verification process utilizing applicable HUD forms and all appropriate worksheets and rent 
formulas.  Such documents must be at least 120 days current.  The family will be notified in writing 
of any changes in resident rent 30 days prior to the effective rent change. 
 
Failure to complete re-examination is a serious lease violation that will result in termination of 
tenancy.  Failure to complete re-examination includes: 
 
a. Failure to supply or cooperate in the verification process pertaining to income, family 

composition, and eligibility.  
 
b.  Refusal to properly execute required documents. 

 
c.  Failure to allow annual inspections (UPCS, REAC, etc). 

 
3. Special Re-examinations 
 

If at the time of admission, annual re-examination, or interim re-examination, it is not possible to 
make an estimate of Family Income with any reasonable degree of accuracy because: 

 

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=ce1461759bbc14be1858015db1cc0ed3&mc=true&node=pt24.4.960&rgn=div5#se24.4.960_1257


  Yolo County Housing 
 63 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

a. Family member(s) are unemployed and there are not anticipated prospects of 
employment; or, 

 
b. The conditions of employment and/or income are so unstable as to invalidate usual and 

normal standards of determination; then a Special Re-examination will be scheduled on a 
date determined by YCH's estimate of the time required for the family's circumstances to 
stabilize.  If at the time of the scheduled Special Re-examination, it is still not possible to 
make a reasonable estimate of Family Income, Special Re-examinations will continue to be 
scheduled until such time as a reasonable estimate of Family Income can be made and the 
Re-examination completed.  Rent determined at special re-examinations shall be made 
effective the first of the month following the first determination.  The Special Re-
examinations are not to replace the Annual Re-examination. 

 
Special Reexaminations may also be required for residents claiming “zero income” and may be 
repeated as often as necessary; however, not more frequently than monthly and at a minimum 
quarterly.  Residents claiming “zero income” will  be required to provide proof of paid bills for the 
last 90 days, written statements from persons providing assistance, or similar documentation to 
protect against fraudulent activity. 
 

4. Interim Reexaminations 
 
 YCH must conduct interim re-examinations if income has decreased, causing a decrease in rent. 

The decrease must be verified by the 15th day of the month to ensure that the new rent goes into 
effect the 1st of the next month.  Change in family composition also results in an interim re-
examination.   

 
Interim re-examinations are performed to allow residents to comply with the dwelling lease 
requirements to report changes in income and family circumstances.  The following are specific 
changes that must be reported in writing within fifteen (15) days of their occurrence: 

 
a. All changes in family composition.  Additions to the family, other than through birth of a 

child to a family member on the lease, must be approved by YCH in advance in accordance 
with Part C of this policy; Admission of Additional Members To A Current Household. 

 
b. The loss or addition of a wage earner.  

 
c. The loss or addition of an income source.  
 
d. In cases of ten (10) month employment cycles, for example public school food service 

workers, custodial workers and teacher aides, no interim rent changes shall be effective 
during the two (2) months of non-employment.  Instead, the ten (10) month income shall 
be considered annual income and shall be computed on a twelve (12) month basis 
following the normal eligible deductions for dependents, etc.  A similar adjustment may 
be made for other seasonal workers at the discretion of YCH. 

 



  Yolo County Housing 
 64 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

e. All requests for an interim re-examination must be submitted and the reported change 
verified by the 15th of the month in order for a decrease in rent to be effective the first of 
the following month.  Rent adjustments shall not be made for sporadic changes in income 
due to irregular work schedules of less than thirty (30) days in duration (e.g. sick days, 
temporary reduction in hours, etc.).  Rent adjustments will be made accordingly: 

 
(i) Interim decreases in rent shall only be effected where the change is estimated to 

result in a decrease of 10% or more in annual income and shall become effective 
the first month following that in which the tenant reported the change except 
that in the corrections of error.  All changes must be reported and verified prior to 
the 15th day of the month in order for the decrease to be effective the first of the 
following month. 

 
(ii) Interim increases in rent shall only be effected where the change is estimated to 

result in a increase of 10% or more in annual income and shall become effective 
the first of the second month following that in which the change occurred. 

 
(iii) If it is found that the tenant has misrepresented him/herself on the facts 

associated with which rent is based so that rent is less than the rent that should 
have been charged, then the increased rent shall be retroactive to the 
appropriate date. 
 

f. YCH reserves the right to require participating families to undergo an interim re-
examination to comply with changes to HUD rules and regulations. 

 
5. Processing Re-examinations 
 

All re-examinations shall be processed under the following conditions: 
 

a. All data must be verified and documented as required in Part C, Verification.  YCH will NOT 
adjust rent downward until satisfactory verification is received.  Verification must be 
received by the 15th of the month in order for the decrease to be effective on the first of 
the following month. 

 
b. Lease terminations resulting from re-examinations shall be conducted in accordance with 

the terms of the lease. 
 

c. Families that are determined to be in an incorrect size or type of unit will be placed on the 
Transfer List in accordance with the Transfer Policy. 
 

d. All interim changes in tenant's rent are to be made by a standard "Notice of Rent 
Adjustment" which shall become a part of the lease.  Changes in rent resulting from 
Annual Re-examination shall be incorporated into the new lease, which shall be executed 
by YCH and the tenant or by "Notice of Rent Adjustment". 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 65 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

e. Interim decreases in rent shall be effective on the first day of the month following the 
month in which the change was reported in writing and verification is completed to the 
satisfaction of YCH, as long as the verification has been completed by the 15th day of the 
month. 

 
f. Interim increases in rent are to be made effective on the first day of the month following a 

thirty (30) day notice period. 
 
g. If it is found that a tenant has misrepresented or failed to report facts upon which his rent 

is based so that he is paying less than s/he should be paying, the increase in rent shall be 
made retroactively to the date that the increase would have taken effect.  The tenant may 
be required to pay within seven days of official notification by YCH, the difference 
between the rent he has paid and the amount he should have paid.  In addition, the 
tenant may be subject to civil and criminal penalties.  Any misrepresentation is a serious 
lease violation that may result in termination of the lease.  

 
 
 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 66 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

TERMINATION OF THE DWELLING LEASE 
(24 CFR 966.4) 

 
The Dwelling Lease shall be terminated by YCH in accordance with applicable State law and HUD 
Regulations. 
 
1. “Good cause” as used in this Section means serious or repeated violation of material terms of the 

lease such as failure to make payments due under the lease or to fulfill the Resident obligations 
set forth in the lease. 

 
2. YCH will terminate the lease for any occupancy violation of section 576(b) of the Quality Housing 

and Work Responsibility Act of 1998 (relating to the ineligibility of illegal drug users and alcohol 
abusers) or the furnishing of any false or misleading information pursuant to section 577 of such 
Act (relating to termination of tenancy and assistance for illegal drug users and alcohol abusers), 
or Section 428 relating to the conviction of manufacturing or producing methamphetamine 
(speed). 

 
3. YCH will terminate the lease if YCH determines that the resident is illegally using a controlled 

substance or whose illegal use (or pattern of illegal use) of a controlled substance, or whose abuse 
(or pattern of abuse) of alcohol, is determined by YCH to interfere with the health, safety, or right 
to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other residents. 

 
4. YCH will terminate the lease for any activity by any household member, on or off the premises, 

that threatens the health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises of other residents 
or employees of YCH. 

 
5. YCH will terminate the lease for any violent or drug-related criminal activity on or off of the 

premises of YCH, or any activity resulting in a felony conviction.   
 

The term “drug-related criminal activity”, for the purpose of this policy, means the illegal 
manufacture, sale, distribution, use, or possession with intent to sell, distribute, or use of a 
controlled substance. 
 
YCH reserves the right to terminate tenancy for drug-related or violent criminal activity before or 
after conviction of the crime. 

 
6. YCH may not renew or extend the resident’s lease upon expiration of the lease term and shall take 

such action as is necessary to terminate the tenancy of the household for failure to meet 
community service or participation in self-sufficiency program requirements. 

 
7. YCH may terminate the lease for failure to make payments due under the lease, pay charges, 

including late charges or charges for damage to property which are included in the lease. 
 
8. YCH may terminate the lease for lying about material facts in any written statements to the PHA.  

This will be investigated on a case-by-case basis. 
 

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=5eaffb6f90b8d626710ebe2100cd66cc&mc=true&node=sp24.4.966.a&rgn=div6#se24.4.966_14


  Yolo County Housing 
 67 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

9. YCH will terminate the lease for serious or repeated damage or destruction of property. 
 
10. YCH will terminate the lease for making or keeping a threat to the health or safety of other 

residents or employees. 
 
11. YCH will terminate the lease for failure to pay resident purchased utilities if no efforts are made to 

bring account to satisfactory standing. 
 
12. YCH may terminate the lease for allowing unauthorized guests to remain in the household for 

more than thirty (30) days per calendar year. YCH management may find that extenuating 
circumstances exist, however.  YCH may terminate the lease of any resident whose address has 
been used by an individual other than a member of the household as their address (e.g., driver’s 
license, job application, etc.). 

 
13. Procedure for termination of the Lease shall be as follows: 
 

a. YCH shall give fourteen (14) days written notice of termination if said termination is 
caused by Resident’s failure to pay rent. 

 
b. YCH shall give a three (3) day notice without cure if the health or safety of other tenants, 

employees, or persons residing in the immediate vicinity of the premises is threatened, or 
in the event of any drug-related or violent criminal activity, as defined by California Civil 
Code s. 3479.   This termination is not subject to the Grievance Procedure.  

 
c. YCH shall give thirty (30) days written notice of termination in all other cases. 
 
d. A written record of every lease termination shall be maintained by YCH and shall contain 

the following information: 
 

(i) Name and identification of the unit occupied 
 
(ii) Date and copy of Notice of Termination 
 
(iii) Specific reason(s) for Notice to Terminate 
 
(iv) Date and method of notifying tenant of reasons for lease termination 
 
(v) Summary of any conference(s) with the tenant, including names of conference 

participants.  
 

e. The lease termination notice must state if the tenant is entitled to request a grievance 
hearing in accordance with the Grievance Procedure (Appendix J).  If the tenant is eligible 
to request a grievance hearing, YCH may not terminate the lease until the time period to 
request such a hearing has expired, or, if the grievance hearing is requested in a timely 
manner, until the grievance process has been completed. 

 



  Yolo County Housing 
 68 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

TRANSFER POLICY 
 
Reassignment or transfers to other dwelling units shall be made without discrimination as defined in this 
policy. 
 
1. Objectives of the Transfer Policy 
 

a. To fully utilize available housing resources while avoiding overcrowding by ensuring that each 
family occupies the appropriately sized unit. 

 
b. To facilitate relocation when required for modernization or other management purposes. 

 
c. To eliminate vacancy loss and other expense due to unnecessary transfers. 

 
d. To facilitate the objectives of YCH’s VAWA and Reasonable Accommodation Policies. 

 
2. Types of Transfers 
 

a. YCH Initiated - YCH may at its discretion transfer residents because of an uninhabitable 
unit, major repairs, or other actions initiated by management for the following reasons.  
Additionally, a resident may refuse a proposed transfer for cause, such as the long 
distance from his/her employer. 

 
(i) In the event of a fire, accident or natural disaster that results in the dwelling unit 

becoming uninhabitable, the resident will be offered alternative accommodations 
within the neighborhood if a rentable unit in the appropriate size is available.  If 
the appropriate size is not available, the family may be overhoused but placed on 
the transfer list with the transfer being accomplished at the appropriate time.  If 
no unit is available within the neighborhood, the family may be transferred to an 
available unit available at another YCH-owned neighborhood.  If the move is to a 
site where residents purchase all or some utilities, the resident will pay the cost of 
any deposit required by the utility company. 

 
(ii) When a resident is transferred because the unit has become uninhabitable, the 

management of YCH shall determine the cause of the condition of the unit for the 
purpose of deciding whether relocation assistance may be offered to the resident 
and whether the transfer shall be considered permanent.  Based on this 
determination, the following actions will be taken: 

 
(a) If the condition of the unit is the fault of YCH, the resident shall be 

provided with relocation assistance such as the cartage of household 
goods, the cost and methods of which are to be determined by 
management.  The resident will normally be offered the opportunity to 
return to his original unit at his own expense, assuming that the unit can 
be rehabilitated and is still the appropriate size for the family. 

 



  Yolo County Housing 
 69 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

(b) If the condition of the unit is the fault of neither YCH nor the resident, as 
in the case of a natural disaster, YCH may provide such relocation 
assistance as management deems appropriate.  A transfer to a correctly 
sized apartment will be considered permanent. 

 
(c) If the condition of the unit was caused by the resident, his family, or 

guests, no relocation assistance will be provided and the resident may be 
charged for all damages to property.  A transfer to a correctly sized 
apartment will be considered permanent.  (The YCH VAWA Policy will be 
considered and take precedence if applicable). 

 
(iii) If a site requires modernization type work that necessitates vacating apartments, 

the affected resident will be relocated at YCH's expense in available vacant units 
within YCH.  If determined feasible by management, YCH will attempt to relocate 
affected residents into vacant units within the site.  Other decisions related to 
modernization transfers will be made by YCH Board of Commissioners and the 
Chief Executive Officer or his/her designee.  YCH may suspend normal transfer 
procedures to facilitate modernization type activities. 

 
b. Transfers for Approved Reasonable Accommodations 
 

A resident who desires to relocate on advice of a physician may request a transfer with 
YCH, however, the resident must provide YCH with verification from an approved 
physician.  
 
The transfer must have approval of Real Estates Services Supervisor and the 504 
Coordinator or designees. 
 
See Reasonable Accommodation Policy for more information  (Appendix D) 

 
c. Transfers to Appropriately Sized Unit  
 

If a tenant's family composition NO LONGER conforms to YCH's Occupancy standards for 
the unit occupied, YCH may require the tenant to move into a unit of appropriate size.  
This section establishes both that YCH has an obligation to transfer residents to the 
appropriately sized unit and that residents are obligated to accept such transfers.  These 
will be made in accordance with the following principles: 

 
(i) Determination of the correctly sized apartment shall be in accordance with YCH's 

Occupancy Standards. 
 
(ii) Transfers into the appropriately sized unit will be made within one mile of the 

same neighborhood unless that size unit does not exist on the site. 
 
(iii) YCH may, at its discretion, separate a single household into multiple households if 

sufficiently large units are not available or if management and the family 



  Yolo County Housing 
 70 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

determine this to be in the interest of both the family and the neighborhood. 
Based on the selection criteria for new admissions, management shall determine 
that each smaller family unit is eligible by HUD definition and contains a 
leaseholder capable of discharging lease obligations. 

 
(iv) The number of units offered to a family transferring will be one (1) unless there is 

a hardship situation as determined by YCH.  If the resident refuses the dwelling 
unit offered, the lease may be terminated by management. 

 
(v) Families with children in school being transferred outside their current 

neighborhood will not be required to move until the current school year is 
finished if YCH determined that a transfer would cause a hardship to the family. 

 
(vi) Transfers may be made to correct occupancy standards and may take precedence 

over new admissions. 
 
(vii) Upon redetermination, the resident will be notified of any transfer to another 

dwelling unit and that such dwelling is available by receipt of a Notice of 
Termination from the HA within fifteen (15) days following the notice to transfer 
to the new dwelling. 
 

d. Transfers for Non-disabled families living in accessible units. 
 

(i) The dwelling lease states what type of unit the resident family is residing in.  If the 
unit leased is a designated accessible unit and the family occupying the unit is not 
a family requiring accessibility features, the family agrees to transfer to a non-
accessible unit if and when the unit is needed for a disabled family. 

 
(ii) YCH may from time to time have an excess of accessible units.  In an effort to get 

the best use of all units YCH may from time to time rent an accessible unit to a 
family that has no disabled members.  YCH will advise the family of the 
requirements to transfer if and when a disabled designated family is determined 
eligible. 

 
(iii) This section establishes both that YCH has an obligation to transfer non-disabled 

residents residing in accessible units to non-accessible designated units and that 
the non-disabled families are obligated to accept such transfers. These will be 
made in accordance with the following principles: 
 
(a) Transfers into a non-accessible unit will be made within one mile of the 

same neighborhood unless that size unit does not exist on the site. 
 
(b) Transfers to a non-accessible unit may be made outside of the same 

neighborhood with tenant consent or unless no vacancies are expected 
within the same neighborhood within the next 30 days. 

 



  Yolo County Housing 
 71 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

(c) Management may, at its discretion, separate a single household into 
multiple households if sufficiently large units are not available or if 
management and the family determine this to be in the interest of both 
the family and the neighborhood.  

 
 Based on the selection criteria for new admissions, management shall 

determine that each smaller family unit is eligible by HUD definition and 
contain a legal leaseholder capable of discharging lease obligations. 

 
(d) For the purposes of determining the priorities for transfers, this type of 

transfer shall be considered an initiated transfer. 
 

3. Priorities for Transfers 
 

a. Within the eligible types of transfers, transfers shall be performed according to the 
following priorities: 

 
i. VAWA:  Transfers for victims of domestic violence will be made in accordance with the 

Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) section of this policy in accordance with the YCH 
Emergency Transfer Plan. 

 
ii. YCH initiated transfers; 

 
iii. Medical/Reasonable Accommodation transfers; 

 
iv. Residents who are underhoused by two bedrooms;  

 
v. Residents who are overhoused by two bedrooms; 

 
vi. Residents who are underhoused by one bedroom; 

 
vii. Residents who are overhoused by one bedroom. 

 
 

b. The first three priorities always have priority over new move-ins.   
 

The remainder shall be prioritized based on the need established by YCH and YCH may 
establish a system to address transfers while continuing to meet the needs of the 
applicants.  In the case of an involuntary transfer, the date will be that on which 
management verifies that the change occurred.  Management reserves the right to 
immediately transfer any family who has misrepresented family circumstances or 
composition.  Whenever feasible, transfers will be made within a resident’s current 
dwelling area. 

 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 72 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

4. Transfer Procedures 
 

a. Under the direction of the Real Estate Services Supervisor, eligibility staff shall: 
 

(i) Prepare, prioritize, and maintain a transfer list for each neighborhood. 
 
(ii) Notify residents by letter of their pending transfers or approval of transfer 

request. 
 
(iii) Determine whether a vacancy is used for transfer or move-in. 
 
(iv) Maintain transfer logs and records for audit. 
 
(v) Notify residents with pending transfers as their name approaches the top of the 

list. 
 
(vi) Counsel with residents experiencing problems with transfers, assisting hardship 

cases to find assistance. 
 
(vii) Issue final offer of vacant apartment as soon as vacant apartment is identified. 
 
(viii) Issue notice to transfer as soon as vacant apartment is available for occupancy. 

This notice will give the resident five (5) working days to complete transfer. 
 
(ix) Process transfer documents to appropriate YCH staff. 
 
(x) Participate in planning and implementation of special transfer systems for 

modernization and other similar programs.  
 
(xi) Inspect both apartments involved in the transfer, charging for any resident abuse. 
 
(xii) Family pays all outstanding charges, including and charges for damages to the 

current unit, due YCH.  The resident’s security deposit cannot be transferred to 
the new dwelling unit and refund will be made once any charges are deducted.  
Any balance remaining after all claims are made shall be repaid to YCH in 
accordance with the following schedule: 

 
  Damages less than $250   30 Days in One Payment 
  Damages $250 - $500   60 Days in Two Payments 
  Damages more than $500  90 Days in Three Payments 
 

This payment period may be extended at the discretion of YCH on a case-by-case 
basis  

 
(xiii) Family signs new lease. 

 



  Yolo County Housing 
 73 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

b. Only one offer of an apartment will be made to each resident being transferred within his 
or her own neighborhood.  A resident being transferred outside his or her own 
neighborhood will be allowed to refuse one offer only.  In the case of a family being 
transferred from a unit that is uninhabitable, incorrectly sized, or scheduled for major 
repairs, failure to accept the unit offered, or the second unit offered in the case of a 
transfer outside the neighborhood, could be grounds for termination of the lease.  When 
a person has requested a transfer as an approved reasonable accommodation declines 
the offer of such an apartment, YCH is not obligated to make any subsequent offers.  YCH 
will notify the resident in such cases that YCH has discharged its obligations to the 
resident, that s/he remains in the apartment at her/his own risk, and that YCH assumes no 
liability for his condition. 

 
c. Any resident aggrieved by any action or inaction of YCH relative to his/her transfer request 

may file a request for a hearing in accordance with the grievance procedure. 
 
5. Right of Management to Make Exceptions 
 

This policy is to be used as a guide to ensure fair and impartial means of assigning units for 
transfer. It is not intended that this policy shall create a property right or any other type of right 
for a resident to transfer or refuse transfer.  Management reserves the right to make exceptions to 
this policy as circumstances require, consistent with applicable regulations of the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development.  Transfer disputes are subject to the grievance procedure. 

 



  Yolo County Housing 
 74 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

ABANDONMENT OF A UNIT 
 

YCH may take possession of the dwelling after a resident has moved out.  In the absence of actual 
knowledge of abandonment, it shall be presumed that the resident has abandoned the dwelling if the 
resident is absent from the dwelling for a period of fifteen (15) calendar days, and the resident has not 
notified YCH in writing in advance of an intended absence, or otherwise as provided in this Agreement.  
The following criteria will be used in determining if the unit has been abandoned: 
 
 a. Some or all of utilities have been turned off; 
 
 b. A dramatic reduction in utility/electric bills; 
 
 c. Repeated inability to contact the resident; 
 
 d. Incarceration or sentencing of the head of household for more than 30 days; 
 
 e. No personal possessions remaining in the apartment. 
 
YCH will post an eighteen (18) calendar day notice at the abandoned unit. The notice shall inform the 
participant family of YCH’s intention to terminate the lease and related actions. If the participant family 
does not respond to the notice, the family’s lease will be terminated and YCH will enter the unit to remove 
any remaining personal possessions.   
 
YCH may remove and dispose of any personal property, left in the resident’s dwelling or elsewhere on the 
HA’s property in accordance with State of California Statutes, after resident has abandoned the dwelling, 
with the reasonable cost of any storage, removal and/or disposal charged to resident or assessed against 
resident’s security deposit, unless in HA’s sole discretion, it is determined that documentable conditions 
existed which prevented the resident from occupying the dwelling. 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 75 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

COMMUNITY SERVICE AND FAMILY SELF-SUFFICIENCY 
(24 CFR 960 Subpart F) 

 
1. Policy Statement 
 

It is the policy of YCH to enhance and promote economic and social self-sufficiency.  As such, 
YCH shall provide the following for the enhancement of the economic and social self-sufficiency 
of assisted families:   
 

• Income mix (YCH may establish and utilize income-mix criteria for the selection of 
residents.) 

 

• Targeting (mandatory): Not less than 40% of dwelling units owned by YCH shall be 
occupied by families whose incomes at the time of commencement of occupancy do not 
exceed 30% of the area median income. 

 

• Cooperation Agreements for Economic Self-Sufficiency (mandatory): YCH shall enter into 
cooperation agreements with state, local, and other agencies providing assistance to 
covered families under welfare or public assistance programs.  The cooperation 
agreements shall facilitate the administration of this policy and the sharing of 
information regarding rents, income, assistance, or other information that may assist 
YCH or welfare or public assistance agency to carry out its functions.  YCH shall also seek 
to include in cooperation agreements with welfare or public assistance agencies 
provisions to provide for economic self-sufficiency services within the properties owned 
by YCH, provide for services designed to meet the unique employment-related needs of 
residents, and provide for placement of work fare positions on-site. 

 
2. Definition of “economic self-sufficiency program”:  Any program designed to encourage, assist, 

train, or facilitate the economic independence of participants and their families or to provide 
work for participants, including programs for job training, employment counseling, work 
placement, basic skills training, education, work fare, financial or household management, 
apprenticeship, or other activities as the Secretary may provide. 

 
3. Community Service Requirement 
 

As a condition of continued occupancy, excluding residents under paragraph 4 below, each adult 
resident of YCH shall: 

 
a. Contribute eight (8) hours per month of community service (not including political 

activities) within the community in which that adult resides; or, 
 
b. Participate in an economic self-sufficiency program for eight (8) hours per month. 

 
  

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=ce1461759bbc14be1858015db1cc0ed3&mc=true&node=pt24.4.960&rgn=div5#sp24.4.960.f


  Yolo County Housing 
 76 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

4. Exemptions 
 

Exemptions to paragraph 3 above shall be made for any individual who: 
 

a. Is 62 years of age or older; 
 
b. Is a blind or disabled individual defined under section 216(i)(1) or 1614 of the Social 

Security Act (42 USC 416(i)(1); 1382c) and who is unable to comply with this section, or 
is a primary caretaker of such individual; 

 
c. Is engaged in a work activity (as such term is defined in section 407(d) of the Social 

Security Act (42 USC 607(d), as in effect on and after August 1, 1997) that include: 
 
 i. unsubsidized employment; 
 
 ii. subsidized private sector employment; 
 
 iii. subsidized public sector employment; 
 
 iv. work experience (including work associated with the refurbishing of publicly 
  assisted housing) if sufficient private sector employment is not available; 
 
 v. on-the-job training; 
 
 vi. job search or job readiness assistance; 
 
 vii. community service programs; 
 
 viii. vocational educational training (not to exceed 12 months with respect to any 
  individual; 
 
 ix. job skills training directly related to employment; 
 
 x. education directly related to employment, in the case of a recipient who has not  
  received a high school diploma or a certificate of high school equivalency; 
 
 xi. satisfactory attendance at secondary school or in a course of study leading to a 
  certificate of general equivalence, in the case of a recipient who has not 

 completed secondary school or received such a certificate; or 
 
 xii. the provision of child care services to an individual who is participating in a 
  community service program. 
 
d. Meets the requirements for being exempted from having to engage in a work activity 

under the state program funded under part A of title IV of the Social Security Act (42 



  Yolo County Housing 
 77 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

USC 601 et seq) or under any other welfare program of the state in which the public 
housing agency is located, including a state-administered welfare-to-work program; or, 

 
e. Is in a family receiving assistance under a state program funded under part A of title IV 

of the Social Security Act (42 USC 601 et seq) or under any other welfare program of the 
state in which public housing agency is located, including a state administered welfare-
to-work program, and has not been found by the state or other administering entity to 
be in noncompliance with such program. 

 
5. Verification of Exemptions 
 

Exemptions will be verified, to the greatest extent possible, by third-party documentation as 
follows: 

 
 a.  Age will be verified by generally accepted proof of age. Examples include driver’s 

license, state issued identification, birth certificate, or any other documentation issued 
by a governmental entity. 

 
 b. Blindness or disability will be verified by the receipt of benefits under the Social Security 

Act such as SSI or as documented by a licensed medical practitioner. 
 
 c. Work activity will be verified upon submission of the claim for exemption. 

Documentation shall be provided along with the claim for exemption and acceptable 
forms of documentation include a current pay stub (less than 30 days old) from an 
employer, current photo identification from an employer, written statement from an 
employer, or any other reasonable proof of employment. Acceptable forms of 
documentation for educational or job training programs are current photo identification 
issued by the educational institution, written statement from the education or training 
provider, or any other reasonable proof of participation in an educational or training 
program. 

 
 d. The exemption for having to engage in work activity under the state program funded 

under Part A of title IV of the Social Security Act shall be verified by providing a copy of 
the assistance check, a written statement from the assistance provider, or any other 
reasonable proof of participation in that program. 

 
 e. The exemption for being a member of a family receiving benefits under a program 

funded under Part A of Title IV of the Social Security Act shall be verified by obtaining a 
certification from the primary recipient of the benefits. 

 
Residents will be notified in writing of the final determination of the claim for exemption once 
verification is obtained. 

 
 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 78 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

6. Annual Determinations 
 

For each public housing resident, YCH shall, thirty (30) days before the expiration of each lease 
term of the resident, review and determine the compliance of the resident with the 
requirement under paragraph 3 above.  Such determinations shall be made in accordance with 
the principles of due process and on a nondiscriminatory basis. 

 
7. Noncompliance 
 

If YCH determines that the resident subject to the requirement under paragraph 3 has not 
complied with the requirement, YCH shall notify the resident in writing of such noncompliance.  
The written notification shall state that the determination of noncompliance is subject to the 
administrative grievance procedure and that failure by the resident to enter into an agreement, 
before the expiration of the lease term, to cure any noncompliance by participating in an 
economic self-sufficiency program for, or contributing to community service, as many additional 
hours as the resident needs to comply in the aggregate with such requirement over the 12-
month term of the lease, may be cause for lease termination.  
 
YCH shall not renew or extend any lease, or provide any new lease, for a dwelling unit for any 
household that includes an adult member subject to the requirement under paragraph 3 who 
has been determined to be not compliant with the requirements under paragraph 3, and has 
failed to attempt to cure the noncompliance. 
 

8. Location of the community service or family self-sufficiency program 
 
Adult residents subject to the requirement under paragraph 3 may participate in a community 
service or an economic self-sufficiency program at a location not owned by YCH. 
 
YCH may provide a community service or an economic self-sufficiency program to meet the 
requirements of paragraph 3; however, YCH shall not substitute participation in community 
service or an economic self-sufficiency program for work performed by an employee of YCH or 
supplant a job at any location at which community work requirements are fulfilled. 
 

9. Treatment of Income Changes Resulting from Welfare Program Requirements 
 
This section applies to families that receive benefits for welfare or public assistance from a state 
or other public agency under a program for which the federal, state, or local law relating to the 
program requires, as a condition of eligibility for assistance under the program, participation of 
a member of the family in an economic self-sufficiency program. 
 
a. Decreases in Income for Failure to Comply 

 
For families whose welfare or public assistance benefits are reduced because of failure 
of any family member to comply with the conditions under the assistance program 
requiring participation in an economic self-sufficiency program or imposing a work 



  Yolo County Housing 
 79 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

activities requirement, the amount required to be paid by the family as a monthly 
contribution toward rent shall not be decreased. 

 
b. Fraud 
 

For families whose welfare or public assistance benefits are reduced because of an act 
of fraud by member of the family under the law or program, the amount required to be 
paid by the family as a monthly contribution toward rent shall not be decreased, during 
the period of reduction, as a result of any decrease in income of the family, to the 
extent that the decrease was the result of benefit reduction due to fraud. 

 
c. Reduction Based on Time Limit for Assistance 
 

The amount required to be paid as a monthly contribution toward rent by a family 
whose welfare or public assistance benefits are reduced as a result of the expiration of a 
lifetime time limit for a family, and not as a result of failure to comply with program 
requirements, shall be decreased, during the period of reduction, as a result of any 
decrease in income of the family, to the extent that the decrease was the result of 
benefit reduction due to expiration of a lifetime time limit. 

 
d. Notice 
 

YCH shall obtain written notification from the relevant welfare or public assistance 
agency specifying that the family’s benefits have been reduced and cause for reduction 
prior to redetermination of monthly contribution toward rent. 

 
e. Grievance 
 

Any family affected by sections 9.a and 9.b above shall have the right to review the 
determination through YCH’s grievance procedure. 

 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 80 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 
 

ADMISSIONS AND CONTINUED OCCUPANCY POLICY 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Part E:  FRAUD 
 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 81 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

FRAUD 
 
If YCH has reason to believe that a family may have (or had before participating in the public housing 
programs) committed fraud, bribery, or other corrupt or criminal acts YCH will conduct a thorough 
investigation.  If it is fraud, YCH will try to determine if it was intentional and willful fraud and program 
abuse.  Once YCH determines that intentional fraud has occurred and decides to terminate the lease due 
to fraud, YCH will provide the family with a 30-day Notice to Evict.  In addition, YCH shall refer intentional 
and willful fraud cases to the local or state prosecutors for possible criminal prosecution.  In most cases, 
YCH will work to arrange a stipulation and/or repayment agreement. 
 
YCH considers the misrepresentation of income and family circumstances to be a serious lease and policy 
violation.  Specifically: 
 
1. An applicant family who has misrepresented income or family circumstances may be declared 

ineligible for housing assistance. 
 

2. If any examination of the tenant’s file discloses that the tenant made any misrepresentation (at the 
time of admission or any previous re-examination date) which resulted in his/her being classified as 
eligible when in fact he/she was ineligible, the tenant may be required to vacate the apartment even 
though he/she may be currently eligible. 

 
3. A tenant family who has made misrepresentation of income or family circumstances is subject to both 

eviction and being declared ineligible for future housing assistance. 
 
4. If it is found that the tenant’s misrepresentations resulted in his/her paying a lower Tenant Rent than 

he/she should have paid, he/she will be required to pay the difference between rent owed and the 
amount that should have been paid.  This amount shall be paid whether or not the tenant remains in 
occupancy, but failure to pay under terms established by YCH shall always result in immediate 
termination of the lease.  YCH reserves the right to demand full payment within seven days. 

 
5. YCH shall report apparent cases of tenant or applicant fraud to the appropriate government agency.  It 

shall be the policy of YCH to press state and Federal authorities for prosecution of cases, which, in 
YCH’s judgment, appear to constitute willful and deliberate misrepresentation. 

 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 82 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 
 

ADMISSIONS AND CONTINUED OCCUPANCY POLICY 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Part F:  RENT POLICY 
 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 83 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

RENT POLICY 
 

 
1. Minimum Rental Amount 
 

YCH has established a minimum Total Tenant payment of $25.00 per month.  
 
2. Rent Collection 
 

a. Rent is due on the first day of each month. 
 
b. A 14-Day Notice of Termination will be served on the tenant on the sixth (6th) business day 

of the month for any rent due.  If the total rental payment due is not paid within fourteen 
(14) days, YCH will issue an unlawful detainer and file in court for all monies due and for 
possession of the unit.  Rent will be accepted up until the court filing date if the total 
amount is paid in full.  No partial payments will be accepted.  Should the resident wish to 
settle the suit out of court, resident payment shall include all past due rent, late fees, 
court filing fees, and other reasonable costs associated with the filing of the eviction as 
directed by the court. 

 
c. A late charge will be added to the monthly rental payment for any rent paid after the fifth 

(5th) business day of the month in the amount of $20.00.  All payments after the 
assessment of a late charge shall be made by certified check, cashier’s check, or money 
order.  No personal checks will be accepted for payment after the assessment of the late 
charge. 

 
d. In the event a check is returned to YCH for insufficient funds, a charge of $25.00 will be 

assessed to the tenant.  In the event the tenant is assessed this charge, the next three 
payments must be made by certified check, cashier’s check, or money order.  Personal 
checks will only be accepted for any payment after three months since the assessment of 
an NSF charge. 

 
e. If a family is served three (3) consecutive 14-day notices or four (4) 14-day notices within 

a twelve (12) month period, their lease shall be terminated for chronic rent delinquency. 
 

3. Payments After the Delinquency Date 
 

The family may enter into a written agreement with YCH or court to pay back all outstanding 
indebtedness, including unpaid maintenance charges and retro-rent, plus incurred charges.  
Repayment agreements will not be entered into for delinquent rent.  The option to enter into an 
agreement shall be solely at the discretion of YCH.  Any such agreement must provide for a quick 
payout of debt, not to exceed three (3) months for the total payment.  A longer repayment period 
may be authorized upon approval by the Chief Executive Officer.  Should the family fail to make 
payments in accordance with the terms of the agreement to repay, YCH shall serve a notice to 
vacate to the family.  Should YCH be required to enforce the terms of the lease agreement through 



  Yolo County Housing 
 84 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

legal action, all related court costs, attorney fees, plus any outstanding indebtedness, will be 
included in the judgment. 

 
4. Retroactive Rent Charges 
 

Retroactive rent charges will be due and payable within seven (7) days of written notice unless 
arrangements are made prior to this day to make installment payments.  Normally retroactive rent 
installment payments must be computed not to exceed a three (3) month pay off.  If the amounts 
are large and the tenant will not be able to pay off the retro rent charge within three (3) months a 
repayment schedule may be established allowing a longer period upon approval of the Chief 
Executive Officer or designee. 

 
5. Vacated Tenants with Balances 
 

Vacated tenants will have thirty (30) days from the date of the statement of Request for Refund to 
pay the account or make arrangements for payment.  Accounts will be reported to the Credit 
Bureau and collection action will be taken after the expiration of this time period. 

 
6. Terms and Conditions of Payment of Security Deposits 
 

Prior to lease signing, YCH must receive full payment of the security deposit. At the discretion of 
the Chief Executive Officer of his/her designee, deposits may be accepted in incremental 
payments.  Where the family moves in on other than the first of the month, the rent will be pro-
rated for that month but the full security deposit will still be due at time of lease execution.  All 
security deposits will be paid by certified check, cashiers check, or money order.  No personal 
checks will be accepted for security deposits.  
 
In properties designated for the exclusive occupancy by elderly, disabled, or disabled persons, YCH 
will allow the keeping of pets in accordance with YCH’s Pet Policy and upon execution of the Pet 
Lease Addendum.  A condition of pet ownership is the payment of a pet deposit for all dogs and 
cats. 

 
7. Terms and Conditions of Other Charges in Addition to Rent 
 

The resident agrees to pay for all repairs made to the unit due to resident damage or neglect.  The 
resident must pay such charges at the first of the month following the receipt of the invoice or bill 
for the charges.  Such charges will be made based on actual cost of labor and materials.  YCH will 
notify residents of any assessed charges in writing.  In the event there is a dispute in an assessed 
charge, the resident must notify the Housing Manager within ten days of the date of the letter. 
 
In the event of damages discovered at move-out, the family’s security deposit will be reduced by 
the amount necessary to execute repairs above “normal wear and tear”.  Any remaining balance 
will be refunded to the resident under the following conditions: 

 
a. The resident leaves a forwarding address or makes arrangements to pick up the deposit in 

person. 



  Yolo County Housing 
 85 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
b. The resident owes no other charges for excess utility consumption, late fees on rental 

payments, etc. 
 
c. The remaining balance will be paid within twenty-one (21) days of move-out. 

 
8. Exemption for Hardship Circumstances 
 

YCH shall immediately grant an exemption from application of the minimum monthly rental 
amount to any family unable to pay such amount because of financial hardship, which shall 
include situations in which: 

 
a. The family has lost eligibility for or is awaiting an eligibility determination for a federal, 

state, or local assistance program, including a family that includes a member who is an 
alien lawfully admitted for permanent residence under the Immigration and Nationality 
Act who would be entitled to public benefits but for title IV of the Personal 
Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 1996; 

 
b. The family would be evicted as a result of the imposition of the minimum rent 

requirement; 
 
c. The income of the family has decreased because of changed circumstances, including 

loss of employment; 
 
d. A death in the family has occurred. 
 
If a resident requests a hardship exemption and YCH reasonably determines the hardship to be 
of a temporary nature, an exemption shall not be granted during the 90-day period beginning 
upon the making of a request for the exemption.  A resident shall not be evicted during the 90-
day period for non-payment of rent.  In such a case, if the resident thereafter demonstrates that 
the financial hardship is of a long-term basis, YCH shall retroactively exempt the resident from 
applicability of the minimum rent requirement for such 90-day period. 
 

9. Family Choice of Rental Payment (24 CFR 960.253) 
 
YCH shall provide two (2) rent options for any public housing dwelling unit owned, assisted, or 
operated by YCH: 
 
a. Flat Rents:  The flat rental amount for the dwelling unit shall be based on the rental 

value of the unit, as determined by YCH; or, 
 
b. Income Based Rents:  The monthly rental amount shall not exceed 30% of monthly 

adjusted income.  Income Based Rents shall not be less than the minimum rental 
amount.  

 

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=ce1461759bbc14be1858015db1cc0ed3&mc=true&node=pt24.4.960&rgn=div5#se24.4.960_1253


  Yolo County Housing 
 86 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

The term “adjusted income” means, with respect to the family, the amount of income of 
the members of the family residing in a dwelling unit or the persons on a lease, after any 
income exclusions as follows: 

 
(i) $400 for any elderly or disabled family; 

 
(ii) The amount by which 10% of the annual family income is exceeded by the sum 

of: 
 

(a) Un-reimbursed medical expenses for any elderly family or disabled 
family; 

(b) Un-reimbursed reasonable attendant care and auxiliary apparatus 
expenses for each disabled member of the family, to the extent 
necessary to enable any member of such family (including such disabled 
member) to be employed. 

 
(iii) Any reasonable child care expenses necessary to enable a member of the family 

to be employed or to further his or her education; 
 

(iv) $480 for each member of the family residing in the household (other than the 
head of the household or his or her spouse) who is less than 18 years of age or is 
attending school or vocational training on a full-time basis, or who is 18 years of 
age or older and is a person with disabilities; 

 
(v) Any payment made by a member of the family for the support and maintenance 

of any child who does not reside in the household, except that the amount 
excluded under this clause may not exceed $480 for each child for whom such 
payment is made;  

 
(vi) Any payment made by a member of the family for the support and maintenance 

of any spouse or former spouse who does not reside in the household, except 
that the amount excluded under this clause shall not exceed the lesser of: 

 
(a) The amount that such family member has legal obligation to pay, or, 
(b) $550 for each individual for whom such payment is made. 

 
(vii) The amount of any earned income of a member of the family who is not: 

 
(a) 18 years of age or older, and 
(b) The head of the household (or the spouse of the head of the 

household). 
 
10. Switching Rent Determination Methods Because of Hardship Circumstances 
 

In the case of a family that has elected to pay rent in the amount equal to the Flat Rent/Ceiling 
Rent for the dwelling unit, YCH shall immediately provide for the family to pay rent in the 



  Yolo County Housing 
 87 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

amount equal to Income Based Rent during the period for which such election was made upon a 
determination that the family is unable to pay the amount determined because of financial 
hardship, including: 
 
a. Situations in which the income of the family has decreased because of changed 

circumstances, loss or reduction of employment, death in the family, and reduction in or 
loss of income or other assistance; 

 
b. An increase, because of changed circumstances, in the family’s expenses for medical 

costs, child care, transportation, education, or similar items; or, 
 

c. Such other situations as may be determined by YCH. 
 
Families switching rent determination method because of hardship circumstances shall be 
limited to one (1) rent switch within a twelve (12) month period.  Such rent switches are subject 
to interim re-examination provisions as detailed in this policy.  
 

11. Encouragement of Self-Sufficiency (24 CFR 960.255) 
 

It is the policy of YCH to encourage and reward employment and economic self-sufficiency.   
 
Disallowance of earned income from rent determinations (mandatory): When a family member 
becomes employed after being unemployed for at least one (1) year, or when income increases 
during the participation in any family self-sufficiency or job training program, or who is or was 
assisted under TANF within six (6) months and whose earned income increases, rent shall not 
increase for twelve (12) months after commencing work. 
 
Tenant Rent increases (mandatory): Upon expiration of the 12-month period of disallowance of 
earned income from rent determinations, the rent payable by the family shall be increased due 
to continued employment of the family member, except that during the 12-month period 
beginning upon such expiration, the amount of the increase may not be greater than 50% of the 
amount of the total rent increase that would be applicable.  (Rent may only increase by 50% of 
what it normally would during the next 12-month period.) 
 
The total period of disallowance is 24 months.  Once the period begins, it cannot be “stopped” 
and continues, regardless of whether or not there is still income to be disallowed.  Income 
during the first 12-month period will have a 100% disallowance and income during the second 
12-month period will have a 50% disallowance.  If, for some reason, there is no income to 
disallow, the disallowance is lost. 
 

12. Treatment of Income Changes Resulting from Welfare Program Requirements 
 
This section applies to families that receive benefits for welfare or public assistance from a state 
or other public agency under a program for which the federal, state, or local law relating to the 
program requires, as a condition of eligibility for assistance under the program, participation of 
a member of the family in an economic self-sufficiency program. 

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=ce1461759bbc14be1858015db1cc0ed3&mc=true&node=pt24.4.960&rgn=div5#se24.4.960_1255


  Yolo County Housing 
 88 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
a. Decreases in Income for Failure to Comply 
 

For families whose welfare or public assistance benefits are reduced because of failure 
of any family member to comply with the conditions under the assistance program 
requiring participation in an economic self-sufficiency program or imposing a work 
activities requirement, the amount required to be paid by the family as a monthly 
contribution toward rent shall not be decreased. 

 
b. Fraud 
 

For families whose welfare or public assistance benefits are reduced because of an act 
of fraud by member of the family under the law or program, the amount required to be 
paid by the family as a monthly contribution toward rent shall not be decreased, during 
the period of reduction, as a result of any decrease in income of the family, to the 
extent that the decrease was the result of benefit reduction due to fraud. 

 
c. Reduction Based on Time Limit for Assistance 
 

The amount required to be paid as a monthly contribution toward rent by a family 
whose welfare or public assistance benefits are reduced as a result of the expiration of a 
lifetime time limit for a family, and not as a result of failure to comply with program 
requirements, shall be decreased, during the period of reduction, as a result of any 
decrease in income of the family, to the extent that the decrease was the result of 
benefit reduction due to expiration of a lifetime time limit. 

 
d. Notice 
 

YCH shall obtain written notification from the relevant welfare or public assistance 
agency specifying that the family’s benefits have been reduced and cause for reduction 
prior to redetermination of monthly contribution toward rent. 

 
e. Grievance 
 

Any family affected by sections 12.a and 12.b above shall have the right to review the 
determination through YCH’s grievance procedure. 

 
13. Policy for Payments of any Amounts under a YCH Repayment Agreement 
 
Repayment Agreements are entered into and approved by YCH at its sole discretion and YCH is under no 
obligation to extend the option for a repayment agreement to any tenant.  YCH will not enter into a 
repayment agreement if there is a repayment agreement in place or if the amounts owed by the family 
exceed the federal or state threshold for criminal prosecution. 
 
The Head of Household and the spouse/cohead, if applicable, must sign the repayment agreement and are 
equally responsible for the repayment of the amounts owed.  Payments are due on a monthly basis no 



  Yolo County Housing 
 89 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

later than the close of business on the 15th calendar day of the month or the first business day after the 
15th calendar day if that day falls on a weekend or holiday. 
 
The payment terms for all repayment agreements are indicated in the following table. 
 

Total Amount Due 
Minimum Initial 

Payment 
Minimum Monthly 

Payment 
Maximum Term 

(Months) 

$1 - $200 $100 Single Payment One payment 

$201 - $500 50% of Balance $125 3 

$501 - $1,000 $250 $175 5 

$1,001 - $2,000 $500 $200 10 

$2001 - $3,000 $650 $200 or 1/18 of total* 14 

$3,001 or More $1000 $200 or 1/24 of total* 24 

* Whichever Amount is Greater 
 
If a payment is not received by the end of the business day on the due date and prior approval for an 
alternate due date is not provided by YCH, YCH will send a delinquency notice giving the family 10 calendar 
days to bring the payments current.  A family’s failure to maintain the payment schedule of the repayment 
agreement will be grounds for the immediate termination of tenancy in accordance with the provisions of 
this policy.  If a family receives three delinquency notices in a 12-month period, the repayment agreement 
will be considered to be in default and tenancy will be terminated in accordance with the provisions of this 
policy. 
 
On a case-by-case basis, YCH will consider hardship extensions if necessary due to the family’s current 
financial circumstances.  Requests for hardship extensions must be provided to the Real Estate Services 
Supervisor or her/his designee.  Hardship requests should be made in writing.  
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 90 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A:  PET POLICY 
 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 91 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 
Pet Policy 

(24 CFR 960 Subpart G) 
 
This pet policy is adopted pursuant to the Quality Housing and Work Responsibility Act of 1998. It has 
been reviewed and approved by YCH Board of Commissioners and by the Department of Housing and 
Urban Development. All heads of household must sign a copy of this policy to acknowledge their 
understanding of the terms of all three pages of this policy. For the purpose of this policy, the Yolo 
County Housing is designated a family housing complex. 
 
Assistance animals to the handicapped are exempt from certain portions of this policy as indicated 
below. While it is required that assistance animals be maintained in a sanitary and safe manner, no 
portion of this policy is intended to restrict any disabled person’s rights under Fair Housing Law. 
 
1. Residents of public housing will be allowed to have the following pet or pet combination only: 
 

a. One common household pet, as defined in paragraph 3.B. below; or 
b. One fish tank ten gallons or less, one bird cage, or one hamster/gerbil cage; or 
c. One each of a and b above. 

 
2. Pet Registration and Management Approval 
 

All pets must be registered by the tenant with YCH before they are brought onto YCH common 
areas or buildings, including rental units.  The registration shall include: 

 
a. A complete description of the pet, including breed, age, color, height and weight. 
b. One (1) color photo of the pet, not less than 3” x 3” in size. 
c. The name, address and phone number of at least two persons who have consented to 

be responsible for the pet in any circumstance where the resident pet owner is unable 
to care for the assistance animal. 

d. A signed statement by the pet owner that he or she has read the Pet Policy and agrees 
to comply with the policy as a condition of his or her lease. 

e. Documentation that the pet is registered with and licensed by Yolo County or 
appropriate entity.  This license must be kept current at all times. 

f. Proof that any dog or cat is spayed or neutered at the time of registration or, in the case 
of underage animals, within 30 days of the pet reaching 6 months of age. 

 
3. Additionally, the registration must include the following: 
 

a. A certificate, signed by licensed veterinarian or State or local authority empowered to 
inoculate animals, stating that the pet has received all inoculations required by State 
and local laws. 

b. Information sufficient to identify the pet and to demonstrate that it is a common 
household pet. “Common household pet” means a smaller domesticated animal, such as 
a dog, cat, bird, fish, or turtle, that (1) is traditionally kept in the home for pleasure 
rather than for commercial purposes and (2) can reasonably be expected not to exceed 

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=ce1461759bbc14be1858015db1cc0ed3&mc=true&node=pt24.4.960&rgn=div5#sp24.4.960.g


  Yolo County Housing 
 92 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

25 pounds when full grown. Reptiles, except for turtles, are not common household 
pets.  The above weight limit shall not apply to assistance animals. 

 
Tenant agrees that tenant shall indemnify and save harmless and defend YCH, from all suits 
based on personal injury, bodily injury (including death), or property damage (including 
destruction) received or claims, damages, and expenses of any kind arising from or in 
connection with tenant’s pet.  

 
4. For each pet described under paragraph 1.A. above, tenant agrees to pay a $200.00 pet deposit 

at the time the lease is signed. For any pet described under 1.B. above, tenant agrees to pay a 
$100.00 pet deposit. In the case of a current tenant who wishes to obtain a pet, deposit 
payments must be made prior to bringing the pet onto YCH property.  The tenant must pay total 
amount prior to bring the pet onto YCH property.  The above deposits shall not apply to 
assistance animals. 

 
5. All cats and dogs must be leashed while in common areas of the development.  In no instance 

shall a pet be left tied outside the unit. 
 
6. Registered pet owners are responsible for the removal of and disposal of pet waste. Failure to 

dispose of waste on YCH grounds will result in a work order charge assessed to the resident’s 
rent account. 

 
7. Cat litter boxes and bird and hamster cages must be changed at least once a week and the 

contents properly disposed of. 
 
8. Registered pet owners must not allow a pet to be left unattended for a period of 24 hours or 

more.  If YCH discovers that a pet has been left in the unit for over 24 hours unattended, YCH 
may contact animal control or another authority for the removal of the pet for the health and 
safety of the pet. 

 
9. Tenant is responsible for the control of noise and odor caused by a pet. If a tenant cannot 

control the noise of a pet, YCH will require that the pet be removed. 
 
10. Registered pet owners must not allow a pet to stray to other units. 
 
11. Registered pet owners will be responsible to cover or remove pet’s open food and water when 

the Pest Control Company comes to spray the units. YCH will not be responsible for the illness or 
death of a pet due to tenant’s failure to adhere to this regulation. 

 
12. Tenants must not throw food in the yard to feed pets. 

 
13.        Feed pet inside unit. Do not leave food and water outside of apartment. 
 
14. A pet cannot weigh over 25 pounds at maturity.  This requirement does not apply to assistance 

animals. 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 93 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

15. Visitors will not be allowed to bring their pets into the development unless that pet is an 
assistance animal.  Tenants who allow visitors to bring pets into their unit, will be subject to pet 
deposits. 

 
16. YCH will not register a common household pet if the keeping of the pet will violate any 

applicable house pet rule, or if the presence of the pet will constitute a serious threat to the 
health of another resident of the development, or if the pet owner fails to provide complete pet 
registration information and fails to update pet registration annually. 

 
17. A pet will constitute a serious threat to the health of an individual only if the individual has filed 

with YCH a certificate signed by a licensed physician indicating that exposure to the pet will 
cause allergic reaction that will constitute such a threat to that individual. 

 
18. If a pet become vicious, displays symptoms of severe illness, or demonstrates other behavior 

that constitutes an immediate threat to the health or safety of the tenancy as a whole, YCH will 
require the pet owner to remove the pet immediately from the housing development. If the pet 
owner refuses, they shall be evicted. If YCH is unable to contact the pet owner, it will contact the 
appropriate State or local authority to have the pet immediately removed from the 
development premises. 

 
19. If the health or safety of a pet is threatened by the death or incapacity of the pet owner, or by 

other factors that render the pet owner unable to care for the pet, YCH will contact the 
responsible party listed in the pet registration. If YCH has made a reasonable attempt to 
contract the responsible party, but the party is unwilling or unable to care for the pet, YCH will 
contact the appropriate State or local authority and request the removal of the pet. 

 
20. Violation of these rules will be grounds for (1) the removal of the pet from the unit for as long as 

the tenant remains with YCH or (2) termination of the lease in accordance with State and local 
law and applicable regulations. 

 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 94 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX B:  ASSISTANCE ANIMAL POLICY 
 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 95 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 
Assistance Animal Policy 

(24 CFR 960.705) 
 
 

1. Policy Overview 
 
In compliance with Section 504 or the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, YCH will permit residents of housing 
developments to own and maintain assistance animals.  
 
Assistance animals are not pets.  They are animals that work, provide assistance, or perform tasks for the 
benefit of a person with a disability, or animals that provides emotional support that alleviates one or 
more identified symptoms or effects of a person’s disability. 
 
Assistance animals—often referred to as “service animals,” “assistance animals,” “support animals,” or 
“therapy animals”—perform many disability-related functions, including but not limited to guiding 
individuals who are blind or have low vision, alerting individuals who are deaf or hard of hearing to sounds, 
providing minimal protection or rescue assistance, pulling a wheelchair, fetching items, alerting persons to 
impending seizures, or providing emotional support to those who have a disability-related need for such 
support. 
 
2. Verification of Need for Assistance Animal 
  
The need for an assistance animal must be verified. The applicant or tenant must sign a release of 
information form to discuss their request with a person(s) that he or she has designated.  Third party 
verification will be obtained from an appropriate person(s) who is knowledgeable about and can verify the 
applicant/tenant’s disability.  YCH staff may discuss the request or the response with the applicant/tenant 
prior to making a determination.  YCH staff will evaluate the request and the third party response to 
determine if the request should be accepted or denied. 
 
3. Assistance Animal Registration and Management Approval 
 
All assistance animals must be registered by the tenant with YCH before they are brought onto YCH 
common areas or buildings, including rental units.  The registration shall include: 

 
g. A complete description of the assistance animal, including breed, age, color, height and 

weight. 
 
h. One (1) color photo of the assistance animal, not less than 3” x 3” in size. 
 
i. The name, address and phone number of at least two persons who have consented to 

be responsible for the assistance animal in any circumstance where the resident 
assistance animal owner is unable to care for the assistance animal. 

 

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=ce1461759bbc14be1858015db1cc0ed3&mc=true&node=pt24.4.960&rgn=div5#se24.4.960_1705


  Yolo County Housing 
 96 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

j. A signed statement by the assistance animal owner that he or she has read the 
Assistance Animal Policy and agrees to comply with the policy as a condition of his or 
her lease. 

 
k. Documentation that the animal is registered with and licensed by Yolo County or the 

responsible jurisdiction.  This license must be kept current at all times. 
 
l. Proof that any dog or cat is spayed or neutered at the time of registration or, in the case 

of underage animals, within 30 days of the pet reaching 6 months of age. 
 
4. Refusal to Register Assistance Animals 
  
YCH may decline to register an assistance animal for any of the reasons set forth below.  If YCH refuses to 
register an assistance animal, notification will be provided to the tenant who requested registration.  The 
notice will state the basis for the rejection, as size, disposition, etc., and will be served in accordance with 
YCH notice requirements. 
  
YCH will refuse to register an assistance animal if: 
  

a. Keeping the assistance animal would violate any of these Assistance Animal Policies; 
 
b. The assistance animal owner fails to provide complete assistance animal registration 

information, or fails to update the registration annually; or 
 
c. YCH reasonably determines that the assistance animal owner is unable to keep the 

assistance animal in compliance with the Assistance Animal Policy and other lease 
obligations.  The assistance animal’s temperament and behavior may be considered as a 
factor in determining the assistance animal owner’s ability to comply with provisions of 
the lease. 

 
5. Alterations to Unit 
  
Assistance animal owners shall not alter their units, patio, premises or common areas to create an 
enclosure for any animal. Installation of pet doors is prohibited.  Storage units cannot be used for animal 
containment or bird enclosures. 
  
6. Assistance Animal Waste Removal and Cleanliness Requirements 
  
Each assistance animal owner shall keep their unit and all common areas, inside and outside, clean and 
free of odors, insect infestations, feces, urine and litter.  All animal feces are to be picked up and disposed 
of.  Animal waste must be double wrapped in plastic and disposed of with garbage.  Note:  cat litter, even 
cat litter described as safe for toilet disposal and plastic or heavy paper used to transport animal feces 
must not be flushed down the toilet. 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 97 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

Vaccinations/Inoculations:  Owners of assistance animals must provide a certificate, signed by licensed 
veterinarian or State or local authority empowered to inoculate animals, stating that the pet has 
received all inoculations required by State and local laws. 
 
Compliance with City Codes and Ordinances:  Any local code or ordinance pertaining to animals must be 
complied with and are hereby incorporated by reference in these policies.  Residents must, therefore, 
comply with the codes and ordinances regarding animals in order to comply with this policy.  This includes 
any ordinances related to the removal and disposal of assistance animal waste.  
 
Litter Box Requirements:  All animal waste or the litter from litter boxes shall be picked up and emptied 
every day by the assistance animal owner.  Litter boxes shall be stored inside the resident’s dwelling unit. 
 
Removal of Waste:  Resident assistance animal owners are responsible for the removal of assistance 
animal waste from their yard or their assistance animal’s waste from any area by immediately placing the 
feces in a sealed plastic bag and disposing of it in an outside trash bin.  YCH will not tolerate the 
accumulation of animal feces in any areas wherein animals are kept.  Assistance animal owners must 
remove or dispose of feces immediately. 
 
The resident assistance animal owner shall take adequate precautions to eliminate any odors within or 
around the unit and to maintain the unit in a sanitary condition at all times. 
 
Assistance animals are to be fed inside the unit.  Feeding is not allowed on porches, sidewalks, patios or 
other outside areas. Residents are responsible for the removal of food and water when periodic pest 
control is performed by YCH. 
 
7. Noise 
 
Assistance animal owners must control the noise of assistance animals so that they do not interfere with 
or disturb other residents of YCH, or otherwise constitute a nuisance to other residents. This includes, but 
is not limited to loud or continuous barking, howling, whining, biting, scratching, meowing, chirping or 
other similar activities. 
 
8. Assistance Animal Care 
 
Assistance animals may not be left unattended for more than twenty-four hours.  YCH may remove any 
assistance animal left unattended in violation of this policy.  Each assistance animal owner shall be fully 
responsible for the care of his or her assistance animal.  Assistance animals must be maintained in a 
manner that prevents any damage to the owner’s unit, common areas or to building grounds or any YCH 
property.  
 
Each assistance animal owner shall maintain his/her assistance animal so that the animal is healthy and 
not a nuisance to other residents in the building or neighborhood by reason of noise, unpleasant odors, or 
other objectionable behavior.  Assistance animal owners are obligated by this policy to treat animals under 
their care in a humane, safe and sanitary manner consistent with this policy and local ordinances.  Any 
assistance animal owner who mistreats an assistance animal, fails to adequately feed, exercise, groom and 



  Yolo County Housing 
 98 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

provide needed medical attention for a sick or injured animal, or confines or otherwise restrains an animal 
in a way detrimental to their well-being violates the terms of this agreement.  
 
9. Inspections 
 
YCH may, after reasonable notice to the tenant during reasonable hours, enter and inspect the premises, 
in addition to other inspections allowed. 
 
10. YCH Staff Access to Assistance Animal Occupied Units 
 
Assistance animal owners are required to notify YCH employees prior to their entry into the assistance 
animal owners’ unit, of the presence of an assistance animal in that unit. Assistance animal owners must 
also properly restrain the animal during the presence of YCH personnel.  Assistance animal owners 
requesting maintenance service must state in their work order request that an assistance animal is present 
and the animal that resides in the unit. 
 
YCH employees entering or leaving the assistance animal owner’s unit or premises are not responsible for 
securing or restraining the animal to keep it from leaving the unit.  Containment of the assistance animal is 
at all times the responsibility of the resident assistance animal owner. 
 
11. Nuisance or Threat to Health or Safety 
 
Nothing in this policy shall prohibit YCH from requiring the removal of any assistance animal from a unit if 
the assistance animal’s conduct or condition is duly determined to constitute a nuisance or threat to the 
health or safety of other tenants.  Nuisance behavior shall include, but not be limited to noise, unpleasant 
odors or other objectionable behavior. 
 
In the event a resident cannot care for his or her assistance animal due to an illness, absence, or death, 
and persons authorized by the resident to care for the assistance animal(s) cannot be found within twenty-
four hours, the resident hereby gives permission for the assistance animal to be released to the Humane 
Society/Animal Control, in accordance with Humane Society procedures.  In no case shall YCH incur any 
costs or liability for the care of an assistance animal placed in the care of another individual or agency 
under this procedure. 
 
YCH will take all necessary steps to ensure that assistance animals that are or become vicious; display 
symptoms of severe illness; or demonstrate behavior that constitutes an immediate threat to the health or 
safety of others; are referred to the appropriate state or local entity authorized to remove such animals. 
 
12. Assistance Animal Rule Violation Procedures 
 
If YCH determines on the basis of objective facts that a tenant or a member of the tenant’s family has 
violated an assistance animal rule, YCH shall serve a notice of violation to the tenant. Violation of this 
Assistance Animal Policy shall constitute material violations of the tenant’s lease and shall be handled 
accordingly. This includes the tenant’s right to a hearing under YCH Grievance Procedure as provided for 
elsewhere in the Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy. 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 99 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

13. Lease Provisions 
 
Failure to comply with the rules and terms of the Assistance Animal Policy constitutes material non-
compliance with the provisions of the lease.  YCH’s determination that the assistance animal is a threat to 
health and safety shall not, in itself, be grounds for termination of the lease; however, failure to remove an 
assistance animal judged by YCH to be a nuisance or a threat to health and safety may constitute grounds 
for lease termination and eviction. 
 
14. Exemption 
 
YCH may at its sole discretion, grant an exemption to any requirement of this Assistance Animal Policy. 



  Yolo County Housing 
 100 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 
Assistance Animal and/or Pet Registration Form 

 
Call Name:          
 
Inoculations (Type):         Date:      
 
              
 
              
 
Veterinarian Certification:        Date:       
 
Names of other persons who will care for the animal(s) if resident is unable to do so: 
 
Name:                
 
Address:               
 
City/State/Zip:               
 
Phone:  Day:        Night:      
 
Name:                
 
Address:               
 
City/State/Zip:               
 
Phone:  Day:        Night:      
 
In the event an animal(s) is left unattended for a period of twenty-four (24) hours or the person(s) listed 
above cannot care for the animal(s), and if no other person can be found to care for the animal(s), the 
tenant hereby gives permission for YCH, or their designee, to enter the unit and release the animal(s) to 
the Humane Society/Animal Control, in accordance with their procedures, and the tenant releases and 
holds harmless YCH of all responsibility for any animal(s) so removed.  The tenant further agrees that he 
or she will be liable for any costs, which may be associated with the temporary housing and feeding of 
the animal(s). 
 
I have read YCH’s Assistance Animal Policy and/or Pet Policy and understand its provisions.  I agree to 
abide by these provisions fully and understand that permission to keep an animal will be revoked if I fail 
to do so.  I have received a copy of the Policy.  Violation of this Policy is a serious violation of the lease 
and any violation of this Policy can result in termination of tenancy. 
 
              

Tenant Signature       Date  



  Yolo County Housing 
 101 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX C:  SMOKE-FREE HOUSING POLICY 
 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 102 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 
Smoke-Free Housing Policy 

(81 FR 87430) 
 
This policy bars the use of prohibited tobacco products on all Low-Income Public Housing property 
owned by Yolo County Housing including but not limited to public housing units, common areas both 
interiors of buildings and exteriors of buildings, property management offices, playgrounds, soccer 
fields, etc.  Smoking, as defined herein, is prohibited in any building, facility, playground, soccer field or 
vehicle.  As part of this policy, YCH also prohibits the use of electronic nicotine delivery systems (ENDS) 
in the above areas and is including it in this policy’s definition of smoking.  Smoking is only allowed in 
designated smoking areas on YCH property.   
 
This policy applies to all residents, resident’s families, resident’s guests and persons under their control, 
visitors, contractors, service personnel, and employees. 

 
Purpose 
 

1) To mitigate the irritation and known health effects of secondhand smoke. Smoking or 
exposure to secondhand smoke (sometimes called environmental tobacco smoke) 
causes premature death from respiratory disease, cancer or heart disease. Smoking is 
the number one cause of preventable disease in the United States. 

 
2)  Smoking or exposure to secondhand smoke (sometimes called environmental tobacco 

smoke) causes premature death from respiratory disease, cancer or heart disease. 
According to the EPA, secondhand smoke exposure causes disease and premature death 
in children and adults who do not smoke. People with chronic diseases such as asthma 
or cardiovascular disease are particularly vulnerable to the effects of secondhand 
smoke. Secondhand smoke lingers in the air for hours after cigarettes have been 
extinguished and can migrate between apartments in multifamily buildings. 

 
3)  To allow all administrative and maintenance staff the opportunity to perform their job 

duties in an environment that is nonsmoking.  
 
4)  Minimize the maintenance, cleaning, painting and redecorating costs associated with 

smoking.       
 
5)   Decrease the risk of smoking-related fires to property and personal safety. Fires started 

by lighted tobacco products, principally cigarettes, constitute the leading cause of 
residential fire deaths. 

 
Definitions 
 
Public Housing – Public Housing is defined as low-income housing, and all necessary appurtenances (e.g. 
community facilities, public housing offices, day care centers, and laundry rooms) thereto, assisted 
under the U.S. Housing Act of 1937 (the 1937 Act), other than assistance under section 8 of the 1937 
Act. 

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2016/12/05/2016-28986/instituting-smoke-free-public-housing


  Yolo County Housing 
 103 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
Development/Property – All of YCH’s public housing developments and property are included in this 
policy and all related administrative offices and maintenance facilities. 

 
Smoking - The term “smoking” means igniting, inhaling, exhaling, breathing or carrying or possessing any 
lit cigar, cigarette, pipe, water pipe referred to as hookahs or other tobacco product or similar lighted 
product in any manner or in any form or any other device containing tobacco, marijuana or other legal 
or illegal substance that burns. This definition also includes electronic nicotine delivery systems (ENDS) 
including electronic cigarettes (“e-cigarettes”). 

 
Indoor Areas – Indoor Areas are defined as living units/apartments, indoor common areas, electrical 
rooms and closets, storage units or closets, community bathrooms, lobbies, hallways, laundry rooms, 
stairways, offices, elevators and all public housing administrative offices/buildings, maintenance 
facilities and vehicles. 
 
Individual Apartment /Units - Individual Apartment/Units are defined as the interior and exterior spaces 
tied to a particular apartment/unit. This includes, but is not limited to, bedrooms, hallways, kitchens, 
bathroom, patios, balconies, porches and apartment entryway areas. 
 

Common areas - Common areas are areas that are open to all residents, resident’s families, 
resident’s guests, visitors, contractors, service personnel, employees and members of the public. 
Common areas include:  

 
(a) Any inside space  
(b) Entryways/entrances  
(c) Patios, porches and balconies  
(d) Lobbies 
(e) Hallways and stairwells  
(f) Elevators  
(g) Management offices 
(h) Maintenance offices and warehouses  
(i) Public restrooms 
(j) Community rooms  
(k) Community kitchens  
(l) Lawns  
(m) Sidewalks and walkways within the development  
(n) Parking lots and spaces  
(o) Playgrounds, parks and picnic areas  
(p) Common areas also include any other area of the buildings or developments where 

residents, resident’s families, resident’s guests, visitors, contractors, service personnel, 
employees, and members of the public may go. 

 
Effective Date 
 
The effective date of this policy shall be July 30, 2018. All residents, resident’s families, resident’s guests 
and persons under their control, visitors, contractors, service personnel, employees, and members of 



  Yolo County Housing 
 104 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

the public will be prohibited from smoking on all Low-Income Public Housing property owned by Yolo 
County Housing except in designated smoking areas including but not limited to housing units, common 
areas both interiors of buildings and exteriors of buildings, administrative offices,  inside the buildings, in 
common areas, including all housing units starting on that date.   

 
Residents Responsibilities and Lease Violations 
 

1) Residents are responsible for the actions of members of their household and guests.  Any 
resident will be considered in violation of the lease if they, members of their household or 
guests are found smoking in any smoke-free areas included in this policy.  Visual observation of 
smoking is not necessary to substantiate a violation of this policy.  For example, the presence of 
smoke, tobacco smoke odor, burns, or smoke stains within an apartment in combination with 
butts, ash trays, or other smoking paraphernalia will be considered significant evidence of a 
policy violation.  Five (5) violations will be considered to be a serious violation of the material 
terms of the lease and will be cause for eviction. In addition, resident will be responsible for all 
costs to remove smoke odor or residue upon any violation of this policy. 

 

2) No smoking signs will be posted both outside and inside the buildings, offices and common 
areas of YCH property. Residents will be responsible to inform all their household, family, and 
guests and persons under their control that their apartment is smoke free and that their housing 
may be affected by violators.  

 

3) If the smell of tobacco smoke is reported, YCH will seek the source of the smoke and 
appropriate action will be taken. Residents are encouraged to promptly give YCH staff a written 
statement of any incident where smoke is migrating into the resident’s apartment from sources 
outside of the resident’s apartment.  

 
Enforcement 

 
If a resident is found to be in violation of this policy, the following steps will be taken: 

 
● First violation: The first documented violation will result in a verbal warning and referral to 

smoking cessation resources.   

● Second violation:  The second documented violation will result in a written warning, referral to 
smoking cessation resources and referral to client services. 

● Third violation:  The third documented violation will result in a second written warning, referral 
to smoking cessation resources and referral to client services. 

● Fourth violation:  The fourth documented violation, the resident is served with a Notice to 
Perform Covenant or quit, cessation resources and a third referral to client services. 

● Fifth violation: The fifth documented violation will result in a Notice to Terminate Tenancy.  
Any person whose tenancy is terminated due to violation of this policy will be subject to a unit 
cleaning fee. 

 
In addition, YCH reserves the right to charge a resident a reasonable fee associated with any 
maintenance costs related to resident’s smoking during the duration of their lease. 

 



  Yolo County Housing 
 105 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

If an employee is found to be in violation of this policy, any disciplinary actions should be consistent with 
YCH’s Personnel Policy.    
 
Adoption of Policy by Resident 
 
Upon approval of this policy by YCH, all current residents living in YCH’s public housing developments 
will be given a copy of this policy. New residents will be given a copy of this policy at lease-up. After 
review, both current and new residents will be required to sign the Smoke-Free Housing Lease 
Addendum within 60 days of the effective date of the policy. A copy will be retained in the resident file. 
Failure to sign and/or return the Smoke-Free Housing Policy Lease Addendum to the Property 
Management office in a timely manner will result in a written warning.  If still not received after a 
second warning, eviction procedures will be started. All current residents who smoke will be provided 
with resources for a cessation program. The development’s Property Manager will provide information 
on cessation program accessibility. 
 
Disclaimers and Representations 
 

1) The Smoke-Free Housing Policy does not mean that residents and/or employees will have to 
quit smoking in order to live and/or work at YCH’s public housing developments and offices or 
drive its vehicles. 

 

2) YCH does not guarantee a Smoke-Free Environment.  YCH's adoption of the Smoke-Free Housing 
Policy, and the efforts to designate developments as non-smoking does not make YCH or any of 
its Board of Commissioners, officers, employees or agents the guarantor of resident’s health or 
of the smoke-free condition. YCH will take reasonable steps to enforce the Smoke-Free Housing 
Policy. YCH is not required to take steps in response to smoking unless YCH has actual 
knowledge of the smoking and the identity of the responsible resident.  

 

3) YCH's adoption of a non-smoking living environment and the efforts to designate its 
developments as non-smoking does not in any way change the standard of care that YCH has 
under applicable law to render its developments any safer, more habitable or improved in terms 
of air quality standards than any other rental premises. YCH specifically disclaims any implied or 
express warranties that the air quality in the apartment or the building containing the 
apartment will improve or be any better than any other rental property. YCH cannot and does 
not warranty or promise that its developments will be free from secondhand smoke. YCH’s 
adoption of the Smoke-Free Housing Policy does not in any way change the standard of care 
that it has to the resident’s apartments and the common spaces. 

 

4) YCH’s ability to police, monitor or enforce the Smoke-Free Housing Policy is dependent in 
significant part on voluntary compliance of residents, resident’s household, resident’s families, 
resident’s guests and visitors. It is also dependent on the applicable court to enforce lease 
termination. 

 

5) Residents with respiratory ailments, allergies, or any other physical or mental condition relating 
to smoke are put on notice that YCH does not assume any higher duty of care to enforce this 
policy than any other landlord obligation under the lease. YCH is not responsible for smoke 



  Yolo County Housing 
 106 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

exposure even if the resident, a member of the resident’s household, resident’s families, 
resident’s guests or visitors have respiratory ailments, allergies, or any other physical or mental 
condition relating to smoke.  

 

6) Even though YCH has adopted a Smoke-Free Housing Policy, it cannot guarantee that smoking 
will never happen.  

 

7) In apartments that used to allow smoking, the effects of that smoking may still linger.  
 
Smoking Cessation 
 
YCH desires to assist any resident who wishes to stop smoking with referrals to various resources 
available in the community.  In addition to these resources, on-site cessation classes may be available. 
Residents are encouraged to take advantage of these programs. 

 
Dignity Health/Woodland Memorial Hospital 
 
The Dignity Health System offers education and support resources for smoking cessation at its 
Heart and Vascular Institute of Greater Sacramento. Contact information is below: 
 

Dignity Health – Mercy General Hospital 
Alex G. Spanos Heart & Vascular Center 
4001 J Street 
Sacramento, California 95819 
(916) 453-4545 
www.mercygeneral.org 
 

State of California 
 

CALIFORNIA SMOKERS’ HEPLINE 
1-800-NO-BUTTS 
www.nobutts.org 
 
SPANISH 
1-800-45-NO-FUME 
 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH CARE SERVICES 
www.dhcs.ca.gov 
TobaccoFreeCA.org 
 

Centers for Disease Control: 
 

Office on Smoking and Health  
Centers for Disease Control & Prevention (CDC) 
Toll free number 1-800-232-4636 (1-800-CDC-INFO) 
www.cdc.gov/tobacco 



  Yolo County Housing 
 107 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
Offers information on tobacco, smoking, and quitting. 
 
National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health 
Centers for Disease Control & Prevention (CDC) 
Toll free number: 1-800-232-4636 (1-800-CDC-INFO)  
www.cdc.gov/niosh 
 
Offers information on workplace safety topics and safety practices; can look into 
potential hazards in workplaces if asked by employers or employees. 

 
Other Online Resources: 
 

American Academy of Family Physicians 
American Cancer Society 
American Heart Association 
American Lung Association 
National Cancer Institute  
National Women’s Health Information Center 
www.smokefree.gov 
 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 108 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 

 
SMOKE FREE ENVIRONMENT LEASE ADDENDUM 

 
 

I, _____________________________________, understand that the entire property at Yolo County 
Housing (all buildings, common areas, etc.) are smoke-free.  This means no smoking anywhere on YCH 
property except designated smoking areas. This includes but not limited to the following: 
 

● The interior of all YCH owned buildings, including but not limited to individual units, hallways, 
stairwells, offices, and common areas.  THIS INCLUDES THE INTERIOR OF MY RENTED UNIT. 

● Other than designated smoking areas, YCH property will be smoke-free including all buildings, 
recreational areas, patios, back, front and side yards and porches; 

● Within any YCH-owned vehicles, including buses, vans, and work trucks. 
 
I will not smoke and shall assure that my resident family, other persons under my resident family’s 
control, live-in aide, and my resident family’s guests shall not smoke unless in a designated smoking area 
or off YCH property. Smoking includes but is not limited to the use of cigarettes, cigars, pipes, tobacco or 
incense products, including electronic cigarettes and hookahs that emit aerosol and vapor.  I understand 
that cannibas/marijuana or any other controlled substance is illegal on YCH public housing property and 
other federally financed or subsidized property.  
 
I will comply with this Lease Addendum.  I understand that any violation of the Lease Addendum is a 
serious violation of a material term of my Lease and is grounds for Yolo County Housing to terminate my 
lease in accordance with the Smoke-Free Policy. 
 
 
              
Head of Household Signature          Date 
 
              
Resident Signature           Date 
 
              
Resident Signature           Date 
 
              
Resident Signature           Date 
 
 
 
 
              
Housing YCH Staff Signature          Date  



  Yolo County Housing 
 109 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX D:  REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS POLICY 
 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 110 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 
Reasonable Accommodations Policy 

 
 

INTRODUCTION 

 

The Reasonable Accommodation Policy and Procedures comprised of Part A and Part B, sets forth the 

policy and procedures of Yolo County Housing (“YCH”) in connection with making reasonable 

accommodations for qualified applicants or residents with disabilities for participation in YCH’s public 

housing programs and activities.  A copy of this Reasonable Accommodation Policy and Procedures is 

made available in the YCH Administration Office, 147 W. Main Street, Woodland, CA 95695, 530-662-

5428, and the Management Office of each public housing development.  Additionally, a paper or 

electronic copy of this Reasonable Accommodations Policy and Procedures may be obtained upon 

request from the Section 504 Coordinator, Janis Holt at 5309-662-5428 or from our website at 

www.ych.ca.gov. 

 

Part A. POLICY 

 

Section A-1.  Definitions 

 

1.1 The term “ADA” shall mean the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

1.2 The term “FHA” shall mean the Fair Housing Act of 1968. 

1.3 The term” YCH” shall mean Yolo County Housing. 

1.4 The term “Policy” shall mean Part A of this Reasonable Accommodation Policy and Procedures, as 

adopted by the YCH Board of Commissioners, and as may be amended. 

1.5 The term “Procedures” shall mean Part B of this Reasonable Accommodation Policy and 

Procedures, as may be revised from time to time. 

1.6 The term “reasonable accommodation” means a change, modification, alteration, or adaptation in 

policy procedure, practice, program, or facility that provides a qualified individual with a disability 

the opportunity to participate in, or benefit from, a program (housing or non-housing) or activity.   

 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 111 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

Section A-2.  Policy Statement 

 

YCH is committed to ensuring that its policies and procedures do not deny individuals with disabilities 

the opportunity to participate in, or benefit from, nor otherwise discriminate against individuals with 

disabilities, on the basis of disability, in connection with the operations of YCH’s programs, services and 

activities.  Therefore, if an individual with a disability requires an accommodation such as an accessible 

feature or modification to the YCH policy, YCH will provide such accommodation unless doing so would 

result in a fundamental alteration in the nature of the program; or an undue financial and administrative 

burden.  In such a case, YCH will attempt to make another accommodation that would not result in a 

financial or administrative burden, or a fundamental alteration in the nature of the program. 

 

Section A-3.  Purpose 

 

The Policy is intended to: 

• communicate YCH’s position regarding reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities 

in connection with the agency’s housing programs, services, and activities; 

• establish a procedural guide for implementing such Policy; and 

• comply with applicable federal, state and local laws to ensure accessibility for persons with 

disabilities to housing programs, benefits and services administered by YCH. 

 

Section A-4.  Authority 

 

The requirements of this Policy are based upon the following statutes or regulations: 

 

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504)1   

• Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA)2 

• Fair Housing Act of 1968, as amended (Fair Housing Act)3 

• Architectural Barriers Act of 19684 and; 

                                                 
1 29 U.S.C. § 794; 24 C.F.R. Part 8 
2 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq. 
3 42 U.S.C. §§ 3601-20; 24 C.F.R. Part 100 



  Yolo County Housing 
 112 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

• the respective implementing regulations for each Act. 

 

Section A-5.  Monitoring and Enforcement 

 

The YCH Section 504 Coordinator is responsible for monitoring YCH’s compliance with, and enforcing the 

requirements under this Policy.  Questions regarding this Policy, its interpretation or implementation 

should be made by contacting the Section 504 Coordinator in writing, by telephone, or by appointment, 

as follows:   

 

Janis Holt – Section 504 Coordinator/General Director 

147 W. Main Street 

Woodland, CA 95695 

530-669-2211 

1-800-662-9656 

Fax Number: 530-662-5429 

TDD/TTY Number: 1-800-545-1833, Ext 626 (for hearing impaired TDD users only) 

 

Section A-6.  Staff Training 

 

The Section 504 Coordinator will ensure that all appropriate YCH staff receive annual training on the 

Reasonable Accommodation Policy and Procedures, including all applicable Federal, state and local 

requirements regarding reasonable accommodation.  

 

Section A-7.  Reasonable Accommodation 

 

A person with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation at any time during the application 

process, residency in public housing (including all managed non-profit housing), or participation in the 

Housing Choice Voucher and Moderate Rehabilitation Programs of YCH.  The individual, YCH staff or any 

person identified by the individual, must reduce all requests to writing. 

 

                                                                                                                                                             
4 42 U.S.C. §§ 4151-4157 



  Yolo County Housing 
 113 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

Reasonable accommodation methods or actions that may be appropriate for a particular program and 

individual may be found to be inappropriate for another program or individual.  The decision to approve 

or deny a request for a reasonable accommodation is made on a case-by-case basis and takes into 

consideration the disability and the needs of the individual as well as the nature of the program or 

activity in which the individual seeks to participate. 

 

Section A-8.  Application of Reasonable Accommodation Policy  

 

The Reasonable Accommodation Policy applies to individuals with disabilities in the following programs 

provided by YCH: 

 

(a) Applicants to public housing; 

(b) Applicants of all Housing Choice Voucher and Moderate Rehabilitation Programs; 

(c) Residents of public housing developments; 

(d) Participants of the Housing Choice Voucher and Moderate Rehabilitation Programs; and 

(e) Participants in all other programs or activities receiving Federal or State financial assistance that 

are conducted or sponsored by the YCH, its agents or contractors including all non-housing 

facilities and common areas owned or operated by the YCH. 

 

Section A-9.  Person with a Disability 

 

An individual is disabled if s/he has a physical or mental impairment that limits one or more major life 

activities; has a record of such an impairment; or is regarded as having such an impairment.  Physical or 

mental impairment includes: 

 

(a) Having any physiological disease, disorder, condition, cosmetic disfigurement, or anatomical 

loss that affects one or more of the following body systems:  neurological, immunological, 

musculoskeletal, special sense organs, respiratory, including speech organs, cardiovascular, 

reproductive, digestive, genito-urinary, hemic and lymphatic, skin; and endocrine; or 

(b) Having any mental or psychological disorder or condition, such as mental retardation, organic 

brain syndrome, emotional or mental illness, and specific learning disabilities. 



  Yolo County Housing 
 114 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

(c) Having such diseases and conditions as orthopedic, visual, speech and hearing impairments, 

cerebral palsy, autism, epilepsy, muscular dystrophy, multiple sclerosis, cancer, heart disease, 

diabetes, HIV, drug addiction (other than addiction caused by current, illegal use of a controlled 

substance) and alcoholism. 

 

Section A-10.  Examples of Reasonable Accommodations 

 

Examples of reasonable accommodations may include, but are not limited to: 

 

(a) Making a unit, part of a unit or public and common use element accessible for the head of 

household or a household member with a disability who is on the lease; 

(b) Permitting a family to have a service or assistance-animal necessary to assist a family member 

with a disability; 

(c) Allowing a live-in aide to reside in an appropriately sized YCH unit; 

(d) Transferring a resident to a unit on a lower level or a unit that is completely on one level; 

(e) Making documents available in large type, computer disc or Braille; 

(f) Providing qualified sign language interpreters for applicant or resident appointments/meetings 

with YCH staff; or at resident meetings; 

(g) Installing strobe type flashing lights and other such equipment for a family member with a 

hearing impairment; 

(h) Permitting an outside agency or family member to assist a resident or an applicant in meeting 

screening criteria or meeting essential lease obligations; 

(i) Permitting requests for extensions of Housing Choice Vouchers if there is a difficulty in locating 

a unit with suitable accessible features or otherwise appropriate for the family; and 

(j) Approving a request for exception payment standard amounts under the Housing Choice 

Voucher Program in accordance with 24 C.F. R. §§ 8.28 and 982.504(b)(2) as a reasonable 

accommodation for a family member with a disability. 

 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 115 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

Section A-11. General Principles for Providing Reasonable Accommodations 

 

Listed are the general principles which provide a foundation for the Policy and which YCH staff will apply 

when responding to requests for reasonable accommodations within all YCH housing programs: 

 

11.1 It is presumed that the individual with a disability is usually knowledgeable of the appropriate 

types of, and methods for providing, reasonable accommodations needed when making a 

request.  However, YCH reserves the right to investigate and offer equally effective alternatives 

to the requested accommodation, and/or alternative methods for providing the requested 

accommodation.  If the Reasonable Accommodation cannot be agreed upon by both parties; the 

individual may file a grievance in accordance with the Reasonable Accommodation Grievance 

Procedure.  

11.2 The procedure for evaluation and responding to requests for a reasonable accommodation 

relies on a cooperative relationship between YCH and the applicant/resident. 

11.3 YCH shall inform all applicants and residents of alternative forms of communication.  The 

Request Form is designed to assist YCH and our applicants/residents.  If an applicant/resident 

does not, or cannot use the Request Form, YCH will still respond to the request for an 

accommodation.  The applicant/resident may request that the Request Form be provided in an 

equally effective format or means of communication.  (For example:  qualified interpreters, 

TDD/TTY line, qualified readers, large print materials, etc.) 

11.4 All written documents required by or as a result of this Policy must contain plain language and 

be in appropriate alternative formats in order to communicate information and decisions to the 

person requesting the accommodation. 

11.5 Any required meetings with a person with a disability will be held in an accessible location. 

 

Section A-12.  Amendment 

 

12.1 Policy. The Policy may be amended only by resolution of the Board of Commissioners. 

12.2 Procedures.  The Procedures may be amended within the scope of the Policy by the Executive 

Director of YCH. 



  Yolo County Housing 
 116 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

12.3 Legal Compliance.  Any amendment to the Policy or Procedures shall be consistent with all 

applicable laws and regulations. 

 

PART B.  PROCEDURES 

 

Section B-1.  Processing of Reasonable Accommodation Requests 

Yolo County Housing (YCH) will provide the “Request for Reasonable Accommodation/Reasonable 

Modification Form”, (the “Request Form”), attached hereto, to all applicants, residents or individuals 

with disabilities who request a reasonable accommodation.   

 

Individuals may submit their reasonable accommodation request(s) in writing, orally, or by any other 

equally effective means of communication.  However, YCH will ensure that all reasonable 

accommodation requests will be reduced to writing by assisting persons unable to submit written 

requests.   If needed as a reasonable accommodation, YCH will assist the individual in completing the 

Request Form.  In completing the Request Form, the YCH staff person will read it and confirm the 

content with the individual requesting the Reasonable Accommodation. 

 

(a) YCH will provide all applicants with the Request Form as an attachment to the YCH application.  

The Request Form will be provided in an alternative format, upon request. 

(b) Reasonable accommodations will be made for applicants during the application process.  All 

applications must be taken in an accessible location.  Applications will be made available in 

accessible formats.  YCH will provide applicants with appropriate auxiliary aids and services, 

including qualified sign language interpreters and readers, upon request. 

(c) YCH will provide all residents with the Request Form during annual re-certification, and upon 

request. YCH will provide the Request Form in an alternate format, upon request. 

(d) Residents seeking accommodation(s) may contact the housing management office, including 

office of private management companies acting on behalf of YCH, within their housing 

development.  In addition, residents may also contact the Section 504 Coordinator’s office 

directly to request the accommodation(s). 



  Yolo County Housing 
 117 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

(e) Within eight (8) business days5 of receipt of the Request Form, the Housing Specialist (housing 

choice voucher or public housing) will review the resident’s reasonable accommodation 

request(s) with the Section 504 Coordinator.   

(f) Within twelve (12) business days of receipt of the Request Form, the 504 Coordinator or the 

Housing Specialist will submit the Verification of Need for Reasonable 

Accommodation/Reasonable Modification Form (hereinafter referred to as the “Verification 

Form”) by mail or fax to the designated, qualified professional for completion with a requested 

mail or fax return to the Housing Specialist or 504 Coordinator. 

(g) YCH will consent to or deny the request within ten (10) business days after receiving all needed 

information and documentation from the resident and/or qualified professional.  All decisions 

to grant or deny reasonable accommodations will be communicated in writing or if required, in 

an alternative format in order to communicate the decision to the applicant/resident.  

Exceptions to the ten (10) business day period for notification of YCH’s decision on the request 

will be provided to the resident in writing setting forth the reasons for the delay. 

(h) If YCH approves the accommodation request(s), the resident will be notified of the projected 

date of implementation (if applicable).  

(i) If the accommodation is denied, the resident will be notified of the reasons for denial.  In 

addition, the notification of the denial will also provide the resident with information regarding 

YCH HUD-approved Grievance Procedure. 

(j) All written notifications of decisions to grant or deny reasonable accommodations will be 

forwarded to the YCH Housing Specialist for the resident’s file.   

 

Section B-2.  Verification of Reasonable Accommodation Request 

YCH may request documentation of the need for a Reasonable Accommodation as identified on the 

Request Form.  In addition, YCH may request that the individual provide suggested reasonable 

accommodations. 

 

                                                 
5 The term “business days” shall mean those days of the week that the YCH offices are 
open, Monday through Thursday, excluding Fridays, Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays 
observed by YCH. 



  Yolo County Housing 
 118 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YCH may verify a person’s disability only to the extent necessary to ensure that individuals who have 

requested a reasonable accommodation have a disability-based need for the requested 

accommodation. 

 

However, YCH may not require individuals to disclose confidential medical records in order to verify a 

disability.  In addition, YCH may not require specific details regarding the individual’s disability.  YCH may 

only request documentation to confirm the disability-related need(s) for the requested reasonable 

accommodation(s). YCH requires verification of the “nexus” between the disability need and the 

requested reasonable accommodation from a qualified professional on the Verification Form.  YCH may 

not require the individual or qualified professional to disclose the specific disability(ies); or the nature or 

extent of the individual’s disability(ies).   

 

The following qualified professionals may provide verification of an applicant/resident’s disability and 

the need for the requested accommodation(s) – (the nexus): 

 

(a) Physician; 

(b) Licensed health professional; 

(c) Licensed Professional representing an applicable social service agency; or 

(d) Disability agency or clinic. 

 

As stated in Section B-1(g); YCH will approve or deny the request within ten (10) business days after 

receiving all needed information and documentation from the resident and/or qualified professional. 

 

Section B-3.  Denial of Reasonable Accommodation Request(s) 

 

Requested accommodations will not be approved if one of the following would occur as a result: 

 

(a) A violation of State and/or federal law; 

(b) The applicant/resident does not qualify as an “individual with a disability”; 

(c) The requested accommodation is not related to the resident/applicant’s disability; 

(d) A fundamental alteration in the nature of the YCH public housing program; 



  Yolo County Housing 
 119 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

(e) An undue financial and administrative burden on YCH; 

(f) A structurally infeasible alteration; or 

(g) An alteration requiring the removal or alteration of a load-bearing structural member. 

 

Section B-4.  Transfer as Reasonable Accommodation in Public Housing 

 

YCH shall not require a public housing resident with a disability to accept a transfer in-lieu of providing a 

reasonable accommodation.  However, if a public housing resident with a disability requests dwelling 

unit modifications that involve structural changes, including, but not limited to widening entrances, 

rooms, or hallways, and there is a vacant comparable, appropriately sized UFAS-compliant unit in that 

resident’s project or an adjacent project, YCH may offer to transfer the resident to the vacant unit in 

his/her project or adjacent project in-lieu of providing structural modifications.  However, if that 

resident rejects the offered transfer or voucher, YCH shall make modifications to the resident’s unit 

unless doing so would be structurally impracticable or would result in an undue financial and 

administrative burden. 

 

If the resident accepts the transfer, YCH will work with the resident to obtain moving expenses from 

social service agencies or other similar sources. If that effort to obtain moving expenses is unsuccessful 

within thirty (30) days of the assignment of the dwelling unit, YCH shall pay the reasonable moving 

expenses, including utilities fees and deposits.  Nothing contained in this paragraph is intended to 

modify the terms of YCH’s Tenant and Assignment Plan and any resident’s rights hereunder. 

 

Section B-5.  Housing Choice Voucher as Reasonable Accommodation  

 

(a) When issuing a voucher as an accommodation, YCH must include a list of current available 

accessible units known to YCH, upon request.  YCH will also provide search assistance.  YCH may 

also partner with a qualified, local disability organization to assist the resident or applicant to 

search for available, accessible housing.  See 24 C.F.R. § 8.28. 

(b) Extensions beyond the maximum term of one hundred eighty (180) days are available as a 

reasonable accommodation to eligible individuals with disabilities.  These extensions are subject 



  Yolo County Housing 
 120 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

to documentation that a diligent effort to locate a unit has been conducted considering any 

impediments to searching because of a family member’s disability. 

(c) YCH may, if necessary as a reasonable accommodation for an individual with a disability, 

approve a family’s request for an exception payment standard amount under the Housing 

Choice Voucher Program so that the program is readily accessible to and usable by individuals 

with disabilities.  See 24 C.F.R. § 8.28 and 982.504(b)(2). 

(d) Upon request by an applicant, participant, or their representative, YCH will ask the HUD Field 

Office for an exception payment standard up to 120% of the Fair Market Rent (“FMR”).  

However, the applicant, participant or the representative, must provide documentation of the 

need for the exception payment standard to YCH. 

(e) In exceptional cases, YCH may ask the Assistant Secretary for Public and Indian Housing of HUD 

for an exception payment standard amount over 120% of the FMR, provided the applicant, 

participant or the representative provides the appropriate supporting documentation. 

 

Section B-6. Service or Assistance Animals 

 

Residents of YCH with disabilities are permitted to have assistance animals, if such animals are necessary 

as a reasonable accommodation for their disabilities.  YCH residents or potential residents who need an 

assistance animal as a reasonable accommodation must request the accommodation in accordance with 

the Reasonable Accommodation Policy. Assistance animals are not subject to the requirements of YCH’s 

Pet Policy. 

 

Section B-7.  Right to Appeal/Grievance Process 

 

1) The public housing applicant or resident may file a complaint in accordance with YCH’s HUD-

approved Grievance Procedure following a formal determination by the YCH Section 504 

Coordinator. 

2) The Housing Choice Voucher and Moderate Rehabilitation Program participant or applicant may 

file a complaint in accordance with YCH’s HUD-Approved Grievance Procedure following a 

formal determination by the YCH Section 504 Coordinator. 



  Yolo County Housing 
 121 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

3) An applicant or resident may, at any time, exercise their right to appeal a YCH decision through 

the local HUD office or the U.S. Department of Justice.  Individuals may contact the local HUD 

office at: 

 

 San Francisco Regional Office of FHEO 
 U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
 One Sansome Street, Suite 1200 
 San Francisco, CA 94104 
 (415) 489-6536 
 (800) 347-3739 
 TTY:  (415) 436-6594  
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 122 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

REQUEST FOR REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION 
 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 
147 West Main Street, Woodland, CA  95695 

Return to:  504 Coordinator:  Janis Holt, 530-662-5428, 530-662-5429(fax), or jholt@ych.ca.gov 
 
 

 
Instructions: Complete this form if you, or a member of your family, is a person with a disability and you wish to 
request a change, exception, or adjustment in a Yolo County Housing (hereinafter, YCH) rule, policy, practice, or service 
in order to have an equal opportunity to use and enjoy housing or housing assistance administered by YCH. If you need 
assistance completing this form, please contact your YCH representative. 
 
Household File Name: _________________________________ Phone/TDD #:___________________ 
 
Address:_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Street Address/City/Zip Code 

 
1.  The following family member, __________________________ born  __________ (optional), has a physical or mental 
impairment that limits one or more major life activities (or a record of having such an impairment, or of being regarded 
as having such an impairment). 
 
2.  State the accommodation needed in order for this person to have an equal opportunity to use and enjoy housing or 
housing assistance administered by YCH: 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
3.  Describe how this accommodation will allow this person to have an equal opportunity to use and enjoy housing or 
housing assistance administered by YCH:  
_________________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
YCH grants requests for a reasonable accommodations/modifications based on an identifiable relationship, or nexus, 
between the requested accommodation and the person’s disability. List the name and contact information of the 
knowledgeable person who can verify the disability-related need for the accommodation. The person you identify 
should be the individual providing services that relate to the family member’s physical or mental impairment (medical 
professional, social service provider, etc). 
 
Name of Physician/Health Care Provider/Professional: _______________________________________   
 
Address:______________________________________________________________________________ 
  Street Address/City/Zip Code 

Phone Number: ______________________________  FAX Number: ____________________________ 
 
Authorization to Release Information: I authorize the Care Provider listed above to disclose the information requested 
on this form to YCH regarding the need for a reasonable accommodation/reasonable modification.  I understand the 
information YCH obtains will be kept confidential and used solely to determine if a reasonable accommodation and/or 



  Yolo County Housing 
 123 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

modification should be provided.  I understand that YCH will process this request by communicating directly with the 
care provider identified above and that I will be notified in writing of the determination.  I understand that YCH may, at 
its sole discretion, periodically reassess the need for any granted reasonable accommodation.  This authorization 
expires 90 days from the date of signature below. 
 
__________________________     _____________________________       __________ 

Printed Name of Family Member     Signature of Family Member (if 18 years or older)  Date 

__________________________     _____________________________            ____________ 

Printed Name of Head of Household       Signature of Head of Household        Date 

 

 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 124 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

REQUEST FOR VERIFICATION OF REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION/MODIFICATION 
YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 

147 West Main Street, Woodland, CA  95695 
504 Coordinator:  Janis Holt, 530-662-5428, 530-662-5429(fax), or jholt@ych.ca.gov 

 
 

 
To: ____________________________________________ 
 
Re:_____________________________________________ _________ ___________________ 
       Name of Family Member with a Disability in Need of Accommodation DOB  Head of Household 

The individual listed above has provided information on the attached Request for Reasonable 
Accommodation form identifying self or a family member, as having a physical or mental impairment 
that limits one or more major life activities (or a record of having such an impairment, or of being 
regarded as having such an impairment). This request requires a change, exception, or adjustment in a 
Yolo County Housing (YCH) rule, policy, practice, or service in order to allow the person to have an equal 
opportunity to use and enjoy housing or housing assistance administered by YCH.   

YCH grants requests for accommodations and/or modifications based on an identifiable 
relationship, or nexus, between the requested accommodation and the person’s disability.  The person 
listed above has authorized you to release information to YCH regarding this nexus. 

Thank you for responding to the questions and verifying with your signature below.      
 
Questions for the Care Provider (Please refer to the Reasonable Accommodation Request Form): 

1.  I certify that this individual has a disability as defined above.      Yes   No  
If “Yes”, answer questions #2-#6 and sign, if “No” please sign at the bottom of the page and return to 
504 Coordinator. 
 
2.  If “Yes”, what accommodation or modification would give this person an equal opportunity to use 
and enjoy housing or housing assistance administered by YCH (check all that apply)? 

   Live In Aide (24/7)          Companion Animal       Extra Room for Medical Equipment  

  Transfer to Different Unit  (Please explain) __________________________________________ 

  Modification to Unit (Please explain) ______________________________________________ 

  Other (Please explain) __________________________________________________________ 
 

3. Is there a direct nexus between the individual’s disability and the accommodation listed above?  Yes   

No 
 
4.  In your opinion, is the requested accommodation necessary to provide the disabled individual an 

equal opportunity to use and enjoy the housing or housing assistance?    Yes    No 
If yes, please state the basis for your opinion, omitting confidential medical information. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 125 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

5.  Would an alternate accommodation allow the person with the disability to have an equal opportunity 
to use and enjoy housing or housing assistance administered by YCH?  If so, 
describe:_______________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________________  
 
6.  How often should this accommodation be renewed by YCH through the care provider? 

   No renewal required, this is a permanent, necessary accommodation 

   Renew in:  ___One year ___Two Years     ___Five Years    ___Other 

 
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.  Executed this 
____ day of __________________, at __________________, California. 
 
_________________________________    _______________________________________      
Printed Name of Care Provider         Signature of Care Provider            
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 126 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 
147 West Main Street, Woodland, CA  95695 

504 Coordinator:  Janis Holt, 530-662-5428 or jholt@ych.ca.gov 
 

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION NOTIFICATION FORM 
 

Household File Name: _________________________________ Date: _________________________ 
 
Address:____________________________________________________________________________ 

Street Address/City/Zip Code 
 

Name of Individual Requesting Accommodation: __________________________________________ 
 
Yolo County Housing has received and processed your request for a reasonable accommodation or 
modification to accommodate you or your family members’ disability.  In accordance with the YCH 
Reasonable Accommodation Policy and Procedures, your request for: 
 

 Live In Aide      Separate Bedroom for Medical Equipment 
 

 Companion Animal*     Transfer to ________________________________ 
*Be advised that YCH has the authority to regulate assistance animals under applicable federal, state, and 

local law.   

 

 Modification: __________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Other/Alternate: ________________________________________________________________ 
  

  Has been approved.   
 ___ Renew in _____ year(s). 
 ___ No renewal is required.  This is a permanent modification/accommodation. 
 
  Has been denied. 
 ___  Unable to verify through third party care provider. 
 ___  Unable to establish “nexus” between the disability and requested accommodation. 

___  Other _________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
___Janis R. Holt_______________     _____________________________      __________ 
Printed Name of 504 Coordinator       Signature of 504 Coordinator    Date 
 
If you disagree with the 504 Coordinator’s decision, you can dispute the decision through the Yolo County 
Housing Reasonable Accommodation Grievance Procedure.  A copy of the Grievance Procedure is available at 
any Yolo County Housing office location, at www.ych.ca.gov, or by contacting the 504 Coordinator, Janis Holt 
at 530-662-5428 or jholt@ych.ca.gov. 

 

mailto:jholt@ych.ca.gov


  Yolo County Housing 
 127 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX E:  LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE PLAN 



  Yolo County Housing 
 128 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 129 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 130 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 131 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 132 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 133 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 134 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 135 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 136 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 137 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 138 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 139 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 140 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

  

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 141 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 142 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 143 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX F:  VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE POLICY 



  Yolo County Housing 
 144 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 
Victims of Domestic Violence Policy 

(81 FR 80724) 
 
 

I. Applicability 
 

This policy addresses the protections for victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or 
stalking who are applying for, or are the beneficiaries of, assistance under the Yolo County Housing’s 
(YCH) Housing Programs which are covered by the Violence Against Women Act (VAWA).  Protections 
are not limited to women but cover victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault and 
stalking, regardless of sex, gender identity, or sexual orientation.  This policy is intended as a guide for 
YCH’s personnel to use in day-to-day operations when working with applicants or tenants who are 
victims of the above actions.  

 
II. Definitions 
 
For purposes of this policy, the following definitions apply: 
 
Actual and imminent threat:  A physical danger which is real, would occur in an immediate time frame, and 
could result in death or serious bodily harm.  In determining whether an individual would pose an actual 
and imminent threat, the factors to be considered include: The duration of the risk, the nature and severity 
of the potential harm, the likelihood that the potential harm will occur, and the length of time before the 
potential harm would occur. 
 
Affiliated individual:  A spouse, parent, brother, sister, or child of an individual, or a person to whom an 
individual stands in the place of a parent or guardian; or any individual, tenant or lawful occupant living in 
the household of an individual.  
 
Bifurcate:  To divide a lease as a matter of law, subject to the permissibility of such process under the 
requirements of the Public Housing Program and State and local law, such that certain tenants or lawful 
occupants can be evicted or removed and the remaining tenants or lawful occupants can continue to 
reside in the unit under the same lease requirements or as may be revised depending upon the eligibility 
for continued occupancy of the remaining tenants and lawful occupants.   
 
Dating Violence:  Violence committed by a person who is or has been in a social relationship of a romantic 
or intimate nature with the victim; and where the existence of such a relationship shall be determined 
based on a consideration of the following factors: the length of the relationship, the type of relationship, 
and the frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship. 
 
Domestic Violence:  Felony or misdemeanor crimes of violence committed by a current or former spouse 
or intimate partner of the victim, by a person with whom the victim shares a child in common, by a person 
who is cohabitating with or has cohabitated with the victim as a spouse or intimate partner, by a person 
similarly situated to a spouse of the victim under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction 
receiving grant monies, or by any other person against an adult or youth victim who is protected from that 
person’s acts under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction. 

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2016/11/16/2016-25888/violence-against-women-reauthorization-act-of-2013-implementation-in-hud-housing-programs


  Yolo County Housing 
 145 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
Sexual assault:  Any nonconsensual sexual act proscribed by Federal, tribal, or State law, including when 
the victim lacks capacity to consent. 
 

Stalking:  Engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a reasonable 
person to fear for the person’s individual safety or the safety of others or suffer substantial emotional 
distress. 

 
III. Applicant and Tenant Protections 

 
Notification 
 
YCH will provide each applicant and each tenant with the following documents: 
 

• A “Notice of Occupancy Rights under the Violence Against Women Act,” which explains the 
VAWA protections under this policy, including the right to confidentiality, and any 
limitations on those protections, and 

 

• A certification form to be completed by the victim to document an incident of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking. 

 
The above Notice and certification form will be provided to an applicant or tenant at the following 
times: time of application, time of denial of admission, time of leasing and with any notification of 
eviction.   
 
The certification form should state that: 
 

• the applicant or tenant is a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or 
stalking; 

 

• the incident of victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking that is 
the grounds for protection under this policy meets the applicable definition for such 
incident; and  

 

• include the name of the individual who committed the domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault or stalking, if the name is known and safe to provide.  

 
Prohibitive Basis for Denial, Termination of Assistance or Eviction 
 
An applicant to or tenant of YCH’s Housing Programs may not be denied admission to, terminated 
assistance from or evicted from a Program on the basis or as a direct result of the fact that the applicant 
or tenant is or has been a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking, if the 
applicant or tenant otherwise qualifies for admission or occupancy. 
 
A tenant of a Housing Program may not be denied tenancy or occupancy rights solely on the basis of 
criminal activity directly relating to domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking if the 



  Yolo County Housing 
 146 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

criminal activity is engaged in by a member of the household of the tenant or any guest or other person 
under the control of the tenant and the tenant or an affiliated individual is the victim or threatened 
victim of such domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking. 
 
An incident of actual or threatened domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking shall 
not be construed as a serious or repeated violation of the dwelling lease by the victim or threatened 
victim of such incident or good cause for terminating the tenancy or occupancy rights of the victim or 
threatened victim of such incident.   
 
Limitations of Protections 
 
Nothing in this policy limits YCH, when notified of a court order, to comply with a court order with 
respect to the rights of access or control of property, including civil protection orders issued to protect a 
victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking, or the distribution of property 
among members of a household. 
 
Nothing in this policy limits YCH from evicting a tenant for any violation not premised on an act of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking that is in question against the tenant or an 
affiliated individual of the tenant.  
 
Nothing in this policy limits YCH from evicting a tenant if YCH can demonstrate an actual and imminent 
threat to other tenants or YCH employees would be present if the tenant or lawful occupant is not 
evicted.  Words, gestures, actions and other indicators will be considered an ‘actual and imminent 
threat” if they meet the standard provided in the definition of “actual and imminent threat” in Section II.  
 
Eviction related to an “actual and imminent threat” should only be utilized only when there are no other 
actions that could be taken to reduce or eliminate the threat, including, but not limited to, transferring 
the victim to a different unit, barring the perpetrator from the property, contacting local law 
enforcement to increase police presence or seeking other legal remedies to prevent the perpetrator 
from acting on a threat.  
 
IV. Documentation Required 
 
Request for Documentation 
 
YCH will request, in writing, that an individual claiming protection under this policy submit the following 
documentation to YCH with fourteen (14) business days after the date that the applicant or tenant 
receives a request in writing for such documentation from YCH. 
 

• The certification form described in Section III; or 
 

• A document signed by an employee, agent, or volunteer of a victim service provider, an 
attorney, or medical professional, or a mental health professional from whom the victim has 
sought assistance relating to domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking or the 
effects of abuse; signed by the applicant or tenant; and that specifies under penalty of perjury, 
that the professional believes in the occurrence of the incident of domestic violence, dating 



  Yolo County Housing 
 147 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

violence, sexual assault or stalking that is the ground for protection and remedies under this 
policy and that the incident meets the applicable definitions of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault or stalking included in Section II; or 

 

• A record of a Federal, State, tribal, territorial or local law enforcement agency, court or 
administrative agency; or 

 

• At the discretion of YCH, a statement or other evidence provided by the applicant or tenant. 
 
If the individual does not provide permissible documentation within 14 business days after YCH has 
requested such certification in writing, the protections of VAWA do not limit YCH to: 
 

• Deny admission of an applicant or tenant of a Housing Program; 
 

• Deny assistance under a Housing Program to an applicant or tenant; 
 

• Terminate the participation of a tenant in a Housing Program; or  
 

• Evict the tenant, or a lawful occupant that commits a violation of the lease. 
 
YCH may extend the 14-day deadline at its discretion. 
 
The certification requirement may be satisfied by providing YCH with documentation signed by an 
employee, agent, or volunteer of a victim service provider, an attorney, or a medical professional, from 
whom the victim has sought assistance in addressing domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking or 
the effects of the abuse, in which the professional attests under penalty of perjury (28 U.S.C. §1746) to 
the professional’s belief that the incident or incidents in question are bona fide incidents of abuse, and 
the victim of domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking has signed or attested to the 
documentation; or by producing a Federal, State, tribal, territorial, or local police or court record. 
 
If YCH receives permissible documentation that contains conflicting information (including certification 
forms from two or more members of a household each claiming to be a victim and naming one or more 
of the other petitioning household members as the perpetrator), YCH may require an applicant or 
tenant to submit third-party documentation, as described in the paragraph above within 30 calendar 
days of the date of the request for the third-party documentation.   
 
Confidentiality 
 
All information provided to YCH under this policy, including the fact that an individual is a victim of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking, will be retained in confidence and shall 
neither be entered into any shared database nor provided to any related entity, except to the extent 
that disclosure is requested or consented to by the individual in writing or required for use in an eviction 
proceeding or otherwise required by applicable law. 
 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 148 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

V. Remedies Available 
 
Bifurcation of the Dwelling Lease 
 
YCH may bifurcate a lease, or remove a household member from a lease in order to evict, remove, 
terminate occupancy rights, or terminate assistance to such member who engages in criminal activity 
directly relating to domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking against an affiliated 
individual or other individual without regard to whether the household member is a signatory to the 
lease and without evicting, removing, terminating assistance to, or otherwise penalizing a victim of such 
criminal activity who is also a tenant or lawful occupant. 
 
A lease bifurcation shall be carried out in accordance with any requirements or procedures as may be 
prescribed by Federal, State, or local law for termination of assistance or leases and in accordance with 
any requirements under YCH’s Housing Programs. 
 
If YCH exercises the option to bifurcate a lease, and the individual who was evicted or for whom 
assistance was terminated was the eligible tenant, YCH shall provide any remaining tenant or tenants 
that were not already eligible a period of 90 calendar days from the date of the bifurcation of the lease 
to establish eligibility for the same housing program under which the evicted or terminated tenant was 
the recipient of assistance at the time of bifurcation of the lease; or establish eligibility under another 
housing program; or find alternative housing. 
 
The 90-calendar day period will not apply beyond the expiration of a lease, unless it is permitted by 
program regulations.  
 
VI. Emergency Transfer Plan 
 
Yolo County Housing (YCH) is concerned about the safety of its tenants, and such concern extends to 
tenants who are victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  In accordance 
with the Violence Against Women Act (VAWA), YCH allows tenants who are victims of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking to request an emergency transfer from the tenant’s 
current unit to another unit.  The ability to request a transfer is available regardless of sex, gender 
identity, or sexual orientation.  The ability of YCH to honor such request for tenants currently receiving 
assistance, however, may depend upon a preliminary determination that the tenant is or has been a 
victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and on whether YCH has another 
dwelling unit that is available and is safe to offer the tenant for temporary or more permanent 
occupancy. 
 

This plan identifies tenants who are eligible for an emergency transfer, the documentation needed to 
request an emergency transfer, confidentiality protections, how an emergency transfer may occur, and 
guidance to tenants on safety and security.  This plan is based on a model emergency transfer plan 
published by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the Federal agency that 
oversees that Yolo County Housing is in compliance with VAWA. 
 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 149 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

Eligibility for Emergency Transfers 
 
A tenant who is a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as provided in 
HUD’s regulations at 24 CFR part 5, subpart L qualifies for an emergency transfer, if:  

● The tenant expressly requests the transfer; and 
Either: 

● the tenant reasonably believes that there is a threat of imminent harm from further violence if 
the tenant remains within the same dwelling unit, or   

● the tenant is a victim of sexual assault, the tenant reasonably believes there is a threat of 
imminent harm from further violence if the tenant remains in the same dwelling unit that the 
tenant is currently occupying, or the sexual assault occurredon the premise during the 90-day 
period preceding a request for an emergency transfer. 

A tenant requesting an emergency transfer must expressly request the transfer in accordance with the 
procedures described in this plan.  
Tenants who are not in good standing may still request an emergency transfer if they meet the eligibility 
requirements in this section.   
 
Emergency Transfer Request Documentation 
 
To request an emergency transfer, the tenant shall notify and submit a written request for a transfer to 
their YCH Housing Specialist at the property management office or the General Director at the YCH 
Administrative Office, 147 West Main Street, Woodland, CA 95695.  YCH will provide reasonable 
accommodations to this policy for individuals with disabilities, including providing individualized 
assistance in completing forms.  The tenant’s written request for an emergency transfer should include 
either: 

1. A statement expressing that the tenant reasonably believes that there is a threat of imminent 
harm from further violence if the tenant were to remain in the same dwelling unit assisted 
under YCH’s program; OR 

2. A statement that the tenant was a sexual assault victim and that the sexual assault occurred on 
the premises during the 90-calendar-day period preceding the tenant’s request for an 
emergency transfer.  

The following HUD Forms (provided in this Plan) are available to assist the tenant with making their 
request: 

● HUD Form 5382 - Certification of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, or Stalking, 
and Alternate Documentation 

HUD Form 5383 - Emergency Transfer Request for Certain Victims of Domestic Violence, Dating 
Violence, Sexual Assault or Stalking  

 
Confidentiality  
 
YCH will keep confidential any information that the tenant submits in requesting an emergency transfer, 
and information about the emergency transfer, unless the tenant gives YCH written permission to 
release the information on a time limited basis, or disclosure of the information is required by law or 
required for use in an eviction proceeding or hearing regarding termination of assistance from the 
covered program. This includes keeping confidential the new location of the dwelling unit of the tenant, 
if one is provided, from the person(s) that committed an act(s) of domestic violence, dating violence, 



  Yolo County Housing 
 150 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

sexual assault, or stalking against the tenant.  See the Notice of Occupancy Rights under the Violence 
Against Women Act For All Tenants for more information about YCH’s responsibility to maintain the 
confidentiality of information related to incidents of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, 
or stalking.  This form is posted at all YCH offices and on line at the YCH website:  www.ych.ca.gov. 
 
Emergency Transfer Timing and Availability 
 
Emergency Transfers:  Public Housing Program 
 
YCH cannot guarantee that a transfer request will be approved or how long it will take to process a 
transfer request.  YCH will, however, act as quickly as possible to move a tenant who is a victim of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking to another unit, subject to availability and 
safety of a unit.  If a tenant reasonably believes a proposed transfer would not be safe, the tenant may 
request a transfer to a different unit.  If a unit is available, the transferred tenant must agree to abide by 
the terms and conditions that govern occupancy in the unit to which the tenant has been transferred.  
YCH may be unable to transfer a tenant to a particular unit if the tenant has not or cannot establish 
eligibility for that unit.  
 
If YCH has no safe and available units for which a tenant who needs an emergency is eligible, YCH will: . 

• Assist the tenant in identifying other housing providers who may have safe and available units to 
which the tenant could move; and 

• Continue and expand partnerships to strengthen access to supportive services for victims 
including victim advocates, legal aid services and local law enforcement; and 

• At the tenant’s request, YCH will assist tenants in contacting local organizations that offer 
assistance to victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking; and 

• Seek opportunities for arrangements, including MOU’s with neighboring housing providers, to 
facilitate moves (such as Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency).  

 
Emergency Transfers:  Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program 
 
Tenant-based assistance: If you are a participant in the tenant-based HCV program and request an 
emergency transfer as described in this plan, YCH will assist you to move to a safe unit quickly using your 
existing voucher assistance. YCH will make exceptions to program regulations restricting moves as 
required and in accordance with the YCH Administrative Plan.  YCH will expedite the administrative 
processes for participants requesting to transfer or port with their tenant-based voucher. 
 
At your request, YCH will refer you to organizations that may be able to further assist you. 
 
Project-based assistance: If you are assisted under the project-based voucher (PBV) program, you may 
request an emergency transfer under the following programs for which you are not required to apply: 

• Tenant-based voucher, if available 

• Project-based assistance in the same project (if a vacant unit is available and you determine that 
the vacant unit is safe) 

• Project-based assistance in another development owned by YCH. 



  Yolo County Housing 
 151 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

• Emergency transfers under VAWA will take priority over waiting list admissions for these types 
of assistance.  YCH will expedite the administrative processes for participants wishing to move 
to another PBV unit. 

You may also request an emergency transfer under the following programs for which you are required 
to apply: 

• Public housing program 

• PBV assistance in another development not owned by the PHA 
 
Emergency transfers will not take priority over waiting list admissions for these programs. At your 
request, the PHA will refer you to organizations that may be able to further assist you. 
 
Safety and Security of Tenants 
 
Pending processing of the transfer and the actual transfer, if it is approved and occurs, the tenant is 
urged to take all reasonable precautions to be safe. 
Tenants who are or have been victims of domestic violence are encouraged to contact the National 
Domestic Violence Hotline at 1-800-799-7233, or a local domestic violence shelter, EMPOWER YOLO, 
530-661-6336 (175 Walnut Street, Woodland, CA) for assistance in creating a safety plan.  For persons 
with hearing impairments, the hotline can be accessed by calling 1-800-787-3224 (TTY).  
Tenants who have been victims of sexual assault may call the Rape, Abuse & Incest National Network’s 
National Sexual Assault Hotline at 800-656-HOPE, or visit the online hotline at 
https://ohl.rainn.org/online/.  
Tenants who are or have been victims of stalking seeking help may visit the National Center for Victims 
of Crime’s Stalking Resource Center at:  
https://www.victimsofcrime.org/our-programs/stalking-resource-center. 
 
Related Forms 
 
YCH will provide all residents with a current copy of the following related forms: 
 

YCH Notice of Occupancy Rights under VAWA 
 
Certification of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, or Stalking, and Alternative 
Documentation (Form HUD-5382) 
 
Emergency Transfer Request for Certain Victims of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual 
Assault, or Stalking (Form HUD-5383) 

  



  Yolo County Housing 
 152 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

NOTICE OF OCCUPANCY RIGHTS UNDER THE VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN ACT 
 
 

To all Tenants and Applicants 
The Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) provides protections for victims of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  VAWA protections are not only available to women, but are 
available equally to all individuals regardless of sex, gender identity, or sexual orientation.  The U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) is the Federal agency that oversees that Yolo 
County Housing is in compliance with VAWA.  This notice explains your rights under VAWA.  A HUD-
approved certification form is attached to this notice.  You can fill out this form to show that you are or 
have been a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and that you wish to 
use your rights under VAWA.”   
 
Protections for Applicants 
If you otherwise qualify for assistance under Yolo County Housing, you cannot be denied admission or 
denied assistance because you are or have been a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking.    
 
Protections for Tenants 
If you are receiving assistance under Yolo County Housing, you may not be denied assistance, 
terminated from participation, or be evicted from your rental housing because you are or have been a 
victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.   
  
Also, if you or an affiliated individual of yours is or has been the victim of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking by a member of your household or any guest, you may not be denied 
rental assistance or occupancy rights under Yolo County Housing solely on the basis of criminal activity 
directly relating to that domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 
 
Affiliated individual means your spouse, parent, brother, sister, or child, or a person to whom you stand 
in the place of a parent or guardian (for example, the affiliated individual is in your care, custody, or 
control); or any individual, tenant, or lawful occupant living in your household. 
 
Protections for Applicants and Tenants Based on an Adverse Factor 
If you are an applicant or tenant, YCH may not deny assistance or admission, terminating participation 
in, or evict a tenant based on an adverse factor, if the adverse factor is determined to be a direct result 
of the fact that the applicant or tenant is or has been a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, or stalking.   
 
An adverse factor includes, but is not limited to, poor credit history, poor rental history, certain criminal 
records, and failure to pay rent.  In order to determine if an adverse factor is a direct result of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking; the applicant or tenant must: 
 

1. Inform YCH that he/she is a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or 
stalking; and 

2. Provide enough information for YCH to make a determination regarding the adverse factor 
he/she is claiming was a direct result of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or 



  Yolo County Housing 
 153 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

stalking. 
 
YCH will consider the individual’s statement and any possible supporting documentation in determining 
if an adverse factor was a direct result of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 
If further information is necessary for this determination, YCH may request additional supporting 
documentation from the applicant or tenant.  
 
Any request for additional documentation must:  
 
a. Be in accordance with YCH policies or practices,  
b. Not require evidence of the domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking other than 
as specified in 24 CFR 5.2007 (see Section 8 of this Notice), and  
c. Not violate the VAWA Final Rule’s confidentiality requirements or any other laws. 
 
Removing the Abuser or Perpetrator from the Household 
YCH may divide (bifurcate) your lease in order to evict the individual or terminate the assistance of the 
individual who has engaged in criminal activity (the abuser or perpetrator) directly relating to domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.   
 
If YCH chooses to remove the abuser or perpetrator, YCH may not take away the rights of eligible 
tenants to the unit or otherwise punish the remaining tenants.  If the evicted abuser or perpetrator was 
the sole tenant to have established eligibility for assistance under the program, YCH must allow the 
tenant who is or has been a victim and other household members to remain in the unit for a period of 
time, in order to establish eligibility under the program or under another HUD housing program covered 
by VAWA, or, find alternative housing.   
 
In removing the abuser or perpetrator from the household, YCH must follow Federal, State, and local 
eviction procedures.  In order to divide a lease, YCH may, but is not required to, ask you for 
documentation or certification of the incidences of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or 
stalking. 
 
Moving to Another Unit 
Upon your request, YCH may permit you to move to another unit, subject to the availability of other 
units, and still keep your assistance.  In order to approve a request, YCH may ask you to provide 
documentation that you are requesting to move because of an incidence of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  If the request is a request for emergency transfer, the housing 
provider may ask you to submit a written request or fill out a form where you certify that you meet the 
criteria for an emergency transfer under VAWA.  The criteria are: 
 

(1) You are a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  If 
your housing provider does not already have documentation that you are a victim of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, your housing provider 
may ask you for such documentation, as described in the documentation section below. 
 
(2) You expressly request the emergency transfer.  Your housing provider may choose 
to require that you submit a form, or may accept another written or oral request.   



  Yolo County Housing 
 154 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

(3) You reasonably believe you are threatened with imminent harm from further 
violence if you remain in your current unit.  This means you have a reason to fear that if 
you do not receive a transfer you would suffer violence in the very near future. 
 
OR 
 
You are a victim of sexual assault and the assault occurred on the premises during the 
90-calendar-day period before you request a transfer.  If you are a victim of sexual 
assault, then in addition to qualifying for an emergency transfer because you reasonably 
believe you are threatened with imminent harm from further violence if you remain in 
your unit, you may qualify for an emergency transfer if the sexual assault occurred on 
the premises of the property from which you are seeking your transfer, and that assault 
happened within the 90-calendar-day period before you expressly request the transfer.      
 

YCH will keep confidential requests for emergency transfers by victims of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and the location of any move by such victims and their families. 
 
YCH’s emergency transfer plan provides further information on emergency transfers, and YCH must 
make a copy of its emergency transfer plan available to you if you ask to see it. 
 
Documenting You Are or Have Been a Victim of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault or 
Stalking 
YCH can, but is not required to, ask you to provide documentation to “certify” that you are or have been 
a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  Such request from YCH must 
be in writing, and YCH must give you at least 14 business days (Saturdays, Sundays, and Federal holidays 
do not count) from the day you receive the request to provide the documentation.  YCH may, but does 
not have to, extend the deadline for the submission of documentation upon your request. 
You can provide one of the following to YCH as documentation.  It is your choice which of the following 
to submit if YCH asks you to provide documentation that you are or have been a victim of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 

● A complete HUD-approved certification form given to you by YCH with this notice, that 
documents an incident of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking. The 
form will ask for your name, the date, time, and location of the incident of domestic violence, 
dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and a description of the incident.  The certification 
form provides for including the name of the abuser or perpetrator if the name of the abuser or 
perpetrator is known and is safe to provide.  

● A record of a Federal, State, tribal, territorial, or local law enforcement agency, court, or 
administrative agency that documents the incident of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking.  Examples of such records include police reports, protective orders, and 
restraining orders, among others.  

● A statement, which you must sign, along with the signature of an employee, agent, or volunteer 
of a victim service provider, an attorney, a medical professional or a mental health professional 
(collectively, “professional”) from whom you sought assistance in addressing domestic violence, 
dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, or the effects of abuse, and with the professional 
selected by you attesting under penalty of perjury that he or she believes that the incident or 
incidents of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking are grounds for 



  Yolo County Housing 
 155 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

protection. 
 
If you fail or refuse to provide one of these documents within the 14 business days, or within any 
designated extension period granted by YCH, YCH does not have to provide you with the protections 
contained in this notice. If this results in you being terminated from assistance, YCH may hold a separate 
informal hearing or grievance hearing, depending on the applicable program. 
 
If YCH receives conflicting evidence that an incident of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking has been committed (such as certification forms from two or more members of a 
household each claiming to be a victim and naming one or more of the other petitioning household 
members as the abuser or perpetrator), YCH has the right to request that you provide third-party 
documentation within thirty 30 calendar days in order to resolve the conflict  You may submit any of the 
third-party documentation listed above, other than the HUD-approved certification form, to satisfy this 
request.  If you fail or refuse to provide third-party documentation where there is conflicting evidence, 
YCH does not have to provide you with the protections contained in this notice. 
 
Confidentiality 
YCH must keep confidential any information you provide related to the exercise of your rights under 
VAWA, including the fact that you are exercising your rights under VAWA.  YCH must not allow any 
individual administering assistance or other services on behalf of YCH (for example, employees and 
contractors) to have access to confidential information unless for reasons that specifically call for these 
individuals to have access to this information under applicable Federal, State, or local law.  
YCH must not enter your information into any shared database or disclose your information to any other 
entity or individual.  YCH, however, may disclose the information provided if: 

● You give written permission to YCH to release the information on a time limited basis. 
● YCH needs to use the information in an eviction or termination proceeding, such as to evict your 

abuser or perpetrator or terminate your abuser or perpetrator from assistance under this 
program. 

● A law requires YCH or your landlord to release the information. 
VAWA does not limit YCH’s duty to honor court orders about access to or control of the property. This 
includes orders issued to protect a victim and orders dividing property among household members in 
cases where a family breaks up. 
 
Reasons a Tenant Eligible for Occupancy Rights under VAWA May Be Evicted or Assistance May Be 
Terminated 
 
You can be evicted and your assistance can be terminated for serious or repeated lease violations that 
are not related to domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking committed against you.  
However, YCH cannot hold tenants who have been victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking to a more demanding set of rules than it applies to tenants who have not been 
victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 
   
The protections described in this notice might not apply, and you could be evicted and your assistance 
terminated, if YCH can demonstrate that not evicting you or terminating your assistance would present 
a real physical danger that: 

1.  Would occur within an immediate time frame, and  



  Yolo County Housing 
 156 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

2. Could result in death or serious bodily harm to other tenants or those who work on the 
property. 

 
If YCH can demonstrate the above, YCH should only terminate your assistance or evict you if there are 
no other actions that could be taken to reduce or eliminate the threat. 
 
Other Laws 
VAWA does not replace any Federal, State, or local law that provides greater protection for victims of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  You may be entitled to additional housing 
protections for victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking under other 
Federal laws, as well as under State and local laws.   
 
Non-Compliance with The Requirements of This Notice 
You may report a covered housing provider’s violations of these rights and seek additional assistance, if 
needed, by contacting or filing a complaint with YCH 504 Coordinator Janis Holt at 530-669-2211 or 
jholt@ych.ca.gov or  

 
San Francisco HUD Field Office Located at  
One Sansome Street Ste 1200 
San Francisco, CA 94104 
Phone: (415) 489-6400  

 
For Additional Information 
You may view a copy of HUD’s final VAWA rule at https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2016-11-
29/pdf/2016-28437.pdf.  Additionally, YCH must make a copy of HUD’s VAWA regulations available to 
you if you ask to see them.   
 
For questions regarding VAWA, please contact your local site office.  
 
For help regarding an abusive relationship, you may call the National Domestic Violence Hotline at 1-
800-799-7233 or, for persons with hearing impairments, 1-800-787-3224 (TTY).  You may also contact: 
 
Empower Yolo 
175 Walnut St. Woodland, CA 95695 
530-661-6336 
 
For tenants who are or have been victims of stalking seeking help may visit the National Center for 
Victims of Crime’s Stalking Resource Center at https://www.victimsofcrime.org/our-programs/stalking-
resource-center. 
 
For help regarding sexual assault, you may contact  
Empower Yolo  
175 Walnut St. Woodland, CA 95695 
530-661-6336  
 
  

https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2016-11-29/pdf/2016-28437.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2016-11-29/pdf/2016-28437.pdf


  Yolo County Housing 
 157 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

Victims of stalking seeking help may contact  
Empower Yolo 
175 Walnut St. Woodland, CA 95695 
530-661-6336 
 
Attachment:  Certification form HUD-5382  
 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 158 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX G:  TRESPASS WARNING POLICY 



  Yolo County Housing 
 159 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 
Trespass Warning Policy 

 
 
In accordance with the Zero Tolerance Policy provided in the appendix H, YCH will not tolerate certain 
activity in its developments that threatens the health, safety, or peaceful enjoyment by residents or 
employees and the Chief Executive Officer, or his or her designee, has the right to ban/bar individuals 
who have shown by their actions that they would continue to be a threat.  This banning or barring is in 
the form of a written notice from YCH. 
 
This policy applies to guests and nonresidents.  All residents are covered under the Zero Tolerance 
Policy.  Trespass warnings may be issued as a result of direct observance by YCH staff, a written policy 
report on file with local law enforcement, or similar substantiation.  Examples of persons that may be 
issued a trespass warning include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

• Any person arrested on felony charges as printed in the local newspaper or as reported by 
any law enforcement agency. 

• Any individual that is found loitering and cannot demonstrate that they are the guest of a 
current resident. 

• Any person arrested on drug-related or criminal charges. 

• Any person who damages the grounds, facilities, or dwelling units of the property. 

• Any previously evicted resident, regardless of the reason for eviction. 

• Any former resident who left YCH with a past due balance on their account. 
 
After notification, the offender will be immediately placed on the list of persons banned or barred from 
public housing property.  Any violation of this ban will be immediately referred to Local Law 
Enforcement. 
 
This ban shall remain in effect for a period of one (1) year unless discharged by the Chief Executive 
Officer or his or her designee prior to the end of the one year.  If the person banned commits any action 
that warrants a trespass warning during the ban period, then the period will be for one (1) year from the 
date of the last documented incident. 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 160 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX H:  ZERO TOLERANCE POLICY 



  Yolo County Housing 
 161 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 
Zero Tolerance Policy 

 
 
Goal 
 
The goal of the Zero Tolerance Policy is to ensure the safety and well being of families and individuals 
who live in public housing.  
 
This policy applies to residents of YCH.  Individuals who engage in illegal drug use and/or other criminal 
activity may be evicted from their dwelling unit after one (1) such offense.  YCH will evaluate each 
offense on a case-by-case basis which will include working with local law enforcement, legal entities 
(district attorney, fair housing, etc.) and other applicable partners.  
 
YCH is committed to the provisions of this policy and it shall be strictly enforced.  
 
By aggressively removing criminals from YCH’s public housing developments, the Zero Tolerance policy 
shall: 

 
A. free public housing residents from daily threats to their personal and family 

safety; 
 
B. build public housing communities that are safe and drug-free; 
 
C. support parents in their efforts to instill positive values in their families; 
 
D. create a positive environment for residents of all ages, where people can live,  

learn, and grow to be productive and responsible citizens; 
 
E. set an example for the greater community. 
 

Guiding Principles of the Zero Tolerance Policy 
 
YCH Zero Tolerance Policy was developed based on the following principles: 
 

A. All individuals have the right to live in peace and be free from fear, intimidation, and 
abuse.  YCH is committed to providing safe housing for all residents of YCH 

 
B. Public and assisted housing should be awarded to responsible individuals.  YCH shall give 

no preference to applicant families with a history of drug-related behavior and/or 
criminal activity. 

 
C. Applicants and current residents of public housing must be protected from 

discrimination and violation of their right to privacy.  YCH shall comply with all civil 
rights, fair housing, and privacy laws, at both the screening and eviction stages.  YCH 



  Yolo County Housing 
 162 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

shall not discriminate against any applicant or resident in accordance with its’ non-
discrimination statement.  

D. Active community and governmental involvement in designing and implementing a Zero 
Tolerance policy is fundamental to its success.  YCH shall work cooperatively with local 
government, law enforcement, residents, and the courts in enforcing the Zero Tolerance 
policy. 
 

Screening and Admissions Policy 
 
The Zero Tolerance Policy ensures that individuals who engage in illegal drug use or other criminal 
activities that endanger the well being of residents are prohibited from becoming residents of YCH.  YCH 
has adopted the following screening procedure to ensure the goals of this policy: 
 

A. Comprehensive background checks:  YCH shall conduct comprehensive background 
checks, including criminal activity, on all household applicants eighteen (18) years and 
older.  Screening procedure shall include: 

 
1. reviewing police and court records; 
 
2. landlord references; 
 
3. background check with probation officers, parole officers, and local 

social service providers. 
 

B. Coordination with courts and local, state, and federal law enforcement agencies: YCH 
shall coordinate with courts and local, state, and federal law enforcement agencies to 
gain access to criminal records through the Extension Act.  The Extension Act makes 
criminal conviction records available to YCH for the purposes of screening, lease 
enforcement, and eviction.  YCH shall maintain a records management system to ensure 
that records received are maintained confidentially, not misused or improperly 
disseminated, and destroyed once action is taken. 

 
C. Criteria for acceptance of application for residence:  YCH shall consider applications for 

residence on a case-by-case basis; denial of acceptance shall be based on the existence 
of concrete evidence of the seriousness, extent, and recentness of criminal activity.  The 
following applicants shall be denied residence: 

 
1. applicants who have been evicted from public housing within the past 

three years due to drug-related criminal activity, unless the applicant 
can show evidence of rehabilitation; 

 
2. persons illegally using controlled substances in the last three years; 

 
3. persons who have exhibited a pattern of illegal use of controlled 

substances in the past three years; 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 163 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

4. any other criminal and/or drug-related activity that may interfere with 
the health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by 
other residents. 

 
D. Protect applicant’s due process rights:  YCH’s Admissions and Continued Occupancy Plan 

(ACOP) shall be made available upon request and posted in the central office where 
applications are received. 

 
1. In accordance with YCH’s ACOP, applicants determined to be ineligible 

for admission shall be promptly notified of the basis for the decision.  
 
2. Per the Extension Act, should denial of occupancy be based on a 

criminal record, YCH shall provide the applicant with a copy of the 
criminal record and the opportunity to dispute the accuracy and 
relevance of that record.  

 
E. Compliance with state and local laws:  YCH is committed to protecting the rights of all 

applicants and residents.  All policies and procedures, and revisions of policies and 
procedures, shall be reviewed for compliance with local and state landlord-resident law 
and any other applicable law by attorneys with experience in such law. 

 
Enforcement by Eviction 
 
In accordance with the current law, the YCH dwelling lease contains provisions that generally or 
specifically stipulate that: 

 
A. any activity is grounds for eviction if it threatens the health, safety, or right to peaceful 

enjoyment of the premises by other residents;  
 

B. all drug related criminal activity occurring on or off the premises is cause for eviction; 
 

C. any person who YCH determines is illegally using controlled substance shall be evicted; 
and/or, 

 
D. any person whose illegal use of a controlled substance is determined by YCH to interfere 

with the rights of other residents shall be evicted. 
 

E. Under these required lease terms, tenancy shall be terminated with a seven (7) day 
notice without cure and the household evicted when the resident, any member of the 
resident’s household, or guest, engages in the prohibited criminal activity. 

 
The above stated terms for termination of tenancy and household eviction shall be enforced through 
the following actions: 
 

A. Lease:  YCH Dwelling Lease contains stipulations regarding criminal activity that 
threatens the health, safety, or right to the peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other 



  Yolo County Housing 
 164 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

residents or employees including possession of weapons, drug-related criminal activity.  
Additional provisions that are incorporated through this policy include: 

 
1. residents, nor any household member or guest, or other person under 

their control, shall not engage in the prohibited drug-related or other 
criminal activities; failure to abide by this lease term is grounds for 
eviction and any drug-related or criminal activity in violation of this term 
shall be treated as a serious violation of the material terms of the lease;  

 
2. under the Extension Act, alcohol abuse that interferes with the health, 

safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other 
residents, shall be grounds for eviction; 

 
3. YCH shall not tolerate violations of the lease terms regarding criminal 

activity;  
 

4. criminal activity may in certain circumstances be cause for eviction even 
in the absence of conviction. 

 
B. Briefing on Terms of the Lease:  All residents shall be briefed on the terms of the lease 

at the time of annual re-examination.  New residents shall be briefed on the terms of 
the lease at the time of signing the initial lease. 

 
C. Due Process Rights:  YCH shall protect the resident’s due process rights to the greatest 

extent possible:  
 

1. Eviction procedure shall be processed through the Yolo County court 
system; 
 

2. Residents shall be protected by state and local laws governing eviction 
procedure, barring preemption by federal law. 

 
Nonresident Criminal Activity 
 
YCH is committed to protecting against criminal activities committed by nonresidents and has adopted 
the following policy: 
 

A. YCH shall post warnings in all YCH public housing developments that violators shall be 
prosecuted to the fullest extent under the law. 

 
B. In accordance with the lease, residents shall be held responsible for guests’, 

nonresidents, criminal behavior.  Disruptive and/or criminal behavior of resident guests 
may be grounds for eviction of the entire household. 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 165 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

C. In cases where YCH and household settle an eviction case on the condition that the 
disruptive household member moves away from YCH properties, YCH/resident 
agreement shall provide that: 
 

1. the individual thereafter shall be a trespasser on YCH properties; and, 
 
2. the household shall be subject to eviction if the individual returns to 

YCH properties. 
 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 166 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX I:  SECURITY POLICY FOR CONFIDENTIAL DOCUMENTS AND DATA 



  Yolo County Housing 
 167 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 
Security Policy for Confidential Documents and Data 

 
 
The Yolo County Housing Security Policy is intended to provide administrative policies covering 
acquisition, utilization, maintenance and disposition of documents and data which may contain 
confidential income-related information about residents, applicants, employees and others engaged in 
business with YCH. 
 
In regard to residents and applicants, the data collected includes, but is not limited to:  Tenant-supplied 
income data captured on Form HUD-50058 and maintained in YCH computer data base and hard copy 
files for electronic submission to and storage in the Public Housing Information Center (PIC); Wage 
information from the State Wage Information Collection Agencies (SWICAs); Social Security and 
Supplemental Security Income from the Social Security Administration; User Profile information from 
the PIC database.  Such data collected is used only to verify a tenant’s eligibility for participation in a YCH 
housing program and to determine the level of assistance the tenant is entitled to receive.  Any other 
use, unless approved by HUD, is specifically prohibited and may result in civil or criminal penalties on the 
responsible person or persons,  
 
The procedures outlined in this document apply to all programs administered by YCH and to all 
documents and data acquired and stored for use in these programs.  Computerized media will be 
afforded the same levels of protection. 
 
The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance to assure that the practices, controls and safeguards 
used by YCH adequately protect the confidentiality of persons and entities doing business with YCH and 
are in compliance with federal laws regarding the protection of this information.  YCH has established 
occupancy procedures for electronic acquisition of data and documents which involve the Federal 
Privacy Act, e.g., third-party income, medical and other documents. 
 
The data and documents acquired by YCH are handled, protected and stored to ensure that they are 
used for official purposes only and the information contained therein is not disclosed in any way that 
would violate the privacy of the individuals represented. 
 
YCH obtains a copy of Form HUD-9886, Authorization for the Release of Information/Privacy Act Notice, 
signed by each member of an assisted household age 18 years old or older at the time of admission and 
thereafter on an annual basis.  By signing this form, the tenant authorizes HUD and YCH to obtain and 
verify income and unemployment compensation information from various sources including current and 
former employers, State agencies and the Social Security Administration. 
 
It is the responsibility of all YCH department supervisors to maintain appropriate levels of security for 
the data and documents under their control.  These security levels must be approved by the Chief 
Executive Officer and must prevent unauthorized use of the information and protect the confidentiality 
of the information.  Data security responsibilities include, but are not limited to: 
 

• Maintaining and enforcing the security procedures with staff  

• Keeping records and monitoring security issues 



  Yolo County Housing 
 168 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

• Communicating security information and requirements to appropriate personnel, including 
coordinating and conducting security awareness training 

• Conducting an annual review of all User ID’s and access rights issued for access to YCH computer 
databases and EIV data to determine if the employee still has a valid need to access the 
electronic data, and taking the necessary steps to ensure that access rights are revoked or 
modified as appropriate; and 

• Taking immediate action to address the impact of the breach including but not limited to 
prompt notification to appropriate authorities including the Director of the HUD Field Office 

• Other safeguards as required 
 
Access to EIV data is restricted only to persons whose duties or responsibilities require access.  It is the 
responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer to determine which employees have access rights to EIV 
data.  EIV data is collected only by employees engaged in verification of income and is maintained in 
secured files at all times.   
 
Documents are kept in locked files and offices during non-working hours. 
 
YCH does not save EIV data to a computer hard drive or any other automated information system.  EIV 
data is printed and placed in secured files for the sole purpose of income verification.  All staff have 
computers equipped with screen savers and are instructed in appropriate computer security measures 
to avoid leaving confidential data displayed on their computer screens where unauthorized users may 
view it. 
 
User accounts are established for YCH computer systems on a need-to-know basis, with appropriate 
approval and authorization by the Chief Executive Officer.  The level of access granted determines the 
functionalities, features, and amounts of data that the user can see.  An Access Form is used to request 
additions, deletions, or modifications of user accounts for the HUD EIV system. 
 
All YCH Employees who access the EIV system have a current signed User Agreement on file with their 
department supervisor.  Users are responsible to maintain the security of their User Accounts. 
 
YCH conducts an annual file purge of documents that can be destroyed under the federal records 
retention guidelines.  Documents identified for the annual purge are destroyed by means of on-site 
shredding conducted by a document disposal contractor and witnessed by YCH staff.  A log of destroyed 
documents is maintained by each department identifying documents to be purged. 
 
Security awareness training is conducted by department supervisors as part of all new employee 
training. Employees are made aware of the importance of respecting the privacy of data, following 
established procedures to maintain privacy and security, and notifying management in the event of a 
security or privacy violation.   
 
Security violation may include the disclosure of private data as well as attempts to access unauthorized 
data, the sharing of User IDs and passwords, and allowing access to private documents and data to 
persons not authorized for such disclosure or access.  Upon the discovery of a possible improper 
disclosure of information or another security violation by a YCH employee, the individual making the 
observation or receiving the information should contact the Chief Executive Officer.  All improper 



  Yolo County Housing 
 169 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

disclosures will be documented in writing providing details including who was involved, what was 
disclosed, how the disclosure occurred, and where and when it occurred.   
 
The following contacts will be made: 
 

• The supervisor receiving the report will contact and provide the Chief Executive Officer with the 
written documentation; 

• The Chief Executive Officer will provide the Director of the HUD Field Office with written 
documentation; and 

• The HUD Field Office Public Housing Director upon receipt of the written documentation will 
make a determination regarding the referral and the provision of the written documentation to 
the Headquarters EIV Coordinator and/or EIV Security Office for further review and follow-up 
action. 

 
The Chief Executive Officer shall determine the appropriate personnel action for improper disclosure of 
confidential information and breaches of YCH security policy based on the disciplinary actions outlined 
in the Personnel Policy. 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 170 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX J:  GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 171 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 
Public Housing Grievance Procedure 

(24 CFR Part 966 Subpart B) 
 
 
I. PURPOSE 
 
This Grievance Procedure has been adopted to provide a forum and procedure for residents to seek the 
just, effective, and efficient settlement of grievances against Yolo County Housing (YCH). 
 
II. GOVERNING LAW 
 
The law governing this Grievance Procedure is section 6(k) of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937 (42 U.S.C. sec. 
1437d (k) and subpart B of 24 CFR part 966 (24 CFR secs. 966.50 – 966.57). 
 
III. APPLICABILITY 
 
In accordance with applicable federal regulations, this Grievance Procedure shall be applicable to all 
individual grievances (as defined in Section IV below) between a resident and YCH with the following 
two (2) exceptions: 
 

A. This Grievance Procedure is not applicable to disputes between residents not involving 
YCH or to class grievances involving groups of residents.  Also, this Grievance Procedure 
is not intended as a forum for initiating or negotiating policy changes between 
residents, or groups of residents, and YCH’s Board of Commissioners. 

 
B. HUD has issued a determination that California State law provides the basic elements of 

due process necessary when eviction of a resident occurs in the following cases, and 
therefore this policy is not applicable when the eviction is due to:   

 
 (1) Any activity that threatens the health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of 

the premises of other residents or employees of HA; or 
 

 (2) Any drug-related criminal activity on or off such premises. 
 
IV. DEFINITIONS 
 
The following definitions of terms shall be applicable to this Grievance Procedure: 
 

A. Grievance:  Any dispute which a resident may have with respect to an action or a failure 
to act by YCH in accordance with the individual resident’s lease or applicable 
regulations, which adversely affects the individual resident’s rights, duties, welfare, or 
status. 

 
B. CFR:  The code of federal regulations that contains the federal regulation governing this  

Grievance Procedure. 

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=ce1461759bbc14be1858015db1cc0ed3&mc=true&node=pt24.4.966&rgn=div5#sp24.4.966.b


  Yolo County Housing 
 172 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
C. Complainant:  Any applicant or resident (as defined in this section below) whose 

grievance is presented to the Central Office of YCH in accordance with the requirements 
set forth in this procedure. 

 
D. Drug-related criminal activity:  The illegal manufacture, sale, distribution, use or 

possession with intent to manufacture, sale, distribute, or use of a controlled substance 
as defined in sec. 102 of the Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. sec 802), as from time 
to time amended; and alcohol abuse that YCH determines interferes with the health, 
safety or peaceful enjoyment of YCH’s property by other YCH residents, YCH’s 
employees, persons residing in the immediate vicinity of the dwelling, representatives, 
contractors, agents, law enforcement officials and/or the public. 

 
E. PHA or “YCH”:  Yolo County Housing, a body corporate and politic organized and 

existing under the laws of the State of California. 
 
F. Elements of due process:  The following procedural safeguards are required to be 

followed in an eviction action or a termination of tenancy in a state or local court: 
 

(1) Adequate notice to the resident of the grounds for terminating the tenancy and 
for eviction; 

 
 (2) Right of the resident to be represented by counsel; 
 

(3) Opportunity for the resident to refute the evidence presented by YCH, including 
the right to confront and cross examine witnesses and to present any 
affirmative legal or equitable defense which the resident may have; 

 
 (4) A decision on the merits. 
 
G. Hearing Officer:  An impartial person selected in accordance with 24 CFR Sec 966.55 and 

this Grievance Procedure to hear grievances and render decisions with respect thereto. 
 
H. Hearing Panel:  A three-member panel composed of impartial persons, selected in 

accordance with 24 CFR Sec. 966.55 and this procedure to hear grievances and render 
decisions with respect thereto. 

 
I. HUD:  The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
 
J. Notice:  As used herein, the term notice shall, unless otherwise specifically provided, 

mean written notice. 
 
K. Promptly:  Within the time period indicated in a notice from YCH of a proposed action 

that would provide the basis for a grievance if the resident has received a notice of a 
proposed action from YCH. 

 



  Yolo County Housing 
 173 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

L. Resident Organization:  An organization of residents, which includes any Resident 
Management Corporation and specifically includes the Resident Organization. 

 
M. Resident:  The adult person (or persons) other than a live-in aide: 

 
(1) Who resides in the unit and who executed the lease with YCH as lessee of the 

dwelling unit, or, if no such person resides in the unit. 
 
 (2) The person who resides in the unit and who is the remaining head of the 

household of the resident family residing in the dwelling unit. 
 
N. Business Days:  Monday through Thursday of each week, except for legal holidays 

recognized by the federal government. 
 
 
V. INCORPORATION IN LEASES 
 

This Grievance Procedure shall be incorporated by reference in all public housing dwelling leases 
between residents and YCH, whether or not so specifically provided in such leases. 

 
 
VI. INFORMAL SETTLEMENT OF GRIEVANCES 
 

A. Initial Presentation:  Any grievance must be personally and promptly presented, either 
orally or in writing to YCH Central Office, no later than ten (10) business days after the 
occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance.  Grievances received by YCH Central 
Office will be referred to the person responsible for management of the complex in 
which the Complainant resides.  As soon as the grievance is received, it shall be 
reviewed by YCH management to determine whether the exclusions in Section III B (1) 
or III B (2) above apply to the grievance.  Should one of the exclusions apply, the 
Complainant will be notified in writing that the matter raised is not subject to YCH’s 
grievance procedure, with the reason therefore. 

 
B. Informal Settlement Conference:  If the grievance is not determined to fall within one 

of the two exclusions mentioned in Sections III B (1) and III B (2) above, then YCH will, 
within ten (10) business days after the initial presentation of the grievance, informally 
discuss the grievance with the Complainant or his/her representatives in an attempt to 
settle the grievance without the necessity of a formal hearing.  If the informal 
settlement conference cannot occur at the time the grievance is initially presented by 
the Complainant, then the Complainant will be promptly notified in writing of the time 
and place for the informal settlement conference. 

 
C. Written Summary:  Within ten (10) business days after the informal settlement, YCH 

shall prepare a summary of the informal discussion and a copy thereof shall be provided 
to the Complainant.  The summary shall be in writing and shall specify the names of the 
participants in the discussion, the date of the discussion, the nature of the proposed 



  Yolo County Housing 
 174 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

disposition of the grievance, and the specific reasons for such disposition.  This written 
summary will specify the procedures by which the Complainant may obtain a formal 
hearing if not satisfied with the proposed disposition of the grievance.  A copy of the 
written summary shall be placed in the Complainant’s resident file. 

 
VII. FORMAL GRIEVANCE HEARING 

 
The following procedures apply to the request for a formal grievance hearing under this 
Grievance Procedure: 
 
A. Request for Hearing:  If the Complainant is not satisfied with the results of the informal 

settlement conference, the Complainant must submit a written request for a formal 
hearing to YCH’s Central Office, no later than ten (10) business days after the date 
Complainant receives the summary of discussion delivered as required under Section VI 
above. 

 
 Complainant’s written request for a formal hearing must specify: 
 
  (1) The reasons for the grievance; 
 
  (2) The action or relief sought by the Complainant; and 
 
  (3) If the Complainant so desires, a statement setting forth the times at 

which the Complainant shall be available for a hearing during the next 
ten (10) business days; 

 
  (4) If the Complainant has failed to attend an informal discussion 

conference, a request that the hearing officer waive this requirement. 
 
B. Failure to Request Hearing:  If the Complainant fails to request a hearing within ten (10) 

business days after receiving the written summary of the informal settlement 
conference, YCH’s decision rendered at the informal hearing becomes final and YCH 
shall not thereafter be obligated to offer the Complainant a formal hearing, unless the 
Complainant can show good cause, in YCH’s sole discretion, why he/she failed to 
proceed in accordance with this procedure. 

 
VIII. SELECTION OF HEARING OFFICER  

 
A. All grievance hearings shall be conducted by an impartial person appointed by YCH as the 

hearing officer from a slate of impartial hearing officers.  Hearing officers are usually, but 
not restricted to, attorneys with experience in housing, contract law, and other relevant 
legal practices.      

 
B. The designation of hearing officers for grievance hearing shall   be governed by the 

following provisions: 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 175 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 (1) All hearings shall be held before a single hearing officer. 
 
 (2) Appointments to serve as a hearing officer with respect to a particular grievance 

shall be made by YCH in random order, subject to availability of the hearing 
officer to serve in each such case.  YCH may employ any reasonable system for 
random order choice. 

 
 (3) No member of YCH Board of Commissioners or staff may be appointed as 

hearing officer in connection with the grievance contesting an action which was 
either made or approved by proposed appointee, or which was made or 
approved by a person under whom the proposed appointee works or serves as a 
subordinate. 

 
 (4) No person shall accept an appointment, or retain an appointment, once 

selected as a hearing officer, if it becomes apparent that such person is not fully 
capable of impartiality.   

 
  Further, such persons are expected to disqualify themselves if the 

circumstances are such that a significant perception of partiality exists and is 
reasonable under the circumstances.  If a Complainant fails to object to the 
designation of the hearing officer on the grounds of partiality, at the 
commencement or before the hearing, such objection is deemed to be waived, 
and may not thereafter be made.   

 
IX. SCHEDULING OF HEARINGS 

 
A. Hearing Prerequisites:  A Complainant does not have a right to a grievance hearing 

unless the Complainant has satisfied the following prerequisites to such a hearing: 
 
 (1) The Complainant has requested a hearing in writing. 
 
 (2) The Complainant has completed the informal settlement conference procedure 

or has requested a waiver for good cause. 
 
 (3) If the matter involves the amount of rent which YCH claims is due under the 

Complainant’s lease, the Complainant shall have paid to YCH an amount equal 
to the amount due and payable as of the first of the month preceding the 
month in which the complained of act or failure to act took place.  And, in the 
case of situations in which hearings are, for any reason delayed, the 
Complainant shall thereafter, deposit the same amount of the monthly rent in 
an escrow account monthly until the complaint is resolved by decision of the 
hearing officer.   

 
  Unless waived by YCH in writing, no waiver shall be given by YCH except in cases 

of extreme and undue hardship to the Complainant, determined in the sole and 
absolute discretion of YCH.  However, failure to make payment shall not 



  Yolo County Housing 
 176 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

constitute a waiver of any the resident may have to contest YCH’s disposition of 
Complainant’s grievance in any judicial proceeding. 

 
B. Time, Place, Notice 
 

(1) Upon Complainant’s compliance with the prerequisites to a hearing set forth 
above, a hearing shall be scheduled by the hearing officer or hearing panel 
promptly for a time and place reasonably convenient to both the Complainant 
and YCH, no later than the tenth (10th) business day after Complainant has 
completed such compliance.   

 
(2) A written notification specifying the time, place, and the procedures governing 

the hearing shall be delivered to the Complainant and the appropriate YCH 
official, who, unless otherwise designated, shall be the Chief Executive Officer. 

 
X. PROCEDURES GOVERNING HEARINGS 

 
A. Fair Hearings 
 
 The hearings shall be held before a hearing officer as directed above in Section VIII.  The 

Complainant shall be afforded a fair hearing, which shall include: 
 
 (1) The opportunity to examine before the hearing any YCH documents, including 

records and regulations that are directly relevant to the hearing. 
 
  The Complainant shall be allowed to copy any such document at the 

Complainant’s expense.  If YCH does not make the document available for 
examination upon request by the Complainant, YCH may not rely on such 
document at the grievance hearing. 

 
 (2) The right to be represented by counsel or other person chosen as the 

Complainant’s representative and to have such person make statements on the 
Complainant’s behalf. 

 
 (3) The right to a private hearing unless the Complainant requests a public hearing.  

The right to present evidence and arguments in support of the Complainant’s 
complaint, to controvert evidence relied on by YCH and to confront and cross 
examine all witnesses upon whose testimony or information YCH or its 
management relies.  YCH will record all hearings. 

 
 (4) A decision solely and exclusively upon the facts presented at the hearing. 
 
B. Prior Decision in Same Matter 
 
 The hearing officer may render a decision without proceeding with the hearing if they 

determine that the issue has been previously decided in another proceeding. 



  Yolo County Housing 
 177 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
C. Failure to Appear 
 
 If the Complainant or YCH fails to appear at a scheduled hearing, the hearing officer may 

make a determination that the party failing to attend has waived the right to a hearing.  
In such event, the hearing officer shall notify the Complainant and YCH of the 
determination. 

 
D. Required Showing of Entitlement to Relief 
 
 At the hearing, the Complainant must first make a showing of an entitlement to the 

relief sought and thereafter YCH must sustain the burden of justifying YCH’s action or 
failure to act against which the Complainant is directed. 

 
E. Informality of Hearing 
 
 The hearing shall be conducted informally by the hearing officer, and oral or 

documentary evidence pertinent to the facts and issues raised by the complaint may be 
received without regard to admissibility under the rules of evidence applicable to 
judicial proceeding. 

 
F. Orderly Conduct Required 
 
 The hearing officer shall require YCH, the Complainant, counsel, and other participants 

or spectators, to conduct themselves in an orderly fashion.  Failure to comply with the 
directions of the hearing officer to obtain order may result in exclusion from the 
proceedings or in a decision adverse to the interests of the disorderly party and granting 
or denial of the relief sought, as appropriate. 

 
G. Transcript of Hearing 
 
 The Complainant or YCH may arrange in advance, and at the expense of the party 

making the arrangement, for a transcript of the hearing.  Any interested party may 
purchase a copy of such transcript.  

 
H. Accommodation to Disabled Persons 
 
 YCH must provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities to 

participate in grievance hearings.  Reasonable accommodations may include qualified 
sign language interpreters, readers, accessible locations, or attendants. If the resident is 
visually impaired, any notice to the resident that is required by this procedure shall be in 
an accessible format. 

 
XI. INFORMAL HEARING PROCEDURE FOR DENIAL OF ASSISTANCE ON THE BASIS OF INELIGIBLE IMMIGRATION 

STATUS 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 178 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

The resident family may request that YCH provide for an informal hearing after the family has 
notification of the United States Citizenship and Immigration Service (USCIS) decision on appeal, 
or in lieu of request of appeal to the USCIS.  The resident family must make this request within 
thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the Notice of Denial or Termination of Assistance, or 
within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the USCIS appeal decision.  
 

XII. DECISION OF THE HEARING OFFICER  
 
At or subsequent to the completion of the grievance hearing, the hearing officer shall make a 
determination as to the merits of the grievance and the following provisions shall govern: 
 
A. Written Decision 
 
 The hearing officer shall prepare a written decision, together with the reasons for the 

decision within ten (10) business days after the completion of hearing 
 
 (1) A copy of the decision shall be sent to the Complainant and YCH.  YCH shall 

retain a copy of the decision in the Complainant’s resident file. 
 
 (2) A copy of such decision, with all names and identifying references deleted, shall 

also be maintained on file by YCH and made available for inspection by any 
prospective Complainant, his representative, or the hearing officer. 

 
B. Binding Effect 
 
 The written decision of the hearing officer shall be binding upon YCH, which shall take 

all actions, or refrain from any actions, necessary to carry out the decision unless YCH’s 
Chief Executive Officer or Board of Commissioners determines, within ten (10) business 
days, and properly notifies the Complainant of its determination, that: 

 
 (1) The grievance does not concern YCH action or failure to act in accordance or 

involving the Complainant’s lease, or YCH’s regulations, which adversely affect 
the Complainant’s rights, duties, welfare or status, or 

 
 (2) The decision of the hearing officer is contrary to applicable Federal, State, or 

local law, HUD regulations or requirements of the Annual Contributions Contact 
between HUD and YCH. 

 
C. Continuing Right of Complainant to Judicial Proceedings 
 
 A decision by the hearing officer in favor of YCH or which denies the relief requested by 

the Complainant, in whole or in part, shall not constitute a waiver of, nor affect in any 
way the rights of the Complainant to a trial or judicial review in any judicial proceedings, 
which may thereafter be brought in the matter. 

 
 



  Yolo County Housing 
 179 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

XIII. NOTICES 
 
All notices under this Grievance Procedure shall be deemed delivered: 
 
 (1) Upon personal service thereof upon the Complainant or an adult member of the 

Complainant’s household; or 
 
 (2) Upon the date receipted for or refused by the addressee, in the case of certified 

or registered U.S. Mail; or 
 
 (3) On the second day after the deposit thereof for mailing, postage prepaid, with 

the U.S. Postal Service, if mailed by first class mail other than certified or 
registered mail. 

 
XIV. MODIFICATION 

 
This Grievance Procedure may not be amended or modified except by approval of a majority of 
YCH Board of Commissioners, present at a regular meeting or a special meeting called for such 
purposes.  Further, in addition to the foregoing, any changes proposed to be made to this 
Grievance Procedure must provide for at least thirty (30) calendar days advance notice to 
residents and resident organizations, setting forth the proposed changes and providing an 
opportunity to present written comments.  YCH shall consider the comments submitted before 
final adoption of any amendments hereto. 
 

XV. MISCELLANEOUS 
 
A. Captions 

 
Captions or paragraph headings set forth in this Grievance Procedure are for convenience of 
reference only and shall not be construed or interpreted to affect the substance of the 
paragraphs or sections so captioned. 

 
B. Concurrent Notice 

 
If a resident has filed a request for a grievance hearing hereunder in a case involving YCH’s 
notice of termination of tenancy, the Complainant should be aware that the state law notice 
to vacate and the notice of termination of tenancy required under Federal law run 
concurrently.   
 

Therefore, if the hearing officer upholds YCH’s action to terminate the tenancy, YCH may commence an 
eviction action in court upon the sooner of the expiration of the date for termination of tenancy and 
vacation of premises stated in the notice of termination delivered to Complainant, or the delivery of the 
report of decision of the hearing officer to the Complainant. 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 180 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX K:  DECONCENTRATION POLICY 
 
  



  Yolo County Housing 
 181 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

YOLO COUNTY HOUSING 
Deconcentration Policy 

 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
The Quality Housing and Work Responsibility Act of 1998 (QHWRA) requires that the Yolo County 
Housing adopt policies and procedures governing the deconcentration of poverty and income mixing as 
required by section 10(a)(3)(B) of the 1937 Housing Act.  It is the Yolo County Housing’s (YCH) policy to 
provide for deconcentration of poverty and encourage income mixing.    

 
The goal of this policy is lessen the concentration of poverty and to create mixed-income communities 
and within YCH’s public housing developments.  This will be accomplished through admissions practices 
designed to bring in higher income residents to lower income developments and lower income residents 
into higher income developments.  Toward this end, YCH will skip families on the waiting list to reach 
other families with a lower or higher income.  We will accomplish this in a uniform and non-
discriminating manner. 

 
The Deconcentration Policy is intended to work in conjunction with YCH’s annual income targeting 
requirements.  The QHWRA requires that 40 percent of all new admissions to public housing developments 
during a fiscal year must be residents whose household income, at the time of admission, is equal to or 
lower than 30 percent of the Area Median Income.  This “income targeting” requirement is separate from 
the Deconcentration Policy, which is comparative in nature. 
 
YCH will affirmatively market housing to all eligible income groups. Lower income residents will not be 
steered toward lower income developments and higher income people will not be steered toward 
higher income developments. 
 
DEFINITIONS 
 
The following definitions are provided in order to clearly and define the affected developments and 
families under this Deconcentration Policy. 
 
A final rule was published at 24 CFR 903 on August 6, 2002, amending the definition of “Established 
Income Range” and that change is reflected in this revised policy.   
 

Covered Developments:  Public housing developments that are of general occupancy or family 
public housing developments that are not exempt from the deconcentration requirement. 
 
Exempt Developments:  Public housing developments that are operated by housing authorities 
with fewer than 100 units; public housing developments that house only elderly persons or 
persons with disabilities, or both; public housing developments operated by housing authorities 
that operate only one general occupancy development; public housing developments approved 
for demolition or conversion to tenant-based assistance; and public housing developments that 
include units operated in accordance with a  HUD-approved mixed-finance plan using HOPE VI 
or public housing funds awarded before the effective date of the Deconcentration Final Rule. 



  Yolo County Housing 
 182 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

Jurisdiction-Wide Established Income Range:  The average annual household income of all 
residents of all covered developments is the Jurisdiction-Wide Established Income Range (EIR). 
 
Development Average Household Income:  The average annual household income of all 
residents of a specific covered development. 
 
Developments Outside the Jurisdiction-Wide Established Income Range:  A development where 
the Average Household Income is between 85 percent and 115 percent of the Jurisdiction-Wide 
EIR is considered to be within the Jurisdiction-Wide EIR.  If the average household income in a 
development is less than 85% of the EIR or greater than 115% of the EIR, the development is 
considered to be outside the Jurisdiction-Wide EIR with the following exception:  
 
A covered development with an average household income exceeding 115% of the Jurisdiction-
Wide EIR shall not be considered outside the Jurisdiction-Wide EIR if the upper limit that 
exceeds 115% of EIR is less than 30 per cent of area median income.  (24 CFR 5.603(b). 

 
ANALYSIS 
 
In order to achieve and maintain deconcentration, YCH will comply with the following: 
 

a) Determine the Jurisdiction-Wide Established Income Range for all covered developments at 
least an annual basis. 

 
b) Determine the average household income for each covered development.   

 
c) Determine whether each covered development falls above, within, or above the established 

income range, except that the upper limit shall never be less than 30 per cent of the median 
area income limit.    

 
d) Determine, for those developments having average incomes outside the established income 

range, if there are factors to explain and/or justify the income profile as being consistent with 
and furthering two sets of goals:  the goals of deconcentration and income mixing as specified 
by the statute; and the local goals and strategies contained in YCH Annual Plan.  

 
e) Where the income profile for a covered development is not explained and/or justified in YCH 

Annual Plan a specific policy to provide for deconcentration and income mixing in applicable 
covered developments. 

 
Analysis will be completed at least annually, but may be accomplished more frequently to determine the 
effectiveness of various initiatives employed to achieve deconcentration. 
 
ACTION PLAN 
 
If a covered development has been identified as falling above or below the established income range, 
YCH will define and communicate specific procedures to be employed with the goal of achieving 
deconcentration.  It is the goal of YCH to generally increase the level of income for residents of public 



  Yolo County Housing 
 183 Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy 

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 

housing, create more stratified developments, and obtain agency self-sufficiency, therefore; the 
Deconcentration Policy shall not be employed to be counterproductive to that goal.  
 
In addition, the policy will, under no circumstances, be employed through steering or in any way 
reducing the choice in residence of the individual family. 
 
In order to deconcentrate a development, YCH will contact the first family on the waiting list who has 
the highest priority for this type of unit or development and whose income category would help to meet 
the deconcentration goal and/or the income-targeting goal.  To the greatest extent possible, YCH will 
provide incentives to encourage families with incomes below the established income range to accept 
units in developments with incomes above the established income range or to encourage families with 
incomes above the established income range to accept units in developments with incomes below the 
established income range.  
 
YCH may offer one or more incentives to encourage applicant families whose income classification would 
help to meet the deconcentration goals of a particular development.  Various incentives may be used at 
different times, or under different conditions, but will always be provided in a consistent and 
nondiscriminatory manner.   
 
These may include but are not limited to: 
 

a) Rent Incentives to select particular developments. 

b) Payment Plans for deposits. 

c) Flexibility in move-in dates. 
 
A family has the sole discretion whether to accept an offer of a unit made under YCH’s deconcentration 
policy.  YCH shall not take any adverse action toward any eligible family for choosing not to accept an 
offer of a unit under the deconcentration policy. 







 

Yolo County Housing  
Yolo County, California 

 
 

Meeting Date:  December 12, 2018   To: County Counsel                             
Yolo County Housing                                

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Review, Approve and Adopt Revised YCH Emergency Operations Plan (Holt, Baker) 
 

  

 

Minute Order No. 18-37: Approved recommended action. 
 
MOTION: Fernandez. SECOND: Neu. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu, Vanderford. 
ABSENT: Johannessen, Provenza. 
 
 

 
 
 

 19. 
 



  

 Yolo County Housing  

 147 W. Main Street Woodland:    (530) 662-5428  
 WOODLAND, CA 95695 Sacramento: (916) 444-8982 

 TTY:              (800) 545-1833, ext. 626  
 
 
 
 

 

DATE: December 12, 2018 

TO:  YCH Housing Commission  

FROM:  Lisa A. Baker, CEO 

PREPARED BY: Janis Holt, General Director 
SUBJECT: REVIEW, APPROVE AND ADOPT THE REVISED YCH       

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN 

  
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: 

That the Housing Commission reviews, approves and adopts the revised YCH           
Emergency Operations Plan. 
  
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
  
Through a Shared Services Memorandum of Understanding, the County of Yolo, City of             
Woodland, City of Winters, City of West Sacramento, City of Davis, the Yocha DeHe              
Wintun Nation and Yolo County Housing forms the Joint Emergency Management           
Services (JEMS) facilitating multi-jurisdictional and interagency coordination in        
emergency operations. This includes the development of county-wide and         
agency-specific planning, such as the Emergency Operations Plan (EOP).  
 
The initial YCH EOP was adopted by the Board of Commissioners on May 19, 2011.               
Over the last six months, staff has been working with the Yolo County Office of               
Emergency Services to update the EOP into a standardized format. The YCH EOP is              
designed to provide the basis for a coordinated response and to assist staff in the               
preservation of life and property in the event of a local or national incident or disaster.                
The two components to the YCH EOP include the Basic Plan and the Emergency              
Operations Center (EOC) Annex. The EOP Basic Plan follows FEMA guidelines and is             
consistent with multi-jurisdictional planning.  
 
 
 
 

Working together to provide quality affordable housing and community development services for all 



The EOP establishes an Emergency Management Organization and assigns functions          
and tasks consistent with the California Standardized Emergency Management System          
(SEMS) and the National Incident Management System (NIMS). YCH will be an integral             
and coordinated partner in disaster and emergency planning, response and recovery           
efforts.  
 
The protection of life and property before, during and after a disaster is an inherent               
responsibility of local, state and federal governments and special districts. Therefore, a            
comprehensive plan update has been completed to ensure the most effective and            
economical use of all resources (material and personnel) for the benefit of YCH and the               
multi-jurisdictional partnership with JEMS and the Yolo County Operational Area. 
 
Basic tenets of emergency preparedness are self-help and mutual aid. The policies,            
principles, concepts and procedures contained in this plan are designed to provide the             
basis for YCH’s emergency organization and emergency operations. 
 
The objectives of this plan are to incorporate emergency management activities and            
objectives not only during times of emergencies but also during times of peace.             
Mitigation and preparedness are phases which occur during times without emergencies.           
Mitigation is taking actions to strengthen facilities, abatement of nearby hazards and            
reducing the potential damage. The preparedness phase involves activities taken in           
advance of an emergency. Personnel (i.e. Management, Logistics, Planning &          
Intelligence, etc.) identified in this plan have been and will continue to be trained to be                
acquainted to its activation and execution. The response and recovery phase of this             
plan have an emphasis on saving lives, controlling the situation, and minimizing the             
effects of the emergency or disaster. Recovery is taking all actions necessary to restore              
the area to pre-event conditions or better, if possible. 
  
The YCH EOP and Annex provides staff with direction on how to respond to an               
emergency from the initial onset, through an extended response, and into the cost             
recovery process. The plan incorporates facilities and personnel into an efficient           
organization capable of reacting swiftly in the face of a disaster - whether it is a local                 
emergency or whether it is to assist other jurisdictions. 
  
Once adopted, the YCH EOP will be used in cooperation with the Yolo County Office of                
Emergency Services and Operational Area emergency response and as such, will be            
reviewed and tested periodically and revised as necessary to meet changing conditions.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
  
There will be some costs associated with staff training, office supplies, and purchase of              
equipment as funding allows and will be incorporated into operations budgets. Having            
an approved EOP Plan, along with other requirements, helps to ensure that YCH is              
eligible for cost recovery associated with a disaster, and makes YCH eligible for disaster              
planning and recovery grants, such as training, recovery costs and equipment, such as             
back-up emergency generators. 

Working together to provide quality affordable housing and community development services for all 



 
CONCLUSION: 
  
Staff recommends that the Housing Commission approve and adopt the revised Yolo            
County Housing Emergency Operations Plan. 
  
Attachments: YCH Emergency Operations Plan Basic Plan 

YCH Emergency Operations Plan Annex 

Working together to provide quality affordable housing and community development services for all 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Version 1.2              Revised: September 2018 

This document outlines the 

responsibilities of the Emergency 

Management Organization for Yolo 

County Housing 

Yolo County 

Housing 

Emergency 

Operations 

Plan 
Basic Plan 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

There are numerous individuals who have contributed their time, efforts, insights and resources 

towards the completion of this version of the Yolo County Housing Emergency Operations Plan 

(EOP).  The strategies, guidance, and information in this plan represent the diligent work of 

numerous persons in the Agency. 

Thanks go to all the persons who extended their time and energy into developing this Plan.  Of 

special note is Ms. Brenna Howell of Howell Consulting, who developed this project on behalf of the 

County’s Office of Emergency Services, under the direction of Ms. Dana Carey.  Thanks also go to 

those persons who contributed by providing insights and data and supported the development of 

the plan. 

As with any working plan, this document represents planning strategies and guidance as 

understood as of the date of this plan’s release.  This plan provides a framework to facilitate an 

organized and effective response to a catastrophic event.



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
3 

Letter of Promulgation  Yolo County Housing 

LETTER OF PROMULGATION 
 

September 2018 

 

To:  Officials and Employees of the Housing Authority of Yolo County 

 

The preservation of life and property is an inherent responsibility of all levels of government.  As 

disasters occur in devastating form at any time, Yolo County Housing must provide safeguards, 

which will save lives and minimize property damage through planning, preparedness measures and 

training.  Sound emergency plans carried out by knowledgeable and well-trained personnel can and 

will minimize losses. 

The Yolo County Housing Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) establishes an Emergency 

Management Organization and assigns functions and tasks consistent with the County of Yolo, 

California’s Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) and the National Incident 

Management System (NIMS).  It provides for the integration and coordination of planning efforts of 

multiple jurisdictions within Yolo County. 

This plan was developed for Yolo County Housing with emergency services responsibilities, and in 

coordination with the cities and Yolo County.  The content is based upon guidance approved and 

provided by the California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) and the Federal 

Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).  The intent of the EOP is to provide direction on how to 

respond to an emergency from the onset, through an extended response, and into the recovery 

process. 

Once adopted, this plan is an extension of the Yolo Operational Area Emergency Plans and the 

California Emergency Plans.  It will be reviewed and tested periodically and revised as necessary to 

meet changing conditions. 

The Yolo County Housing Commission gives its full support to this Emergency Operations Plan 

(EOP), and urges all public employees and individuals to prepare for times of emergency before 

they occur. 

 

_________________________________ 

Chair, Yolo County Housing Commission 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
4 

Letter of Promulgation  Yolo County Housing 

 

This page is intentionally blank  

  

 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
5 

Approval & Implementation  Yolo County Housing 

APPROVAL AND IMPLEMENTATION 
FOREWORD 

The Yolo County Housing (YCH) Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) addresses Housing’s planned 

response to extraordinary emergency situations associated with natural disasters, technological 

incidents and national security emergencies in or affecting  the Agency.  This plan does not apply to 

normal day-to-day emergencies or the established departmental procedures used to cope with such 

emergencies.  Rather, this plan focuses on operational concepts and would be implemented relative 

to large-scale disasters, which can pose major threats to life, property and the environment 

requiring unusual emergency responses. 

This plan accomplishes the following: 

• Establishes the emergency management organization required to mitigate any significant 

emergency or disaster affecting the Agency. 

• Identifies the roles and responsibilities required to protect the health and safety of our 

residents, property and the environmental effects of those emergencies and disasters. 

• Establishes the operational concepts associated with the integration of YCH into a field 

response to emergencies, the YCH Emergency Operations Center (EOC) and coordination 

with the Cities (Davis, West Sacramento, Winters and Woodland) or the County of Yolo 

Emergency Operations Center (EOC) activities and the recovery processes. 

PLAN APPROVAL AND IMPLEMENTATION 

Upon concurrence of the YCH Housing Commission, the plan will be officially adopted and 

promulgated.  The approval date will be included on the title page.  The plan will be distributed 

internally and to those supporting allied agencies and community organizations that may have or 

play a coordination role in our EOC organization. 

PLAN MODIFICATIONS 

Upon the delegation of authority from the YCH CEO, specific modifications can be made to this plan 

without the signature of the Commission.  This Emergency Operations Basic Plan supersedes all 

previous versions of the Emergency Operations Plan. 

  



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
6 

Approval & Implementation  Yolo County Housing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally blank   



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
7 

Record of Changes  Yolo County Housing 

RECORD OF CHANGES 
(Note: File each revision transmittal letter behind this record page.) 

Version 
Number 

Implemented  By Date 
Approved 

By 
Approval 

Date 
Description of 

Change 

1 
Yolo County Housing 
CEO 

2011 
Housing 

Commission 
05/19/2011 Initial Version 

2 
Yolo County Housing 
CEO 

2018 
Housing 

Commission 
XX/XX/2018 

Revision to 
CPG 101 
Agency 
Specific 
Format 

3      

4      

5      

6      

7      

8      

9      

10      

 

  



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
8 

Record of Changes  Yolo County Housing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally blank



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
9 

Record of Concurrence  Yolo County Housing 

RECORD OF CONCURRENCE 
The following list of signatures documents each Commission Member’s concurrence and receipt of 
the 2018 Yolo County Housing Emergency Operations Plan.  As needed, revisions will be submitted 
to the Director’s office. 

 

 

 

Commission Member            

            DATE 

 

Commission Member            

            DATE 

 

Commission Member            

            DATE 

 

Commission Member            

            DATE 

 

Commission Member            

            DATE 

 

Commission Member            

            DATE 

 

Commission Member            

            DATE 

 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
10 

Record of Concurrence  Yolo County Housing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally blank 

 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
11 

Record of Distribution  Yolo County Housing 

RECORD OF DISTRIBUTION 
 

Version 
Number 

Department/Agency Approved By Approval Date 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

  



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
12 

Record of Distribution  Yolo County Housing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally blank 

  



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
13 

Table of Contents  Yolo County Housing 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Letter of Promulgation .......................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Approval and Implementation ........................................................................................................................................... 5 

Record of Changes ................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

Record of Concurrence .......................................................................................................................................................... 9 

Record of Distribution ......................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Table of Contents ................................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Section 1.0: Purpose, Scope, Situation and Assumptions...................................................................................... 17 

1.1 Purpose .......................................................................................................................................................................... 17 

1.1.1  Planning Organization and Format .......................................................................................................... 17 

1.2 Scope ............................................................................................................................................................................... 19 

1.3 Situation Overview ................................................................................................................................................... 20 

1.3.1  Hazard Analysis Summary ........................................................................................................................... 20 

1.3.2  Capability Assessment ................................................................................................................................... 21 

1.3.3  Mitigation Overview ....................................................................................................................................... 22 

1.4 Planning Assumptions ............................................................................................................................................. 22 

1.5 Whole Community Approach ............................................................................................................................... 23 

Section 2.0: Concept of Operations ................................................................................................................................ 25 

2.1 Goals, Priorities and Strategies ............................................................................................................................ 25 

2.1.1  Operational Goals ............................................................................................................................................ 25 

2.1.2  Operational Priorities .................................................................................................................................... 25 

2.1.3  Operational Strategies ................................................................................................................................... 25 

2.2 Plan Activation ........................................................................................................................................................... 26 

2.3 Proclaiming an Emergency .................................................................................................................................... 26 

2.3.1  Local Emergency Proclamation ................................................................................................................. 26 

2.4 Emergency Management Response Levels ..................................................................................................... 27 

2.4.1  National Emergency ....................................................................................................................................... 28 

2.5 Sequence of Events During Disasters ................................................................................................................ 28 

2.5.1  Before Impact .................................................................................................................................................... 29 

2.5.2  Immediate Impact ........................................................................................................................................... 30 

2.5.3  Sustained Operations ..................................................................................................................................... 32 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
14 

Table of Contents  Yolo County Housing 

2.5.4  Transition to Recovery .................................................................................................................................. 32 

2.6 Continuity of Operations and Government .................................................................................................... 33 

Section 3.0: Organization and Assignment of Responsibilities .......................................................................... 34 

3.1 Supporting Plan Development ............................................................................................................................. 34 

3.2 Agency EOC Organization Assignments ........................................................................................................... 35 

3.2.1  Chief Executive Officer ................................................................................................................................... 36 

3.3 Organization of Emergency Management ....................................................................................................... 36 

3.3.1  Federal Emergency Support Functions .................................................................................................. 36 

3.3.2  California Emergency Support Functions .............................................................................................. 36 

3.3.3  Yolo County Emergency Support Functions ......................................................................................... 36 

3.4 Role of Private Sector .............................................................................................................................................. 38 

3.4.1  Yolo County Housing Residents ................................................................................................................. 38 

3.4.2  Populations with Access and Functional Needs .................................................................................. 38 

3.4.3  At-Risk Individuals .......................................................................................................................................... 39 

3.4.4  Businesses........................................................................................................................................................... 39 

3.4.5  Volunteer Organizations ............................................................................................................................... 40 

3.4.6  Public-Private Partnerships ........................................................................................................................ 40 

Section 4.0: Direction, Control and Coordination .................................................................................................... 41 

4.1 Direction and Control .............................................................................................................................................. 41 

4.2 Coordination ................................................................................................................................................................ 41 

4.3 Standardized Emergency Management System ........................................................................................... 41 

4.3.1  Standardized Emergency Management System Organization Levels ........................................ 41 

4.3.2  Standardized Emergency Management System Functions ............................................................ 43 

4.4  National Incident Management System .......................................................................................................... 45 

4.5  Mutual Aid ................................................................................................................................................................... 46 

4.5.1  Mutual Aid Coordination .............................................................................................................................. 47 

Section 5.0: Information Collection and Dissemination ........................................................................................ 49 

5.1 Action Planning .......................................................................................................................................................... 49 

5.1.1 Planning Requirements .......................................................................................................................... 49 

5.2 Emergency Operations Center Reporting ....................................................................................................... 49 

5.3 Emergency Operations Center Reporting Systems ..................................................................................... 51 

5.4 Emergency Public Information ............................................................................................................................ 51 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
15 

Table of Contents  Yolo County Housing 

Section 6.0: Communications ........................................................................................................................................... 52 

6.1 Communications Systems ...................................................................................................................................... 52 

6.2 Internal Communications ...................................................................................................................................... 52 

6.3 Notification and Warning ....................................................................................................................................... 52 

6.4 Non-Emergency External Communications ................................................................................................... 52 

Section 7.0: Administration, Finance and Logistics ................................................................................................. 54 

7.1 Documentation ........................................................................................................................................................... 54 

7.2 Finance ........................................................................................................................................................................... 54 

7.3 Expenditure Tracking .............................................................................................................................................. 54 

7.3.1  Eligible Expenses ............................................................................................................................................. 54 

7.3.2  Recordkeeping Requirements .................................................................................................................... 54 

7.4 Resource Management ............................................................................................................................................ 55 

7.4.1  Resource Priorities .......................................................................................................................................... 55 

7.4.2  Resource Requests .......................................................................................................................................... 56 

7.5 Yolo County Housing Emergency Operations Policy Statement ............................................................ 56 

7.6 Disaster Service Workers ....................................................................................................................................... 57 

Section 8.0: Preparedness, Training, Exercises and After Action Reporting ................................................ 58 

8.1 Preparedness Planning ........................................................................................................................................... 58 

8.1.1  Community Preparedness and Awareness ........................................................................................... 58 

8.1.2  Preparedness Actions .................................................................................................................................... 58 

8.2 Readiness Training ................................................................................................................................................... 59 

8.3 Exercise and Evaluation ......................................................................................................................................... 59 

8.4 After Action Reporting ............................................................................................................................................ 59 

Section 9.0: Plan Development and Maintenance .................................................................................................... 61 

9.1 Plan Development and Maintenance Responsibility .................................................................................. 61 

9.2 Review and Updating ............................................................................................................................................... 61 

Appendix YCH-1: Authorities and References ........................................................................................................... 62 

Authorities ........................................................................................................................................................................... 62 

Federal .............................................................................................................................................................................. 62 

State ................................................................................................................................................................................... 62 

County ............................................................................................................................................................................... 62 

References ........................................................................................................................................................................... 63 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
16 

Table of Contents  Yolo County Housing 

Federal .............................................................................................................................................................................. 63 

State ................................................................................................................................................................................... 63 

County ............................................................................................................................................................................... 63 

Appendix YCH-2: Acronyms .............................................................................................................................................. 64 

Appendix YCH-3: Table of Figures .................................................................................................................................. 65 

 

 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
17 

Section 1.0: Purpose, Scope, Situation &  Yolo County Housing 
Assumptions 

SECTION 1.0: PURPOSE, SCOPE, SITUATION AND ASSUMPTIONS 

1.1 PURPOSE 
The purpose of the YCH Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) is to provide the basis for a coordinated 

response before, during and after a disaster incident affecting the Agency.   

This plan is the principal guide for the Agency’s response to, and management of real or potential 

emergencies and disasters occurring within its designated geographic boundaries.  Specifically, this 

plan is intended to: 

• Facilitate multi-jurisdictional and interagency coordination in emergency operations, 

particularly between local government, private sector, operational area (geographic county 

boundary), state response levels, and appropriate federal agencies.   

• Serve as an agency-specific plan, a reference document, and when possible, may be used for 

pre-emergency planning in addition to emergency operations.   

• To be utilized in coordination with applicable local, county, state and federal contingency 

plans.  

• Identify the components of the Emergency Management Organization (EMO), and establish 

associated protocols required to effectively respond to, manage and recover from major 

emergencies and/or disasters. 

• Establish the operational concepts and procedures associated with field response to 

emergencies, and Emergency Operations Center (EOC) activities. 

• Establish the organizational framework of the California Standardized Emergency 

Management System (SEMS), and the National Incident Management System (NIMS), within 

Yolo County Housing.  

Allied agencies, private enterprise, special districts and volunteer organizations having 

coordination roles and responsibilities are encouraged to develop operating protocols and 

emergency action checklists based on the provisions of this plan. 

1.1.1  PLANNING ORGANIZATION AND FORMAT 
The plan is divided into several elements that contain general and specific information relating to 

the Agency’s emergency management operations.  This EOP is structured in the Agency Focused 

format identified in Federal Emergency Management Agencies (FEMA) Comprehensive 

Preparedness Guide 101 version 2.  The elements included are as follows: 

Basic Plan 
The basic plan provides an overview of the Yolo County Housing emergency management 

system.  It briefly explains the hazards faced, capabilities, requirements, and the agency’s 

emergency management structure.  It also identifies how the Agency integrates the 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
18 

Section 1.0: Purpose, Scope, Situation &  Yolo County Housing 
Assumptions 

Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) and the National Incident 

Management System (NIMS) into their emergency management organization.   

Lead Agency & Support Agency Annexes 

Lead Agency & Support Agency Annexes are designed to identify the lead responding 

agencies and support agencies for specific types of response to Yolo County Housing 

properties.  The agencies identified in the Operational Area Emergency Support Function 

(ESF) Annexes are the same agencies identified to respond to Yolo County Housing.  ESF 

Annexes developed by the Operational Area will serve as the Lead & Support Agency 

Annexes to the Yolo County Housing EOP Basic.   The ESF Executive Summaries identify the 

ESF coordinator(s) and the primary support agencies for each function.  They also outline 

expected mission execution for each emergency phase and identify tasks and plans assigned 

to members of the ESF.  An ESF annex can be a culmination of Plans, Standard Operating 

Guides/ Procedures (SOPs/SOGs) and/or Field Operations Guide (FOGs).   

Hazard Specific Procedures 
Hazard Specific Procedures for Yolo County Housing properties are already included in the 

Operational Area Hazard Specific Annexes.  Hazard specific annexes identify hazard-specific 

risk areas and evacuation routes, specify provisions and protocols for warning the public 

and disseminating emergency public information, and specify the types of protective 

equipment and detection devices for responders.   

A graphic representation of how the agency’s emergency plans relate to each other can be 

viewed in the figure below: 

   

Figure 1 – Plans Relational Structure 

Additional Plans 
Several other plans are included in the Operational Areas planning efforts that support 

specific aspects of Emergency Management.  Yolo County Housing is included in many of 

these plans for various reasons.  Some of the most notable include: 

• Operational Area Alert & Warning Plan – Yolo County Housing participates with all 

surrounding jurisdictions in the use of Mass Notification strategies and alerting 

software. 

Multi-Jurisdictional 
Hazard Mitigation 

Plan

Yolo County Housing 
Community Profile

Emergency 
Operations Plan 

(Basic)

Lead & Support 
Agency Annexes 
(aka ESF Annexes)

Hazard Specific 
Procedures



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
19 

Section 1.0: Purpose, Scope, Situation &  Yolo County Housing 
Assumptions 

• Operational Area Evacuation Plan – Regional evacuation planning is currently 

underway to coordinate evacuation flow planning and includes Yolo County Housing 

properties. 

• Operational Area Volunteer & Donations Management Plan – This plan incorporates 

the use of volunteers and donations for every partner in the Operational Area, 

including Yolo County Housing. 

• Operational Area Recovery Framework – Yolo County Housing is a key partner in 

the Recovery Framework and serves as the lead agency for the Housing Recovery 

Support Function. 

• Operational Area Emergency Management Training Plan – The training plan 

identifies the training requirements of all EOC personnel in any EOC throughout the 

Operational Area. 

There are two additional plans maintained by Yolo County Housing specifically for internal 

emergency operations of the agency: 

1. Continuity of Operations – Outlines the functions Yolo County Housing will maintain 

during any disruption of normal services. 

2. EOC Annex – Outlines the structure and operations of the agency’s Emergency 

Operations Center. 

1.2 SCOPE 
The scope of this plan applies to any extraordinary emergency situation associated with any hazard, 

natural, technological or human caused which may affect the Agency that generates situations 

requiring planned, coordinated responses by multiple agencies or jurisdictions.   

The provisions, policies, and procedures of this plan are applicable to all agencies and individuals, 

public and private, having responsibilities for emergency preparedness, response, recovery, and/or 

mitigation in the Agency.  The other governmental agencies providing services to Yolo County 

Housing maintain their own emergency operations plans and those plans are consistent with the 

policies and procedures established by this plan. 

Incorporating the FEMA Comprehensive Preparedness Guide 101v. 2 and State of California 

Emergency Plan best practices, in addition to the County’s Emergency Operations Plan, this plan is 

designed to be read, understood and exercised prior to an emergency and establishes the 

framework for implementation of SEMS and NIMS for the Agency.  This EOP is intended to facilitate 

multi-agency and multi-jurisdictional coordination, particularly between Yolo County Housing, the 

County of Yolo and its jurisdictions, as well as special districts, utilities, major businesses, non-

profit agencies, community groups, state agencies, and the federal government.  Emergency 

operations will be coordinated through the structure of the EOC.  This plan will be used in 

coordination with the State Emergency Plan and the National Response Framework.  

http://www.caloes.ca.gov/PlanningPreparednessSite/Documents/California_State_Emergency_Plan_2017.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/media-library-data/1466014682982-9bcf8245ba4c60c120aa915abe74e15d/National_Response_Framework3rd.pdf


Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
20 

Section 1.0: Purpose, Scope, Situation &  Yolo County Housing 
Assumptions 

This plan is part of a larger framework that supports emergency management within the State.  

Through an integrated framework of emergency plans and procedures involving all stakeholders in 

the emergency management community, together with the County of Yolo, it’s political 

subdivisions, the Inland Region of the State of California Office of Emergency Services and the 

Federal government will promote effective planning and coordination prior to an emergency, 

thereby ensuring a more effective response and recovery. 

1.3 SITUATION OVERVIEW 
This chapter describes a number of potential hazards that could affect Yolo County Housing 

operations, which would warrant the activation of the Emergency Management Organization.  The 

map provided in Figure 2 – Base Map of Housing Properties, details the locations of properties 

owned and responded to by Yolo County Housing. 

 

Figure 2 - Base Map of Housing Properties 

1.3.1  HAZARD ANALYSIS SUMMARY  
In 2018, the County of Yolo’s Office of Emergency Services and a consortium of community 

stakeholders worked to complete the County of Yolo Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan, 

which included Yolo County Housing. The purpose of this analysis was to identify and discuss the 

natural hazards confronting the communities and the mitigation efforts that have taken place or are 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
21 

Section 1.0: Purpose, Scope, Situation &  Yolo County Housing 
Assumptions 

underway that might address those threats.  For more in-depth details, please refer to the County of 

Yolo Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

The Agency is vulnerable to a wide range of threats that directly relates to the threats identified by 

all of the jurisdictions that the Agency’s properties reside in.  An all-hazards threat perspective 

must include a complete range of threats including emerging and increasing technological factors.  

It is important to consider past events for future planning, with the consideration that the location 

and scope of hazards change over the years.  The chart in Figure 3 shows an average of the Risk 

Scores for each jurisdiction containing Yolo Housing properties. 

 

Figure 3 – Yolo County Housing Hazards 

 

1.3.2  CAPABILITY ASSESSMENT  
A capability assessment provides part of the foundation for determining the type of emergency 

management, preparedness, and mitigation strategy.  The assessment process also identifies gaps 

or weaknesses that may need to be addressed through preparedness planning goals and actions 

deemed practical considering the jurisdiction’s capabilities to implement them.  Finally, the 

capability assessment highlights the positive measures that are in place or underway for continued 

support and enhancement of the jurisdiction’s preparedness and response efforts. 

As an established organization, Yolo County Housing has the capabilities to perform the necessary 

emergency response duties outlined in this Emergency Operations Plan.  

The Agency has completed the following to increase its capabilities: 

0
0.5

1
1.5

2
2.5

3
3.5

4

Risk Score

Risk Score



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
22 

Section 1.0: Purpose, Scope, Situation &  Yolo County Housing 
Assumptions 

• Development of the Agency’s Continuity of Operations Plan 

• Emergency Operations Center training of Agency personnel including participation in a 

multi-jurisdictional exercise involving several EOC’s throughout Yolo 

• Participation in long term Recovery efforts for neighboring housing authorities 

In light of the Agency’s susceptibility and vulnerability to disasters, continuing emphasis will be 
placed on emergency planning, training of full time personnel, public awareness and education, and 
assuring the adequacy and availability of sufficient resources to cope with such emergencies. The 
Agency is involved in ongoing public education programs. The programs focus on the need of 
individuals to be knowledgeable about the nature of disasters and proper responses to those 
disasters. They also encourage citizens to make the necessary preparations for disasters and 
emergencies.  

Yolo County Housing, in partnership with their residents developed the Community Awareness and 
Support Team (CAST) with a focus on enhancing family and individual disaster preparedness, and 
the safety and security of each community.  CAST is an innovative solution to building community 
resiliency including training in disaster response, first aid, CPR, AED, evacuation procedures, patrol 
and report procedures, and conflict resolution. 

1.3.3  MITIGATION OVERVIEW  
Yolo County Housing has taken a number of mitigation measures for each identified hazard to 

minimize the impact that is likely to result from an emergency.   The approved, Yolo County Multi-

Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan identifies mitigation efforts to reduce the occurrence and 

impact of identified hazards for the Agency. As the cost of damage from natural disasters continues 

to increase nationwide, the Agency recognizes the importance of identifying effective ways to 

reduce their vulnerability to disastrous events.  

For detailed information on Yolo County Housing’s mitigation strategies, please refer to County of 

Yolo, Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan, Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

Community Profile. 

1.4 PLANNING ASSUMPTIONS 
Certain assumptions were used during the development of this plan.  These assumptions translate 

into basic principles associated with conducting emergency management operations in preparation 

for, response to, and recovery from major emergencies.  In plan development and emergency 

operations “Assumptions” provide context, requirements, and situational realities. 

• Emergencies or disasters may occur at any time, day or night, in populated as well as 

remote areas of the County.  

• Major emergencies and disasters will require a multi-agency, multi-jurisdictional response.  

For this reason, it is essential that the Standardized Emergency Management System and in 

many cases a Unified Command, be implemented immediately by responding agencies and 

expanded as the situation dictates. 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
23 

Section 1.0: Purpose, Scope, Situation &  Yolo County Housing 
Assumptions 

• Yolo County Housing is primarily responsible for emergency actions on all of the properties 

for which it has maintenance responsibilities and will commit all available resources to that 

end.  Jurisdictional partners assist the Agency to save lives, minimize injury to persons and 

minimize property damage. 

• Large-scale emergencies and/or disasters may overburden local resources and necessitate 

mutual aid from neighboring jurisdictions or other Housing Authorities. 

• Large-scale emergencies and/or disasters and the complex organizational structure 

required to respond to them pose significant challenges in terms of warning and 

notification, logistics, and agency coordination. 

• Major emergencies and/or disasters may generate widespread media and public interest.  

The media is a partner in large-scale emergencies and/or disasters; this relationship can 

provide considerable assistance in emergency public information and warning. 

• Large-scale emergencies and disasters may pose serious long-term threats to public health, 

property, the environment, and the local economy.  While responding to significant 

disasters and/or emergencies, all strategic decisions must consider each of these 

consequences. 

• Disasters and/or emergencies may require an extended commitment of personnel and 

other resources from involved agencies and jurisdictions. 

• The Emergency Management Organization is familiar with this plan and with the 

Standardized Emergency Management System and the National Incident Management 

System. 

It is the Agency’s intent to fulfill the policies described herein, within the capabilities and resources 

available at the time of an emergency or disaster event.   

1.5 WHOLE COMMUNITY APPROACH  

The whole community concept is a process by which residents, emergency management 
representatives, organizational and community leaders, and government officials can understand 
and assess the needs of their respective communities and determine the best ways to organize and 
strengthen their resources, capacities, and interests. Engaging in whole community emergency 
management planning builds a more effective path to societal security and resilience. This plan 
supports the following whole community principles:  

• Understand and meet the needs of the entire community, including people with disabilities 
and those with other access and functional needs.  

• Engage and empower all parts of the community to assist in all phases of the disaster cycle.  
• Strengthen what works well in communities on a daily basis.  

Yolo County Housing serves extremely low and very low income families throughout the County of 

Yolo.  Figure 4 shows a percentage breakdown of the families served by Yolo County Housing.  (The 

percentages in Figure 4 is subject to change).  

In addition, YCH and its affiliates own a variety of municipal type infrastructure systems: 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
24 

Section 1.0: Purpose, Scope, Situation &  Yolo County Housing 
Assumptions 

• 5.57 miles of sewer  line 

• 3  drinking water plants encompassing  5 wells and water lines 

• 3 propane gas plants, including tanks and lines 

• 1 sewer pumping system with lift station 

• 2 sewer systems  encompassing 4 sewer ponds, pumps and lift stations 

• 1 commercial sealed septic system with leach field  

• Road systems in West Sacramento, Woodland, outside of Winters,  Davis Migrant, Madison 

Migrant and Dixon Migrant, Esparto 

• Parking bays 

• Streetlights, parking lot and sidewalk lighting 

 

Figure 4 – Yolo County Housing Population Served 

 

Davis
21%

West 
Sacramento

34%

Winters
0.001%

Woodland
29%

Yolo 
Unincorporated

/Dixon
16%



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
25 

Section 2.0: Concept of Operations  Yolo County Housing 

SECTION 2.0: CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS 

2.1 GOALS, PRIORITIES AND STRATEGIES 
During the response phase, emergency managers set goals, prioritize actions and outline 

operational strategies. This plan provides a broad overview of those goals, priorities and strategies, 

and describes what should occur during each step, when and at whose direction. 

2.1.1  OPERATIONAL GOALS 
During the response phase, the agencies charged with responsibilities in this plan should focus on 

the following five goals: 

• Mitigate hazards. 

• Meet basic human needs. 

• Address needs of the People with Access and Functional Needs. 

• Restore essential services. 

• Support community and economic recovery. 

2.1.2  OPERATIONAL PRIORITIES 
Operational priorities govern resource allocation and the response strategies for Yolo County 

Housing during an emergency.  Below are operational priorities addressed in this plan: 

• Save Lives – The preservation of life is the top priority of emergency managers and first 

responders and takes precedence over all other considerations. 

• Protect Health and Safety – Measures should be taken to mitigate the impact of the 

emergency on public health and safety. 

• Protect Property – All feasible efforts must be made to protect public and private property 

and resources, including critical infrastructure, from damage during and after an 

emergency. 

• Preserve the Environment – All possible efforts must be made to preserve the 

environment and protect it from damage during an emergency.  

2.1.3  OPERATIONAL STRATEGIES 
To meet the operational goals, emergency responders should consider the following strategies: 

• Mitigate Hazards – As soon as practical, suppress, reduce or eliminate hazards and/or 

risks to persons and property during the disaster response. Lessen the actual or potential 

effects and/or consequences of future emergencies. 

• Meet Basic Human Needs – All possible efforts must be made to supply resources to meet 

basic human needs, including food, water, shelter, medical treatment and security during 

the emergency. Afterwards provisions will be made for temporary housing, general needs 

assistance, and support for re-establishing employment after the emergency passes. 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
26 

Section 2.0: Concept of Operations  Yolo County Housing 

• Address Needs of People with Access and Functional Needs – People with access and 

functional needs are more vulnerable to harm during and after an emergency. The needs of 

people with access and functional needs must be considered and addressed. 

• Restore Essential Services – Power, water, sanitation, transportation and other essential 

services must be restored as rapidly as possible to assist communities in returning to 

normal daily activities. 

• Support Community and Economic Recovery – All members of the community must 

collaborate to ensure that recovery operations are conducted efficiently, effectively and 

equitably, promoting expeditious recovery of the affected areas.   

2.2 PLAN ACTIVATION 
The Yolo County Housing Emergency Operations Plan may be activated by the CEO or designated 

alternates under any of the following circumstances: 

• By order of the CEO of Yolo County Housing based on incident complexity. 

• Upon proclamation by the Governor that a STATE OF EMERGENCY exists in an area of the 

state. 

• Automatically on the proclamation of a STATE OF WAR EMERGENCY as defined in the 

California Emergency Services Act (Chapter 7, Division 1, Title 2, California Government 

Code.) 

• Upon declaration by the President, of the existence of a National Emergency. 

• Automatically, on receipt of an attack warning or actual attack on the United States, or upon 

occurrence of a catastrophic disaster that requires immediate government response. 

2.3 PROCLAIMING AN EMERGENCY  
The California Emergency Services Act provides for three types of emergency proclamations in 

California:  (1) Local Emergency, (2) State of Emergency, and (3) State of War Emergency. 

Local Governments, under the Standardized Emergency Management System, are able to issue 

proclamations of local emergency.  Local governments are defined as any “county, city and county 

or city”1  They also provide a mechanism for unaffected jurisdictions to provide resources and 

assistance to the affected jurisdictions.  Although emergency proclamations facilitate the flow of 

resources and support to the affected jurisdictions and local government, they are not prerequisite 

for rendering mutual aid and assistance under existing agreements or requesting assistance from 

other agencies and jurisdictions. 

2.3.1  LOCAL EMERGENCY PROCLAMATION   
A Local Emergency may be recommended by the Director of Emergency Services of any of the 

jurisdictions within Yolo County as specified by their Municipal Codes and Ordinances within 10 

days after the actual occurrence of a disaster if assistance will be requested through CDAA.  A Local 

Emergency proclaimed by individuals other than a jurisdictions governing body must be ratified by 

the governing body within seven (7) days of execution. 

                                                             
1 California Emergency Services Act, Article 2, §8558 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
27 

Section 2.0: Concept of Operations  Yolo County Housing 

The governing body must review the need to continue the proclamation at least every thirty (30) 

days until the Local Emergency is terminated.  The Local Emergency must be terminated by 

resolution as soon as conditions warrant.  A Proclamation is normally made when there is an actual 

incident, threat of disaster, or extreme peril to the safety of persons and property.   

Yolo County Housing properties are covered by the local proclamation(s) of emergency for the 

jurisdiction their property resides in.  In the event of multiple affected properties, a Yolo County 

proclamation of local emergency will be issued to ensure that all facilities are included.  In either 

case the Initial Damage Estimate (IDE) of Yolo County Housing properties will be included with the 

IDE of the jurisdiction proclaiming.       

In cases where Yolo County Housing may need to request financial assistance under the California 

Disaster Assistance Act (CDAA), they may proclaim a local emergency for their agency and request 

assistance from the Governor2. 

2.4 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT RESPONSE LEVELS 
The Yolo County Housing Emergency Operations Plan will be activated when an emergency occurs 

or threatens to exceed capabilities to adequately respond to and mitigate an incident(s).  The scope 

of an emergency, rather than the type, will largely determine whether the Emergency Operations 

Plan and Emergency Operations Center will be activated, and to what level. 

For planning purposes, the California Office of Emergency Services has established three "levels" of 

response to emergencies.  Yolo County Housing also employs this system to guide local response to 

emergencies as noted in the table below: 

 
Event/Situation 

 
Activation Level Minimum Staffing 

Events with potential impacts on the 
health and safety of the public and/or 
environment 

Three  
(Low) 

EOC Director 
 

Other Designees 

Severe Weather Issuances 

Significant incidents involving 2 or 
more departments 

Major wind or rain storm 

Power Outages and Stage 1 and 2 
power emergencies 

 

  

                                                             
2 California Disaster Assistance Act, Article 1, §8680.2 
   California Code of Regulations, Title 19, Division 2, Chapter 6, §2900(hh) 
   California Disaster Assistance Act, Article 4, §8685.2 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
28 

Section 2.0: Concept of Operations  Yolo County Housing 

 
Event/Situation 

 
Activation Level Minimum Staffing 

Two or more large incidents involving 
2 or more departments 

Two 
(Medium) 

EOC Director 
 

Section Chiefs/Coordinators 
 

Branches and Units as 
appropriate to situation 

 
Liaison/Agency 

Representatives as appropriate 
 

Public Information Officer 

Major wind or rain 

Major scheduled event 

Large scale power outages and Stage 3 
power emergencies 

Hazardous Materials inicdentinvolving 
large scale or possible large scale 
evacuations 

Events with potential impacts on the 
health and safety of the public and/or 
environment 

Major County/City or Regional 
emergency – multiple departments 
with heavy resource involvement One 

(High) 
All EOC as appropriate 

Events with potential impacts on the 
health and safety of the public and/or 
environment 

 

2.4.1  NATIONAL EMERGENCY 
In the event of a declared National Emergency, the Agency’s Emergency Operations Center could be 

activated and all elements of local government organized to respond to the indicated threat.  A 

National Emergency may occur due to a real or potential act of terrorism or other catastrophic 

event that affects the country, including all of the cities, Yolo County and surrounding jurisdictions. 

For additional information regarding the Agency’s Emergency Management response and 

Emergency Operations Center Functions, refer to the Yolo County Housing EOC Support Annex. 

2.5 SEQUENCE OF EVENTS DURING DISASTERS 
Two sequences of events are typically associated with disasters: one involves the response and the 

other involves emergency proclamations. The response sequence generally describes the 

emergency response activities to save lives, protect property and preserve the environment. This 

sequence describes deployment of response teams, activation of emergency management 

organizations and coordination among the various levels of government. The emergency 

proclamation sequence outlines the steps to gain expanded emergency authorities needed to 

mitigate the problem. It also summarizes the steps for requesting state and federal disaster 

assistance. 

The sequence of activities occurring for the emergency response and the proclamation process is 
illustrated in Figure 5 – Response Phase Sequence of Events. 

 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
29 

Section 2.0: Concept of Operations  Yolo County Housing 

 

Figure 5 - Response Phase Sequence of Events 

 

2.5.1  BEFORE IMPACT  
Routine Monitoring for Alerts, Watches and Warnings: Emergency officials constantly monitor 

events and the environment to identify specific threats that may affect their jurisdiction and 

increase the awareness level of emergency personnel and the community when a threat is 

approaching or imminent. 

Increased Readiness: Sufficient warning provides the opportunity for response agencies to 

increase readiness, which are actions designed to increase an agency’s ability to effectively respond 

once the emergency occurs. This includes, but is not limited to: 

• Briefing government officials. 

• Reviewing plans and procedures. 

• Preparing and disseminating information to the community. 

• Updating resource lists. 

• Testing systems such as warning and communications systems. 

• Activating Emergency Operations Centers even if precautionary. 

Pre-Impact: When a disaster is foreseen as highly likely, action is taken to save lives and protect 

property. During this phase, warning systems are activated, resources are mobilized and evacuation 

begins. 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
30 

Section 2.0: Concept of Operations  Yolo County Housing 

2.5.2  IMMEDIATE IMPACT  
During this phase, emphasis is placed on control of the situation, saving lives and minimizing the 

effects of the disaster. Below is a partial list of actions to be taken: 

Alert and Notification:  Local response agencies are alerted about an incident by the public 

through 9-1-1, another response agency, or other method. First responders are then notified of the 

incident. Upon an alert, response agencies notify response personnel. 

Resource Mobilization: Response agencies activate personnel and mobilize to support the 

incident response. As the event escalates and expands, additional resources are activated and 

mobilized to support the response. Activation and mobilization continue for the duration of the 

emergency, as additional resources are needed to support the response. This includes resources 

from within the Agency, or, when resources are exhausted, from surrounding unaffected 

jurisdictions and agencies. 

Incident Response:  Immediate response is accomplished within Yolo County Housing’s properties 

by local responders. First responders arrive at the incident and function within their established 

field level plans and procedures. The responding agencies will manage all incidents in accordance 

with the Incident Command System organizational structures, doctrine and procedures. 

Establishing Incident Command:  Incident Command is established to direct, order, and/or 

control resources by virtue of some explicit legal agency or delegated authority at the field level. 

Initial actions are coordinated through the on-scene Incident Commander. The Incident 

Commander develops an initial Incident Action Plan, which sets priorities for the incident, assigns 

resources and includes a common communications plan. If multiple jurisdictions or agencies are 

involved, the first responders will establish a Unified Incident Command Post to facilitate 

multijurisdictional and multiagency policy decisions. The Incident Commander may implement an 

Area Command to oversee multiple incidents that are handled by separate Incident Command 

System organizations or to oversee the management of a very large or evolving incident that has 

multiple incident management teams engaged. 

Activation of the Multiagency Coordination System: Responding agencies will coordinate and 

support emergency management and incident response objectives through the development and 

use of integrated Multiagency Coordination Systems and Multiagency Coordination System Groups. 

This includes developing and maintaining connectivity capability between the Incident Command 

Post, local 9-1-1 Centers, local Emergency Operations Centers, the Regional Emergency Operations 

Center, the State Operations Center and federal Emergency Operations Center and National 

Response Framework organizational elements. 

Local Emergency Operations Center Activation (EOC): Local jurisdictions activate their local 

Emergency Operations Center based on the magnitude or need for more coordinated management 

of the emergency. When activated, local EOCs help form a common operating picture of the incident 

by collecting, analyzing and disseminating emergency information. The local Emergency Operations 

Center can also improve the effectiveness of the response by reducing the amount of external 

coordination of resources by the Incident Commander by providing a single point of contact to 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
31 

Section 2.0: Concept of Operations  Yolo County Housing 

support multiagency coordination. When activated the Yolo County Housing Emergency Operations 

Center notifies the Operational Area lead that the local Emergency Operations Center has been 

activated. 

Communications between field and the Emergency Operations Center: When a jurisdiction 

Emergency Operations Center is activated, communications and coordination are established 

between the Incident Commander and the Department Operations Center to the Emergency 

Operations Center, or between the Incident Commander and the Emergency Operations Center. 

Operational Area Emergency Operations Center Activation: If one or more Local EOCs are 

activated, or if the event requires resources outside the affected jurisdiction/agency, the 

Operational Area Emergency Operations Center activates. The Operational Area Emergency 

Operations Center then coordinates resource requests from the affected jurisdiction to an 

unaffected jurisdiction, or if resources are not available within the Operational Area, forwards the 

resource request to the Regional Emergency Operations Center and mutual aid coordinators. 

Regional Emergency Operations Center Activation: Whenever an Operational Area Emergency 

Operations Center is activated the California Office of Emergency Services Regional Administrator 

will activate the Regional Emergency Operations Center within the affected region and notifies the 

California Office of Emergency Services Headquarters. The Regional Emergency Operations Center 

will then coordinate resource requests from the affected Operational Area to unaffected 

Operational Areas within the affected region, or, if resources are not available within the affected 

region, resource requests are forwarded to the State Operations Center for coordination. 

State Level Field Teams: The State may deploy Field Teams (Emergency Services Regional Staff) 

to provide situation reports on the disaster to the Regional Emergency Operations Center in 

coordination with the responsible Unified Command. 

State Operations Center Activation: The State Operations Center may be activated when the 

Regional Emergency Operations Center activates in order to: 

• Continuously monitor the situation and provide situation reports to brief state officials as 

appropriate. 

• Process resource requests between the affected regions, unaffected regions and state 

agency Department Operation Centers. 

• Process requests for federal assistance and coordinate with Federal Incident Management 

Assistance Teams when established. 

• Coordinate interstate resource requests as part of the Emergency Management Assistance 

Compact or Interstate Disaster and Civil Defense Compact. 

• The State Operations Center may also be activated independently of a Regional Emergency 

Operations Center to continuously monitor emergency conditions. 

Joint Information Center Activation: Where multiple agencies are providing public information, 

the lead agencies will work together to analyze the information available and provide a consistent 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
32 

Section 2.0: Concept of Operations  Yolo County Housing 

message to the public and the media. Where practical, the agencies will activate a Joint Information 

Center to facilitate the dissemination of consistent information. 

Department Operations Center Activation: Each state agency may activate a Department 

Operations Center to manage information and resources assigned to the incident.  If a Department 

Operations Center is activated, an agency representative or liaison may be deployed to facilitate 

information flow between the two facilities. 

Federal Emergency Management Agency Regional Response Coordination Center Activation: 

The Federal Emergency Management Agency Regional Response Coordination Center may deploy a 

liaison or Incident Management Assistance Team to the State Operations Center to monitor the 

situation and provide situational awareness to federal officials. 

2.5.3  SUSTAINED OPERATIONS  
As the emergency situation continues, further emergency assistance is provided to victims of the 

disaster and efforts are made to reduce the likelihood of secondary damage. If the situation 

demands, mutual aid is provided, as well as activities such as search and rescue, shelter and care, 

and identification of victims. 

2.5.4  TRANSITION TO RECOVERY  
As the initial and sustained operational priorities are met, emergency management officials 

consider the recovery phase needs. Short-term recovery activities include returning vital life 

support systems to minimum operating standards. Long-term activity is designed to return to 

normal activities. Recovery planning should include reviews of ways to avert or mitigate future 

emergencies. During the recovery phase, damage is assessed, Local Assistance Centers and/or 

Disaster Recovery Centers are opened and hazard mitigation surveys are performed. 

Local Assistance Centers:  Local governments open Local Assistance Centers to assist 

communities by providing a centralized location for services and resource referrals for unmet 

needs following a disaster or significant emergency. Local, state and federal agencies, as well as 

non-profit and voluntary organizations normally staff and support the Local Assistance Center. The 

Local Assistance Center provides a single facility at which individuals, families and businesses can 

access available disaster assistance programs and services. As more federal resources arrive, a 

federal Disaster Recovery Centers may be collocated with the state/local Local Assistance Centers. 

Joint Field Office: The State coordinates with the Federal Emergency Management Agency as 

necessary to activate a Joint Field Office to coordinate federal support for the emergency. The State 

will appoint a State Coordinating Officer to serve as the state point of contact. A Federal 

Coordinating Officer is appointed upon a Presidential Declaration of an Emergency or Major 

Disaster. 

Demobilization: As resources are no longer needed to support the response, or the response 

activities cease, resources are demobilized. Demobilization includes provisions to address and 

validate the safe return of resources to their original location and include processes for resource 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
33 

Section 2.0: Concept of Operations  Yolo County Housing 

tracking and ensuring applicable reimbursement. Where applicable, the demobilization should 

include compliance with mutual aid and assistance provisions.   

In the Yolo Operational Area, Yolo County Housing is the lead agency for the Housing Recovery 

Support Function.  For more information on the Recovery effort before, during and after a disaster, 

refer to the Yolo Operational Area Recovery Framework. 

2.6 CONTINUITY OF OPERATIONS AND GOVERNMENT  
A critical component of Yolo County Housing’s emergency management strategy involves ensuring 

that agency operations will continue during and after a major emergency or disaster.  The ability to 

maintain essential functions, including the continuity of lawfully constituted authority is a 

responsibility that must be provided for to the greatest extent possible. 

A major disaster could result in great loss of life and property, including the death or injury of key 

agency officials, the partial or complete destruction of established seats of government, and/or the 

destruction of public and private records essential to continued operations of government and 

industry. 

In the aftermath of a major disaster, during the reconstruction period, law and order must be 

preserved and, so far as possible, government services must be maintained.  The civil government 

can best complete these services.  To this end, it is particularly essential that the local units of 

government continue to function. 

Applicable portions of the California Government Code and the State Constitution provide authority 

for the continuity and preservation of state and local government.  

For additional information regarding Yolo County Housing’s Continuity of Operations, refer to the 

Yolo County Housing Continuity of Operations Plan. 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
34 

Section 3.0: Organization & Assignment of  Yolo County Housing 
Responsibilities 

SECTION 3.0: ORGANIZATION AND ASSIGNMENT OF 

RESPONSIBILITIES 
For Yolo County Housing, this basic plan establishes the operational organization that is relied on to 

respond to an emergency situation. This plan includes a list of the kinds of tasks to be performed, 

by position and organization.  

Yolo County Housing uses the Standardized Emergency Management System, the National Incident 

Management System and the Incident Command System to be consistent with the National 

Response Framework concepts and to be coordinated with other jurisdictional partners within Yolo 

County.  Specific agency responsibilities are detailed in plans and annexes identified in Section 1.1.1 

of this Plan. 

3.1 SUPPORTING PLAN DEVELOPMENT 
Each element of the Emergency Management Organization is responsible for assuring the 

preparation and maintenance of appropriate response plans and current Standard Operating 

Procedures resource lists and checklists that detail how assigned responsibilities will be performed 

to support implementation of this plan and to ensure successful response during a major disaster. 

Elements to be addressed in Standard Operating Procedures are: 

• Arrangements for the provision of direction and control within the agency. 

• Specific emergency authorities that may be assumed by a designated successor during 

emergency situations. 

• Circumstances under which successor emergency authorities would become effective, and 

when they would be terminated. 

• Current internal personnel notification/recall rosters and procedures to implement them.  

This should include a 24-hour communication system with the capability to notify and call-

out personnel designated by the agency for emergency response. 

• Designation and establishment of an Emergency Operations Center to manage 

organizational resources and response personnel. 

• Designation of a representative to report to the Operational Area Emergency Operations 

Center, if requested, during an emergency to advise decision makers and coordinate the 

agency's response efforts with other responding entities. 

• Reporting of appropriate information (casualties, damage observations, evacuation status, 

shelter status, chemical exposure, etc.) to the Emergency Operations Center during an 

emergency. 

• Support of cleanup and recovery operations during disasters. 

• Training of assigned response staff to perform emergency functions. 

  



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
35 

Section 3.0: Organization & Assignment of  Yolo County Housing 
Responsibilities 

3.2 AGENCY EOC ORGANIZATION ASSIGNMENTS 
In the event of an Emergency Operations Center activation, each Agency department and selected 

allied agencies are assigned specific functions to support emergency management operations.  

These assignments may involve direct participation within the Emergency Operations Center or 

provide indirect support.  See the Responsibility Matrix, below, for Primary and Support roles for 

each Agency department or organization.  

 
Yolo County Housing Support Agencies/Jurisdictions 

 

E
xe

cu
ti

v
e 

O
ff

ic
e

 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

F
ac

il
it

y
 S

er
v

ic
es

 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

F
in

an
ce

 

Y
o

lo
 C

o
u

n
ty

 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 

P
ac

if
ic

 G
as

 &
 E

le
ct

ri
c 

Y
o

lo
 E

m
er

ge
n

cy
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s 

A
ge

n
cy

 

P
ri

v
at

e 

T
el

ec
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s 

&
 B

ro
ad

b
an

d
 

P
ro

v
id

e
rs

 
L

o
ca

l F
ir

e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 

L
o

ca
l L

aw
 

E
n

fo
rc

em
en

t 
A

ge
n

ci
es

 

Y
o

lo
 O

p
er

at
io

n
al

 A
re

a
 

ESF1 -
Transportation 

 S    P    
  

 

ESF2 -
Communications 

   S    P P    

ESF3 - Public 
Works & 
Engineering 

  P       
  

S 

ESF4 - Firefighting          P   

ESF5 - Information 
& Planning  

P   S      
  

S 

ESF6 - Mass Care  P          S 

ESF7 - Logistics    P        S 

ESF8 - Public 
Health & Medical          

  
P 

ESF9 – Search & 
Rescue 

         P P  

ESF10 - Oil & 
Hazmat 

  S       
  

P 

ESF 11 - Ag & 
Natural Resources 

  S         P 

ESF12 - Energy   S    P      

ESF13 - Public 
Safety & Security 

   S       P  

ESF14 – Long 
Term Recovery 

P   S S       S 

ESF15 - External 
Affairs 

P         
  

S 

P=Primary   S=Support 

Figure 6 - Emergency Support Function Responsibility Matrix 

  



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
36 

Section 3.0: Organization & Assignment of  Yolo County Housing 
Responsibilities 

3.2.1  CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
As defined by the Yolo County Housing Continuity of Operations Plan, the Chief Executive Officer is 

responsible for the Agency’s operations.  He/She also serves as the Emergency Operations Center 

Director.  If the Director is unavailable, the Assistant Director of Emergency Services who is 

appointed by the Director will assume the role.  

3.3 ORGANIZATION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
As described previously in Section 1.0, Yolo County Housing using the Operational Area Emergency 

Support Function Annexes (ESF) as their Lead and Supporting Agency Annexes.  The ESF’s are 

organized as follows: 

3.3.1  FEDERAL EMERGENCY SUPPORT FUNCTIONS 
The National Incident Management System identifies through its National Response Framework 

fifteen (15) Emergency Support Functions.   The ESFs provide the structure for coordinating 

Federal interagency support for a Federal response to an incident.  They are mechanisms for 

grouping functions most frequently used to provide Federal support to State and Federal-to-

Federal support, both for declared disasters and emergencies under the Stafford Act and for non-

Stafford Act incidents. 

3.3.2  CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY SUPPORT FUNCTIONS 
The State Emergency Plan establishes the California Emergency Support Functions (CA-ESF) as a 

key component of California’s system for all-hazards emergency management. The California Office 

of Emergency Services initiated the development of the California Emergency Support Functions in 

cooperation with California’s emergency management community including federal, state, tribal, 

and local governments, public/private partners and other stakeholders to ensure effective 

collaboration during all phases of emergency management. The development of the California 

Emergency Support Functions involves the organization of the participating stakeholders and 

gradual development of emergency function components. This development also includes a process 

to maintain each of the California Emergency Support Functions as a permanent component of 

California’s emergency management system.  

A comparison of Federal Emergency Support Functions and California Emergency Support 

Functions is found in Figure 7 - Federal Emergency Support Function/State Emergency Support 

Functions Comparison. 

3.3.3  YOLO COUNTY EMERGENCY SUPPORT FUNCTIONS 
The Yolo Operational Area maintains the 15 Emergency Support Function Annex Executive 

Summaries for all partners within the Joint Emergency Management Services Agreement to follow 

the federal standard.  Yolo County Housing contributes to and operates under the Operational 

Area’s Emergency Support Function Annexes for the purposes of interoperability, consistency and 

coordination between all Emergency Management and Emergency Response entities throughout 

Yolo County.  California Emergency Support Functions identified that do not have corresponding 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
37 

Section 3.0: Organization & Assignment of  Yolo County Housing 
Responsibilities 

Emergency Support Functions from the Federal government are maintained as Support Annexes 

applicable to all Yolo Operational Area partners. 

Figure 7 - Federal ESF/State ESF Comparison 

  

                                                             
3 Responsibility for ESF #9 is share between Fire and Law response operations and is dependent on the type 
of search & rescue required during the incident. 

Federal Emergency Support Function California Emergency Function 

ESF #1 Transportation CA-ESF #1 Transportation 

ESF #2 Communications CA-ESF #2 Communications 

ESF #3 Public Works and Engineering CA-ESF #3 Construction and Engineering 

ESF #4 Firefighting; ESF #9 Search & Rescue3 CA-ESF #4 Fire and Rescue 

ESF #5 Information and Planning CA-ESF #5 Management 

ESF #6 Mass Care, Emergency Assistance, 
Temporary Housing & Human Assistance 

CA-ESF #6 Care and Shelter 

ESF #7 Logistics CA-ESF #7 Resources 

ESF #8 Public Health & Medical Services CA-ESF #8 Public Health and Medical 

ESF #9 Search and Rescue CA-ESF #9 – Merged into EF# 4 & EF #13 (2013) 

ESF #10 Oil and Hazardous Materials CA-ESF #10 Hazardous Materials 

ESF #11 Agriculture & Natural Resources CA-ESF #11 Food & Agriculture 

ESF #12 Energy CA-ESF #12 Utilities 

ESF #13 Public Safety & Security; ESF #9 Search & 
Rescue3 

CA-ESF #13 Law Enforcement 

ESF #14 –Superseded by the National Disaster 
Recovery Framework 

CA-ESF #14 Recovery 

ESF #15 External Affairs CA-ESF #15 Public Information 

N/A CA-ESF #16 Evacuation – Merged into EF#13 
(2013) 

N/A CA-ESF #17 Volunteer and Donations Management 

N/A CA-ESF #18 Cybersecurity 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
38 

Section 3.0: Organization & Assignment of  Yolo County Housing 
Responsibilities 

3.4 ROLE OF PRIVATE SECTOR 

3.4.1  YOLO COUNTY HOUSING RESIDENTS  
The residents of Yolo County Housing are the primary beneficiaries of the Agency’s emergency 

management system. At the same time, residents play an important role in emergency management 

by ensuring that they and their families are prepared for disasters. Before an emergency, residents 

can assist the emergency management effort by taking first aid training, maintaining supplies and 

being prepared to evacuate or shelter in-place for several days.   

Many residents join disaster volunteer programs such as Community Emergency Response Teams 

and remain ready to volunteer or support emergency response and recovery efforts. During an 

emergency, residents should monitor emergency communications and carefully follow directions 

from authorities. By being prepared, residents can better serve their family, their community and 

reduce demands on first responders. 

3.4.2  POPULATIONS WITH ACCESS AND FUNCTIONAL NEEDS 
Populations with access and functional needs include those members of the community that may 

have additional needs before, during, and after an incident in functional areas, including but not 

limited to maintaining independence, communication, transportation, supervision, and medical 

care. 

Individuals in need of additional response assistance may include those who: 

• Have disabilities – temporary and/or lifelong; 

• Live in institutionalized settings; 

• Are elderly; 

• Are unaccompanied children; 

• Are from diverse cultures; 

• Have limited English proficiency or are non-English speaking; 

• Have sight or hearing losses (impairments); 

• Are transportation dis-advantaged; or, 

• Other situations that would require assistance. 

Lessons learned from recent emergencies concerning people with disabilities and older adults have 

shown that the existing paradigm of emergency planning, implementation and response must 

change to meet the needs of these groups during an emergency. These lessons show four areas that 

are repeatedly identified as most important to people with access and functional needs: 

• Communications and Public Information – Emergency notification systems must be 

accessible to ensure effective communication for people who speak another language, are 

deaf/hard of hearing, blind/low vision, or deaf/blind.  

• Evacuation and Transportation – Evacuation plans must incorporate disability and older 

adult transportation providers for identifying and the movement of people with mobility 

impairments and those with transportation disadvantages. 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
39 

Section 3.0: Organization & Assignment of  Yolo County Housing 
Responsibilities 

• Sheltering – Care and shelter plans must address the access and functional needs of people 

with disabilities and older adults to allow for sheltering in general population shelters. 

• Americans with Disabilities Act - When shelter facilities are activated, the State will work 

with local officials to ensure they accommodate the provisions of the Americans with 

Disabilities Act. 

3.4.3  AT-RISK INDIVIDUALS  
Another perspective is to consider the needs of people who are not in contact with traditional 

emergency service providers. These people may feel they cannot comfortably or safely access and 

use the standard resources offered in preparedness, response and recovery. These include, but are 

not limited to individuals who are: 

• Homeless. 

• Without transportation. 

• Out of hearing range of community alert sirens / systems. 

• Without radio or television to know they need to take action. 

• Without access to telephones. 

• Visiting or temporarily residing in an impacted region. 

• Not familiar with available emergency response and recovery resources. 

• Limited in their understanding of English. 

• Geographically or culturally isolated. 

3.4.4  BUSINESSES  
Much of Yolo County’s critical infrastructure is owned or maintained by businesses and must be 

protected during a response to ensure a quick and complete recovery from an emergency. These 

same businesses provide valuable resources before, during and after an emergency, as well as play 

a critical role in meeting the needs of those impacted by an emergency. 

Target Hazards: Some key industries are potential targets for terrorist attacks and must institute 

measures to prevent attacks and protect their infrastructure and the surrounding community. This 

requires businesses to coordinate with local, state, and federal governments to ensure that their 

emergency plans are integrated with government plans. 

Hazardous Materials Area Plans: Some industries are required by law or regulation to have 

emergency operations procedures to address a variety of hazards. The California Office of 

Emergency Services Hazardous Materials Program requires businesses that handle hazardous 

materials that meet certain quantity or risk thresholds must submit Business Program Plans and 

Risk Management Plans to the Yolo County Certified Unified Program Agency or Administering 

Agency. The Administering Agency can then develop Hazardous Materials Area Plans to respond to 

a release of hazardous material within Yolo County. 

Business Emergency Plans: This plan recommends that all businesses develop comprehensive 

emergency plans that include employee injury and illness prevention programs, business 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
40 

Section 3.0: Organization & Assignment of  Yolo County Housing 
Responsibilities 

resumption and continuity of operations elements. A comprehensive business emergency plan can 

assist the business and the community at-large by continuing to provide needed services. 

Business Operations Centers: This plan also promotes the use of business operations centers to 

enhance public and private coordination. Local governments can effectively coordinate with 

businesses by establishing a business operations center that is linked to their existing emergency 

operations center. 

3.4.5  VOLUNTEER ORGANIZATIONS  
Yolo County Housing recognizes the value and importance of organizations that perform voluntary 

services in their community. These organizations have resources, which can augment emergency 

response and recovery efforts.  Some examples of voluntary organizations are the following: 

• American Red Cross. 

• Local Community Emergency Response Teams. 

• Local Volunteers in Policing Program. 

• Amateur Radio Groups within Yolo County. 

• The UC Davis Veterinary Emergency Response Team. 

3.4.6  PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS  
The private sector provides valuable assistance and resources to support emergency response and 

recovery activities. The goal of the Public-Private Partnership is to advise on: 

• Appropriate agreements to provide for quick access to emergency supplies and essential 

services in order to minimize the need to stockpile such supplies during normal times. 

• Logistic measures required to quickly deliver needed supplies and services to affected 

areas. 

• Methods to utilize non-profit and private sector capabilities to increase the surge capacity of 

local agencies responding to emergencies. 

• Methods to promote the integration of the non-profit and private sectors into the 

emergency services system so that people can be better informed and prepared for 

emergencies. 

• Systems that aid business and economic recovery after an emergency. 

 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
41 

Section 4.0: Direction, Control and Coordination  Yolo County Housing 

SECTION 4.0: DIRECTION, CONTROL AND COORDINATION 

4.1 DIRECTION AND CONTROL 
Yolo County Housing is responsible for coordinating the resources, strategies and policy for any 

event involving their property or residents. Tactical control remains the responsibility of field 

Incident Commanders at all time. The Yolo County Housing CEO, working through the mechanisms 

of the EOC, provides direction and control over the coordination of multi-department and multi-

jurisdictional resources to support the field responders. Policy decisions may be made by the EOC 

Director that is staffed by the Yolo County Housing CEO or designee. 

4.2 COORDINATION 
The Yolo County Housing EOC will coordinate resource requests from their properties. If requests 

exceed the supply, the EOC will request resources based on established priorities. 

If resources are not available within Yolo County Housing, requests will be made to the respective 

EOC in which the incident is occurring such as in the City of Davis or Woodland or to the Yolo 

Operational Area EOC. The Yolo OA EOC will coordinate resources obtained from within the OA.  If 

resources are not available in the OA, they will request them from the Inland Region REOC located 

in Sacramento, CA. The REOC will coordinate resources obtained from the OAs throughout the 

region.  If resources are not available in the region, they will make a request from the State 

Operations Center (SOC) located in Mather, CA.  If the State cannot supply the resource, they will 

request from FEMA and other federal agencies. 

4.3 STANDARDIZED EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
The Standardized Emergency Management System is the cornerstone of California’s emergency 

response system and the fundamental structure for the response phase of emergency management. 

The Standardized Emergency Management System is required by the California Emergency Services 

Act for managing multiagency and multijurisdictional responses to emergencies in California. The 

system unifies all elements of California’s emergency management community into a single 

integrated system and standardizes key elements. The Standardized Emergency Management 

System incorporates the use of the Incident Command System, California Disaster and Civil Defense 

Master Mutual Aid Agreement, the Operational Area concept and multiagency or inter-agency 

coordination.  State agencies are required to use the Standardized Emergency Management System 

and local government entities must use the Standardized Emergency Management System in order 

to be eligible for any reimbursement of response-related costs under the state’s disaster assistance 

programs. 

4.3.1  STANDARDIZED EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM ORGANIZATION LEVELS  
There are five Standardized Emergency Management System organizational levels, as illustrated in 
Figure 8 - Standardized Emergency Management System Organization Levels. 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
42 

Section 4.0: Direction, Control and Coordination  Yolo County Housing 

State – The State Level of the Standardized Emergency Management 
System prioritizes tasks and coordinates state resources in response 
to the requests from the Regional Level and coordinates mutual aid 
among the mutual aid regions and between the Regional Level and 
State Level. The State Level also serves as the coordination and 
communication link between the state and the federal emergency 
response system. The State Level requests assistance from other 
state governments through the Emergency Management Assistance 
Compact and similar interstate compacts/agreements and 
coordinates with the Federal Emergency Management Agency when 
federal assistance is requested. The State Level operates out of the 
State Operations Center. 
 
At the Federal Level, the National Response Framework identifies 
the methods and means for federal resources to provide support to 
the state and local government.  Federal resources would be 
accessed via the Standardized Emergency Management System 
process through the mutual aid region and State Operations Center. 

 
Figure 8 - Standardized 

Emergency Management 
System Organization Levels 

 

Region – The Regional Level manages and coordinates information and resources among 

Operational Areas within the mutual aid region and also between the Operational Area and the 

State Level. The Regional Level also coordinates overall state agency support for emergency 

response activities within the region. California is divided into three Administrative Regions – 

Inland, Coastal and Southern – which are further divided into six mutual aid regions. The Regional 

Level operates out of the Regional Emergency Operations Center.  See Figure 11 – California 

Mutual Aid Regions. 

Operational Area – An Operational Area is the intermediate level of the state's emergency 

management organization, which encompasses a county’s boundaries, and all political subdivisions 

located within that county, including special districts. The Operational Area facilitates and/or 

coordinates information, resources and decisions regarding priorities among local governments 

within the Operational Area.  The Operational Area serves as the coordination and communication 

link between the Local Government Level and Regional Level. State, federal and tribal jurisdictions 

in the Operational Area may have statutory authorities for response similar to that at the local level. 

Local Government (Yolo County Housing) – The Local Government Level includes cities, counties 

and special districts. Local governments manage and coordinate the overall emergency response 

and recovery activities within their jurisdiction. Local governments are required to use the 

Standardized Emergency Management System when their Emergency Operations Center is 

activated or a local emergency is declared or proclaimed in order to be eligible for state 

reimbursement of response-related costs. 

Field – The Field Level is where emergency response personnel and resources, under the command 

of responsible officials, carry out tactical decisions and activities in direct response to an incident or 

threat. 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
43 

Section 4.0: Direction, Control and Coordination  Yolo County Housing 

4.3.2  STANDARDIZED EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM FUNCTIONS  
Standardized Emergency Management System requires that every emergency response involving 

multiple jurisdictions or multiple agencies include the five functions identified in Figure 9 - 

Standardized Emergency Management System Functions. These functions must be applied at 

each level of the Standardized Emergency Management System organization. 

 

Figure 9 – Standardized Emergency Management System Functions 

 

Command/Management: Command is responsible for the directing, ordering, and/or controlling 

of resources at the field response level. Management is responsible for overall emergency policy 

and coordination at the Standardized Emergency Management System Emergency Operations 

Center levels. Command and Management are further discussed below: 

• Command: A key concept in all emergency planning is to establish command and tactical 

control at the lowest level that can perform that role effectively in the organization. In the 

Incident Command System the Incident Commander, with appropriate policy direction and 

authority from the responding agency, sets the objectives to be accomplished and approves 

the strategy and tactics to be used to meet those objectives. The Incident Commander must 

respond to higher authority. Depending upon the incident’s size and scope, the higher 

authority could be the next ranking level in the organization up to the agency or department 

executive. This relationship provides an operational link with policy executives who 

customarily reside in the Department Operations Center or the Emergency Operations 

Center, when activated. 

• Management: The Emergency Operations Center serves as a central location from which 

multiple agencies or organizations coordinate information collection and evaluation, 

priority setting and resource management. Within the Emergency Operations Center, the 

Management function: 

o Facilitates multiagency coordination and executive decision making in support of 

the incident response 

o Implements the policies established by the governing bodies 

o Facilitates the activities of the Multiagency Coordination Group 

Command/

Management

Operations
Planning/ 

Intelligence
Logistics

Finance/ 
Administration



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
44 

Section 4.0: Direction, Control and Coordination  Yolo County Housing 

Operations: Responsible for coordinating and supporting all jurisdictional operations supporting 

the response to the emergency through implementation of the organizational level's Action Plans. 

At the Field Level, the Operations Section is responsible for the coordinated tactical response 

directly applicable to, or in support of the objectives in accordance with the Incident Action Plan.  In 

the Emergency Operations Center, the Operations Section Coordinator/Chief manages functional 

coordinators who share information and decisions about discipline-specific operations. 

Logistics: Responsible for providing facilities, services, personnel, equipment and materials in 

support of the emergency. Unified ordering takes place through the Logistics Section Ordering 

Managers to ensure controls and accountability over resource requests. As needed, Unit 

Coordinators are appointed to address the needs for communications, food, medical, supplies, 

facilities and ground support. 

Planning/Intelligence: Responsible for the collection, evaluation and dissemination of operational 

information related to the incident for the preparation and documentation of the Incident Action 

Plan at the Field Level or the Action Plan at an Emergency Operations Center. Planning/Intelligence 

also maintains information on the current and forecasted situation and on the status of resources 

assigned to the emergency or the Emergency Operations Center. As needed, Unit Coordinators are 

appointed to collect and analyze data, prepare situation reports, develop action plans, set 

Geographic Information Systems priorities, compile and maintain documentation, conduct advance 

planning, manage technical specialists and coordinate demobilization. 

Finance/Administration: Responsible for all financial and cost analysis aspects of the emergency 

and for any administrative aspects not handled by the other functions. As needed, Unit Leaders are 

appointed to record time for incident or Emergency Operations Center personnel and hired 

equipment, coordinate procurement activities, process claims and track costs. 

The field and Emergency Operations Center functions are further illustrated in Figure 10 - 
Comparison of Field and Emergency Operations Center Standardized Emergency Management 
System Functions.  

  



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
45 

Section 4.0: Direction, Control and Coordination  Yolo County Housing 

Primary SEMS Function Field Level EOCs 

Command/ 

Management 

Command is responsible for 
directing, ordering, and/or 
controlling of resources. 

Management is responsible for 
facilitation of overall policy, 
coordination and support of the 
incident. 

Operations 

The coordinated tactical 
response of all field 
operations in accordance 
with the Incident Action Plan. 

The coordination of all jurisdictional 
operations in support of the response 
to the emergency in accordance with 
the Emergency Operations Center 
Action Plan. 

Planning/Intelligence 

The collection, evaluation, 
documentation and use of 
intelligence related to the 
incident. 

Collecting, evaluating and 
disseminating information and 
maintaining documentation relative to 
all jurisdiction activities. 

Logistics 

Providing facilities, services, 
personnel, equipment and 
materials in support of the 
incident. 

Providing facilities, services, personnel, 
equipment and materials in support of 
all jurisdiction activities as required. 

Finance/ 

Administration 

Financial and cost analysis 
and administrative aspects 
not handled by the other 
functions. 

Responsible for coordinating and 
supporting administrative and fiscal 
consideration surrounding an 
emergency incident. 

Figure 10 - Comparison of Field and EOC SEMS Functions 

4.4  NATIONAL INCIDENT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
The terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001, illustrated the need for all levels of government, the 

private sector, and nongovernmental agencies to prepare for, protect against, respond to, and 

recover from a wide spectrum of events that exceed the capabilities of any single entity.  These 

events require a unified and coordinated national approach to planning and to domestic incident 

management.  To address this need, the President signed a series of Homeland Security Presidential 

Directives (HSPDs) that were intended to develop a common approach to preparedness and 

response.  Two Policy Directives that are of particular importance to emergency planners: 

 
• HSPD-5, Management of Domestic Incidents: identifies steps for improved coordination in 

response to incidents.  It requires the Department of Homeland Security to coordinate with 

other federal departments and/or agencies and state, local, and tribal governments to 

establish a National Response Framework and a National Incident Management System.  

• PPD-8, National Preparedness: describes the way federal departments and agencies will 

prepare.  It requires DHS to coordinate with other federal departments and agencies—and 

with state, local, and tribal governments to develop a National Preparedness Goal. 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
46 

Section 4.0: Direction, Control and Coordination  Yolo County Housing 

Together, the National Incident Management System, National Response Framework, and the 

National Preparedness Goal define what needs to be done to prevent, protect against, respond to, 

and recover from a major event; and how well it needs to be done.  These efforts align federal, state, 

local, and tribal entities; the private sector; and nongovernmental agencies to provide an effective 

and efficient national structure for preparedness, incident management, and emergency response. 

The National Incident Management System structure provides a consistent framework for incident 

management at all jurisdictional levels, regardless of the cause, size, or complexity of the incident.  

Building on the Incident Command System and the National Incident Management System provides 

the nation’s first responders and authorities with the same foundation for incident management for 

terrorist attacks, natural disasters, and all other emergencies. The National Incident Management 

System structure requires the institutionalization of the Incident Command System and its use to 

manage all domestic incidents.   

The National Incident Management System structure integrates existing best practices into a 

consistent, nationwide approach to domestic incident management that is applicable at all 

jurisdictional levels and across functional disciplines.  Six major components make up the National 

Incident Management System system’s approach:   

• Command and Management. 

• Preparedness. 

• Resource Management. 

• Communications and Information Management. 

• Supporting Technologies. 

• Ongoing Management and Maintenance. 

4.5  MUTUAL AID 
California's emergency assistance is based on a statewide mutual aid system designed to ensure 

that additional resources are provided to the state’s political subdivisions whenever their own 

resources are overwhelmed or inadequate.  The basis for this system is the California Disaster and 

Civil Defense Master Mutual Aid Agreement, which is entered into by and between the State of 

California, its various departments and agencies and the various political subdivisions, municipal 

corporations and public agencies to assist each other by providing resources during an emergency.  

The agreement obligates each signatory entity to provide aid to each other during an emergency 

without expectation of reimbursement. Under specific conditions, federal and state monies may be 

appropriated to reimburse public agencies that aid other jurisdictions.  If other agreements, 

memoranda and contracts are used to provide assistance for consideration, the terms of those 

documents may affect disaster assistance eligibility and local entities may only be reimbursed if 

funds are available.  This plan promotes the establishment of emergency assistance agreements 

between public and private sector agencies at all levels. 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
47 

Section 4.0: Direction, Control and Coordination  Yolo County Housing 

There are four approved, formal Mutual Aid 
Systems in California.  Those systems are: 
 

• Fire and Rescue. 
• Law Enforcement. 
• Coroner. 
• Emergency Management (resources not 

covered by the other three systems). 
 
Other informal mutual aid involves, but is not 
limited to the interchange of: 

 
• Public Information. 
• Medical and Health. 
• Communications. 
• Transportation Services. 
• Facilities. 
• Hazardous Materials Mutual Aid System. 
• Volunteer and Private agencies. 

 

 
 

Figure 11 – California Mutual Aid Regions 

 
California is divided into six mutual aid regions, which are subdivisions of the state emergency 

services organization established to facilitate the coordination of mutual aid and other emergency 

operations within an area of the State consisting of two or more Operational Areas.  A map of the 

Regions is shown in Figure 11 – California Mutual Aid Regions.  Yolo County Housing properties 

are located in Mutual Aid Regions II and IV. 

4.5.1  MUTUAL AID COORDINATION 
Formal mutual aid requests will follow specified procedures and are processed through pre-

identified mutual aid coordinators. Mutual aid requests will follow discipline-specific chains (i.e. 

fire, law enforcement, emergency manager, etc.) from one level of government to the next. The 

mutual aid coordinator receives the mutual aid request and coordinates the provision of resources 

from within the coordinator's geographic area of responsibility. In the event resources are 

unavailable at one level of government, the request is forwarded to the next higher level of 

government to be filled. 

Field Level Requests: Requests for Master Mutual Aid Agreement resources originate from the 

Field Level and are managed by the Incident Commander. If the Incident Commander is unable to 

obtain the resource through existing local channels, the request is elevated to the next successive 

government level until obtained or cancelled. 

Local Government Request: Local jurisdictions are responsible for the protection of life and 

property within the municipal geographic boundaries. The local jurisdiction where the incident 

occurred should assess its resource inventory and existing local agreements to determine if the 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
48 

Section 4.0: Direction, Control and Coordination  Yolo County Housing 

requested resource is available. When locally committed resources are exhausted and mutual aid is 

needed, the local official will request assistance from the Operational Area Mutual Aid Coordinator. 

Operational Area Requests: The Operational Area is a composite of its political subdivisions, (i.e. 

municipalities, contract cities, special districts and county agencies). The Operational Area Mutual 

Aid Coordinator assesses the availability of resources within the Operational Area and fulfills the 

resource request based upon that assessment. In the event resources are unavailable at the 

Operational Area level, the request is forwarded to the responsible Region Mutual Aid Coordinator 

to be filled. 

Region Level Requests: The state is geographically divided into six Mutual Aid Regions. For Law 

Enforcement Mutual Aid, Region I is divided into two sub-regions. Each Mutual Aid Region is 

comprised of multiple Operational Areas and has a Regional Mutual Aid Coordinator. The Region 

Mutual Aid Coordinator is granted the authority to coordinate the mutual aid response of 

discipline-specific resources within the Region to support a mutual aid request by a jurisdiction 

also within the Region. In the event resources are unavailable at the Region Level, the request is 

forwarded to the State Mutual Aid Coordinator to be filled. 

State Level Requests: On behalf of the Governor, the Director of the California Office of Emergency 

Services has the responsibility for coordination of state mutual aid resources in support of local 

jurisdictions during times of emergency. The Director will analyze and coordinate the request by 

forwarding the request to an unaffected Regional Emergency Operations Center or tasking an 

appropriate state agency to fill the need.   

 

Figure 11 - Flow of Requests and Resources 

 

For additional information regarding the City of West Sacramento Emergency Operations Center 

Functions, refer to the Yolo County Housing EOC Support Annex. 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
49 

Section 5.0: Information Collection, Analysis  Yolo County Housing 
And Dissemination 

SECTION 5.0: INFORMATION COLLECTION AND DISSEMINATION 

5.1 ACTION PLANNING 
The use of Action Plans in the Yolo County Housing Emergency Operations Center provides a clear 

and measurable process for identifying objectives and priorities for a given event.  Action Planning 

is an important management tool that involves: 

• Process for identifying priorities and objectives for emergency response or recovery efforts. 

• Plans which document the priorities and objectives, and the tasks and personnel 

assignments associated with meeting the objectives. 

The Action Planning process should involve the Emergency Operations Center Director and Section 

Chiefs (one from each Section), along with other Emergency Operations Center staff, as needed, 

such as agency representatives.   

5.1.1 PLANNING REQUIREMENTS  
The initial Emergency Operations Center Action Plan may be a verbal plan that is developed during 

the first hour or two following Emergency Operations Center activation. A verbal plan may also be 

utilized for incidents involving a limited scope, short duration (less than 12 hours) and/or a limited 

number of response personnel. An Emergency Operations Center Action Plan shall be developed 

whenever the Emergency Operations Center is activated, either partially or fully.  A written 

Emergency Operations Center Action Plan is required whenever:  

• Two or more agencies are involved in the response. 

• The incident overlaps more than one operational period.  

• All Emergency Operations Center functions are fully staffed. 

The Emergency Operations Center Action Plan addresses a specific operational period, which may 

vary in length from a few hours to days depending on the circumstances. The plan should be 

regularly reviewed and evaluated throughout the operational period, and revised or updated as 

warranted.  

5.2 EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER REPORTING 
Information may be sent to Yolo County Housing departments, Emergency Operations Center 

personnel, the Yolo Operational Area and other key agencies using the Agency’s Emergency 

Operations Center reporting system, radio, telephone, email, internet or fax. Regardless of the 

method of communication, all data should be verified prior to transmission.  If unverified data must 

be transmitted, it should be clearly designated as unconfirmed information.  The Yolo County 

Housing Emergency Operations Center will transmit reports identified in the Yolo County Housing 

EOC Support Annex  to Agency departments and the Yolo Operational Area Emergency Operations 

Center, if activated.  



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
50 

Section 5.0: Information Collection, Analysis  Yolo County Housing 
And Dissemination 

  



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
51 

Section 5.0: Information Collection, Analysis  Yolo County Housing 
And Dissemination 

5.3 EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER REPORTING SYSTEMS 
The Yolo Operational Area uses a number of different systems that are currently in use for 

reporting specific types of response information.  These include: 

• The California Common Operating Picture 

• Google Docs 

• Dropbox 

• ESRI (Survey123, ArcGIS Online, etc.)  

Yolo County Housing will use the Yolo OA developed EOC forms to report information to Yolo 

County in addition to utilizing the systems/applications named above.   

5.4 EMERGENCY PUBLIC INFORMATION 
Emergency Public Information is a priority of utmost importance during emergencies and disasters.  
Local governments have a primary responsibility to provide accurate and timely information to the 
public regarding conditions, threats, and protective measures.  To avoid conflicts and confusion, the 
Emergency Public Information function operates best when centralized and coordinated among all 
involved jurisdictions, agencies and organizations. 

For additional information regarding Yolo County Housing Emergency Public Information, refer to 
the Yolo Operational Area External Affairs, Emergency Support Function Annex. 

 

 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
52 

Section 6.0: Communications  Yolo County Housing 

SECTION 6.0: COMMUNICATIONS 

Communication is a critical part of emergency management. This section outlines the Agency’s 
communications plan and supports its mission to provide clear, effective internal and external 
communication between the Agency’s EOC, the City EOC’s, all incident response personnel, and the 
public.  

Communication will be coordinated between the Agency’s EOC and the OA EOC and all responding 
supporting agencies through various forms of communications devices, channels and methods. If 
the Agency’s EOC is activated, all incident related information, updates, resource requests, etc. 
should be shared through methods chosen to communicate.  

6.1 COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS 

Yolo County Housing will use personnel specific email addresses while working in the Agency’s 
EOC.  The internet connectivity in the EOC is both LAN and through wifi, which is available for 
incoming non-Yolo County Housing partners.  Telephone connectivity in the EOC is through VOIP 
lines, in addition to the use of cellular phones.  

6.2 INTERNAL COMMUNICATIONS 
All communications should be a two-way flow from the Agency’s EOC Section Leadership to support 
staff and field responders, and vice versa. When communicating, all incident response personnel 
should use plain language to avoid any confusion (no acronyms or abbreviations). All incident 
related information should be communicated and displayed in the EOC for everyone to see. This 
multi-faceted approach for communication provides quick, reliable, and consistent information to 
all incident response personnel while ensuring that the appropriate information reaches all 
intended recipients.  

Information will be communicated from the field to City EOC’s and the Housing EOC simultaneously 
(in some cases) then to the OA EOC. The Policy Group in the Housing EOC will make priority 
decisions and provide guidance and direction to the Housing EOC General Staff, who will coordinate 
the management of the incident per the direction of the Policy Group. The EOC serves as the hub of 
information for the incident, and will communicate necessary information and response actions to 
the field.  

6.3 NOTIFICATION AND WARNING  
In addition to an effective communications capability, government must have an effective means to 
provide warning alerts to the population impacted or at risk as the result of an emergency. There 
are two alert and warning systems designed to provide residents with emergency warning 
information. These systems are the Integrated Public Alert & Warning System (iPAWS) and the 
Yolo-Alert System. Police and Fire may be required to disseminate emergency warnings to the 
public who cannot be reached by primary warning systems.  

6.4 NON-EMERGENCY EXTERNAL COMMUNICATIONS  
During an incident, the EOC expects that a high volume of calls for the public seeking incident 
related information will be placed to 9-1-1 and the EOC or Housing main line. Yolo County Housing 
will place information on its website, utilize social media and work with 2-1-1 to provide an outlet 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
53 

Section 6.0: Communications  Yolo County Housing 

of information to the public in an effort to relieve call influx to 9-1-1 systems. 2-1-1 personnel can 
provide incident related information to the inquiring public that is provided by Yolo County 
Housing’s Public Information Officer.  It is essential that 2-1-1 call centers are activated and staffed 
as soon as possible to handle anticipated volume of non-emergency calls related to the incident.  

For additional information regarding Yolo County Housing’s Warning methods, refer to the Yolo 

Operational Area Alert & Warning Support Annex. 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
54 

Section 7.0: Administration, Finance  Yolo County Housing 
and Logistics 

SECTION 7.0: ADMINISTRATION, FINANCE AND LOGISTICS   

7.1 DOCUMENTATION  
The Emergency Operations Center Finance/Administration Section will be responsible for 

maintaining records on damage assessment expenditure, recovery cost expenditures, insurance 

related documents, personnel overtime, and other costs associated with the emergency. Guidance is 

provided in their position guides at the Emergency Operations Center. 

The Emergency Operations Center Planning Section will maintain copies of documents that are 

integral to Emergency Operations Center functions, (such as Emergency Operations Center Action 

Plans, Situation Status logs, position log) that together make up the history and chronology of the 

emergency events. Guidance is provided in their Planning Section’s position guides at the 

Emergency Operations Center. 

7.2 FINANCE  
In the case of a major disaster, the Emergency Operations Center will support county, state and 

federal entities with cost recovery efforts, if requested and as able. Yolo County Housing citizens 

may benefit from the Small Business Administration, and the agency may benefit from the State and 

or the Federal Emergency Management Agency Public Assistance Program.  The Agency may assist 

the citizenry with public service announcement regarding support available as unemployment 

benefits, worker’s compensation, and insurance benefits. 

7.3 EXPENDITURE TRACKING  
The Agency may be reimbursed from insurance, state and/or federal sources for disaster-related 

expenses. The purpose of this section is to provide guidance on the record keeping requirements 

for claiming such expenses.  

7.3.1  ELIGIBLE EXPENSES  
Eligible costs are extraordinary costs incurred while providing emergency services required by the 

direct impact of a declared disaster and which service is the responsibility of the applicant agency. 

Eligible costs are generally considered to be the net costs over and above any increased revenue or 

subsidy for the emergency service. Ineligible expenses include costs for standby personnel and/or 

equipment and lost revenue.  

7.3.2  RECORDKEEPING REQUIREMENTS 
State and federal governments require detailed information to support claims for reimbursement. 

Funding will be approved or denied based upon the information supplied by applicant agencies. 

Documentation supporting all costs claimed will be required, and all information must relate back 

to individual original source records.  The following guidelines should be followed when 

documenting disaster-related reimbursable expenses:  

• Costs and revenues associated with emergency operations should be segregated from 

normal operating expenses.  



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
55 

Section 7.0: Administration, Finance  Yolo County Housing 
and Logistics 

• Separate records should be maintained for each vehicle and piece of heavy equipment used 

for emergency operations.  

• Vehicle and equipment documentation should include the miles and/or hours operated by 

location and operator.  

• Vehicle operating expenses should include fuel, tires, and maintenance.  

• Labor costs should be compiled separate from vehicle and/or equipment expenses.  

• Equipment documentation should include exactly where the equipment was used and for 

what; hours and minutes used; and the name of the equipment operator if applicable.  

• Revenues and subsidies for emergency operations must be subtracted from any costs 

claimed.  

• Requisitions, purchase orders, and invoices must be maintained for all supplies, materials 

and equipment expenses claimed.  

• Costs for supplies and materials must include documentation of exactly where resources 

were used and for what purpose.  

• All non-competitive procurements must be justified.  

Expenditure tracking should commence upon notice or obvious occurrence of disasters that require 

expense of labor, equipment use, materials, and other expenses. The Incident Commander(s), 

Emergency Operations Center Director, and Emergency Operations Center staff are responsible for 

maintaining written records of all disaster-related personnel overtime, requests for supplies, 

equipment and contract personnel, and receipts for emergency purchases of supplies, equipment 

and other disaster-related expenses.  The Agency may activate a special coding for emergency 

expenditure tracking which is used for both labor and equipment. 

The Finance/Administration Section will compile reports, including total expenditures by category. 

The Finance/Administration Section Chief will submit a summary report on total costs to the 

Emergency Operations Center Director as requested. This information will be used for state and 

federal disaster assistance applications. The expenditure data and documentation is vital to state 

and federal agencies for requesting financial assistance during and after the disaster.   

7.4 RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 

7.4.1  RESOURCE PRIORITIES 
When activated, the Yolo County Housing Emergency Operations Center establishes priorities for 

resource allocation during the emergency. All Agency resources are considered part of a pool, 

which may be allocated by the Emergency Operations Center to fulfill priority missions. Each 

department retains control of its non-assigned resources until released for an emergency 

assignment by the Emergency Operations Center. 

  



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
56 

Section 7.0: Administration, Finance  Yolo County Housing 
and Logistics 

7.4.2  RESOURCE REQUESTS 
Resource Requests will be made through one of the following processes: 

• Discipline-specific (usually Fire and Law) mutual aid systems:  Requests for resources that 

are normally within the inventories of the mutual aid system will go from local coordinator 

to Operational Area Mutual Aid Coordinator to the Regional Mutual Aid Coordinator. 

• All other resource requests will be made through the logistics function at each level. 

Resource requests from jurisdictions within the Agency will be coordinated with the Yolo 

Operational Area Emergency Operations Center to determine if the resource is available internally 

or other more appropriate sources located within the Operational Area. Emergency Management 

Mutual Aid Coordinators at each level will keep the Operations Chief informed of the status of 

resource requests and allocations.  Coordinators at each level will communicate and coordinate 

with each other to maintain current status on resource requests and allocations within the disaster 

area. 

Resource requests from the Yolo County Housing Emergency Operations Center to the Yolo 

Operational Area Emergency Operations Center may be verbally requested and then documented.  

Available resources will be allocated to the requesting local government.  If requests for a specific 

resource exceed the supply, the available resources will be allocated consistent with the priorities 

established through the action planning process.  The Section Chiefs in the Emergency Operations 

Center are responsible for ensuring that priorities are followed. 

Resource requests for equipment, personnel or technical assistance not available to the Agency 

should be coordinated with the Yolo Operational Area Emergency Operations Center to the Inland 

Regional Emergency Operations Center.  Once the request is coordinated, approved and resources 

deployed, Planning, in coordination with various Operations Branches, is responsible for tracking 

the resources. 

7.5 YOLO COUNTY HOUSING EMERGENCY OPERATIONS POLICY STATEMENT  
Limitations: Due to the nature of emergency response, the outcome is not easy to predict. 

Therefore, it should be recognized that this plan is meant to serve as a guideline and that the 

outcome of the response may be limited by the scope, magnitude and duration of the event. 

Suspension of Routine Activities and Availability of Employees: Day-to-day functions that do 

not contribute directly to the disaster operation may be suspended for the duration of an 

emergency. Efforts normally required for routine activities may be redirected to accomplish 

emergency tasks. During an emergency response, Agency employees not otherwise assigned 

emergency/disaster related duties will, unless otherwise restricted, be made available to augment 

the work of their department, or other Agency departments, if required. 

Households of Emergency Response Personnel: Agency employees may not be at peak efficiency 

or effectiveness during a disaster if the status of their households are unknown or in doubt. 

Employees who are assigned disaster response duties are encouraged to make arrangements with 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
57 

Section 7.0: Administration, Finance  Yolo County Housing 
and Logistics 

other employees, friends, neighbors or relatives to check on their immediate families in the event of 

a disaster and to communicate that information to the employee through the Yolo County Housing 

Emergency Operations Center. 

Non-Discrimination: All local activities will be carried out in accordance with federal 

nondiscrimination laws. It is the Agency’s policy that no service will be denied on the basis of race, 

religion, national origin, age, sex, marital status, veteran status, sexual orientation or the presence 

of any sensory, mental or physical disability. 

Citizen Preparedness: This plan does not substitute government services for individual 

responsibility. Citizens are expected to be aware of developing events and take appropriate steps to 

respond in a safe and timely manner. Since the Agency’s resources and personnel may be 

overwhelmed at the onset of a disaster event, individuals and organizations should be prepared to 

be self-sufficient following a disaster. The Agency will make every effort to provide information to 

the public, via the media and other sources to assist citizens in dealing with the emergency. 

7.6 DISASTER SERVICE WORKERS  
Under California Government Code, Section 3100-3109, all public employees are obligated to serve 

as Disaster Service Workers.  Public employees (civil service) are all persons employed by any 

county, city, state agency or public district in the State of California.  Disaster Service Workers 

provide services and support during declared emergencies or disasters. 

In the event of a major emergency or disaster, Yolo County Housing employees may be called upon 

to perform certain duties in support of emergency management operations, such as:  serve in a 

position in the Emergency Operations Center, support shelter operations, or work at a logistics base 

in the field.   

• Agency employees may be required to work at any time during a declared emergency and 

may be assigned to disaster service work.  

• Assignments may require service at locations, times and under conditions other than 

normal work assignments.  

• Assignments may include duties within the Emergency Operations Center, in the field or at 

another designated location.  

Under no circumstances will Agency employees that do not usually have a response role in their 

day to day responsibilities be asked to perform duties or functions that are hazardous, that they 

have not been trained to perform or that are beyond their recognized capabilities. 

 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
58 

Section 8.0: Preparedness, Training, Exercises  Yolo County Housing 
and After Action Reporting 

SECTION 8.0: PREPAREDNESS, TRAINING, EXERCISES AND AFTER 

ACTION REPORTING 

8.1 PREPAREDNESS PLANNING 
Yolo County Housing conducts a wide array of emergency planning activities.  Planning efforts 

include development of internal operational documents as well as interagency response plans 

having multi-jurisdictional participation. 

In addition to the planning activities conducted, Agency departments develop internal 

preparedness and contingency plans to ensure provision of government services and maintenance 

of departmental functions during disasters. 

Emergency readiness cannot be conducted within a vacuum.  The Agency is responsible for working 

with all Agency departments, special districts and allied agencies that are considered a component 

of the Yolo County Housing Emergency Management Organization.  Such coordination extends to 

the following activities: 

• Interagency plan development. 

• Interagency training coordination. 

• Interagency exercise development and presentation. 

• Interagency response management. 

• Interagency emergency public information activities. 

8.1.1  COMMUNITY PREPAREDNESS AND AWARENESS 
The public's response to any emergency is based on an understanding of the nature of the 

emergency, the potential hazards, the likely response of emergency services, and knowledge of 

what individuals and groups should do to increase their chances of survival and recovery.   

Public awareness and education prior to an emergency or disaster will directly affect the Agency’s 

emergency operations and recovery efforts.  For this reason, Yolo County Housing will make 

emergency preparedness information from City, County, state and federal sources available to the 

member jurisdictions and our citizens upon request. 

8.1.2  PREPAREDNESS ACTIONS 
In identifying general preparedness actions, government works with community based 

organizations, faith-based organizations, other local governments/special districts, private 

industry, preparedness groups, and other entities to provide information relating to individual and 

group preparedness.   

Government is limited in its ability to provide endless services and support during times of disaster, 

so public preparedness is essential for ensuring individual and organizational safety and protection.   



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
59 

Section 8.0: Preparedness, Training, Exercises  Yolo County Housing 
and After Action Reporting 

8.2 READINESS TRAINING 
Yolo County Housing will notify holders of this plan of training opportunities associated with 

emergency management and operations.  Individual departments within Yolo County Housing are 

responsible for maintaining training records. Jurisdictions and agencies having assigned functions 

under this plan are encouraged to ensure that assigned personnel are properly trained to carry out 

these tasks. 

The Yolo Office of Emergency Services develops and executes a comprehensive training program 

for emergency management topics on an annual basis.  The established training schedule will 

include applicable courses of instruction and education that cover management subjects. Such 

instruction shall meet or exceed the Standardized Emergency Management System and The 

National Incident Management System training requirements. 

8.3 EXERCISE AND EVALUATION 
Elements of this plan will be exercised regularly.  The Yolo Office of Emergency Services will 

conduct emergency preparedness exercises, in accordance with its annual exercise schedule, 

following appropriate state and federal guidance. Deficiencies identified during scheduled exercise 

activities will result in the development of corrective action plans to initiate appropriate 

corrections. 

The planning development and execution of all emergency exercises will involve close coordination 

between all Agency departments, allied agencies, special districts, and supporting community and 

public service organizations.   

The primary focus will be to establish a framework for inter-organizational exercise collaboration 

in coordination with all-hazard response and recovery planning and training activities, conducted 

on Yolo County Housing properties. 

Emergency exercise activity will be scheduled as to follow state and federal guidance and program 

requirements.  Exercise activity will follow the Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program 

guidance and may be designed as one or more of the following exercise types: 

• Drills. 

• Seminars (Workshops). 

• Table Top Exercises. 

• Functional Exercises. 

• Full Scale Exercises. 

8.4 AFTER ACTION REPORTING 
The Standardized Emergency Management System and National Incident Management System 

protocols require any city, city and county, or county declaring a local emergency for which the 

Governor proclaims a State of Emergency, to complete and transmit an After-Action Report to Yolo 

County and California Office of Emergency Services within ninety (90) days of the close of the 

incident period.  The After Action Report will provide, at a minimum, the following: 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
60 

Section 8.0: Preparedness, Training, Exercises  Yolo County Housing 
and After Action Reporting 

• Response actions taken. 

• Application of the Standardized Emergency Management System. 

• Suggested modifications to the Standardized Emergency Management System. 

• Necessary modifications to plans and procedures. 

• Training needs. 

• Recovery activities to date. 

The After Action Report will serve as a source for documenting Yolo County Housing’s emergency 

response activities and identifying areas of concern and successes.  It will also be utilized to develop 

a work plan for implementing improvements. 

An After Action Report will be a composite document for all the Standardized Emergency 

Management System levels, providing a broad perspective of the incident, referencing more 

detailed documents, and addressing all areas specified in regulations.  The After Action Report will 

include an overview of the incident, including attachments, and will also address specific areas of 

the response, if necessary.  It will be coordinated with, but not encompass, hazard mitigation.  

Hazard mitigation efforts may be included in the “recovery activities to date” portion of the After 

Action Report. 

The Yolo Office of Emergency Services is responsible for the completion and distribution of the 

After Action Report to county leadership, department directors, allied agencies as well as ensuring 

that it is sent to the California Office of Emergency Services within the required ninety (90) day 

timeframe. 

The After Action Report will be written in simple language, well structured, brief and well 

presented, and geared to the public.  Data for the After Action Report will be collected from debrief 

reports, other documents developed during the disaster response, and discussions with emergency 

responders.  The most up-to-date form, with instructions, can be obtained from the California Office 

of Emergency Services. 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
61 

Section 9.0: Plan Development & Maintenance  Yolo County Housing 

SECTION 9.0: PLAN DEVELOPMENT AND MAINTENANCE 
This section of the Yolo County Housing EOP discusses the overall approach plan development and 

maintenance responsibilities.  

9.1 PLAN DEVELOPMENT AND MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITY 
This plan is developed under the authority conveyed in accordance with the Agency’s Emergency 

Organization who has the primary responsibility for ensuring that necessary changes and revisions 

to this plan are prepared, coordinated, published, and distributed.  The Agency used the planning 

process prescribed by the Federal Emergency Management Agency and the State of California.  This 

Basic Plan, Annexes, Appendices and Attachments are reviewed and updated on a regular basis.  

The review and updates are coordinated with all Cities where Yolo County Housing properties exist 

and Yolo County.   

9.2 REVIEW AND UPDATING 
This plan and its supporting documents will be reviewed annually, with a full document update 

conducted minimally every two (2) years.  Changes to the plan will be published and distributed to 

all involved departments and organizations.  Recommended changes will be received by Yolo 

County Housing, reviewed and distributed for comment on a regular basis.   

Elements of this plan may also be modified by Yolo County Housing any time state or federal 

mandates, operational requirements, or legal statute so require.  Once distributed, new editions to 

this plan shall supplant older versions and render them inoperable. These documents are included 

in the regular cycle of training, evaluating, reviewing, and updating as discussed in Section 9.2. 

 

 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
62 

Appendix YCH-1: Authorities and References  Yolo County Housing 

APPENDIX YCH-1: AUTHORITIES AND REFERENCES 

AUTHORITIES 

FEDERAL 
• Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act of 1988, 42 U.S.C. 5121, et 

seq., as amended 

• Homeland Security Presidential Directive 5, Management of Domestic Incidents, February 

28, 2003 

• Homeland Security Presidential Directive 8, National Preparedness, December 17, 2003 

• The Code of Federal Regulations, Title 44, Chapter 1, Federal Emergency Management 

Agency, October 1, 2007 

• Public Law 920, Federal Civil Defense Act of 1950, as amended 

• Public Law 84-99, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers - Flood Fighting 

• Public Law 93-288, Federal Disaster Relief Act of 1974  

• Public Law 107-188, Bio-terrorism Act, June 2002  

• Public Law 107-296, Homeland Security Act, January 2002  

• Executive Order 13228, Office of Homeland Security, October 8, 2001  

• Executive Order 13231, Critical Infrastructure Protection, October 16, 2001  

• Executive Order 13234, Citizens Prepared, November 9, 2001  

• Presidential Decision Directive 39 - U.S. Policy on Counter-terrorism, June 1995 

• Presidential Decision Directive 62 - Combating Terrorism, May 1998 

• Presidential Decision Directive 63 - Critical Infrastructure Protection, May 1998 

• National Security Presidential Directive 17 - National Strategy to Combat Weapons of Mass 

Destruction 

• Public Law 280 

STATE 
• California Disaster Assistance Act (CA government Code Section 8680 et. seq.) 

• California Disaster and Civil Defense Master Mutual Aid Agreement 

• CA Government Code (CGC), Title 1, Chapter 4, Division 8, Section 3100, (Disaster Service 

Workers) 

• CGC, Title 2, Division 1, Chapter 7, (California Emergency Services Act) 

• California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 19, Division 2 (Standardized Emergency 

Management System) 

• California Water Code (CWC), § 128 (Department of Water Resources - Flood Fighting) 

COUNTY 
• Yolo County Emergency Services/Ordinance No. 226 (1951) 403, and 894 (1980) (as 

amended) 

  



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
63 

Appendix YCH-1: Authorities and References  Yolo County Housing 

REFERENCES 

FEDERAL 
• National Response Framework (As revised) 

• National Incident Management System  

• Comprehensive Preparedness Guide 101 v.2 

STATE 
• California State Emergency Plan, July 2010 edition 

• Standardized Emergency Management System  

• California Disaster Assistance Act  

• Continuity of Government in California (Article IV, Section 21 of the State Constitution) 

• Preservation of Local Government  

COUNTY 
• Yolo County Emergency Operations Plan, December 4, 2012 

• Yolo County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan, 2013 

• Yolo County Joint Emergency Management Services Agreement, 2012 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
64 

Appendix YCH-2: Acronyms & Glossary  Yolo County Housing 

APPENDIX YCH-2: ACRONYMS 
CDAA – California Disaster Assistance Act 

CGC – California Government Code 

COOP – Continuity of Operations 

COG – Continuity of Government 

CWC – California Water Code 

EAS – Emergency Alert System 

EF – Emergency Function 

EMS – Emergency Medical Services 

EOC – Emergency Operations Center 

EOP – Emergency Operations Plan 

ESF – Emergency Support Function 

FOG – Field Operations Guide 

HSPD – Homeland Security Presidential Directive 

IDE – Initial Damage Estimate  

IT – Information Technology 

LAN – Local Area Network 

PPD – Presidential Policy Directive 

SEMS – Standardized Emergency Management System 

SOG – Standard Operating Guide 

SOP – Standard Operating Procedures 

SRRCS – Sacramento Regional Radio Communications System 

VOIP – Voice Over Internet Protocol 

YECA – Yolo Emergency Communications Agency 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
65 

Appendix YCH-3: Table of Figures  Yolo County Housing 

APPENDIX YCH-3: TABLE OF FIGURES 
 

Figure 1 – Plans Relational Structure ............................................................................................................................ 18 

Figure 2 - Base Map of Housing Properties ................................................................................................................ 20 

Figure 3 – Yolo County Housing Hazards .................................................................................................................... 21 

Figure 4 – Yolo County Housing Population Served ............................................................................................... 24 

Figure 5 - Response Phase Sequence of Events ........................................................................................................ 29 

Figure 6 - Emergency Support Function Responsibility Matrix ......................................................................... 35 

Figure 7 - Federal ESF/State ESF Comparison .......................................................................................................... 37 

Figure 8 - Standardized Emergency Management System Organization Levels ......................................... 42 

Figure 9 – Standardized Emergency Management System Functions ............................................................. 43 

Figure 10 - Comparison of Field and EOC SEMS Functions .................................................................................. 45 

Figure 11 – California Mutual Aid Regions ................................................................................................................. 47 

Figure 11 - Flow of Requests and Resources ............................................................................................................. 48 

 



EOC Support Annex Revised 
(EOP)  September 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

A Support Annex to the Housing 

Authority of the County of Yolo 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) and 

the Emergency Support Functions (ESF) 

5& 7 

The Housing 

Authority of 

the County of 

Yolo EOC 

Support Annex 
Basic Plan 

Version 0.1              Revised: September 2018 



EOC Support Annex Revised 
(EOP)  September 2018 

 

 
1 

Record of Distribution  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally blank 

  



EOC Support Annex Revised 
(EOP)  September 2018 

 

 
2 

Table of Contents  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

CONTENTS 
Introduction ............................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

How To Use This Annex ................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Relationship to Hazard-Specific Annexes ................................................................................................................. 4 

Disclosure Exemptions ..................................................................................................................................................... 4 

The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo Emergency Management Organization (EMO) ................ 5 

The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo Emergency Management System (SEMS) 

Organization ......................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Concept of Operations ........................................................................................................................................................... 8 

EMO Purpose ........................................................................................................................................................................ 8 

EOC Facility Location ........................................................................................................................................................ 8 

EMO Activation Policy ...................................................................................................................................................... 9 

EOC Activation Responsibility ..................................................................................................................................... 12 

EOC Activation Levels ..................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Security and Access Control ......................................................................................................................................... 14 

Communications ............................................................................................................................................................... 14 

EOC Reporting .................................................................................................................................................................... 14 

Documentation .................................................................................................................................................................. 15 

EOC Reporting Systems .................................................................................................................................................. 15 

General EOC Briefings ..................................................................................................................................................... 15 

EOC Deactivation .............................................................................................................................................................. 17 

Deactivation Triggers ...................................................................................................................................................... 17 

Procedure for Deactivation .......................................................................................................................................... 17 

Deactivation Notifications ............................................................................................................................................. 17 

YCH Roles and Responsibilities ....................................................................................................................................... 18 

EOC Staffing ......................................................................................................................................................................... 18 

EOC Action Planning ........................................................................................................................................................ 18 

Management Section ............................................................................................................................................................ 21 

Section Objectives............................................................................................................................................................. 21 

Tools ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 21 

Policy Group ........................................................................................................................................................................ 21 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
3 

Table of Contents  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

Management Staff ............................................................................................................................................................. 21 

Operations Section ................................................................................................................................................................ 23 

Section Objectives............................................................................................................................................................. 23 

Tools ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 23 

Planning & Intelligence Section (ESF 5) ....................................................................................................................... 24 

Section Objectives............................................................................................................................................................. 24 

Tools ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 24 

Planning Process ............................................................................................................................................................... 26 

Planning Considerations ................................................................................................................................................ 27 

Planning Cycle .................................................................................................................................................................... 27 

Documentation and Distribution ............................................................................................................................... 29 

Logistics Section (ESF 7) .................................................................................................................................................... 30 

Section Objectives............................................................................................................................................................. 30 

Tools ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 30 

Resource Ordering ........................................................................................................................................................... 31 

Resource Tracking ............................................................................................................................................................ 33 

YCH Asset Management System ................................................................................................................................. 33 

Volunteer Management .................................................................................................................................................. 33 

Donations Management ................................................................................................................................................. 34 

Finance & Administration Section .................................................................................................................................. 35 

Section Objectives............................................................................................................................................................. 35 

Tools ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 35 

YCH Emergency Purchasing Policy  .......................................................................................................................... 36 

Annex Maintenance .............................................................................................................................................................. 38 

Appendix YCHEOC-1: Table of Figures ......................................................................................................................... 39 

Appendix YCEOC-2: Version History ............................................................................................................................. 40 

 

 

 



EOC Support Annex Revised 
(EOP)  September 2018 

 

 
4 

Introduction  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

INTRODUCTION 
YCH has guidelines in their employee profiles to establish an Emergency Management Organization.  

In cases of an immediately pending threat to public safety or an actual emergency, the Housing 

Authority of the County of Yolo (hereinafter, YCH) executes the responsibilities outlined in 

emergency plans to quickly and efficiently reduce, or "mitigate" that threat.  Actions almost always 

include activation of the EMO for conduct of emergency management activities, and working with 

the affected jurisdiction(s) on the deployment of first responder agencies.  The EMO may assemble 

for work in the Emergency Operations Center and coordinate Operational Area resource support 

(both incoming and outgoing) to those first responding agencies in the field, and to the affected 

population. All available local, state and federal resources will be committed, as necessary, to 

protect lives, property and the environment. This annex outlines the response of the EMO and 

operation of the EOC during an emergency or disaster response as well as the support provided to 

that response by YCH. 

HOW TO USE THIS ANNEX 
This Annex should be used in conjunction with the YCH EOP.  It is intended as an operational tool 

which provides clarity to enhance the YCH EOP. 

RELATIONSHIP TO HAZARD-SPECIFIC ANNEXES 
The EOC Annex provides the overall structure from which the YCH will operate during a disaster 

and provides the information needed to carry out the tasks associated with the EOC and its many 

functions.  While the Annex, provides many of the tools, templates, and forms required to run an 

EOC, more detailed information can be found in the Hazard-Specific Annexes to the YCH EOP.  These 

Annexes contain unique and regulatory response planning details applying to specific hazards.  The 

information contained in this Annex and in the Hazard-Specific Annexes is meant to be 

complementary and, when used together, provide a complete tool to be used in an EOC activation. 

DISCLOSURE EXEMPTIONS 
Legislation enacting the California Public Records Act (CPRA) was signed in 1968 with the 

fundamental precept that governmental records shall be disclosed to the public, upon request, 

unless there is a specific reason not to do so.  

There are two recurring interests justifying most of the exemptions from disclosure.  First, several 

CPRA exemptions are based on recognition of the individual’s right to privacy (e.g., privacy in 

certain personnel, medical or similar records).  Second, a number of disclosure exemptions are 

based on the government’s need to perform its assigned functions in a reasonably efficient manner 

(e.g., maintaining confidentiality of investigative records, official information, records related to 

pending litigation, and preliminary notes or memoranda). 

More information can be found at http://ag.ca.gov/publications /summary_public_records_act.pdf. 

 

http://ag.ca.gov/publications%20/summary_public_records_act.pdf


Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
5 

Emergency Management Organization  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

YCH EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION (EMO) 

YCH EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (SEMS) ORGANIZATION 
Incident Command in the field coordinates its own logistical support at the Incident Command Post, 
requesting support through discipline specific mutual aid channels. Support is only requested 
through the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) when the mutual aid channels do not have the 
type or numbers of resources needed. The YCH Emergency Management Organization supports its 
own operations in congruence with those of each jurisdiction.  The EMO shares data with each 
jurisdiction that has housing properties.  

Consistent with Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS), the YCH’s Emergency 
Management Organization develops in a modular fashion, based upon the type and size of the 
incident: 

• The Emergency Management Organization builds from the top down. 
• As the need arises, the five separate SEMS functions can be activated, each with several 

sub-units that may be established as needed. 
• The specific organizational structure established for any given incident, i.e., which 

positions need to be filled in the Emergency Management Organization to "work the 
incident" is based on the management and resource needs of the incident as determined 
by the EOC. 

 
The Emergency Management Organization comprises personnel from YCH, city departments, 

County departments and allied agencies. As YCH is a housing authority, with special considerations 

from HUD to provide assistance throughout Yolo and Solano Counties, they will be working with the 

EOC where the affected property is.  It is organized around the five functions (Management, 

Operations, Planning/Intelligence, Logistics, and Finance/Administration) of both the SEMS and the 

National Incident Management System (NIMS).  YCH personnel staff the Emergency Management 

Organization as it is portrayed in the chart at Figure 1 – YCH EOC Organization.  



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
6 

Emergency Management Organization  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

 

Figure 1 – YCH EOC Organization 

EOC Director

Operations Section 
Chief

Housing Services

Administrative 
Services

Planning & Intelligence 
Section Chief 

Situation Analysis

Documentation

Advanced Planning

Action Planning

Demobilization

Technical  Specialists

Logistics Section 
Chief

Supply/Procurement

Personnel

Facilities

Resource Tracking

Finance & 
Administration 
Section Chief

Time Keeping

Cost Accounting

Compensation & 
Claims

Purchasing

Recovery

Public Information Legal Affairs Officer

Liaison Officer Safety Officer

Security Officer EOC Coordinator



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
7 

Emergency Management Organization  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

 

This page is intentionally blank   



EOC Support Annex Revised 
(EOP)  September 2018 

 

 
8 

Concept of Operations  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS 
During a disaster or emergency, the YCH EMO supports field response operations within the 

jurisdiction(s) where the disaster or emergency is occurring.  The EMO operates using the 

Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) functions, principles, and components.  It 

will use the action planning process to identify and implement specific objectives for each 

operational period.   

EMO PURPOSE 
In normal times, YCH conducts routine, day-to-day operations.  When a major emergency or 

disaster strikes, the EOC is the location from which centralized emergency management will be 

performed by the EMO.  It facilitates a coordinated response by all the personnel that are assigned 

emergency management responsibilities.  The level of staffing of the EMO will vary according to the 

needs of the emergency, this can also include a virtual EOC activation in which the functions are 

coordinated remotely.   

The EOC provides a central location for information collection and decision-making, and allows for 

face-to-face coordination among decision makers. The following emergency management functions 

are performed in the YCH EOC: 

• Managing and coordinating YCH support of field operations 

• Receiving and disseminating warning information 

• Developing emergency policies and procedures 

• Collecting intelligence from and disseminating information to representatives of city, 

county, state, tribal, and federal agencies 

• Preparing intelligence/information summaries, situation reports, operational reports, and 

other reports as required 

• Maintaining general and specific maps, information display boards, and other data 

pertaining to emergency operations 

• Continuing analysis and evaluation of all data pertaining to the emergency situation on YCH 

properties 

• Controlling and coordinating, within established policy, the operational and logistical 

support of departmental resources committed to the emergency and requesting resources 

through the affected jurisdiction 

• Maintaining contact and coordination with support with jurisdictional EOCs 

• Providing emergency information and instructions to participants in the housing program 

EOC FACILITY LOCATION 
The Primary EOC is located at the following location: 

 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
9 

Concept of Operations  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

Yolo County Housing 
147 W. Main St. 
Woodland, CA 95695 

 
The Primary EOC offers the following facilities for use during major emergencies: 

• Dedicated operating space 

• Extensive telephone and information management capabilities 

• Electronic display processing capabilities 

• Office support facilities 

• Dedicated task work areas 

• Adequate parking for personnel 

• Adequate restroom/kitchen facilities 

The alternate YCH Emergency Operations Center (EOC) is located at the following location(s): 

El Rio Villas Housing Office and Community Room 
62 Shams Way 
Winters, CA 95694  
Or 
Las Casitas Housing Office and Community Room 
685 Lighthouse Drive 
West Sacramento, CA 95605 

EMO ACTIVATION POLICY 
YCH has adopted the Cal OES criteria, shown in Figure 2 – SEMS EOC Activations Requirements 

that identifies the events/situations which may require the EMO to be activated in the EOC.   

  



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
10 

Concept of Operations  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

Shaded areas = not applicable 
to SEMS levels 

 

SEMS LEVELS 

Situation identified in SEMS 
Regulations Field Level 

Local 
Government 

Operational 
Area Region State 

Emergency involving two or more 
emergency response agencies 
§12407(a)(1) 

Use ICS 
    

Local Emergency Proclaimed** 
§2407(a)(2) 

Use ICS Use SEMS 
   

Local Government EOC Activated 
§2407(a)(1) 

Use ICS Use SEMS 
   

Local Government activates EOC and 
requests Operational Area EOC 
activation §2407(a)(1) 

Use ICS Use SEMS 
Activate OA 

EOC 
Activate REOC 

Activate  
SOC 

Two or more cities within an 
Operational Area proclaim a local 
emergency §2409 (f)(2) 

Use ICS Use SEMS 
Activate OA 

EOC 
Activate REOC 

Activate  
SOC 

County and one or more cities 
proclaim a local emergency  
§2409 (f)(3) 

Use ICS Use SEMS 
Activate OA 

EOC 
Activate REOC 

Activate  
SOC 

City, city and county, or county 
requests Governor’s State of 
Emergency proclamation  
§2409 (f)(4) 

Use ICS Use SEMS 
Activate OA 

EOC 
Activate REOC 

Activate  
SOC 

Governor proclaims a State of 
Emergency for county or two or 
more cities §2409 (f)(5) 

Use ICS Use SEMS 
Activate OA 

EOC 
Activate REOC 

Activate  
SOC 

Operational Area requests resources 
from outside it boundaries****§2409 
(f)(6) 

Use ICS Use SEMS 
Activate OA 

EOC 
Activate REOC 

Activate  
SOC 

Operational Area receives resource 
requests from outside it 
boundaries**§2409 (f)(7) 

Use ICS Use SEMS 
Activate OA 

EOC 
Activate REOC 

Activate  
SOC 

An Operational Area EOC is activated 
§2411 (a) 

Use ICS Use SEMS 
Activate OA 

EOC 
Activate REOC 

Activate  
SOC 

A Regional EOC is activated  
§2413 (a)(1) 

Use ICS Use SEMS 
Activate OA 

EOC 
Activate REOC 

Activate  
SOC 

Governor proclaims a State of 
Emergency §2413 (a)(2) 

Use ICS Use SEMS 
Activate OA 

EOC 
Activate REOC 

Activate  
SOC 

Governor proclaims and earthquake 
or volcanic prediction §2413 (a)(3) 

Use ICS Use SEMS 
Activate OA 

EOC 
Activate REOC 

Activate  
SOC 

Figure 2 – SEMS EOC Activation Requirements 

This matrix highlights the flow of SEMS activation requirements.  Activation of an EOC with a 

request of support from the Operational Area triggers the activation of an Operational Area EOC 

which triggers activation of the Regional EOC which, in turn, triggers activation of the State level 

EOC.

                                                             
1 § Indicates sections in the California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 19, Division 2, Chapter 1 (SEMS) 
* The EOC is usually activated, but in some circumstances, a local emergency may be proclaimed without the 
need for EOC activation. 
** Does not apply for requests for resources used in normal day-to-day operations which are obtained through 
existing mutual aid agreements providing for the exchange or furnishing of certain types of facilities and 
services as provided for under the California Disaster and Civil Defense Master Mutual Aid Agreement 
(MMAA). 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
11 

Concept of Operations  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

EOC COORDINATION WITH GOVERNMENT LEVELS AND THE PRIVATE SECTOR 

Responsibility for emergency response is based on statutory authority.  The emergency response is 
coordinated under the SEMS, which provides a flexible adaptable and expandable response 
organization to address all-hazards of varying magnitude and complexity.  In a disaster or 
emergency, the YCH EOC will work congruently with the jurisdiction where the disaster or 
emergency is occurring. 

• Command and Control:  During response to minor or moderate events, the YCH may 
manage the emergency with existing resources.  The EOC may not be physically activated 
under this scenario, but could be activated virtually.  Personnel that are part of a field level 
emergency response will utilize the Incident Command System to manage and direct on-
scene operations. 

• Field/Emergency Operations Center Communications and Coordination:  The YCH EOC 
is activated to support field operations when an emergency requires additional resources, 
or when requested resources exceed that which is available from within the jurisdiction.  
Field Incident Command Posts and the YCH EOC will establish communications with each 
other when the center is activated.  The YCH EOC will transition into Yolo Operational Area 
Emergency Operations Center (EOC) when necessary. 

• Multi-agency Coordination:  Larger scale emergencies may involve more than one 
responsible jurisdiction and/or multiple agencies.  Management personnel from the 
responsible jurisdictions form a Unified Command and/or a Multi-Agency Coordination 
Group.  The provision is made for situation assessment, determining resource 
requirements, establishing a logistical system, and allocating resources.  Various EOCs, 
dispatch centers and other essential facilities such as Department Operations Centers 
(DOCs) located in or adjacent to the affected area are activated at this time.  When its EOC is 
activated, the YCH may establish a Unified Command with the jurisdiction where the 
disaster or emergency is occurring.  

COORDINATION WITH FIELD RESPONSE LEVEL 
Communications and coordination must be established between the EOC and field responders who 

are responding within jurisdictional boundaries.  The YCH EOC Operations Section will coordinate 

directly with the field responders for their respective discipline.   

COORDINATION WITH YOLO OPERATIONAL AREA AND MEMBER JURISDICTIONS 
Direct communications and coordination will be established between YCH and any Operational 

Area member jurisdictions' activated EOC.  Additionally, as time permits, communications will be 

established by the County with other member jurisdictions that have not activated their EOCs.  

Initially, communications will be established by any means available and with whoever is available, 

regardless of their functional EOC position.  Ideally, communications and coordination amongst the 

jurisdictional EOCs will occur along functional lines such as between the Planning/Intelligence 

Sections. 

COORDINATION WITH LOCAL AGENCIES  
The emergency response role of cities, the tribe and special districts is generally focused on 

restoring their normal services or functional area of responsibility.  During disasters, cities, the 

tribe and some types of local agencies will be more extensively involved in the emergency response 

by directly coordinating, communicating, and assisting local governments (for instance utilizing 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
12 

Concept of Operations  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

school districts for incidents involving shelters, school facilities, or the children.)   If another local 

agency does not send a representative to the EOC, then the Liaison Officer in the EOC will be 

responsible for establishing communications and coordination with the other local agency, when 

applicable. 

COORDINATION WITH STATE AND FEDERAL FIELD RESPONSE 

There are some instances where a state or federal agency will have a field response.  State agency 

field responses may result from a flood fight effort, oil spill, and hazardous materials accident on a 

highway or other hazard scenarios.  Federal field response could result from the same scenarios or 

a military aircraft accident, and/or terrorism incidents.  When a state agency or federal agency is 

involved in field operations, coordination may be established with the YCH EOC.  State or federal 

agencies operating in the field may be found in any ICS section, branch, or unit, or part of a Unified 

Command.  The agency’s responsibilities in responding to the incident will determine their location 

in the organization.  Per NIMS, any multi-agency response will require the formation of a Unified 

Command structure. 

COORDINATION WITH VOLUNTEERS AND THE PRIVATE SECTOR 

Within the Operational Area, coordination of response activities with non-governmental 

organizations may occur.  Privately-owned utilities, such as PG&E will frequently send 

representatives to activated EOCs to facilitate coordination of critical facility restoration.   The YCH 

EOC will address volunteer requests from the general public by directing them to the Logistics 

Section, the Volunteer Coordinator in the EOC or to the OA for support, or the Emergency Volunteer 

Center (EVC) which may be managed by Hands on Superior California, if activated.  Other private 

sector corporate interests may contact the EOC through the appropriate liaisons to express their 

interest in assisting in response and recovery operations. 

EOC ACTIVATION RESPONSIBILITY 
The EOC Director administers and directs the YCH Emergency Managment Organization.  During an 

emergency when the EMO is activated or there is the potential for activation, the EOC Director 

manages and directs all aspects of the local agency response and recovery operations.  The Director 

is responsible for the overall physical set-up, functionality and close-out of the EOC.   

EOC ACTIVATION LEVELS 
The YCH EMO will be activated according to a graduated, three level system that designates specific 

staffing and tasks based on the approach or impact of an emergency or disaster.  There are many 

activities that may be occurring prior to the actual activation such as pre-activity monitoring with 

the Yolo OA OES, coordination amongst local jurisdictions, and development of situational 

awareness briefings.  The levels below can be activated virtually or in the actual EOC.   

In addition to the following activation levels, the YCH may find that activation of the EOC is not 
warranted, yet monitoring of a developing situation is critical. At that time, the EOC Coordinator 
will be the liaison with local emergency operations during business and after duty hours. This 
individual will be identified to those agencies affected by the developing situation.  
 
There are several activities that the EOC Coordinator will complete in the monitoring phase of an 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
13 

Concept of Operations  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

incident or disaster such as:   
 

• Coordination of YCH offices  
• Coordination with affected jurisdictions 
• Information and analysis on overall situation (situation report), 
• Resource needs or potential needs,   
• Briefings to Commission/Yolo OA 

 
The EOC Coordinator will also be the point of contact for YCH during non-duty hours when a Level 
1 Activation of the EOC has been initiated. 

Level Three EMO Activation: Level Three is a minimum activation, this is usually done 

virtually and does not actually constitute a physical activation of the EOC. This level may be 

used for situations which initially only require a few people, e.g., a short duration 

earthquake warning; winter storm alerts; or public safety monitoring of a low risk, planned 

event. At a minimum, Level One staffing consists of the EOC Coordinator and EOC Director 

in an enhanced readiness/monitoring posture, but may select other members of the EMO, 

such as someone from the Planning and Intelligence Section. Based on the threat or the 

incident, other coordinators, such as a Public Information Officer representative may also 

be involved. 

Level Two EMO Activation: Level Two activation is normally achieved as an increase from 

Level One or a decrease from Level Three. This activation level is used for emergencies or 

planned events that would require more than a minimum staff but would not call for a full 

activation of all organization elements, or less than full staffing. One person may fulfill more 

than one SEMS function. The EOC Director, in conjunction with the General Staff, will 

determine the required level of continued activation under Level Two, and demobilize 

functions or add additional staff to functions as necessary based upon event considerations. 

Under a Level Two activation, representatives to the EOC from other agencies or 

jurisdictions may be required. 

Level One EMO Activation: Level One activation involves a complete and full activation 

with all organizational elements at full staffing. Level Three would normally be the initial 

activation during any major emergency such as a significant, damage inducing earthquake 

or widespread flooding.  

If EOC activation is warranted, the first EMO staff member to arrive begins set-up procedures.  The 

EOC Director or designee makes all decisions regarding the level and scope of operations.  The 

scope and nature of the emergency, current conditions, and potential concerns dictate the level of 

EMO operations and staffing requirements.   



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
14 

Concept of Operations  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

SECURITY AND ACCESS CONTROL  
Once the EMO has been activated and the EOC put into operation, only authorized personnel are 

permitted in the EOC. Access shall be granted to all personnel identified as EOC or EMO staff or 

commission members, as well as to other individuals having legitimate business in the EOC.  EMO 

staff and visitors shall be issued identification for EOC access that distinguishes the bearer as a 

member of the EMO or as a visitor.  

COMMUNICATIONS 
Communications within the EOC are accomplished using the most expedient and appropriate 

means possible (usually in person or by phone).  The EOC sections have a telephone with all normal 

connectivity.  Regardless of the medium used, pertinent points of all significant communications 

shall be recorded on the EOC unit/activity log. 

EOC REPORTING 
Information may be transmitted to staff and other key agencies using any one or more of the 

following means:  situational reporting database, satellite data, telephone, email, Internet or FAX.  

Regardless of the method of communication, all data should be verified for accuracy prior to 

transmission.  If unconfirmed data must be transmitted, it should be clearly designated as 

unconfirmed.   

Preliminary 

Reports 

Preliminary Reports are used during the first two hours of an emergency to 

provide an initial picture of the scope and magnitude of the emergency. 

Situation 

Reports 

A Situation Report (SitRep) is a brief narrative of the emergency situation 

covering a set period of time and is submitted on a scheduled basis after the 

submission of any preliminary reports.  

At the beginning of an emergency, the EOC Director and the Planning Section 

staff determine the duration of time to be covered by a SitRep and they 

designate times for other personnel to submit information for inclusion in the 

SitRep. 

Flash 

Reports 

Flash Reports are used for transmitting critical, time-sensitive information 

outside Preliminary Reports or regularly scheduled SitReps.  For example, a 

Flash Report would be used to report an impending dam failure or receipt of a 

Federal Declaration of a major disaster.  Verbal Flash Reports often precede 

transmission of written reports. 

Figure 3 – Report Definition Chart 
 

  



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
15 

Concept of Operations  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

DOCUMENTATION  
Unit/activity logs are used to record significant events, communications and actions associated 

with an emergency for a given operational period (shift). Each EOC staff position is responsible for 

maintaining a unit/activity Log.  Special emphasis must be made to document decision support 

discussions or information. 

All copies of reports, SEMS forms, and logs are submitted to the Planning/Intelligence Section at the 

close of each operational period (or prior to EOC deactivation if operations do not require multiple 

shifts). This documentation is important for both the documentation of the disaster and the 

financial recovery process. 

STATUS BOARDS  

Status Boards are erasable boards or digital displays located around the EOC. The Status Boards 

provide decision-makers and EOC staff with essential information such as road closures, shelter 

location information, actions taken, river gauge levels etc. 

EOC REPORTING SYSTEMS 
YCH will use EOC forms to communicate with the jurisdictional EOC’s.  The forms are located on the 

YCH network, are available in hard copy in the YCH EOC, and are located in a digital cloud service.   

GENERAL EOC BRIEFINGS 
The purpose of briefings is to familiarize or update EOC staff on the current emergency situation. 

Briefings provide an opportunity for the Section Chiefs, the EOC Director and all EOC staff to 

exchange information on the incident, create and evaluate an Action Plan, and make any revisions 

deemed necessary to the response strategy and/or priorities. Regular briefings provide a forum 

away from the high level of activity in the EOC for ensuring that each of the five essential SEMS 

functions (Management, Operations, Planning, Logistics and Finance) are coordinated and that the 

EOC staff have the same information from which to base individual and collective actions and 

decisions. 

In
co

m
in

g
 B

ri
e

fi
n

g
s 

Purpose:  

• Section Chiefs are briefed by the EOC Director to obtain an overall perspective on 
the current situation 

• Section Chiefs provide a similar briefing to their respective Sections 

Incoming briefings may include:  
 

• Current situation assessment  • Weather update, if applicable 
• Summary of significant actions 

taken or in process 
• Initial incident objectives and 

priorities  
• Any limitations on available 

communications, personnel, 
equipment or resources 

• Any directives on specific actions 
to be taken 

 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
16 

Concept of Operations  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

U
p

d
a

te
 B

ri
e

fi
n

g
s 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

S
ta

ff
 B

ri
e

fi
n

g
s Purpose: 

• Receive updated information 
• Evaluate the effectiveness of the response strategy 
• Identify and solve problems 
• Revise objectives, response strategies and priorities as necessary 

During the briefing, the EOC Director asks each Section Chief for a thorough, but 

concise status report.  Only information relevant to the entire EOC should be 

discussed in the group briefing. Function-specific issues and questions should be 

discussed one-on-one between the EOC Director and the involved Section Chief2.  

S
e

ct
io

n
 B

ri
e

fi
n

g
s 

Purpose: 

• Section Chiefs provide their respective staffs with information from the 
Management & General Staff briefing 

• Situation status and response objectives, strategies and priorities are 
reviewed 

Section Briefings may include: 

• Responsibilities  • Specified actions to be taken  
• Work shifts • Time of next briefing 
• Appropriate flow/sharing of 

information within and 
between Sections  

• Eating and sleeping 
arrangements, if necessary  

 

S
h

if
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 B
ri

e
fi

n
g

 

Purpose: 

Shift change briefings are a component of the EOC Action Planning Process.  At these 

briefings, the current AP is “handed off,” and a briefing on assignments which have been 

made for the next operational period are presented.  Facilitated by the Planning Section 

Chief, this briefing is approved by the EOC Director and attended by the General staff as 

appropriate.   

Shift change briefings should include the following:  

• Current situation assessment  
• Current and potential problems  
• Review of the Action Plan  
• Weather forecast, if applicable  
• Time for next scheduled briefing  

                                                             
2 These briefings do not replace the Action Planning Sessions, which are required for each operational period.  
At the conclusion of each briefing, the time for the next briefing is set. 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
17 

Concept of Operations  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

D
e

a
ct

iv
a

ti
o

n
 

B
ri

e
fi

n
g

 

Purpose: 

Immediately following deactivation of the EOC, the EOC Director, with all EOC staff, 

conducts a deactivation briefing.   

• Advise all EOC staff of the specific contacts and/or referrals to be made for any 
incident-related questions or concerns that may arise 

• Ensure all documentation is gathered from participants 
• Gather initial feedback for the After Action Report 

Figure 4 – Briefing Definition Chart 

EOC DEACTIVATION  
Once the critical aspects of an emergency or disaster have been secured, EOC operations may begin 

to scale down as conditions warrant. The purpose of this procedure is to outline the process to be 

followed whenever it is determined that the EOC can be deactivated.  The EOC Director, with input 

from the Section Chiefs, decides when and how to deactivate the EOC.  

DEACTIVATION TRIGGERS 
Once the emergency response phase has been terminated and system operations are stabilized, the 
EOC Director may determine that the EOC can be deactivated.  Triggers for determining 
deactivation may include:  

• Incident has deescalated to the point of local agency control 

• Response has been terminated 

• Recovery operations are underway 

• No further agency, OA, state, media or public information dissemination is needed 

PROCEDURE FOR DEACTIVATION 
The EOC Director will:  

• Establish the time period for deactivation  

• Advise EOC staff of the actions to be taken, including a timeline  

• Identify EOC staff to be on-call if stand down is implemented  

• Direct the liaison or other EOC staff to make notifications  

• Direct all functional leads to complete any required or necessary documentation 

DEACTIVATION NOTIFICATIONS  
All internal and external individuals, groups and agencies that were notified of activation will be 

notified of stand down and/or deactivation. At a minimum, all elected officials, neighboring 

jurisdictions, and responding city and county agencies will be notified. The person making the 

notifications documents the date, time, name and contact method for all persons/organizations 

notified.  Notifications will include:  

• Date and time of stand down period or deactivation  

• A 24-hour contact number for further information  



EOC Support Annex Revised 
(EOP)  September 2018 

 

 
18 

YCH Roles and Responsibilities  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

YCH ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

EOC STAFFING   
When an emergency threatens or actually occurs, this Support Annex provides guidance, direction 

and tasks (commonly known as Command and Control) for first responders and the EMO alike to 

efficiently respond and undertake mitigation operations.  The size or scope of an emergency, rather 

than the type, will largely determine whether or not the EMO will be activated, and to what level. 

EOC ACTION PLANNING 
INTRODUCTION 
The use of Emergency Action Plans (EAP) in YCH provides a clear and measurable process for 

identifying objectives and priorities for a given event.  Action Planning is an important management 

tool that involves: 

• Identifying priorities and objectives for response or recovery efforts. 

• Documenting incident support priorities and objectives, and the tasks and personnel 

assignments associated with meeting those objectives. 

 

The AP process involves the EOC Director and Section Chiefs3 along with other EOC staff, as needed, 

in addition to representatives from the cities, County, special districts, and other supporting 

agencies.   

PLANNING REQUIREMENTS  

The initial EAP is normally verbal and then is quickly documented and is used to develop the EAP 

during the first hour or two following EOC activation. A verbal plan may also be utilized for 

incidents involving a limited scope, short duration (less than 12 hours) and a limited number of 

response personnel. An EOC Action Plan shall be developed whenever the EOC is activated at Level 

II or I.  A written EOC Action Plan is required whenever:  

• Two or more jurisdictions/agencies are involved in the response  

• The incident extends beyond one operational period  

• All EOC functions are fully staffed  

 

Unlike Incident Action Plans (IAP) produced in the field by Incident Command, an EAP can cover an 

extended period of time and often cover several days.  The plan should be regularly reviewed and 

evaluated throughout its operational period and revised or updated as warranted.  

  

                                                             
3 For more information on EOC Positions see the EOP Basic for YCH 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
19 

YCH Roles and Responsibilities  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

PLAN ELEMENTS 

The elements to be included in the Emergency Action Plan are noted below.  The Emergency Action 

Plan form is located in the EOC Tools attachment and may include some of the following: 

• Period of time covered by the plan  

• Parts of EOC organization that have been activated on an organization chart  

• Assignment of primary and support personnel and material resources to specific tasks and 

locations  

• Logistical or technical support to be provided and by whom  

• Objectives (specific, measurable, attainable, realistic and time-measured or SMART) to be 

accomplished  

• Priorities for meeting objectives  

• Strategy to be utilized to achieve the objectives  

In addition to the required elements listed above, the Action Plan may also include:  

• Specific departmental mission assignments  

• Policy and/or cost constraints  

• Any inter-agency considerations  

PLANNING RESPONSIBILITIES  
Primary responsibility for developing the Emergency Action Plan rests with the Planning Section. 

However, development of the plan requires the active participation of the Emergency Services 

Director and the General Staff. The Operations Section, in particular, works closely with the 

Planning Section during plan development. When indicated, the Planning Section Chief requests 

specific technical experts to provide input to the plan. The EOC Director approves the plan.  

For incidents requiring close coordination with external agencies, (e.g., State field response 

agencies, special districts, federal responders, etc.), input from those involved agencies should be 

included in the Emergency Action Plan.  

Specific EOC staff responsibilities associated with the Emergency Action Plan4 include the 

following:  

Management and General Staff  
Provide general incident objectives and strategy 
Provide direction and overall management 
Ensure incident safety 
Provide information through Liaison and Public Information Officer 
Approve the completed Action Plan  

 

 

                                                             
4 For further information on the Action Planning process, see the Planning & Intelligence section of this annex 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
20 

YCH Roles and Responsibilities  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

Operations Section Chief  

• Determine support for the tactics necessary to achieve objectives 

• Determine associated resource requirements 

• Communicate Action Plan to EOC staff and Incident Commanders, as appropriate 

• Conduct Operations Shift Briefing 

Planning Section Chief  

• Conduct the Action-Planning meeting 

• Establish planning timelines 

• Coordinate preparation of the Action Plan 

• Manage planning process 

Logistics Section Chief  

• Establish/confirm procedure for off-incident resource ordering 

• Ensure that resource ordering process is in place 

• Ensure that Logistics Section is configured to support the Action Plan 

Finance Section Chief  

• Provide cost assessment of incident objectives 

• Ensure that adequate finance approvals are in place for implementation of the Action 

Plan 

• Works with the Management and General staff to determine the need for cost 

apportionment, cost sharing or state and/or federal reimbursement 

 

  



EOC Support Annex Revised 
(EOP)  September 2018 

 

 
21 

Management Section  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

MANAGEMENT SECTION 
The EOC Director leads the Management Section and is responsible for the overall management of 

EOC operations to address the impacts of an emergency directly upon the affected property and 

assessing conditions outside the property, which have the potential for affecting the agency.  

Additionally, the EOC Director is responsible for directing the creation of the Emergency Action 

Plan and the overall strategic direction of response.  The EOC Director works closely with the Policy 

Group.  

SECTION OBJECTIVES 
The Management Section will accomplish the following specific objectives during a 

disaster/emergency: 

 Establish the appropriate staffing level for the EOC and continuously monitor organizational 

effectiveness ensuring that appropriate modifications occur as required 

 Exercise overall management responsibility for the coordination between emergency 

response agencies within the jurisdictional area 

 In conjunction with the General Staff, set jurisdictional priorities for response efforts.  

Ensure that all department and agency actions are accomplished within the priorities 

established at the EOC 

 Ensure that inter-agency coordination is accomplished effectively 

 Ensure that the Emergency Public Information response is appropriate to the event 

TOOLS 
• Org Chart • Job Action Sheets 
• Proclamation Guidelines • PIO Toolkit 
• Legal Tools 
• OES Master Contact List 

• Media Intake Form 
• EPI/JIC  SOP 

POLICY GROUP 
The Policy Group is available to address the economic, social and political impacts of an emergency.  

In the YCH EOC, the Policy function is the responsibility of the Commission, key EOC Management 

staff and the Director and/or their designee.  The Policy Group are those key personnel identified 

that will make major policy decisions for YCH at the recommendation of the EOC.  The Policy Group 

is convened to assist the EOC in addressing major impacts to YCH properties. 

MANAGEMENT STAFF 
• Assisting the EOC Director are the Management Staff.  The Management Staff are 

responsible for providing direct administrative and executive-level support to the Director, 

as well as for providing additional emergency support functions such as Public Information, 

coordination with Elected Officials, and ensuring the safety and well-being of the staff in the 

EOC. Key skills of the Management Staff include:  Authority, Responsibility, Leadership, 

Global Thinking, and good project management. 

 When fully activated the EOC Management Staff includes the following: 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
22 

Operations Section  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

Public Information Officer (PIO) 

The PIO is directly responsible for managing Emergency Public Information activities within 

the EOC and in support of all YCH Emergency Public Information operations in accordance 

with Emergency Support Function #15.  The PIO may be assisted by additional staff who 

will conduct assorted Emergency Public Information tasks and duties (Rumor Control and 

activation of the Joint Information Center) within the EOC or a Joint Information Center 

(JIC)5 if established, or at a field incident command post. There are several tools available to 

the PIO such as: the Emergency Public Information and Crisis and Emergency Risk 

Communications Plan and Emergency Public Information Standard Operating Procedures.  

For additional position information, see the ESF #15 Executive Summary.  

Legal Affairs Officer 
The Legal Affairs Officer is responsible for providing legal advice and guidance to the 

Director and the Board on all emergency management issues and concerns examples of the 

types of legal advice and guidance are: local proclamation development and execution, legal 

opinions on evacuation and other jurisdictional legal responsibilities. Tools maintained for 

this position include a drive with samples of legal materials previously used in events 

throughout California and legal references (such as the CA Emergency Services Act and CA 

Disaster Assistance Act). 

Liaison Officer 

The Liaison Officer functions as the primary point of contact for all allied agencies and 

jurisdictional representatives not directly assigned to the YCH EOC.  All agency and 

jurisdictional representatives will coordinate with the Liaison Officer, as needed.  There are 

tools available to the Liaison Officer such as the Job Action Sheet and Master Contact List.   

Safety & Security Officer 

The Safety & Security Officer is responsible for ensuring that the EOC is secure when 

activated, that hazards are identified and mitigated, and that the EOC environment is 

suitable for conducting operations in a safe and healthful manner such as the following 

chaplain support, healthy food and adequate breaks within the EOC.    

                                                             
5 For more information, see the ESF 15 Annex 



EOC Support Annex Revised 
(EOP)  September 2018 

 

 
23 

Operations Section  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

OPERATIONS SECTION 

SECTION OBJECTIVES 
The Operations Section, an element of the EOC General Staff is responsible for coordinating the 

deployment of response resources in support of field operations.  Such coordination activities will 

normally include: 

 Managing operational elements of approved EOC AP's, if any. 

 Supporting EOCs throughout the operational Area and field incident command(s) and 

associated response activities. 

 Coordinating and liaising with EOCs in the Operational Area for reporting, action planning 

and situation reporting. 

 Coordinating assets responding to YCH properties. 

 Assessing the emergency on agency properties or in nearby jurisdictions that affect or may 

affect local agency response. 

 Working with appropriate branches under the Operations Section.  

TOOLS 
• Org Chart • Job Action Sheets 
• Communications Plan • Discipline specific SOPs 
• Legal Tools 
• Discipline Specific Master Contact Lists 

• Media Intake Form 
• ESF Status Report Forms 

 
The Operations Section within the YCH EOC is organized by agency department. 
 
An Operations Section Chief will be identified by the EOC Director, depending on the 
incident.   

The Operations Section Chief will activate those departments deemed appropriate.  When fully 

activated, the Operations Section could be comprised of the following branches, with each position 

being staffed with YCH.   

• Housing Services 

• Administrative Services 

 



EOC Support Annex Revised 
(EOP)  September 2018 

 

 
24 

Planning & Intelligence Section  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

PLANNING & INTELLIGENCE SECTION (ESF 5) 
The Planning Section is responsible for directing and managing the creation of a comprehensive 

situation status report, development of EOC Action Plans for each operational period, and 

maintenance of all documentation related to the emergency.  The Planning Section staff must 

evaluate the potential economic, social and environmental impacts of the disaster, while managing 

response to the conditions within the jurisdiction.  Additionally, the Planning Section staff must 

consider whether an emergency in a neighboring jurisdiction could impact their jurisdiction or 

draw upon resources normally available to the agency. 

The Planning Section Chief identifies whether full or partial staffing is required to respond.  When 

fully activated the section may include the positions shown in the organizational chart.  The duties 

assigned to the unfilled position are the responsibility of the Planning Section Chief. 

SECTION OBJECTIVES 
The Planning Section will accomplish the following specific objectives during a disaster/emergency: 

 Display situation status information in the EOC using maps and visual aids 

 Ensure accurate recording and documentation of the incident 

 Determine reporting schedules for all EOC elements  

 Prepare the jurisdiction’s Situational Status reports and EOC Action Plans 

 Disseminate situation status and EOC Action Reports to other EOC sections, and 

jurisdictional and tribal departments 

 Provide planning support to other sections 

 Maintain proper and accurate documentation of all actions taken to ensure that all required 

records are preserved for future use and State OES and FEMA filing requirements 

 Acquire technical experts for special interest topics of special technical knowledge subjects 

TOOLS 
• Org Chart • Job Action Sheets 
• Planning Process Schedule (Sample) • Planning Considerations Cheat Sheet 
• Situational Status Form • Situational Status Boards 
• Action Planning Meeting Agenda 

(Sample) 
• EOC Briefing & Reports Cheat Sheet 
• EOC Action Plan Template 

• EOC Planning “P” • Demobilization Plan Template 
• Demobilization Checklist • Hot Wash Discussion Points  
• After Action Report Template • Sample File Retention Structure 
• Advanced Plan Template  

 

This section will be staffed as directed by the EOC Director to perform the various functions 

required to support emergency management operations within the activated EOC.  Additional 

branches or units may be established as needed to meet operational needs. 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
25 

Planning & Intelligence Section  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

 

Figure 5 – Planning & Intelligence Organizational Structure 
 

 

 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
26 

Planning & Intelligence Section  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

PLANNING PROCESS  
The Planning Section staff will maintain the EOC Major Incident Status Board and will develop 

short-and long-term planning scenarios based upon the situation and its impacts on facilities and 

operations. Utilizing these planning scenarios, the Planning Section Chief will conduct an Action 

Planning meeting with the EOC Director, General Staff and appropriate technical experts. The 

Operations Section Chief reports significant changes to the Planning Section Chief.  See the Planning 

Section Process Schedule in the following SAMPLE: 

PLANNING SECTION PLANNING PROCESS SCHEDULE 

0700 – 0800 Shift Change Briefing. 

0800 – 0900 Prepare for Planning Meeting.  Purpose:  To review accomplishments, identify new issues, 
identify resource needs, and determine assignments for next operational period. 

0900 – 1000 Planning Meetings (with Management and General Staff, Resources Status Unit Leader, Supply 
Unit Leader, Communications Unit Leader, and Technical Specialists). 

1000 – 1400 Prepare EOC Action Plan. 

1400 – 1600 Finalize EOC Action Plan. 

1600 Complete EOC Action Plan. 

1600 – 1700 Prepare for Operations Briefing.  Purpose:  To review EOC Action Plan for next operational 
period. 

1700 – 1800 Operations briefing (Management, General Staff, and identified Operations staff and Technical 
Specialists). 

1800 – 1900 Finalize Reports (including Situation Status Report for the Operational Area EOC). 

1900 – 2000 Shift Change Briefing. 

2000 – 2100 Prepare for Planning Meeting.  Purpose:  To review accomplishments, identify new issues, 
identify resource needs, and determine assignments for next operational period. 

2100 – 2200 Planning Meetings (with Management and General Staff, Resources Status Unit Leader, Supply 
Unit Leader, Communications Unit Leader, and Technical Specialists). 

2200 – 0200 Prepare EOC Action Plan. 

0200 – 0400 Finalize EOC Action Plan. 

0400 Complete EOC Action Plan. 

0400 – 0500 Prepare for Operations Briefing.  Purpose:  To review EOC Action Plan for next operational 
period. 

0500 – 0600 Operations briefing (Management, General Staff, and identified Operations staff and Technical 
Specialists). 

0600 – 0700 Finalize Reports (including Situation Status Report for the Operational Area EOC). 

Figure 6 – Planning Process SAMPLE/EXAMPLE Schedule 

  



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
27 

Planning & Intelligence Section  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS  
In developing the Action Plan, a number of issues should be considered, as outlined in the table 

below. Applicable issues should be addressed in each iteration of the Action Plan.  

ISSUE CONSIDERATIONS RESPONSIBILITY 

Inter-Agency Coordination • Use of resources 
• Contact information and frequency 
• Communications methods 

Liaison 

Public Information • Constraints on information to be 
disseminated 

• Special instructions 
• Target areas/audiences 

Public Information Officer 
EOC Director 

Safety • Special precautions to be taken 
• Personal protective gear required 

Safety Officer 

Technical Resources • System maps and schematics 
• Technical expert input 

Planning Section Chief 

Operations • Special skills required 
• Mutual aid needs 
• Staging Area needs 
• Progress in resolving major incident 

objectives 

Operations Section Chief 

Policy • Legal/political issues 
• Fiscal constraints 

EOC Director 

Special Needs • Contingency Plans Planning Section Chief 

Special Resources • Availability of special supplies, 
personnel and equipment 

• Transportation support 

Logistics Section Chief 

Finance • Federal/State reimbursement; cost 
sharing/agreements 

Finance Section Chief 

Figure 7 – Planning Considerations 

PLANNING CYCLE 
The Planning Chief, with input from the EOC Director and the Operations Section Chief, establishes 

the schedule and cycle for action planning. Initially, meetings may be conducted every few hours or 

several times each day. Over time, meetings may be held twice each day, and then daily. The 

following graphic describes the planning cycle process for development of the Emergency Action 

Plan.  



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
28 

Planning & Intelligence Section  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

 

Figure 8 – The Planning Cycle 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
29 

Planning & Intelligence Section  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

DOCUMENTATION AND DISTRIBUTION 
Written EOC Action Plans will be documented on the Action Planning form. The Planning Section 

Situation Status function is responsible for:  

• Posting a copy of the current Action Plan in the EOC, if operational  

• Maintaining a copy of each Action Plan as part of the permanent incident record  

• Distributing copies of the current Action Plan to all involved agencies and other personnel 

as directed by the Planning Section Chief  

The Operations Section Chief will ensure that the current EOC Action Plan is distributed to all 

Operations Section personnel. 

  



EOC Support Annex Revised 
(EOP)  September 2018 

 

 
30 

Logistics Section  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

LOGISTICS SECTION (ESF 7) 
The Logistics Section is responsible for coordinating the provision of a broad assortment of 

equipment, supplies and services such as maintenance, food services, etc. in support of the 

Emergency Management Organization and Emergency Operations Center, City and/or County and 

tribal sites, organizations or activities during a disaster.  On occasion, it responds to a request from 

the field (Incident Command), but most often it supports jurisdictional departments, responding 

agencies and activities.  

When activated, the EOC establishes priorities for resource allocation during the emergency.  All 

jurisdictional resources are considered part of a pool which may be allocated by the EOC to fulfill 

priority missions. 

The Logistics Section Chief identifies whether full or partial staffing is required to respond.  When 

fully activated the section may include the positions shown in the organizational chart.  The duties 

assigned to the unfilled position are the responsibility of the Logistics Section Chief. 

SECTION OBJECTIVES 
The Logistics Section will accomplish the following specific objectives during a disaster/emergency: 

 Ensure repair and maintenance of EOC supporting equipment and resources 

 Analyze and identify appropriate sources of resources 

 Order, receive, process and store all incident-related resources 

 Set-up and maintain incident support facilities (example – feeding, sleeping and sanitation 

services) 

 Work with the Operations - Transportation Unit to move personnel, goods and services 

where they are needed 

 Supply food needs for entire incident including remote sites 

 Volunteer Coordination 

 Donations Management 

TOOLS 
• Org Chart • Job Action Sheets 
• T-Card System • Resource Requesting Cheat Sheet 
• Jurisdictional Personnel Lists • Resource Request Form 
• Jurisdictional Asset Lists • Jurisdictional Purchasing Policies 
• Purchase Cards • Resource Mgt Cycle Cheat Sheet 
• DSW Registration Form  

 

The Logistics Section is divided into several branches.  Within those branches, the following 

branches are organized and performed as part of the Logistics Section.   

 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
31 

Logistics Section  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

The section will be staffed by Facilities Services, as needed to perform the various functions 

required to support emergency management operations within the activated EOC.  Additional 

branches or units may be established as needed to meet operational needs.  The Facilities unit will 

house the IT and Communications staffing for the EOC. 

  

Figure 9 – Logistics Organizational Structure 

RESOURCE ORDERING 
When fulfilling a resource request, the Logistics Section staff will typically follow the general 
sequence for locating the resource to fulfill the request:  

• Use internal resources first (YCH owned) 
• Attempt to borrow the resource  
• Look for donated goods/services  
• Rent or lease the resource  
• As a last resort, buy the resource (if the Logistics Section must resort to purchasing the 

resource, the Logistics Section Chief will confer with the Finance & Administration Section 
to ensure the purchase is approved before placing the order, and all purchases will be in 
accordance with Purchasing guidelines)  

• Complete resource request form 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
32 

Logistics Section  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

Additionally, if the resource is a critical and immediate need, the general sequence may need to be 

bypassed in order to address immediate concerns. The Logistics Section Chief, Finance & 

Administration Section Chief and Management (EOC Director) will coordinate to make the 

determination on the appropriate action.  

A visual representation of how Resource Requests (personnel, equipment or technical assistance) 

are made through one of the following processes: 

1. Discipline-specific (usually Fire and Law) mutual aid systems:  Requests for resources that 

are normally within the inventories of the mutual aid system will go from local coordinator 

to Operational Area (OA) Mutual Aid Coordinator to the Regional Mutual Aid Coordinator. 

 

Figure 10 – Mutual Aid System Ordering Process 

2. All other resource requests will be made through the logistics function at each level. 

 

Figure 11 – EOC Ordering Process 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
33 

Logistics Section  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

RESOURCE TRACKING  

After the Logistics Section locates and procures the resources necessary to fulfill the request, the 
Logistics Section will coordinate with the respective function that the resource was ordered for to 
ensure the resource was delivered to the appropriate location and has been checked in to the 
response.  The Resource Management Unit will track all resources and display their status via either 
a status board (manual or digital) or T-card system.  Resource tracking will ensure that all 
resources throughout the duration of the event are accounted for as per the resource management 
cycle pictured below.  

 

Figure 12 – Resource Management Cycle 

 

VOLUNTEER MANAGEMENT 
The Personnel unit also serves as the primary source of volunteer management for YCH.  Ongoing, 

YCH has multiple partnerships with agencies throughout the jurisdiction that provide volunteers to 

the organization.  YCH may initiate mutual aid with neighboring housing authorities as needed for 

resources (personnel and logistical resources. In addition, YCH may partner with HandsOn 

Sacramento (this may be a limited resource due to their support for other surrounding regional 

partners), for volunteer management support in addition pre-identified sources of volunteers.  

There are also additional volunteer resources through the OA DSW volunteer groups (ELWs, ARES, 

VERT, etc.6).  The establishment of a Volunteer Management Center together with the OA may be 

necessary for coordination purposes7.   

 

                                                             
6 See the Yolo Operational Area Disaster Service Worker Volunteer Plan for more information. 
7 See the Yolo Operational Area Donations & Volunteer Management Annex for more information. 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
34 

Logistics Section  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

DONATIONS MANAGEMENT 
The Supply-Procurement unit also serves as the primary source of donations management (both in-

kind and monetary) for YCH.  YCH is working with the County of Yolo to develop procedures and 

protocols to accept and receive in-kind and monetary donations during and emergency or disaster.    



EOC Support Annex Revised 
(EOP)  September 2018 

 

 
35 

Finance & Administration Section  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION SECTION 
The Finance Section is responsible for tracking all costs associated with the EOC activation.  The 

Finance Section staff must analyze and identify appropriate costs and ensure that all costs conform 

to existing emergency operations procedures, ordinance and rules.  Additionally, the Finance 

Section staff must track costs across multiple departments and agencies. 

The Planning Section Chief identifies whether full or partial staffing is required to respond.  When 

fully activated the section may include the positions shown in the organizational chart.  The duties 

assigned to the unfilled position are the responsibility of the Planning Section Chief. 

SECTION OBJECTIVES 
The Finance Section will accomplish the following specific objectives during a disaster/emergency: 

 Track all costs and present payments to the Management Section for approval 

 Approve emergency purchases and contracts 

 Maintain force labor accounting 

 Maintain force equipment accounting 

 Process claims (workers compensation, injuries to responders, damage to equipment) 

 Fiscal Management 

TOOLS 
• Org Chart • Job Action Sheets 
• Employer’s Report of Occupational 

Injury or Illness 
• DSW Volunteer Claim Submission 

Instructions 
• Workers’ Compensation Claim Form • Accident Investigation Report 
• FEMA 90-Forms (Qty 6) • Extra Cost Accounting Forms 
• Disaster Cost Documentation Flow Chart • Disaster Cost Accounting File Checklist 
• Tracking & Allowable Costs Cheat Sheet • Initial Damage Estimate Form 
• PA Damage Categories Cheat Sheet • PA Process Flow Chart  
• CDAA vs FEMA Comparison • Recovery Fact Sheet 
• PA Designation Thresholds • Natl Register of Historic Places – Yolo 
 

The section will be staffed by the Finance Department as needed to perform the various 

functions required to support emergency management operations within the activated EOC.  

Additional branches or units may be established as needed to meet operational needs. 



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
36 

Finance & Administration Section  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

 

Figure 13 – Finance & Administration Organizational Structure 

YCH will respond (fiscally) with the understanding that the response will be funded by the agency 

and that every effort will be made to access recovery funds (but that those funds are not 

guaranteed).  Generally, in a disaster, if a Governor’s Proclamation is granted to the Yolo 

Operational Area and/or the agency the state may reimburse eligible costs to the agency at a 75/25 

percent cost share.  Additionally, if the Governor asks the President to proclaim a major disaster for 

the area and that request is granted then there may be additional funding reimbursement available.  

YCH will notify all staff when emergency coding should be used.   

YCH EMERGENCY PURCHASING POLICY  
The Finance and Administration works closely with the Logistics Section, specifically the Personnel 

and Supply-Procurement Units to account for all expenditures during the event.   



Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) Revised 
Basic Plan  September 2018 

 

 
37 

Finance & Administration Section  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

Purchasing procedures will not be waived during an emergency but may be augmented to 

accomplish any emergency work provided augmentations do not come into violation with standard 

OMB circulars.   

The Recovery unit will advise all F&A staff on any changes needed to 

policies/procedures/documentation during the event to be better in line to accept recovery funding 

sources as they become available. 

For more information on Recovery refer to the Recovery Framework 2012.   

 



EOC Support Annex Revised 
(EOP)  September 2018 

 

 
38 

Annex Maintenance  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

  ANNEX MAINTENANCE 
YCH will coordinate with the County of Yolo Office of Emergency Services and the various City and 

tribal departments on any updates and revisions of this Emergency Operations Center Annex.   

Those agencies and organizations listed as having anticipated roles and responsibilities under this 

annex shall inform the Director when they are aware that changes need to be made.  

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



EOC Support Annex Revised 
(EOP)  September 2018 

 

 
39 

Table of Figures  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

APPENDIX YCHEOC-1: TABLE OF FIGURES 
  

Figure 1 – County of Yolo EOC Organization ................................................................................................................ 6 

Figure 2 – SEMS EOC Activation Requirements ........................................................................................................ 10 

Figure 3 – Report Definition  Chart ................................................................................................................................ 14 

Figure 4 – Briefing Definition Chart ............................................................................................................................... 17 

Figure 5 – Planning & Intelligence Organizational Structure .............................................................................. 25 

Figure 6 – Planning Process SAMPLE/EXAMPLE Schedule ................................................................................. 26 

Figure 7 – Planning Considerations ............................................................................................................................... 27 

Figure 8 – The Planning Cycle .......................................................................................................................................... 28 

Figure 9 – Logistics Organizational Structure ........................................................................................................... 31 

Figure 10 – Mutual Aid System Ordering Process ................................................................................................... 32 

Figure 11 – EOC Ordering Process ................................................................................................................................. 32 

Figure 12 – Resource Management Cycle .................................................................................................................... 33 

Figure 13 – Finance & Administration Organizational Structure ...................................................................... 36 



EOC Support Annex Revised 
(EOP)  September 2018 

 

 
40 

Version History  The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 

APPENDIX YCEOC-2: VERSION HISTORY 
(Note: File each revision transmittal letter behind this record page.) 

Version 
Number 

Implemented  By Date 
Approved 

By 
Approval 

Date 
Description of 

Change 

1 
Yolo County Housing 
CEO 

2011 
Housing 

Commission 
05/19/201

1 
Initial Version 

2 
Yolo County Housing 
CEO 

2018 
Housing 

Commission 
XX/XX/201
8 

Revision to 
CPG 101 
Agency 
Specific 
Format 

3      

4      

5      

6      

7      

8      

9      

10      

 

 



 

Yolo County Housing  
Yolo County, California 

 
 

Meeting Date:  December 12, 2018   To: County Counsel                             
Yolo County Housing                                

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Review, Approve and Adopt Resolution for FEMA grant 4308-DR-CA (Baker, Brock) 
 

  

 

Minute Order No. 18-38: Approved recommended action by Resolution No. 18-17. 
 
MOTION: Neu. SECOND: Fernandez. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu, Vanderford. 
ABSENT: Johannessen, Provenza. 
 
 

 
 
 

 20. 
 



Yolo County Housing

 147 W. Main Street  Woodland:    (530) 662-5428 
WOODLAND, CA 95695 Sacramento: (916) 444-8982 

TTY:  (800) 545-1833, ext. 626 

DATE: December 12, 2018 

TO : YCH Board of Commissioners 

FROM : Lisa A. Baker, Chief Executive Officer 

PREPARED  BY: Colleen Brock, Senior Management Analyst 

SUBJECT : REVIEW, APPROVE AND ADOPT RESOLUTION FOR 
FEMA GRANT 4308-DR-CA 

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS:  

That the Board of Commissioners: 

1. Review, approve and adopt resolution to accept FEMA-4308-DR-CA grant
2. Authorize CEO to implement and complete project

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 

A Hazard Mitigation Grant was submitted to Cal OES in November 2017 for the              
purchase, delivery and installation of a generator for the Yolo County Housing (YCH)             
facility at 147 W. Main St., Woodland. 

The Generator would be an Industrial Power Diesel or Natural Gas 350KW Generator &              
Power Transfer Switch which will function as back-up power for YCH’s facility as for the               
Agency’s Emergency Operations Center, as well as ancillary space, when needed for            
emergency operations, for Yolo County OES and other allied jurisdictions. It would            
weigh approximately 10,000 pounds and measure: L 200” x W 58” x H 100”. The               
installation costs involve the hiring of an electrician, the pouring of a concrete slab, and               
power connection of the unit to the facility. A secure fence will also be built to surround                 
the generator.  

Working together to provide quality affordable housing and community development services for all 



Page 2 
 
 
This is critical as part of our Emergency Operations Plan, as well as being a part in a                  
larger County-wide emergency Infrastructure system. The goals & objectives of this           
project are to provide critical infrastructure protection, enhance our communication          
capabilities, build capacity in collaboration with Yolo County OES and support our            
catastrophic planning and response in the event of disaster. YCH is a partner in the               
Yolo Emergency Services/Joint Emergency Management Service (JEMS), through a         
Shared Services Agreement. A regional approach considers the needs of local units of             
government and applicable municipalities and local organizations in the projects,          
activities and planning of the Operational Area. We have been a consistent and visible              
participant/partner in the Operational Area.  
 
YCH continues to have direct involvement with the area’s emergency management           
planning and systems, which increases the county’s ability to prepare for and respond             
to emergencies. In addition, it enhances all partner’s ability to work effectively, in the              
event of a disaster, with the use of the YCH Emergency Operations Center (EOC), as               
an ancillary or back up facility (with back up power) for OES Operations in conjunction               
with the allied jurisdictions. YCH is also a Mass Care Shelter Partner, who during a               
disaster, could open our doors, through our Emergency Operations Center, to shelter            
people from all over the County or neighboring Counties. Although the area that the              
Administrative Offices/EOC is located is not in a flood plain, many of our properties              
throughout the jurisdiction are in a 100 year flood plain. 
 
In the 2010 wind event, YCH lost power for several days and sustained damage to its                
servers. In addition the loss of use of the Agency’s EOC resulted in a difficulty in                
coordinating repairs and response to properties throughout the county. In another           
incident, YCH lost power to the entire facility due to a traffic accident approximately 2               
years ago, which damaged a transformer and knocked out power to our entire side of               
town. With no back-up generator to support electricity for key card access, lights,             
computers, phones, climate control and toilet flushing, staff were sent home for the day.              
The facility could not support required operational functions. The purchase of the            
generator would not only enable YCH to use and offer a fully equipped, secure facility               
for its own emergency operations, but also, due to its proximity to OES offices, this               
project would enable the County, in an emergency, allow for mutual aid use to provide               
expand EOC operational capability, including basic needs functions (restrooms,         
showers, kitchen, etc), communication capabilities and disaster operations coordination         
with the housing authority.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
A cost analysis was performed, as YCH had a need to replace and install similar               
equipment at two of our Public Housing Sites. Considerations were: Industrial grade,            
unit size, make and model, standby power rating, starting capabilities, reliability, cooling            
and exhaust capabilities, environmentally friendly and excellent weatherproof and sound          
enclosures. All costs are reasonable and necessary based on recent pricing and actual             
project costs for a similar YCH project. Due to the current trade and construction              

Working together to provide quality affordable housing and community development services for all 



Page 3 
 
climate, staff has also built in an inflation factor calculator. Maintenance costs,            
continued operation and insurance coverage, will be sustained after the grant term by             
Yolo County Housing as part of its normal operations. 
 
Fiscal impact to the agency is budgeted at $133,000, of which the federal share is               
obligated at 75% or $99,750 and the YCH share is obligated at $33,250. YCH share will                
derive from the Capital Reserve fund for the Administration Building. The project must             
be completed within the next 12 months.  
 
CONCLUSION 
 
As YCH is owner & landlord to thousands of housing units and has a duty of care to                  
approximately 6,000 residents. Responsibilities also extend to our daycare facilities,          
water wells & water systems, sewer systems, streets, sidewalks, parks, community           
centers & offices throughout Yolo County, so remaining open and viable is key to any               
emergencies. Hazards such as fire, flood, earthquakes & mass power outages are all             
potential threats to our diverse infrastructure crossing all jurisdictions. The generator           
project will mitigate life & property losses & provide back up power to our Emergency               
Operations Center (EOC) to assure continued functions & protection of our critical            
infrastructure, as identified in our Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
 
A generator is critical to the mission to maintain YCH services and to assist in those of                 
our JEMS/OES Partners, when needed in an emergency in our community. Emergency            
Planning and Management is critical in enhancing community resilience, as it plays a             
critical role in managing threats to essential business functions and services today and             
far into the future. As a partner in OES services, YCH must be poised to rapidly adapt                 
and respond to internal or external dynamic changes, opportunities and threats or            
demands and disruptions. The approval of this grant funding for a generator will             
enhance and support the response strategy, capabilities and resources available to           
YCH, Yolo County, OES partners and the communities we serve. 
 
Staff recommends approval by resolution of the acceptance of the FEMA grant for the              
purchase, delivery and installation of a generator at the YCH main office/facility. 
 
Attachments: Resolution 
 

 

 

Working together to provide quality affordable housing and community development services for all 





 

Yolo County Housing  
Yolo County, California 

 
 

Meeting Date:  December 12, 2018   To: County Counsel                             
Yolo County Housing                                

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Review and Approve License Agreement with the State of California to Operate the Davis 
Migrant Center as Winter Emergency Housing for Families Displaced by the Paradise 
Camp Fire (Baker) 
 

  

 

Minute Order No. 18-39: Approved recommended action by Agreement No. 18-03. 
 
MOTION: Neu. SECOND: Vanderford. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu, Vanderford. 
ABSENT: Johannessen, Provenza. 
 
 

 
 
 

 21. 
 



  

Yolo County Housing  
Main Office: 147 W. Main Street, Woodland, Ca 95695 

 Woodland: (530) 662-5428   
 Sacramento: (916) 444-8982   
 TTY:  (800) 545-1833, ext. 626         

 
 

 

DATE:  December 12, 2018 

TO: YCH Housing Commission   

FROM: Lisa A. Baker, Chief Executive Officer 
   

SUBJECT: Review and Approve License Agreement for Use of Davis Migrant 
Center as Winter Shelter for Paradise Camp Fire Evacuees  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
That the Housing Commission: 

1. Approve the License Agreement for the use of the Davis Migrant Center, subject 
to agreement on proposed changes in term and notice; and 

2. Authorize the CEO to execute, subject to Final Review and Concurrence of 
Agency Legal Counsel. 
 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
YCH manages migrant centers for the Department of Housing and Community 
Development, Office of Migrant Services (OMS).  These centers are part of a program 
for administering housing for migratory workers and their families at the Davis and 
Madison migrant centers in Yolo County. 
  
YCH has been in discussions with OMS, the California Office of Emergency Services 
(CalOES), the County of Butte and the Governor's Office about the use of 20 of the 60 
units as short term shelter for victims of the deadly Butte fire. The proposed temporary 
license agreement is for this purpose. The agreement is for up to 30 units at The most, 
through March. This number ensures That, should not all families leave when expected, 
there will still be units available for our seasonal farmworker families in April when The 
agricultural season is set to begin.   
 
Under the License agreement, the State will allow us to operate the center in the off 
season. Funding will come from Butte County, who will be receiving funding from 
CalOES. The agreement will be in the form of a Memorandum of Understanding and will 
be crafted by Yolo's Office of Emergency Services under our Joint Emergency 
Management agreement. This will help ensure that the agreement meets disaster 
reimbursement requirements. The Memorandum will be an exhibit of the License 
agreement. Staff is working through budget requests, including contingency, potential 
legal expenses, unit turn and operations costs to be sure that YCH interests are 
protected.  
 



Housing Commission 
August 23, 2017 
Page 2 of 2 
 
Legal counsel has reviewed the License and recommends changes to term and 
termination. Currently the License is for a 3 day notice and a term of mid March. By law, 
the Center can operate as shelter through 3/31. To reduce liability to the Agency, it is 
suggested that to the term of occupancy match the statutory date. To preserve YCH 
interests and mitigate liability, it is suggested that the notice be set at 15 days instead of 
3. Staff was unable to reach State's legal counsel prior to the timing of this item. It is 
recommended that Agency legal counsel work with the State on language revision. 
 
Separately, YCH has been in discussions with Butte Housing and Butte County 
regarding target population and housing assistance. We have agreed That, to help 
ensure orderly exit from Winter Shelter, that evacuees will be income eligible housing 
voucher holders. To not impact funding in our existing program, and to assist in the 
recovery for Butte Housing, we will be billing Butte Housing for any vouchers leased in 
Yolo. We will also be reaching out to our neighboring authorities and local non profit 
housing developers for referrals and assistance. 
 
 
As the Commission is aware, this program has been operated by YCH for 53 years as 
of 2018 and YCH has been a proud provider of service.  We are really honored to be 
able to bring this new opportunity to the Commission for its consideration. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 

Costs to program will be paid by disaster monies. 
 
Conclusions: 

Staff recommends approval. 

 
 
 
Attachment: License Agreement 



FREE RECORDING IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH CALIFORNIA 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 27383 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

Department of Housing and 
Community Development 
Office of Migrant Services Program 
P .0. Box 952052 
Sacramento, CA 94252-2052 
Attn: Legal Affairs Division-
OMS Attorney 

Agreement No. 18-03 

MIGRANT CENTER LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR EMERGENCY SHELTER PROGRAM 

This License Agreement (this "Agreement") is dated as of December 11, 2018, for reference 
purposes only, between the Department of Housing and Community Development, a public 
agency of the State of California (the "Department" or "Licensor''), and The Housing Authority of 
the County of Yolo, a public housing authority ("Licensee"). 

Where the Department operates the Office of Migrant Services ("OMS"), a seasonal program, 
which provides affordable housing for migratory agricultural workers and their families under 
Health and Safety Code sections 50710-50715, California Code of Regulations Title 25 
Subchapter 7, Sections 7600 et seq., and all applicable law. 

Where the primary purpose of the OMS program is to provide seasonal housing to migratory 
agricultural workers and their families but where the Department has discretion for its 24 OMS 
centers ("OMS Centers") to be used for alternative purposes, which serve the public interest; 
and where the Department has consented to this Emergency Shelter use so long as the use, 
does not incur any cost to the OMS program, and does not impede the normal operations of the 
OMS Center, which must be prioritized. 

RECITALS 

A. By a certain lease (the "Lease") recorded in the Official Records of County of Yolo, California, 
on October 16, 2002, as Instrument No.2002-0036777-00, Licensor obtained a leasehold estate 
and other interests in that property more particularly described in the Lease described in Exhibit 
A (the "Premises"). The Department is the current holder of the leasehold estate created by the 
Lease. 

OMS License, Page 1 
Emergency Shelter 
Rev: 10/26/2018 
Prep: 12/11 /18 



B. The parties desire, by this Agreement, to provide for the licensing by Licensor to Licensee, of 
the revocable right to use and occupy the Premises described in Exhibit A and as set forth in the 
Lease. 

In consideration of the matters described above, and of the mutual benefits and obligations set 
forth in this License Agreement, the parties agree as follows: 

SECTION ONE. GRANT OF LICENSE 
Licensor grants to Licensee a revocable license to occupy and use the Premises subject to all of 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and pursuant to Health and Safety Code, Chapter 
8.5 of Part 2 of Division 31 Section 50715 and that the Licensee shall comply with all applicable 
law and specifically with the requirements of Health and Safety Code, Chapter 11.5 commencing 
with Section 50800. 

SECTION TWO. DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES 
The Premises is commonly known by the following name and street address: 

Davis Migrant Center 
31150 County Road 105 

Davis, CA 95620 

SECTION THREE. ACCESS TO UNITS 
Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Licensor authorizes the 
Licensee to use no more than 60 Units on the Premises for the purpose of providing a temporary 
homeless shelter and associated services to individuals and families (Emergency Shelter 
Program). The property is comprised of 62 units. The Licensee may use space surrounding the 
units as is needed and reasonable to carry out the purpose of providing temporary homeless 
shelter and associated services. On or prior to commencement of this Agreement, the 
Department, in its sole discretion, will designate in writing the units available for Licensee's use. 

SECTION FOUR. ON-SITE MANAGEMENT 
Licensee must employ, at its own expense, and prior to allowing occupancy of the Premises, a 
resident manager and necessary staff to perform the services and duties of Licensee's proposed 
Emergency Shelter Program. Employment of current OMS-funded personnel, who are employed 
year-round by the OMS program, is strictly prohibited for employment for purposes of the 
Emergency Shelter; as said employees are already employed for year-round OMS purposes. 
Licensee may contract with a management agent for the performance of the services; however, 
such an arrangement does not relieve the Licensee of responsibility for proper performance of 
these duties and compliance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

SECTION FIVE. UTILITIES 
Licensee understands and agrees to provide its own utilities as required for its use of the 
Premises, including water, electrical, gas, and garbage collection. Licensee must convert all 
utility service to its own name prior to occupying the Premises, and cover all utility costs through 
March 31, 2019; or agree to a pro-rata share of utilities based on the number of units being used 
for Winter Shelter versus the number of units being used by Department for housing on-site 

OMS License, Page 2 
Emergency Shelter 
Rev: 10/26/2018 
Prep: 12/11 /18 



manager and maintenance staff. Utility payments will be billed monthly to Licensee based on 
pro-rata of units under this License for the total of all utilities. 

If heating devices are needed in each respective unit due to cold weather, and where the OMS 
Centers were not constructed or equipped to provide year-round housing, Licensee shall provide 
and install adequate heating devices, whether temporary or permanent, which meet State and 
local codes and do not exceed the capacity of the migrant housing center's electrical or gas 
system. In such an event, a letter must be provided to OMS indicating that the heating devices 
are safe and in proper working order, and have an Underwriters Laboratories (UL) certification or 
other appropriate approval rating. 

SECTION SIX. NO ALTERATIONS 
Licensee shall not make any alterations, changes, or additions in or to the Premises without 
Department's prior written consent. 

SECTION SEVEN. INSURANCE 
Prior to occupying the Premises, Licensee shall procure and carry, at its own expense, or 
provide evidence of self-insurance for: commercial general liability insurance with a combined 
single limit for bodily injury and property damages of not less than $1 million per occurrence and 
$2 million in the aggregate; and, a policy of standard fire, extended coverage and special 
extended coverage insurance (all risks), including a vandalism and malicious mischief 
endorsement. Licensee shall have its insurer issuing the insurance described above waive any 
rights of subrogation that such company may have against Department. 

SECTION EIGHT. DURATION OF LICENSE SPECIFIED 
Department gives to Licensee the privilege of entering on the above-described Premises to 
operate the Emergency Shelter Program and associated services commencing when this 
Agreement is fully executed and all prerequisite provisions of this Agreement have been 
satisfied. This License is to remain valid and in full effect until March 31, 2019, unless sooner 
revoked by the Department in writing pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

SECTION NINE. RENT AND OTHER INCOME 
Licensee shall pay the Licensor, as monthly fees without deduction setoff, the sum of twelve and 
no/100 dollars ($12.00) per authorized unit per night, payable on a monthly basis and due on the 
last day of each month in the manner required by the Department. The Licensor has calculated 
$12.00 per night per unit as the cost of operating the center. Statutorily the Department cannot 
incur any associated center costs that are not OMS related. The Licensor is granting use of the 
Premises for Emergency Shelter purposes based on timely payment of the cost of operating the 
OMS Centers at $12.00 per night per unit. 

SECTION TEN. DOCUMENTATION SUBMITTAL TIMELINE 
All documentation requested in Section Three of the OMS Emergency Shelter Procedures must 
be received by OMS no less than ten (10) business days prior to the Emergency Shelter 
Program start date. Failure to comply with this requirement will prohibit the use of the Premises 
for the Emergency Shelter Program for the current season. 

OMS License, Page 3 
Emergency Shelter 
Rev: 10/26/2018 
Prep: 12111 /18 



SECTION ELEVEN. EARLY TERMINATION 
Should the Premises or any essential part of such Premises, be destroyed by fire or other 
casualty, this Agreement will immediately terminate. Any party upon three (3) days written notice 
may terminate this Agreement for good cause. Said termination will be effective at the end of 
three (3) days. Licensee shall immediately take steps to remove all persons occupying the 
Migrant Center upon the receipt of, or giving of notice of termination of the Agreement. The 
parties' obligation to pay any sums under this agreement survives the termination of this 
agreement. 

SECTION TWELVE. HOLDING OVER AFTER TERMINATION OF LICENSE 
Licensee shall have no right to occupy the Premises after termination of this Agreement. If 
Licensee remains in possession of the licensed area after the expiration or other termination of 
this Agreement, Licensee shall be responsible for all damages and costs incurred by the 
Department as a result of such unauthorized occupancy, including but not limited to alternate 
housing costs for migrant farmworkers scheduled to occupy the premises. Nothing in this 
paragraph is construed to grant Licensee any right to occupy the licensed Premises after 
termination. 

SECTION THIRTEEN. CONDITION OF PREMISES NOT WARRANTED 
Licensor does not warrant nor represent the Premises as safe, healthful, or suitable for the 
purposes for which it is permitted to be used under the terms of this Agreement. 

SECTION FOURTEEN. INDEMNIFICATION OF DEPARTMENT 
Licensee shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold the Department harmless from any and all 
claims arising from Licensee's use of the Premises or from the conduct of its Emergency Shelter 
Program or from any activity, work or thing which may be permitted or suffered by Licensee in or 
about the Premises and shall further indemnify, protect, defend and hold the Department 
harmless from and against any and all claims arising from any breach or default in the 
performance of any obligation on Licensee's part to be performed under this Agreement or 
arising from the negligence or willful misconduct of Licensee or any of its agents, contractors, 
employees, invitees, patrons, customers, or members in or about the Premises and from any 
and all costs, attorneys' fees and costs, expenses and liabilities incurred in the defense of any 
claim or any action or proceeding brought thereon, including negotiations in connection 
therewith. Licensee hereby assumes all risk and damage to property or injury to persons in or 
about the Premises from any cause during its use or occupancy of the Premises or otherwise in 
connection with the license afforded by this Agreement, and Licensee hereby waives all claims 
in respect thereof against the Department in connection therewith; provided, however the 
foregoing will not extent to the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Licensor. 

SECTION FIFTEEN. DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES 
Licensee shall keep the units designated to Licensee in good condition and repair. All damage 
or injury to the Premises from any acts or omissions of Licensee, its employees, agents, guests, 
and invitees, shall be promptly repaired by Licensee, at its sole cost and expense to the 
satisfaction of the Department. The Licensee shall bear the cost to repair or replace property 
and inventory of any said unit (e.g. mattresses, stoves, door handles, etc.) as a result of any and 
all damages caused by Licensee or any Emergency Shelter Program participants or guests 

OMS License, Page 4 
Emergency Shelter 
Rev: 10/26/2018 
Prep: 12/11/18 



(regardless of whether vetted by the Licensee) that occupy, dwell or visit the unit through the 
Emergency Shelter Program, as all units must be returned to the Licensor in the same condition 
delivered to Licensee. Licensee and Department will conduct a pre-occupancy walk through to 
identify any pre-existing damage. A post-occupancy walk through will be conducted on 
April 1, 2019 or earlier if Licensee ceases occupancy prior to the termination date. All damages 
in the pre-occupancy walk through and post-occupancy walk through will be memorialized in a 
written report, with the Licensee bearing the full responsibility to restore the post-occupancy 
condition of the Premises to the pre-occupancy condition. If the Premises are not restored to 
Licensee's pre-occupancy condition by April 1, 2019, Licensee shall cover the cost to house the 
migrant farmworkers that are scheduled to start reporting to the Premises. 

SECTION SIXTEEN. MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT 
Any modification of this Agreement or additional obligation assumed by either party in 
connection with this Agreement is binding only if evidenced in writing signed by each party or an 
authorized representative of each party. 

SECTION SEVENTEEN. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement regarding the subject matter contained herein 
between the parties and any prior understanding or representation of any kind preceding the 
date of this Agreement will not be binding on either party except to the extent incorporated in this 
Agreement. 

SECTION EIGHTEEN. NOTICES 
Any notice provided for or concerning this Agreement must be in writing and will be deemed 
sufficiently given when sent by certified or registered mail if sent to the respective address of 
each party as set forth below: 

To Licensor: 
Department of Housing and Community Development 
Office of Migrant Services Program 
P .0. Box 952052 
Sacramento, CA 94252-2052 
Attn: OMS Manager 

To Licensee: 
The Housing Authority of the County of Yolo 
147 West Main Street 
Woodland, CA 95695 
Attn: Lisa A. Baker 

SECTION NINETEEN. ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS 
The rights of the Licensee under this Agreement are personal to that party and may not be 
assigned or transferred to any other person, firm, corporation, or other entity without the prior, 
express, and written consent of the Department. 

OMS License, Page 5 
Emergency Shelter 
Rev: 10/26/2018 
Prep: 12111/18 



SECTION TWENTY. GOVERNING LAW 
This Agreement is governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the 
State of California. 

SECTION TWENTY-ONE. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW 
Licensee must comply with all applicable federal, state, and local law, in connection with their 
occupancy of the Premises and operation of the emergency shelter, and conform to existing 
uses, notices, and applicable requirements of any nature. 

SECTION TWENTY-TWO. COUNTERPARTS 
This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which is an original and all of 
which will constitute one and the same instrument. 

SECTION TWENTY-THREE. AGREEMENT TO OPERATE 
Licensee intends to enter into an agreement with the County of Butte to operate the Premises to 
temporarily shelter evacuees from the Camp Fire in Butte County. A copy of such agreement is 
attached as "Exhibit B." 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of the reference 
date first set forth above. 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING 
AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: 

Lindy Suggs 
Section Chief, Asset Management & Compliance 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF YOLO: 

Lisa A. Baker 
Chief Executive Officer 

OMS License, Page 6 
Emergency Shelter 
Rev: 10/26/2018 
Prep: 12/11/18 



EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

That certain parcel of land being a portion of the Northeast one-quarter (1/4) of Section 6, T. 7 N., 
R. 3 E., M.D.B. & M., Yolo County, California, as said parcel is shown on that Record of Survey 
filed in Book 1 O of Maps and Surveys at Page 24 in the Office of the Recorder of the County of 
Yolo more fully described as follows: 

Beginning at the Northeast corner of said Section 6; said corner also being at the centerline of 
County Road No. 36 (60 feet wide) and County Road No. 105 (60 feet wide); Thence Southerly 
along the East line of said Section 6, said line also being the center line of said County Road No. 
105, South 07° 02' 13" East 1348.94 feet; thence Westerly along a line parallel with the North line 
of said Section 6, North 89° 20'53" West 530.27 feet; thence Northerly alone a line parallel with 
the East line of said Section 6 North 07° 02' 13" West 1318.94 feet to the North line of said Section 
6; thence Easterly along said North line, said line also being the centerline of said County Road 
36, South 89° 20' 53" East 630.27 feet to the point of beginning. 

Containing 16.273 acres gross and 15.000 acres excluding the area lying within roads. 

OMS License, Page 7 
Emergency Shelter 
Rev: 10/26/2018 
Prep: 12/11/18 



 
OMS License 
Emergency Shelter 
Rev:  10/26/2018 rev5 
Prep:  12/06/18 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

[a copy of the draft or final executed copy of the Agreement to Operate 

 between Yolo County Housing Authority and County of Butte] 



 

Yolo County Housing  
Yolo County, California 

 
 

Meeting Date:  December 12, 2018   To: County Counsel                             
Yolo County Housing                                

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Review and Approve the Rates to be Applied to Generated Solar Power to be Billed to 
Residents (Gillette, Baker) 
 

  

 

Minute Order No. 18-40: Approved recommended action. 
 
MOTION: Arnold. SECOND: Vanderford. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu, Vanderford. 
ABSENT: Johannessen, Provenza. 
 
 

 
 
 

  22. 
 



 
 
 

Yolo County Housing  

  Lisa A. Baker, Chief Executive Officer 

 
 147 W. Main Street     Woodland:    (530) 662-5428 
 WOODLAND, CA 95695     Sacramento: (916) 444-8982 

    TTY:             (800) 545-1833, ext. 626  
 

 
 
DATE: December 12, 2018 
TO: YCH Housing Commission  
FROM: Lisa A. Baker, CEO 

James D. Gillette, Finance Director  
SUBJECT: Review and Approve the Rates to be applied to Generated Solar 

Power Billed to Residents 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS:  
That the Housing Commission  
1. Review the basic rate options for charging tenants for the solar power; and 
2. Set Utility Rates based on the annual Utility Allowance set for the Program; and 
3. Authorize the CEO to implement. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
In 2013, YCH set out to improve energy efficiency throughout the portfolio and take              
advantage of various financing programs for the public housing sites. The design and             
construction of these solar arrays has been financed with a 15 year loan of $2,894,075               
which is to be repaid by residents as part of their monthly utility cost. 
YCH has been in ongoing community dialogue with residents and with the Resident             
Advisory Board since 2013 on both the installation of solar arrays and the recently              
completed Energy Performance Contract, which provided $1.6 million in energy efficiency           
improvements, including LED lights and in completing the full window replacement project            
which YCH began in 2010. YCH completed energy upgrades prior to installation of solar in               
order to assist households with improving baseline energy consumption for families. 
DISCUSSION: 
This project is comprised of 4 separate arrays designed to produce 1,101,384 kWh of              
electricity which is estimated to create $218,960 of generated value in year one, increasing              
each year thereafter based to be consistent with expected PG&E rate increase over time.              
The production rates are based on the PVsyst software, which is an industry standard that               
utilizes location and orientation of the system along with degradation factors based on the              
National Renewable Energy Laboratory estimates at a rate of 0.5%-0.8% annually. 

Working together to provide quality affordable housing and community development services for all 



Housing Commission 
May 24, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 

The cost of this project is $2,892,175 of which Siemens Industry, Inc. helped YCH to               
secure a $587,701 Multifamily Affordable Solar Housing (MASH) grant through PG&E and            
an equipment loan from PNC bank at 3.18% fixed rate over 15 years plus 12 months of                 
construction.  This loan is secured by the equipment, rather than the land or improvements. 
As noted in the attached pro-forma analysis, staff anticipates initial annual service costs of              
$7,000 to maintain the arrays, which is expected to gradually increase over time. This cost               
was derived based on actual maintenance and ongoing service costs incurred by owners of              
similar systems. 
All of the electricity generated from these systems on a monthly basis will be allocated and                
credited on each tenant’s PG&E bill. This generated credit will then be billed to each tenant                
at a set rate which is paid to YCH’s central office cost center (COCC) in order to fund the                   
monthly note payments and operating costs for the systems. As it is set up, COCC is                
essentially another private electrical utility which is not regulated by the PUC. 
In public housing, tenant rent is calculated at 30% of income for rent and (modest) utility                
costs, based on an engineered utility allowance (this is a credit against rent to help families                
afford rent and utilities). By State law, Housing Authorities are responsible for setting utility              
allowances for the the jurisdiction. By federal statute, YCH uses actual public housing             
tenant use data to set its annual utility allowance. There is a separate engineered standard               
for Voucher households, as well as a Voucher Energy Efficient Allowance for units meeting              
State Title 24 energy requirements in the Voucher program 
The FY 2018-2019 utility allowance rate for electricity is $0.21169/KWH. The impact of this              
calculation is that the higher the utility allowance, the lower the amount of actual rent               
amount or a lower utility allowance driving a higher actual rent amount. In other words, in                
public housing, if utility rates go up, rent goes down since the tenant pays 30% overall for                 
both. 
Based on the foregoing, staff is recommending that the Board of Commissioners set utility              
rates to be at the same level as the utility rate set for the Annual Utility Allowance used to                   
set the credit offset for utility use by residents. 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Depending on the rate selected for use in billing tenants for the generated power, the fiscal                
impacts vary. The rate used in the pro-forma starts at $0.19979/KWH and increases by 3%               
annually. In order to demonstrate the impacts, we have the following three basic scenarios              
or options: 
1. Set rate lower than the current Utility Allowance rate of $0.21169/KWH, which would             
decrease the amount of revenue provided to the utility provider (YCH COCC) to cover debt               
service and operating costs, as well as the reduce the ability to create a capital reserve for                 
capital needs and replacement. Since the actual solar production amounts and operating            
costs are estimated but uncertain, this option poses significant financial risk to YCH-COCC             
for a service being provided to the properties. 
2. Set rate higher than the current Utility Allowance rate, which would increase the             
amount of revenue provided to COCC to cover debt service, operating costs and fund              



Housing Commission 
May 24, 2017 
Page 3 
 
 

reserves; but this would at the expense of the tenants who would be paying a higher                
amount for the power generated and would mean less rent to the development, which could               
have an operations impact on property quality and upkeep. 
3. Make rate the same as the current Utility Allowance rate, which would provide a              
small increase in funding over the initial pro-forma rate. This is good because costs to date                
have been over original estimates and future costs are unknown, but could cover             
unexpected maintenance or lower power production amounts due to climate variables. In            
addition, this rate is set at the same rate at the Utility Allowance rate, which strikes a                 
balance between rent to the property and revenue generated to pay debt service. It is a                
reasonable and easily explained standard for residents.  

 
CONCLUSION: 
Staff recommends that the Board approve using the same electricity rate that is calculated              
in the utility allowance each year as the rate to charge tenants for the generated solar                
power that was credited to their account through PG&E. 
 
 
Attachment: YCH Solar Array Pro-forma Analysis 



Yolo County Housing Authority Solar Project non-HUD 7/24/2017
Please see footnotes below

Year
Energy Savings/ 

Add'l Billing
Solar Panel 

Degradation Gross Savings
Principal & 

Interest Ongoing Support Program Costs
Annual 

Contribution
Annual Net 
Cashflow

Cumulative Net 
Cashflow

Constr.  $                  74,029  $                  74,029  $                  74,029 74,029$                  
Mash 
Grant  $                587,701  $                587,701  $                           -   

1 218,960$                 $                218,960 166,464$                7,000$                     173,464$                 $                  45,496 119,525$                
2 225,529$                (133)$                          $                225,396 171,888$                7,210$                     179,098$                 $                  46,298 165,823$                
3 232,295$                (275)$                          $                232,020 177,468$                7,426$                     184,894$                 $                  47,125 212,948$                
4 239,264$                (424)$                          $                238,840 183,204$                7,649$                     190,853$                 $                  47,986 260,935$                
5 246,441$                (583)$                          $                245,858 189,108$                7,879$                     196,987$                 $                  48,872 309,806$                
6 253,835$                (750)$                          $                253,085 195,192$                8,115$                     203,307$                 $                  49,778 359,584$                
7 261,450$                (927)$                          $                260,523 201,456$                8,358$                     209,814$                 $                  50,708 410,292$                
8 269,293$                (1,113)$                       $                268,180 207,888$                8,609$                     216,497$                 $                  51,683 461,976$                
9 277,372$                (1,310)$                       $                276,062 214,464$                8,867$                     223,331$                 $                  52,731 514,706$                

10 285,693$                (1,517)$                       $                284,176 221,340$                9,133$                     230,473$                 $                  53,703 568,409$                
11 294,264$                (1,736)$                       $                292,528 228,384$                9,407$                     237,791$                 $                  54,737 623,145$                
12 303,092$                (69,450)$                     $                233,642 168,120$                9,690$                     177,810$                 $                  55,832 678,978$                
13 312,185$                (2,208)$                       $                309,977 243,048$                9,980$                     253,028$                 $                  56,948 735,926$                
14 321,550$                (2,463)$                       $                319,087 250,704$                10,280$                  260,984$                 $                  58,103 794,029$                
15 331,197$                (2,731)$                       $                328,466 258,425$                10,588$                  269,013$                 $                  59,452 853,482$                
16 341,133$                (2,813)$                       $                338,320 -$                         -$                          $                338,320 1,191,801$             
17 351,367$                (2,897)$                       $                348,470 -$                         -$                          $                348,470 1,540,271$             
18 361,908$                (2,984)$                       $                358,924 -$                         -$                          $                358,924 1,899,194$             
19 372,765$                (3,074)$                       $                369,691 -$                         -$                          $                369,691 2,268,885$             
20 383,948$                (3,166)$                       $                380,782 -$                          $                380,782 2,649,667$             

5,957,566$             (100,554)$                 5,782,983$             3,664,854$             130,192$                3,207,345$             -$                         2,649,667$             

Program Cost 2,892,175.00$       Annual Interest Rate 3.180%
MASH Grant - to be paid to lender 587,701.00$          Finance Period 15 + 1 yr constr
YCH Bond Counsel Fees 7,500.00$               Payments per Year 12

Amount Financed 2,899,675.00$       Total Interest Expense 765,179.04$          

Annual Program Savings 218,960.00$          Electricity Escalation 3.0%
Simple Payback (years) 13.2 Natural Gas Escalation 3.0%

Water Escalation
Footnotes: Fuel / Other Escalation

(1) Siemens is implementing energy efficiency improvements in several Operational Escalation 3.0%
YCH properties which will not be financed.  Those improvements will Service Escalation 3.0%
result in additional annual operational savings of $2,000 in year one.

(2) Solar degradation has been studied by the National Renewable Energy Laboratory and determined to be between 0.5% - 0.8% annually.
The proposed panels have a 20 year warranty, but the financial model assumes that the panels will produce 0.5% less electricity every year.

(3) The project cost column titled "Ongoing Support" represents the estimated annual service costs to mainatin the solar arrays.
These costs may include cleaning and occasional maintenance (wire re-connections, repairs to modems for data communications, weed
abatement, etc.)  The "On-Going Support" column represents a best estimate of the costs that YCH will incur for these services based on other
Projects and conversations with Service Providers.  Additionally the financial model considers replacement of the inverters in year 12.



 

Yolo County Housing  
Yolo County, California 

 
 

Meeting Date:  December 12, 2018   To: County Counsel                             
Yolo County Housing                                

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1. Review, Approve and Accept the FY 2017-2018 Audit Reports for Yolo County 

Housing (Gillette) 
 

  

 

Minute Order No. 18-41: Approved recommended action. 
 
MOTION: Fernandez. SECOND: Vanderford. AYES: Arnold, Fernandez, Neu, 
Vanderford. ABSENT: Johannessen, Provenza. 
 
 

 
 
 

  23. 
 



Yolo County Housing  

Lisa A. Baker, Chief Executive Officer 

 147 W. Main Street Woodland:    (530) 662-5428  
 WOODLAND, CA 95695 Sacramento: (916) 444-8982 

 TTY:              (800) 545-1833, ext. 626  
 
 

 

DATE: December 12, 2018 
TO: YCH Board of Commissioners  
FROM: James D. Gillette, Finance Director 
SUBJECT: Review, Approve, and Accept the FY 2017-2018 Audit Reports for 

Yolo County Housing 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends that the Board of Commissioners review, approve, and accept the FY             
2017-2018 Yolo County Housing audit reports, which include the include the Single            
Audit and Report to the Housing Commission. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

Staff presents the audit reports from our independent certified public accountant           
(CohnReznick LLP) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The auditors have issued              
an unqualified opinion on the financial statements and there are no new nor any              
outstanding findings.  

A discussion of the most significant items that occurred during the year and changes              
from the prior year are presented in the Management Discussion and Analysis            
beginning on page five of the attached Basic Financial Statements. 

You will note that the format of the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in               
Net Position (similar to an income statement) show a large operating loss because grant              
revenue is included in Non-operating revenue in order to highlight the amount of             
subsidy required to maintain the programs. Additionally, since depreciation and          
amortization are non-cash expenses, they are typically ignored when reviewing the           
financial results of government agencies. 

Programs included in the reports as the “Primary Government” that those that are             
wholly owned or controlled by YCH or New Hope CDC. These programs include public              
and other low income housing units, rental assistance, migrant housing, family           
self-sufficiency, and other related programs. 

New Hope CDC is the sole managing general partner (NHCDC Crosswood LLC) of the              
owner (New Hope Crosswood Associates LP) of Crosswood Apartments. This          
relationship requires that the property be included as a discrete “Component Unit” of             
YCH for financial reporting. 



YCH Board of Commissioners  
December 12, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
The audit report is on record at the Clerk of the Board. Interested persons can review                
the report at either the Clerk of the Board at 625 Court Street, or at the office of YCH at                    
147 W. Main Street, Woodland, CA during normal business hours. 

Staff wishes to thank the auditors for its conscientious approach during the audit             
process and for completing the work in a timely manner. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Agency-wide, the Primary Government (YCH direct activities) had a pre-depreciation          
increase in net assets of $1,095,246. With the inclusion of depreciation, this is a              
decrease in net position of $351,975.  The primary reasons for this increase were: 

● An ongoing focus on managing budgets throughout the organization. 

● Capital grants funded capital improvements for water well improvements in          
winters and stairwell repairs at Cottonwood. Since these improvements were funded           
with Capital fund grants from HUD and CDBG grants from the City of Woodland, rather               
than with debt, the assets are shown on the balance sheet while the related funding is                
captured as revenue on the Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in net             
position and therefore shown as an increase in net assets. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the Board review, approve, and accept the audit reports as             
submitted. 

 

 

 

Attachments: 

● Basic Financial Statements and Independent Auditor’s Report 
● Single Audit Reports on Internal Controls and Program Compliance 
● Report to the Housing Commission 

Working together to provide quality affordable housing and community development services for all 



 

Yolo County Housing 
 

Basic Financial Statements 
(With Supplementary Information)  
and Independent Auditor's Report 

 
June 30, 2018 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Table of Contents 
 
 

1 

Page 

Independent Auditor's Report 2 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Required Supplementary Information) 5 

Basic Financial Statements  

Statement of Net Position 19 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 21 

Statement of Cash Flows 22 

Notes to Financial Statements 24 

Required Supplementary Information (Other than MD&A) 

Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan - Schedule of the Authority's 
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 62 

Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan - Schedule of Contributions 63 

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 64 

Schedule of OPEB Plan Contributions 65 

Other Supplementary Information 

Combining Schedules 

 Combining Schedule of Net Position 66 

 Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 68 

 Combining Schedule of Cash Flows 70 

 Combining Schedule of Net Position - Business Activities 73 

 Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - 
Business Activities 76 

Schedule of Public Housing Capital Fund Grants 78 

Financial Data Schedule 79 

 



 

2 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Housing Commission 
Yolo County Housing 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Yolo County Housing (the 
"Authority"), a component unit of the County of Yolo, California, and its discretely presented 
component unit as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion.  

 



 

3 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Yolo County Housing and its discretely presented component unit as of 
June 30, 2018, and the changes in its financial position and where applicable, cash flows 
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis, the cost-sharing defined benefit pension plan 
schedule of the Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability, the cost-sharing 
defined benefit pension plan schedule of contributions, the schedule of changes in net OPEB 
liability and related ratios, and the schedule of OPEB plan contributions identified in the table 
of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a required part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, 
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements. The Combining Schedules, the 
Schedule of Public Housing Capital Fund Grants, and the Financial Data Schedule required by 
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) listed in the table of 
contents as other supplementary information, are presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The other supplementary 
information as listed in the table of contents is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other 
supplementary information as listed in the table of contents, including the Financial Data 
Schedule required by HUD, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole.  



 

4 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
November 29, 2018 on our consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grants agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Authority's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
Sacramento, California 
November 29, 2018 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Management Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

5 

As management of the Housing Authority of the County of Yolo ("YCH"), we offer readers of 
YCH's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of 
YCH for the year ended June 30, 2018. Since the MD&A is designed to focus on the current 
year's activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with 
YCH's financial statements beginning on page 19. 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial 
statements for YCH. The MD&A is designed to: 

• Assist the reader to focus on significant financial issues; 

• Provide an overview of YCH's financial activity; 

• Identify changes in YCH's financial position (i.e. its ability to address the next and 
subsequent years' challenges); and 

• Identify individual program issues or concerns. 

Financial Highlights 

The following represents a brief summary highlighting selected changes in YCH’s net position 
comparing fiscal year 2018 to the previous fiscal year: 

• During FY 2018, YCH had total revenue exceed total expenses (excluding depreciation 
and amortization of $743,271) by $1,095,246. 

• Total assets increased $7,115,071 (or 28%) from the prior year primarily because of the 
addition of restricted cash held by YCH for the development of the three solar array 
farms under construction of $1,782,298, a net addition of $289,316 in capital vehicle 
leases, the donated purchase of a home for the IGT program of $337,253, $1,664,396 
in Energy Performance Contract (“EPC”) improvements and other building 
improvements, and $3,024,936 in construction in progress as of 6/30/18. See note 6 to 
the financial statements and the Summary of Capital Assets section below for additional 
details. 

• Total liabilities increased $8,484,304 (or 102%) mainly due to an increase in the long-
term debt of $2,985,443 for the solar array loan, $1,624,815 for the EPC loan at the 
three AMPs (See note 10 to the financial statements and the Summary of Long-Term 
Debt below for additional information), $413,844 in additional accounts payables, 
$1,989,619 in other current liabilities, $1,439,819 in additional OPEB liability, and 
$512,773 in additional pension liability (see note 15 to the financial statements for 
further disclosure on pensions).  

Overview of the Financial Statements 

YCH's financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of YCH's 
finances in a manner similar to a private sector business. YCH employs, exclusively, 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Management Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

6 

Enterprise Funds which utilize the full accrual basis of accounting. The Enterprise method of 
accounting is similar to accounting utilized by the private sector. All Enterprise Funds and 
business-type activities are consolidated into a total for the agency taken as a whole.  

YCH's financial statements include a Statement of Net Position (similar to a balance sheet), a 
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (similar to an Income 
Statement), a Statement of Cash Flows, the Notes to Financial Statements, and certain 
supplementary information.  

Certain programs administered by YCH are provided by the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development ("HUD"). Others are segregated to enhance accountability and control. A 
summary of YCH programs is presented below:  

Low-Income Public Housing  

Under the Low-Income Public Housing ("LIPH") program, YCH rents units that it owns to low, 
very low, or extremely low-income households. The LIPH Program is operated under an 
Annual Contributions Contract ("ACC") with HUD. Public Housing Agencies are limited by law 
in the amount of rent collected to no more than thirty percent (30%) of a family's adjusted 
income, or the resident may choose what is known as "flat rent," which is a set amount 
comparable to local market rents that does not increase or decrease over a three-year period 
and is independent of the resident's actual income. The flat rent is designed to encourage self-
sufficiency and to avoid creating disincentives for continued residency by families that are 
attempting to become economically self-sufficient. 

HUD, through the ACC, provides an operating subsidy to cover the gap between rents 
collected and annual operating expenses.  

Public Housing Capital Fund Program  

The ACC provides a Capital Fund Program designed to enable YCH to make capital 
improvements to its properties and otherwise provide long term assets for the benefit of 
tenants and the administration.  

Housing Choice Voucher ("HCV") Program  

Under the Housing Choice Voucher Program (formerly known as Section 8 tenant-based 
assistance), YCH administers contracts with independent landlords that own rental property. 
YCH subsidizes the families' rents through a Housing Assistance Payment ("HAP") payable to 
the landlord. The program is administered under an ACC with HUD that provides annual 
funding to enable YCH to subsidize participant rent at between thirty percent (30%) and forty 
percent (40%) of household income. YCH receives monthly administrative funds for each unit 
under lease on the first of every month to operate the program and the Central Office Cost 
Center ("COCC") receives a portion of these funds though monthly management and 
bookkeeping fees charged to the program. 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Management Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

7 

Vouchers can also be applied toward the purchase of a home by tenants participating in the 
Family Self Sufficiency ("FSS") program. YCH will use HUD's HAP funds to subsidize the 
participant's home loan for 15 years unless the participant is disabled or elderly in which case 
there is no time limit on the use of HAP funds to subsidize the loan.  

New Hope Community Development Corporation (Blended Component Unit)  

New Hope Community Development Corporation ("NHCDC") is a 501(c)(3) non-profit 
corporation created to develop affordable housing and community based economic 
development ventures. Its primary business activities during the year ended June 30, 2018, 
was the operation of Cottonwood Meadows Senior Apartments and development operations in 
other affordable housing properties.  

Office of Migrant Services, Migrant Farm Labor Program (Other State/Local)  

YCH manages Migrant Centers in Davis, Madison, and Dixon, California. Pursuant to contracts 
with the State of California Department of Housing and Community Development, Office of 
Migrant Services, YCH remits rents collected from tenants to the State Office of Migrant 
Services ("OMS"), which in turn reimburses YCH for its costs of operating the Migrant Centers. 
The Dixon Migrant Center is managed by YCH on behalf of the Dixon Housing Authority of 
Solano County.  

Other Programs 

• Business Activities - used to administer various other programs. This also includes the 
operation of the Administration Building and the development of a new community 
center in conjunction with the City of Woodland. 

• Davis Solar Rural Rental Assistance (Other State/Local). 

Required Financial Statements  

The financial statements of YCH offer both short-term and long term financial information 
about YCH activities and include:  

• The Statement of Net Position which is similar to a balance sheet. The Statement of 
Net Position reports all of YCH assets, liabilities, deferred outflows (DOR) and deferred 
inflows (DIR) of resources for the year ended June 30, 2018 and provides information 
about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations 
to YCH's creditors (liabilities). It also provides the basis for evaluating the capital 
structure of YCH and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of YCH. The 
statement is presented in a format in which assets and DOR minus liabilities and DIR 
equal "Net Position," also known as equity. Assets and liabilities are presented in order 
of liquidity, and are classified as "current" (convertible to cash within one year), and 
"non-current." 

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Management Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

8 

 The Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position accounts for all 
of YCH's revenue and expenses for the year ended June 30, 2018. The statement 
reflects the results of YCH's operations over the year and can be used to determine 
YCH's credit worthiness and its ability to successfully recover all its costs through 
grants, tenant charges and other income. 

 The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about YCH's cash receipts and 
cash payments during the year ended June 30, 2018. This statement reports cash 
receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, capital and 
related financing, and noncapital financing and investing activities. The statement 
provides answers to questions of where cash came from, what cash was used for and 
what caused changes in cash for the reporting period covered. 

 The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements provide additional information that 
is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. 

 In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also 
presents certain supplementary information which provides additional information on 
YCH’s pension plan ("GASB 68") and other post-employment benefit ("OPEB") plan 
("GASB 75"), the Combining Schedules, the Schedule of Public Housing Capital Fund 
Grants, and the Financial Data Schedule required by HUD. Such supplementary 
information is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in YCH’s basic 
financial statements. 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Management Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

9 

Financial Analysis of YCH as a Whole 

The following analysis focuses on YCH's net position and revenue, expenses and changes in 
net position during the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017:  

Statement of Net Position 

2018 2017 Net Change %

Assets
Current assets 4,542,423$     4,164,632$       377,791$        9%
Restricted assets 3,770,475      1,791,064        1,979,411      111%
Capital assets, net 22,599,200    17,874,417      4,724,783      26%
Other non-current assets 1,552,651        1,519,565          33,086            2%

Total assets 32,464,749$   25,349,678$     7,115,071$     28%

Deferred outflows of resources 1,228,038$     611,921$          616,117$        101%

Liabilities
Current liabilities 4,623,586$     1,803,954$       2,819,632$     156%
Payable from restricted cash 238,229         233,392           4,837             2%
Non-current liabilities 11,965,084    6,305,249        5,659,835      90%

Total liabilities 16,826,899$   8,342,595$       8,484,304$     102%

Deferred inflows of resources 174,580$        86,479$            88,101$          102%

Net position
Investment in capital assets 16,099,619$    15,378,637$      720,982$        5%
Restricted 700,314           1,168,240          (467,926)         -40%
Unrestricted (108,625)       985,648           (1,094,273)     -111%

Total net position 16,691,308$   17,532,525$     (841,217)$       -5%

 
The assets and deferred outflows of resources (“DOR”) of YCH exceed its liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources (“DIR”) as of June 30, 2018 by $16,691,308 which is a 5% 
decrease compared to June 30, 2017. This change is primarily comprised of the following 
items: 

 Assets and deferred outflows of resources: 

 Restricted assets increased by $1,979,411, mainly due to the addition of 
$1,782,298 of restricted cash held in a trust account for the construction of the 
four solar arrays currently under construction.  

 The net capital asset balance increased by $4,724,783 due to construction in 
progress of $2,875,999, land additions of $87,840, and 2,321,127 in building 
improvements and equipment. This amount is offset by $560,177 in accumulated 
depreciation. See Capital Assets section below for additional details. 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Management Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

10 

 Deferred outflows of resources of $1,228,038 represents an amount contributed 
to the retirement plan (CalPERS basic and PEPRA) under GASB 68 and an 
amount contributed to the OPEB plan under GASB 75 during the year. Since 
these contributions were made subsequent to the measurement date of the 
related actuarial study of June 30, 2017, these are treated as deferred outflows 
of resources for financial statement purposes. The increase of $616,117 is the 
result of higher pension funding requirements from CalPERS as they began to 
recognize underfunding caused by previously unrealistic life expectancies and 
discount rate assumptions and the adoption of GASB 75 which resulted in DOR 
related to the OPEB plan.  

 Liabilities and deferred inflows of resources: 

- The most significant causes for the $8,484,304 increase in the liability balance 
from the prior year are: 

 Recognized increase in the amount of the long-term debt of $2,985,443 for 
the solar array loans. Four solar arrays are being installed at three AMP 
locations and financed with an equipment lease from PNC bank. 

 The additional GASB 68 pension liability for YCH of $512,773. This is 
related to an increase in the amount owed for pension benefits related to 
CalPERS assumption changes noted in their actuarial report to recognize 
longer life expectancy and a lower discount rate for the expected earnings 
over time. These changes are being phased in each year with higher 
required contributions following a normal distribution over five years. 

 The adoption of GASB 75 (formerly 45) and recording of the net OPEB 
liability for YCH of $1,493,543. This is related to a change in the 
recognition of Other Post-Employment Benefits in a manner similar to 
GASB 68, where the long-term liability is recognized as debt. 

 These increases in debt were partially offset by loan principal payments of 
$586,094. 

- Under GASB 68 and GASB 75 reporting rules, $174,580 representing differences 
between the projected and actual earnings on the pension plan and OPEB plan 
investments as of June 30, 2017 (measurement date) are included as deferred 
inflows of resources for financial statement purposes. 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Management Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

11 

• Net position: 

- The overall decrease in net position is primarily driven by capital improvement 
debt offset by the associated assets net of depreciation and debt principal 
payments. 

The net result of normal operations and the above items is a 5% decrease in Net Position. 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

2018 2017 Net change %

Operating revenue     
Operating revenues - tenants 2,393,633$      2,231,534$        162,099$        7%
Other revenue 727,879           344,866             383,013          111%

Total operating revenue 3,121,512        2,576,400          545,112          21%

Operating expenses
Administration 3,986,961        3,490,486          496,475          14%
Tenant services 351,971           59,569               292,402          491%
Maintenance 3,527,501        1,615,887          1,911,614       118%
Utilities 1,186,319        1,116,656          69,663            6%
Insurance and taxes 330,369           478,289             (147,920)         -31%
Housing assistance payments 11,588,727      11,791,382        (202,655)         -2%
Depreciation and amortization 743,271           749,985             (6,714)             -1%

Total operating expenses 21,715,119      19,302,254        2,412,865       13%

Operating loss (18,593,607)    (16,725,854)       (1,867,753)      11%

Non-operating revenue (expenses)
Grant revenue 17,555,128      15,923,143        1,631,985       10%
Capital grants 1,506,036        438,726             1,067,310       243%
Interest income (expense), net (187,936)         (201,083)            13,147            -7%
Other including gains (losses) 72,354             -                     72,354            100%

Net non-operating revenue 
(expenses) 18,945,582      16,160,786        2,784,796       17%

   
Changes in net position 351,975           (565,068)            917,043          -162%

Beginning net position 17,532,525      18,097,593        (565,068)         -3%
Prior period adjustment (1,193,192)      -                     (1,193,192)      

Ending net position 16,691,308$    17,532,525$      (841,217)$       -5%

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Management Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

12 

The net increase in operating revenue of $545,112 (21%) compared to FY2017 is comprised of 
the following: 

 Rental and other tenant revenue in public housing increased by $162,099 while other 
program revenue, comprised mainly of other government agency contracts, increased 
$383,013. 

Operating expenses increased by $2,412,865 (13%) compared to FY 2017 primarily due to the 
following: 

 Administration costs increased by $496,475 primarily due to: 

- Higher retirement costs being recognized of $162,475. 

- Professional services increase of $54,019 

- Increase in Accrued Compensated Absences of $56,687 

- Staffing cost increases of $128,702 due to an approved 5.5% compensation 
increase for staff effective July 1, 2017. 

 Tenant services increased by $292,402 with the addition of the award of the new public 
housing Resident Opportunity and Self-Sufficiency (ROSS) grant funds for 2018 and the 
addition of four computer learning center coordinators. 

 Maintenance costs have increased $1,911,614 (118%) due primarily to extraordinary 
maintenance costs of $1,813,467 for rehabilitation projects at Davis and Madison 
Migrant Centers. These projects were funded with a combination of various reserve 
balances and grant funds and shown as an expense since the buildings are owned by 
HCD-OMS rather than YCH. 

 Utilities costs increased by $69,663 (6%) due to a combination of rate and usage 
increases, with water usage accounting for $62,854 in this increase. 

 Insurance and taxes decreased $147,920 (31%) due primarily to reimbursements from 
prior costs incurred. 

 Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) costs decreased by $202,655 as the program was 
forced to shrink because of rising payment standards and loss of families through 
attrition. 

 Depreciation and amortization decreased from the prior year by $6,714 as some smaller 
assets became fully depreciated. 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Management Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

13 

Net non-operating revenue increased by $2,784,796 compared to the prior year due to: 

• Grant revenue: 

- Rehab grant revenue for the projects at the Davis and Madison Migrant Centers 
consisted of $1,429,474 in additional revenue. 

- Other increases included $297,291 in excess OMS operating funds, $133,304 in 
additional Operating Subsidy from HUD, and $256,104 in grant revenue from 
municipal contracts. 

- Administrative fees for the HCV program, which are based on the number of 
vouchers issued, decreased by $137,688 as the program shrunk due to the 
decrease in the voucher unit months leased.  

• Capital grant revenue is earned as costs are incurred for capital improvement and 
related costs. Water well improvement work in Winters and several stairwell projects 
increased the capital grants which rose $1,067,310 compared to what was drawn in the 
prior year. 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Management Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

14 

Analysis of Actual to Budget for Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Actual 
(excluding 

depreciation & 
amortization)

Budget 
(excluding 

depreciation & 
amortization) Net change %

Operating revenue 3,121,512$     2,576,400$       545,112$        21%

Operating expenses
Administration 3,986,961       3,490,486        496,475         14%
Tenant services 351,971          59,569             292,402         491%
Maintenance 3,527,501       1,615,887        1,911,614      118%
Utilities 1,186,319        1,116,656          69,663            6%
Insurance and taxes 330,369          478,289           (147,920)        -31%
Housing assistance payments 11,588,727      11,791,382        (202,655)         -2%

Total operating expenses 20,971,848     18,552,269      2,419,579      13%

Operating loss (17,850,336)  (15,975,869)     (1,874,467)    12%

Non-operating revenue (expenses)
Grant revenue 17,555,128     15,923,143      1,631,985      10%
Capital grants 1,506,036        438,726             1,067,310       243%
Interest expense, net (187,936)         (201,083)            13,147            -7%

Net non-operating revenue 
(expenses) 18,945,582      16,160,786        2,784,796       17%

Changes in net assets before 
depreciation and amortization 1,095,246$      184,917$           910,329$        492%

 
The budget numbers shown here are net of eliminations required to enable comparison to the 
consolidated financial information provided in the financial statements. Significant variations 
from budget include: 

 Depreciation and amortization charges are never included in the budgets since these 
costs do not impact the management of the portfolio. Therefore, the depreciation and 
amortization expenses have also been left out of this analysis. 

 The revenue increase is primarily due to grant revenue from municipal contracts and 
additional rental revenue from public housing over the conservative estimates in the 
budget. 

 Costs for administration were $496,475 higher than budget primarily due to the 
additional pension and benefit costs recognized and noted above. 

 As noted above, maintenance costs were $1,911,614 (118%) above budget due to the 
budget did not include capital improvement project costs of $1,813,467 at Davis and 
Madison Migrant Centers. 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Management Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

15 

• Housing Assistance Payments ("HAP") and related administrative fee grant revenue 
was $202,655 less than estimates in the budget which were based on the prior year 
funding levels due to funding uncertainty as the program shrunk due to the decrease in 
the voucher unit months leased.  

• Our budgets only capture capital grant revenue related to operations cost 
reimbursements since the portion related to capitalized improvements (recorded on the 
balance sheet) are considered non-operating. Additional funding for these capitalized 
costs were $2,784,796. 

• Capital improvement costs over $5,000 are recorded as fixed assets on the statement 
of net position and therefore the capital grant revenue related to these costs are 
excluded from the operating budget to avoid skewing the financial picture during the 
budget process. However, the total amount of capital funds shown in the financial 
statements includes those used for well improvement costs in Winters and stair 
projects, even though they were not included in the approved budget. 

Summary of Capital Assets 

2018 2017 Net change %

Work in progress
Well improvements (El Rio Villas) 697,119$         222,516$           474,603$        213%
ADA improvements (El Rio Villas) 18,930             7,649                 11,281            147%
Esparto lots (Country West II) 166,504           142,699             23,805            17%
Solar Array 2,342,773        -                     2,342,773       100%
Woodland Community Center II 146,749           123,212             23,537            19%

Total work in progress 3,372,075        496,076             2,875,999       580%

Land 7,259,138        7,171,298          87,840            1%

Capital assets, not being 
depreciated 10,631,213      7,667,374          2,963,839       39%

Buildings and building improvements 36,421,776      34,226,566        2,195,210       6%
Equipment 885,366           759,449             125,917          17%

Total capital assets 47,938,355      42,653,389        5,284,966       12%

Less accumulated depreciation (25,339,155)    (24,778,978)       (560,177)         2%

Total capital assets, net 22,599,200$    17,874,411$      4,724,789$     26%

 
Capital assets consist of the cost of significant purchases that have long term benefit to the 
organization. These include specific large projects that are built out over time as funds become 
available (work in progress), the cost of land, buildings, building improvements, and large 
equipment (including vehicles). The cost of land is never depreciated and the cost of work in 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Management Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

16 

progress is not depreciated until it is actually placed in service, when it is then depreciated 
over its useful life which are based on Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("GAAP"). 

The following items of note are included in the above numbers: 

• Work/construction in progress: 

− Stair rehabilitation projects at Cottonwood Meadows. 

− Costs incurred and accrued to date for solar array farms. 

− Well and ADA improvements in Winters. 

− The work on the Esparto lots (Country West II) has been on hold since 2005 
while a final development plan meeting the required farmworker housing grant 
parameters is negotiated with the State. This plan has been approved by the 
State which will modify the development agreement to reflect this modified plan 
once the final tract map has been filed and the project can move forward with the 
development partner. 

− The WIP related to the Woodland Community Center II project as of June 30, 
2018, includes some of the design costs for new community facility. The building 
on the site was demolished in 2017 and final conceptual designs for the new 
facility were completed in 2018. Construction scheduled to begin in 2-3 years, 
once the remaining funds have been raised to build out the site. 

• The difference in accumulated depreciation from the prior year is the depreciation 
expense of $743,271 offset by asset disposals. 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Management Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

17 

Summary of Long-Term Debt 

2018 2017 Net Change %

LIPH - Office building, mortgage -$                509,911$           (509,911)$       -100%
FNB - Line of credit 116,318           -                     116,318          100%
PNC - Solar Array 2,899,675        -                     2,899,675       100%

Total Yolo Housing 3,015,993        509,911             2,506,082       491%

Public Housing - AMPs
PNC - EPC Loans 1,624,815        -                     1,624,815       100%

Total AMPs 1,624,815        -                     1,624,815       100%

Cottonwood
FNB Mortgage Notes 1,932,558        1,983,793          (51,235)           -3%

Total Cottonwood 1,932,558        1,983,793          (51,235)           -3%

Total long-term debt 6,573,366$      2,493,704$        4,079,662$     164%

 
• The early repayment of the CFFP debt on the admin building with some additional 

capital funds helped to improve the overall balance sheet and simplify the related 
debt in preparation for a RAD conversion of the public housing units.  

• The addition of debt from PNC for the installation of the solar arrays and a line of 
credit to fund energy improvements to the administration building were new to 
COCC this year. 

• PNC loans to fund energy performance upgrades at the AMP complexes resulting in 
$1,624,815 in additional long-term debt which will be repaid through an EPC with 
HUD. 

Financial Reporting Entity 

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement 61, 
NHCDC is incorporated into the accompanying financial statements as a blended component 
unit and New Hope Crosswood Associates LP ("Crosswood") is included as a discretely 
presented component unit and has a fiscal year end of December 31st. Crosswood is 
separately audited by CohnReznick LLP.  

Significant Environmental and Economic Factors Affecting YCH 

Significant environment and economic factors affecting YCH include: 

• Federal funding from HUD; 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Management Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

18 

• Federal regulation changes, including the current push to re-Federalize some portions 
of COCC and other programs; 

• State funding from HCD/OMS; 

• Local labor supply and demand which affect salary and wage rates, as well as benefits; 

• Local inflation, recession and employment trends can affect resident income and 
therefore the amount of rental income; 

• Local rental market and economy, which has a direct effect on the ability to find viable 
privately-owned rental properties that are available to our HCV program; 

• Rising costs, in particular for water, utilities and insurance; and 

• Continued underfunding of deferred maintenance throughout LIPH and migrant housing 
continues to increase maintenance costs due to additional and larger emergency 
repairs. 

Contacting YCH 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of YCH's finances for all those 
with an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or 
requests for additional information should be addressed to Lisa A. Baker, Chief Executive 
Officer, Yolo County Housing, 147 W. Main Street, Woodland, California 95695.  

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

19 

Primary 
Government

 Component 
Unit 

Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 3,212,193$      88,056$           
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (Notes 3, 4) 3,770,475        277,032           
Accounts receivable - HUD 251,022           -                   
Accounts receivable - tenant, net 26,999             4,720               
Accounts receivable - other 138,168           -                   
Accounts receivable - funding source (Note 5) 562,216           -                   
Note receivable and due from component unit (Note 7) 44,141             -                   
Inventories, net 27,045             -                   
Prepaid items and other assets 280,639           20,931             

Total current assets 8,312,898        390,739           

Noncurrent assets
Note receivable and due from component unit (Note 7) 1,552,502        -                   
Capital assets not being depreciated (Note 6) 10,631,213      90,000             
Capital assets being depreciated, net (Note 6) 11,967,987      5,700,202        
Other assets, net 149                  27,743             

Total noncurrent assets 24,151,851      5,817,945        

Total assets 32,464,749$    6,208,684$      

Deferred outflows of resources

Deferred outflows of resources - Pensions (Note 15) 861,219           -                   
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB (Note 16) 366,819           -                   

Total deferred outflows of resources 1,228,038$      -$                 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Statement of Net Position  
June 30, 2018 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
20 

Primary 
Government

 Component 
Unit 

Liabilities

Current liabilities
Accounts payable - vendors 417,651$         33,486$           
Accounts payable - funding source (Note 8) 266,224           -                   
Accrued compensated absences - current portion 53,373             -                   
Accrued interest payable (Note 10) 114,817           9,060               
Accrued liabilities - other (Note 12) 2,409,430        15,061             
Notes payable - current portion (Note 10) 687,889           57,152             
Note payable and due to Primary Government (Note 7) -                   38,907             
Deposits payable 238,229           13,930             
Unearned revenue - current portion (Note 13) 240,366           2,654               
Capital lease liability - current portion (Note 13) 35,465             -                   
Other current liabilities (Note 12) 398,371           8,922               

Total current liabilities 4,861,815        179,172           

Noncurrent liabilities
Accrued compensated absences - net of current portion 160,122           -                   
Notes payable - net of current portion (Note 10) 5,885,477        2,931,224        
Note payable and due to Primary Government (Note 7) -                   1,558,954        
Family self sufficiency escrows 18,863             -                   
Unearned revenue - net of current portion (Note 13) 136,493           -                   
Capital lease liability - net of current portion (Note 13) 198,229           -                   
Net OPEB liability (Note 16) 1,493,543        -                   
Net pension liability (Note 15) 3,702,470        -                   
Other liabilities (Note 11) 369,887           -                   

Total noncurrent liabilities 11,965,084      4,490,178        

Total liabilities 16,826,899$    4,669,350$      

Deferred inflows of resources

Deferred inflows of resources - Pensions (Note 15) 110,218           -                   
Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB (Note 16) 64,362             -                   

Total deferred inflows of resources 174,580$         -$                 

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets (Note 14) 16,099,619$    -$                 
Restricted (Note 14) 700,314           1,745,091        
Unrestricted (Note 14) (108,625)          (205,757)          

Total net position 16,691,308$    1,539,334$      

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
21 

 Primary 
Government 

 Component 
Unit 

Operating revenue
Rental income 2,393,633$       485,419$          
Other revenue 727,879            4,709                

Total operating revenue 3,121,512         490,128            

Operating expenses
Administrative expenses 3,986,961         123,428            
Tenant services 351,971            27,427              
Maintenance 3,527,501         68,317              
Utilities 1,186,319         47,351              
Insurance and taxes 330,369            16,178              
Housing assistance payments 11,588,727       -                    
Depreciation 743,271            169,465            
Amortization -                    2,138                

Total operating expenses 21,715,119       454,304            

Operating income (loss) (18,593,607)      35,824              

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Grant revenue 17,555,128       -                    
Gain (loss) on disposition 72,354              -                    
Interest income 35,067              338                   
Interest expense (223,003)           (188,830)           

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 17,439,546       (188,492)           

Change in net position before capital grants and 
contributions (1,154,061)        (152,668)           

Capital grants 1,506,036         -                    
Capital contributions -                    2,007,790         

Change in net position 351,975            1,855,122         

Net position
Beginning of year 17,532,525       (315,788)           
Prior period adjustment (GASB 75) (1,193,192)        -                    

End of year 16,691,308$     1,539,334$       

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Statement of Cash Flows  
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

22 

Primary 
Government

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from tenants 2,521,593$      
Other operating cash received 816,771           
Cash payments for general and administrative expenses (9,197,504)       
Cash payments for housing assistance expenditures (11,588,727)      

Net cash used in operating activities (17,447,867)      

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Principal paid on notes payable (586,094)          
Proceeds from new debt and notes 4,664,490        
Cash received from capital grants 1,280,087        
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 72,382             
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (3,423,186)       
Interest paid (221,737)          

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities 1,785,942        

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Cash received from HUD operating grants 1,408,274        
Cash received from Housing Choice Voucher program 12,892,886       
Cash received from other programs 36,802              
Cash received from other grants 3,304,168        

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 17,642,130       

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest income 35,067             

Net cash provided by investing activities 35,067             

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,015,272        

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year 4,967,396        

End of year 6,982,668$      

Financial statement presentation
Cash and cash equivalents 3,212,193$      
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,770,475        

Total cash and cash equivalents 6,982,668$      

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Statement of Cash Flows  
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
23 

Primary 
Government

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in operating activities
Operating loss (18,593,607)$    
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in operating 
activities

Depreciation 743,271            
Change in pension expense (15,244)             
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Decrease (increase) in assets
Tenant  accounts receivable 7,116               
Other receivables (90,767)            
Inventories (7,834)              
Prepaid items and other assets (38,592)            

Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable 12,811             
Other post-employment benefits 208,010           
Accrued compensated absences 35,607             
Deposits payable (14,540)            
Unearned revenue (16,449)            
Other liabilities 322,351           

Net cash used in operating activities (17,447,867)$    

 
 

Significant noncash capital and related financing activities
Accrued liabilities included in capital assets 1,715,365$       
Capital leases payable included in capital assets 233,694$          

Accrued interest included in capital assets 112,741$          



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

24 

Note 1 - The Financial Reporting Entity 

Primary Government  
Yolo County Housing ("YCH"), formally known as the Housing Authority of the County of 
Yolo, was established pursuant to the State Health and Safety Code in 1950 by the Yolo 
County Board of Supervisors. YCH is a public entity organized under the laws of the State 
of California's Health and Safety Code to provide housing assistance to low and moderate 
income families at rents they can afford. Eligibility is determined by family composition and 
income in areas served by YCH. To accomplish this purpose, YCH has entered into Annual 
Contributions Contracts with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
("HUD") to operate assisted housing programs.  

On June 20, 2006, the County's Board of Supervisors exercised its authority under Health 
and Safety Code section 34290, due to the resignation of the independent housing 
commission, and declared itself to be the commissioners of YCH for a temporary period. In 
January 2012, YCH adopted a change in its governance under which the Board of 
Supervisors became a Board of Governors and a new board with representatives 
appointed by the cities (three of the four cities have representation with the fourth city as an 
alternate), a representative from the County, an At Large member and two tenant 
commissioners. Following the change in governance, YCH is considered a component unit 
of the County. While YCH is a separate legal entity, it is included in the financial statements 
of the County as a discrete component unit. 

On May 22, 2018, the County Board of Supervisors approved a change in governance for 
YCH where the new seven-member Board of Commissioners will be comprised of four city 
representatives, a representative of the County, and two YCH tenant commissioners.  
These representatives are selected by the respective entity they will represent and 
appointed by the County Board of Supervisors.  Once appointed, the Board of 
Commissioners retains complete control over YCH and cannot be removed at will by the 
County Board of Supervisors.  Effective December 12, 2018 the new Board will be sworn in 
under the new form of governance. As of December 12, 2018, YCH will no longer be 
considered a discrete component unit of the County. 

Component Units  
The governmental reporting entity for which these financial statements have been prepared 
consists of YCH (the primary government) and its component units. Component units are 
legally separate organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, 
or other organizations whose nature and significant relationships with YCH are such that 
exclusion would cause YCH's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 
Financial accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the component 
unit's board, and (i) either YCH's ability to impose its will on the organization or (ii) there is 
potential for the organization to provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden 
on YCH. The basic financial statements include both blended and discretely presented 
component units. Although the component units follow accounting principles of the 
Financial Accounting Standards Boards ("FASB"), certain transactions may be reflected 
differently in these statements than in the separately issued information in order to conform 
to the presentation of the Primary Government. 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

25 

YCH has one blended component unit. The blended component unit, although a legally 
separate entity, is in substance part of YCH operations. The component unit is known as 
the New Hope Community Development Corporation ("NHCDC"). NHCDC owns and 
operates a rental housing project and engages in affordable housing development as a 
general partner in tax credit partnerships. See Note 21 for additional information about the 
blended component unit. 

YCH has one discretely presented component unit which is a financially and legally 
separate entity from YCH. New Hope Crosswood Associates LP ("Crosswood") financial 
statements are presented in a separate column from the financial information of YCH and 
as of its fiscal year ended December 31, 2017. See Note 22 for additional information about 
the discretely presented component unit. 

Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policies 

Government-wide and fund financial statements  
The government-wide financial statements report information of the primary government 
and its component units. The primary government is reported separately from certain 
legally separate discrete component unit for which the primary government is financially 
accountable. For financial reporting purposes, YCH reports all of its operations as a single 
business activity in a single enterprise fund. Therefore, the government-wide and fund 
financial statements are the same. 

Basic financial statements  
The basic financial statements (i.e. the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of 
Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and the Statement of Cash Flows) report 
information on all of the business-type activities of YCH and its component units. These 
basic financial statements are presented in accordance with the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board ("GASB") standards with the exception of the component units which 
follow FASB standards and present their unamortized debt issuance costs in accordance 
with Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2015-03 “Simplifying the Presentation of 
Debt Issuance Cost” wherein the unamortized debt issuance costs are presented as a 
direct deduction from the carrying amount of the related debt liability.  

YCH has entered into an agreement with the Housing Authority of the City of Dixon 
("HACD") to administer its only program - a Migrant Center funded by the California 
Department of Housing and Community Development ("HCD"). YCH carries no real 
property or long-term debt for this program as HACD owns the land and some of the 
buildings being managed by YCH under this program. YCH uses its staff and other 
resources to operate this program. The operations of this program are considered by 
management to be, in substance, part of YCH and as such are reported as part of YCH 
financial statements.  

Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation  
The basic financial statements are prepared using the economic resource measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and deferred outflows of 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

26 

resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources are included on the Statement of 
Net Position. The Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents 
increases (revenue) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual 
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while 
expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred.  

YCH distinguishes operating revenue and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenue and expenses generally result from providing services. Operating expenses 
include the cost of services, general and administrative expenses and depreciation of 
capital assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenue and expenses.  

New accounting pronouncements 
During the year ended June 30, 2018, YCH implemented the following new accounting 
standards issued by the GASB: 

• Statement No. 75, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions". GASB Statement No. 75 replaces the requirements 
of GASB No. 45 and requires governments to report a liability on the face of the 
financial statements for the OPEB that they provide. In addition, it requires more 
extensive note disclosures and required supplementary information about the OPEB 
liabilities. The adoption of this Statement had a significant effect on the Authority’s 
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018 and resulted in a prior period 
adjustment of $1,193,192 which reduced the beginning net position of YCH. 

• Statement No. 81, "Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements". GASB Statement No. 81 
requires that a government that receives resources pursuant to an irrevocable split-
interest agreement recognize assets, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 
from the inception of the agreement and revenue when the resources become 
applicable to the reporting period. The adoption of this Statement did not have a 
significant effect on YCH's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

• Statement No. 82, "Pension Issues". GASB Statement No. 82 amends Statements 
Numbers 67, 68 and 73. This Statement, among other things, amends Numbers 67 
and 68 by changing the required supplemental information to require the 
presentation of covered payroll, defined as the payroll on which contributions to a 
pension plan are based and ratios that use that measure instead of the pre-
amended requirement of covered-employee payroll which is the payroll of 
employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan and that related 
ratio usage. It further clarifies that payments that are made by an employer to satisfy 
contribution requirements that are identified by the pension plan terms as plan 
member contribution requirements should be classified as plan member 
contributions for purposes of Statement No. 67 and as employee contributions for 
purposes of Statement No. 68. It also requires that employer's expense and 
expenditures for those amounts be recognized in the period for which the 
contribution was assessed and classified in the same manner as the employer 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

27 

classifies similar compensation other than pensions. The adoption of this Statement 
resulted in additional disclosures and supplemental information related to pensions, 
however it did not have a significant effect on YCH's financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2018. 

• Statement No. 85, "Omnibus 2017". GASB Statement No. 85 addresses a variety of 
topics including, among other things, the blending of component units, goodwill 
reporting, timing of measurement and reporting of pension or OPEB obligations. The 
adoption of this Statement did not have a significant effect on YCH's financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

• Statement No. 86, "Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues". The primary objective of 
this Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-
substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash 
and other monetary assets acquired with only existing resources other than the 
proceeds of refunding debt are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of 
extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves accounting and financial reporting 
for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to financial statements 
for debt that is defeased in substance. The adoption of this Statement did not have a 
significant effect on YCH's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

YCH is currently analyzing its accounting practices to determine the potential impact on 
the financial statements for the following GASB Statements: 

• Statement No. 83, "Certain Asset Retirement Obligations". GASB Statement No. 83 
establishes guidance for determining the timing and pattern of recognition for 
liabilities and corresponding deferred outflow of resources related to such 
obligations. The requirements of this Statement are effective for the Authority’s fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2019. 

• Statement No. 84, "Fiduciary Activities". GASB Statement No. 84 establishes criteria 
for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments and clarifies 
whether and how business-type activities should report their fiduciary activities. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for the Authority’s fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2019. 

•  Statement No. 87 “Leases”. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the 
information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial 
reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of 
governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets 
and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and 
recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment 
provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based 
on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an 
underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease 
liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

28 

recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing 
the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. 
This statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019 which is 
the Authority’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. 

• Statement No. 88, "Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings 
and Direct Placements". GASB Statement No. 88 for disclosure purposes 
specifically defines debt as a liability that arises from a contractual obligation to pay 
cash (or other asset in lieu of cash) in one or more payments to settle an amount 
that is fixed at the date the contractual obligation is established. Additional debt 
disclosures in the notes to the financial statements include unused lines of credit; 
assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms specified in the debt agreements 
related to significant events of default with finance related-consequences, significant 
termination events with finance-related consequences and significant subjective 
acceleration clauses. In addition, direct borrowings and direct placement disclosure 
information should be disclosed separately from other debt disclosures. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for YCH’s fiscal year ending June 30, 
2019. 

• Statement No. 89, “Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a 
Construction Period”. GASB Statement 89 provides accounting requirements for 
interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. It establishes guidance 
designed to enhance the relevance and comparability of information about capital 
assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period. It also simplifies accounting 
for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. For financial 
statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus, interest 
cost incurred before the end of a construction period should be recognized as an 
expense in the period in which the cost is incurred. Such interest cost should not be 
capitalized as part of the historical cost of a capital asset. For financial statements 
prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus, interest incurred 
before the end of a construction period should continue to be recognized as an 
expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for YCH's fiscal year ending June 30, 
2021. 

Cash and cash equivalents  
YCH's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand and all highly-liquid 
instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less.  

Restricted cash and cash equivalents  
Restricted cash and cash equivalents represent funds held in escrow, reserves and 
security deposit accounts.  

Accounts receivable 
Tenant accounts receivable are carried at the amount considered by management to be 
collectible, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $13,884. Other accounts receivable 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

29 

are principally amounts due from HUD and California State agencies. The allowance for 
doubtful accounts has been provided based on the likelihood of the recovery.  

Interprogram receivables and payables  
Interprogram due from/to have been eliminated in the financial statements as prescribed by 
GASB standards with regard to interfund activities, payables and receivables.  

Inventories  
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market on an average cost basis. To keep 
track of small supplies used for unit turnover and routine repairs and maintenance, YCH 
records these supplies as prepaid materials rather than inventory. The Inventory at June 
30, 2018 consists of expendable maintenance supplies and energy efficient equipment 
purchased in prior years and held for consumption. Such equipment bought new did not 
experience any obsolescence and therefore no allowance is considered necessary as of 
June 30, 2018. The value of the maintenance supplies inventory as of June 30, 2018 is 
$27,045.  

Capital assets  
Capital assets are stated at cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed capital assets are 
recorded at estimated fair market value at the time received. Net interest costs are 
capitalized on projects during the construction period. The capitalization threshold for all 
capital assets is $5,000.  

Depreciation is charged to operations using the straight-line method based on the 
estimated useful life of the related asset. The estimated useful life of the assets is as 
follows:  

Buildings 40 years
Building improvements 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 7 years
Vehicles 5 years

 
Property acquired with HUD funds is considered to be owned by YCH while used in the 
program for which it was purchased. However, HUD may have a reversionary interest in 
the property and ownership of any proceeds from disposition thereof.  

The costs of normal maintenance and repair that do not materially extend asset lives, 
enhance its efficiency, or increase or amend asset usefulness are not capitalized.  

Impairment of capital assets  
YCH reviews its capital assets for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that there has been a decline in service utility that is large in 
magnitude and outside of the normal life cycle of the capital asset being evaluated. As of 
June 30, 2018, there has been no impairment of the capital assets.  



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

30 

Accrued compensated absences  
In accordance with GASB standards, vacation leave and other compensated absences with 
similar characteristics should be accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned by the 
employees if the leave is attributable to past service and it is probable that the employer will 
compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other means, 
such as cash payments at termination or retirement.  

Permanent employees are entitled to receive compensation at their current base salary for 
certain types of unused annual leave upon termination or retirement.  

It is YCH's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick 
pay benefits. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since YCH does not 
have a policy to pay any amounts when employees separate from service with YCH. All 
vacation pay is accrued when incurred. Total liability for YCH is $213,495 based on year-
end hourly rates. Of this amount, $53,373 is considered by YCH to be a current liability.  

In providing direction for conversion to GAAP basis of accounting, HUD's Accounting Brief 
No. 6 discusses the conflicting direction given in HUD grant handbooks, which are not 
considered GAAP, and the cost principles of GAAP. In its final analysis, HUD opines that 
"Compensation for personnel services includes all remuneration, paid currently or accrued, 
for services rendered during the period of performance under federal awards, including but 
not necessarily limited to wages, salaries, and fringe benefits." Since federal awards extend 
for a limited time period, and accrued benefits may not be paid out during the term of the 
award, the above analysis can be reasonably interpreted to mean that costs may be drawn 
down at the close of the award period to fund unpaid compensated absences.  

Notes payable and interest payable  
Notes payable consists of notes from banks and other California state agencies. Interest on 
these notes are accrued at year-end.  

Pensions 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the YCH California Public Employees' Retirement System ("CalPERS") plans 
("Plans") and additions to/deductions from the Plans' fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit 
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) 
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
YCH’s plan ("OPEB Plan") and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net 
position have been determined on the same basis. For this purpose, benefit payments are 
recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value. 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

31 

GAAP require that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within 
certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used: 

Valuation Date: June 30, 2017 

Measurement Date:  June 30, 2017 

Measurement Period:  July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 

Unearned revenue  
Unearned revenue includes rents received in advance from tenants, and grant funds 
received from other governmental agencies, which are conditioned upon incurring certain 
qualifying costs or meeting other conditions. The rents from tenants will be recognized as 
revenue when earned and the grant funds will be recognized as revenue when the 
qualifying costs are incurred and the possibility of not meeting the conditions are remote.  

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial element, Deferred Outflows of 
Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so 
will not be recognized as an expense until then.  

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial element, Deferred Inflows 
of Resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and 
so will not be recognized as revenue until then.  

Net Position  
In the Statement of Net Position, Net Position is classified in the following categories:  

• Net Investment in Capital Assets - This amount consists of capital assets net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributed to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of the assets.  

• Restricted - This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, or 
laws or regulations of other governments.  

• Unrestricted - This amount is all net position that does not meet the definition of "net 
investment in capital assets" or "restricted net position."  

Use of estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.  



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

32 

Income taxes  
YCH is exempt from federal and state income taxes. YCH is also exempt from property 
taxes but normally and historically made payments in lieu of taxes on owned public housing 
properties. 

Note 3 - Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2018 consist of the following: 

Cash and cash equivalents 3,212,193$       

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,770,475         

Total 6,982,668$       

 
Deposits 
The carrying amounts of YCH's cash deposits were $3,212,193 at June 30, 2018. Bank 
balances at June 30, 2018, were approximately $3,651,161. The bank balances were fully 
insured and/or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institutions in 
YCH's name as discussed below.  

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan 
associations to secure YCH's cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral. This Code 
states that collateral pledged in this manner shall have the effect of perfecting a security 
interest in such collateral superior to those of a general creditor. Thus, collateral for cash 
deposits is considered to be held in YCH's name.  

The fair value of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of YCH's cash deposits. 
California law also allows institutions to secure deposits by pledging first trust deed 
mortgage notes having a value of 150% of YCH's total cash deposits. YCH may waive 
collateral requirements for cash deposits that are fully insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation. YCH, however, has not waived the collateralization requirements.  

Investment policy  
In accordance with State statutes, HUD regulations and its own investment policy, YCH 
may invest its funds in U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agencies, local government pooled 
investment funds, and other investments as outlined in YCH's investment policy.  

Investment risk factors  
There are many factors that can affect the value of investments. Some, such as credit risk, 
custodial risk, concentration of credit risk and market risk, may affect both equity and fixed 
income securities. It is the investment policy of YCH to invest substantially all of its funds in 
demand deposits which limits YCH's exposure to most types of risk.  



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

33 

Credit risk  
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer will fail to pay interest or principal in a timely manner or 
that negative perceptions of the issuer's ability to make these payments will cause security 
prices to decline. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization.  

Custodial risk  
Custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the custodian, the investments 
may not be returned.  

Concentration of credit risk  
Generally, credit risk is the risk associated with a lack of diversification, such as having 
substantial investments in a few individual issuers, thereby exposing YCH to greater risks 
resulting from adverse economic, political, regulatory, geographic or credit developments. 
Investments issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Government and investments in external 
investment pools are not considered subject to concentration of credit risk.  

Market risk  
Market risk is the risk that the value of an investment will change due to changes in the 
financial market. Changes in market conditions can increase Interest Rate Risk, Liquidity 
Risk and Reinvestment Risk.  

• Interest Rate Risk is the risk associated with declines or rises in interest rates which 
cause an investment in a fixed-income security to increase or decrease in value. The 
terms of a debt investment may cause its fair value to be highly sensitive to interest 
rate changes. As of June 30, 2018, YCH has no exposure to interest rate risk.  

• Liquidity Risk is the risk of being unable to liquidate an investment prior to maturity. 
Related to liquidity risk is the concept of marketability, or the ability to sell an 
instrument on short notice without incurring a meaningful loss in price.  

• Reinvestment Risk is the risk that the proceeds from a fixed-income security cannot 
be reinvested at the same rate of return currently generated by that holding. This risk 
is common with securities that are callable.  

YCH maintains its portfolio in readily available demand deposits. These ensure liquidity is 
maintained in order to meet ongoing operations, maximize return and limit exposure to 
changing market conditions. 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

34 

Note 4 - Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents consist of funds held in escrow, tenant deposits, 
replacement reserves required by the lender and other funds being held by YCH on behalf 
of its clients. The balances are as follows: 

HUD HAP funds and Family Self Sufficiency Program 
participants' escrow funds 13,055$            
Replacement reserves

Davis Migrant Center 332,407            
Madison Migrant Center 82,837              

CARE reserves
Davis Migrant Center 12,654              
Madison Migrant Center 39,224              
Dixon Migrant Center 197,656            

Operating reserves
Davis Migrant Center 96,471              
Madison Migrant Center 185,619            
Dixon Migrant Center 190,921            
ADMH 14,318              

Tenant security deposits 241,606            
AMP's EPC Improvement escrow funds 571,153            
COCC Solar Array escrow funds 1,782,298         
COCC Westucky Water Association trust fund 10,256              

Total restricted cash 3,770,475$       

 
The amounts held for the operations of the Migrant programs can be disbursed only on 
expenditures that have been pre-approved by the HCD, Office of Migrant Services 
("OMS"). These amounts are offset by restricted net position; however, they are not fully 
funded due to outstanding receivables from the State of California.  

The amounts held by YCH on behalf of Family Self Sufficiency Program participants and 
tenants are reported as payable from restricted assets. These liabilities have been fully 
funded as of June 30, 2018.  

The funds held in escrow for the AMP’s EPC improvements and the COCC Solar Array are 
loan proceeds that have been put in escrow and will be disbursed to pay for the related 
improvements as construction progresses. 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

35 

Note 5 - Accounts receivable - funding source 

At June 30, 2018, due from funding sources consist of the following: 

Source Program Amount

State OMS-Madison 302,278$            
State OMS-Dixon 18,178                
State HCD- RHCP Subsidy 14,258                
County COCC grant services 73,088                
County ADMH 32,133                
County IGT House 44,274                
City SHRA 4,041                  
City Pacifico 63,798                
City GTZ grant services 10,168                

Total 562,216$            

 
All amounts are expected to result in payment in the next fiscal year.  

Note 6 - Capital assets 

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows: 

 Balance,
June 30, 2017 Additions

Transfers / 
Retirements

 Balance,
June 30, 2018 

Capital assets, not being 
depreciated

Land 7,171,298$      87,840$           -$                 7,259,138$      
Construction in progress 496,076           2,875,999        -                   3,372,075        

Total capital assets, not 
being depreciated 7,667,374        2,963,839        -                   10,631,213      

Capital assets, being depreciated
Building improvements 34,226,567      2,195,209        -                   36,421,776      
Equipment 759,449           325,938           (200,021)          885,366           

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated 34,986,016      2,521,147        (200,021)          37,307,142      

Less accumulated depreciation (24,778,973)     (743,271)          183,089           (25,339,155)     

Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 10,207,043      1,777,876        (16,932)            11,967,987      

Total capital assets, net 17,874,417$    4,741,715$      (16,932)$          22,599,200$    

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

36 

Note 7 - Note receivable and due from component unit 

YCH extended a note to Crosswood, secured by the property in the amount of $775,000. 
The loan is payable in annual installments of principal and interest on May 1 starting the 
year following completion of the rehabilitation or May 1, 2016, whichever comes first, and is 
payable from residual receipts. The loan bears simple interest at 3.16% per annum and 
matures on August 28, 2069. Accrued interest of $94,068 is due from Crosswood at year-
end. 

As of June 30, 2018, Crosswood owes NHCDC developer fees payable of $655,951, which 
are included in due from component unit on the statement of net position. 

As of June 30, 2018, Crosswood owes NHCDC partnership management fees payable of 
$44,141 , which is included in due from component unit on the statement of net position. 

As of June 30, 2018, Crosswood owes YCH for advances amounting to $27,483. Such 
advances are not interest bearing and due on demand. 

Note 8 - Accounts payable - funding source 

At June 30, 2018, accounts payable - funding source consist of the following:  

Source Program Amount

City Pacifico 266,224$            

 
YCH received a redevelopment grant from the City of Davis in the amount of $220,000 
which will be used as a portion of the funding for a planned capital improvement project 
currently being designed for Pacifico. 

Note 9 - Interfund balances 

YCH utilizes a few cash accounts to make payments to vendors and for payroll. Costs are 
accrued to appropriate funds, which necessitates the use of interfund accounts. Costs are 
reimbursed on a periodic basis. The interfund receivable/payable balance of $904,663 was 
eliminated in the Statement of Net Position.  

The interfund receivable balances are as follows: 

COCC 904,663$          

Total interfund balances 904,663$          

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

37 

The interfund payable balances are as follows: 

Housing Choice Vouchers 161,263$         
Public Housing 104,339           
ROSS 21,069             
Rental Rural Davis Housing (USDA) 4,290               
NHCDC 17,114             
State and Local:

ADMH 34,178$            
Migrant Housing (HCD) - all programs 339,071            
Esparto (Joe Serna Grant) 131,037            
GTZ Vouchers 4,128                
IGT House 47,093              
Pacifico 41,081              

Subtotal state and local programs 596,588           

Total interfund balances 904,663$         

 
These interfund payables/receivables have been recorded as current assets and liabilities 
at the program level and have been eliminated in YCH's Statement of Net Position. A 
number of YCH's programs have significant liabilities, but few liquid assets. This may make 
repayment of these interfund liabilities on a timely basis problematic.  



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements  
June 30, 2018 

 
 

38 

Note 10 - Long-term debt 

The following is a schedule of the changes in long-term debt as of June 30, 2018: 

Type of obligations
Interest 

rates
Maturity 

date
Balance, 
6/30/2017 Additions Payments

Balance, 
6/30/2018

Short-term
Portion

Long-term
Portion

YCH

Office Mortgage 1 2.71% 2030 509,911$        -$                (509,911)$        -$                -$                -$                

First Northern LOC 3.77% 2022 -                 140,000         (23,682)           116,318         26,843           89,475           

PNC Solar Array 
Capital Lease 3.18% 2033 -                   2,899,675        2,899,675        577,707           2,321,968        

PNC EPC Capital 
Lease 3.29% 2034 -                   1,624,815        1,624,815        34,314             1,590,501        

NHCDC

Cottonwood 3.26% 2031 486,800         -                 (10,509)           476,291         12,002           464,289         
Debt issuance costs (17,721)          1,266              (16,455)          -                 (16,455)          

Cottonwood  2.75% 2030 1,514,714      -                 (41,992)           1,472,722      37,023           1,435,699      

Total, net of debt issuance costs 2,493,704$     4,664,490$     (584,828)$        6,573,366$     687,889$        5,885,477$     

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

39 

Following is a schedule of debt payment requirements to maturity for the mortgages and loans noted above subsequent to June 30, 
2018: 

Principal Interest

Present value of 
minimum future 
lease payments Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2019 26,843$             3,923$               612,021$           243,226$           49,025$             62,234$             687,889$           66,157$             
2020 27,873               2,893                 156,716             124,314             50,454               60,806               235,043             63,699               
2021 28,942               1,824                 170,764             119,095             52,262               58,998               251,968             60,822               

2022 30,052               722                    185,527             113,415             53,962               57,298               269,541             58,020               
2023 2,608                 8                        189,859             107,341             55,718               55,542               248,185             55,550               
2024-2028 -                     -                     1,251,715          427,103             306,698             249,603             1,558,413          249,603             
2029-2033 -                     -                     1,693,119          192,774             1,380,894          106,936             3,074,013          106,936             
2034 -                     -                     264,769             8,152                 -                     -                     264,769             -                     

 Subtotal 116,318             9,370                 4,524,490          1,335,420          1,949,013          651,417             6,589,821          660,787             
Less debt 
issuance costs -                     -                     -                     -                     (16,455)              -                     (16,455)              -                     

Total 116,318$           9,370$               4,524,490$        1,335,420$        1,932,558$        651,417$           6,573,366$        660,787$           

YCH debt NHCDC debt TotalYCH capital leases

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

40 

As of June 30, 2018, YCH has the following outstanding debt secured by the underlying 
real estate properties:  

 Office Mortgage 1 - $2,240,000 borrowed at an initial rate of 2.35% per annum from 
the First Northern Bank. This note is collateralized by YCH's main office building at 
147 Main Street, Woodland, California. The loan matures on December 15, 2030 
and is being paid in monthly installments of $13,991. Prior to year-end this note and 
related interest thereon was paid in full on June 28, 2018. 

 On July 6, 2017, YCH borrowed $140,000 at an initial rate of 3.77% from First 
Northern Bank to pay for energy efficiency upgrades to be made on the 
administration building. This loan is unsecured and is payable in monthly principal 
and interest payments of $2,567 beginning August 1, 2017 until maturity on July 15, 
2022, at which time the remaining principal and interest balance will be due. 

 On June 27, 2017, NHCDC obtained a new loan from First Northern Bank in the 
amount of $486,800 the proceeds of which were used to pay off the HCD note of 
$368,800 and pay for some energy efficient building improvements at the property. 
The new loan is secured by a first deed of trust on the property and is payable in 
monthly principal and interest payments of $2,297 beginning August 1, 2017 until 
maturity in February 2031 at which time a balloon payment in the estimated amount 
of $293,262 will be due. The interest rate is set for the first 60 months at 3.26% per 
annum and is variable thereafter based on Weekly Average Yield on United States 
Treasury Securities as defined in the note.  

 On December 22, 2005, NHCDC refinanced the property known as Cottonwood 
Meadows Apartments. NHCDC borrowed $1,900,000 from First Northern Bank. The 
loan is amortized over 25 years, requires monthly payments of $11,868 and earns 
interest at a rate of 3.13% per annum. On January 15, 2011, the loan was 
renegotiated to decrease the monthly payment to $6,974.59. The interest rate and 
maturity date of December 31, 2030 remain the same. The terms of the loan, as they 
are now, requires a balloon payment of $935,986 at maturity.  

 YCH administers three Migrant Housing Centers on behalf of HCD. These Migrant 
Centers typically sit on land owned by YCH and the majority of the buildings are 
owned by the State. The land was previously owned by the County which transferred 
title in a prior year to YCH at no cost. On an annual basis, YCH receives operating 
and rehabilitation grants to operate and maintain these centers. Two of the centers 
have been extensively remodeled using grants and loans from USDA. These loans 
are obligations of the State. However, the annual operating grant contains a value 
for the servicing of this debt. Debt service costs incurred for the year ended June 30, 
2018 related to the Davis and Madison Migrant Housing Centers was $59,779 and 
$88,136, respectively. These amounts are requisitioned from HCD, paid to USDA 
and included in interest expense in YCH's books of accounts. Neither the capital 
assets nor the long-term debt is reported in YCH's financial statements. 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

41 

 During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, HUD directed YCH to remove all HUD-
guaranteed debt from its books. This debt included $6,847,600 of HUD permanent 
notes and $6,590,186 of interest accrued on these notes, $103,720 of outstanding 
Federal Financing Bank notes, and $205,000 of outstanding New Housing Bonds. 
These HUD-guaranteed notes and bonds have not been forgiven by HUD. The 
Public Housing Program's Annual Contributions Contract ("ACC") states that all debt 
service requirements related to these notes will be HUD's responsibility. Therefore, it 
is management's opinion that YCH is not liable for this debt unless the federal 
government fails to honor the ACC. Accordingly, these amounts have been removed 
from YCH's books.  

As of June 30, 2018, YCH has entered into the following financing arrangements: 

 On July 28, 2017, YCH entered into a master equipment lease to purchase 
arrangement with PNC Equipment Finance, LLC (“PNC”) for financing the 
installation of solar arrays in the principle amount of $2,899,675. The yield of the 
lease payments is 3.18% with the first payment being due July 28, 2017, and all 
subsequent payments are due on the same day of each month after that. The final 
payment will be due on July 28, 2033. This lease is collateralized by the security 
interest in the equipment under the lease, moneys and investments held from time to 
time in the related escrow funds and all proceeds of any of the foregoing. As of June 
30, 2018, advances of $1,121,353 have been drawn, all of which were used and the 
related assets have not been placed in service. 

Because title to the assets passes to YCH when the lease obligation is satisfied, the 
lease qualifies as a capital lease and, therefore, has been recorded at the net 
present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of inception. The 
following is a schedule of leased property under capital leases which is included in 
capital assets not being depreciated on the statement of net position: 

Capital improvements 1,121,353$        
Interest incurred during construction 85,654              

Total construction in progress 1,207,007$        

 
 On December 29, 2017, YCH entered into a master equipment lease to purchase 

arrangement with PNC for financing of an EPC in the principal amount of 
$1,624,815. The yield of the lease payments is 3.29% with the first payment being 
due December 29, 2018, and all subsequent payments are due on the same day of 
each month after that. The final payment will be due on December 29, 2034. This 
lease is collateralized by the security interest in the related escrow funds. As of June 
30, 2018, advances of $1,624,815 have been drawn, all of which were used and the 
related assets were placed in service on June 30, 2018. 

Because title to the assets passes to YCH when the lease obligation is satisfied, the 
lease qualifies as a capital lease and, therefore, has been recorded at the net 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

42 

present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of inception. The 
following is a schedule of leased property under capital leases which is included in 
capital assets being depreciated on the statement of net position: 

Capital improvements 1,624,815$        
Interest incurred during construction 26,734              

Total building improvements 1,651,549$        

 
A detailed schedule of interest activity for the loans is as follows:  

Interest Interest Current 
incurred paid payable

Office Mortgage 1 17,065$             17,065$             -$                   

NHCDC - Cottonwood 
Mortgage 56,757                56,757                2,076                  

Migrant - Davis Housing 
Center 59,779                59,779                -                      

Migrant - Madison Housing 
Center 88,136                88,136                -                      

AMPs (interest capitalized) 26,973              -                    26,973               

COCC (interest capitalized) 85,768              -                    85,768               

334,478$           221,737$           114,817$           

 
Note 11 - Other noncurrent liabilities 

On October 2, 2003, YCH received a Joe Serna Jr. Farmworker Housing Grant from the 
State of California. The grant, totaling $600,000, was issued by the State to assist in the 
acquisition and development of real property located in Esparto, California. Between March 
2004 and October 2005, YCH requisitioned and received $331,269 of this grant. The 
property was purchased and the building permits pulled. No further activity has occurred. 
YCH has reported this grant as a long-term liability. This presentation is the most 
conservative, until the project is complete and the State is satisfied with the manner in 
which their funds were spent. No interest has been paid or accrued in relation to this grant.  

YCH has engaged a developer partner to do the construction for the final lots and sell the 
homes within the requirements of the grant. At this time, Laugenour & Meikle have 
completed processing of the tentative tract map and processing lot line adjustments to split 
the current 3 duplex lots into 6 single family lots. This tentative tract map has been 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

43 

approved by the Esparto Advisory Committee, the County Planning Commission, the 
County Board of Supervisors, and is currently in the process of being filed.  The next steps 
will be to finalize the changes in the State agreement from rental housing on 3 lots to for-
sale housing on 6 lots and then process the grading and improvement plans in preparation 
for pulling construction permits.  YCH anticipates this project will be completed, satisfying 
the revised terms required by the grant agreement, in 2020 which will allow the grant funds 
received to be recognized as revenue at that time. 

OPEB implicit subsidy 
As of June 30, 2018, implicit OPEB contributions of $38,618 are included in other 
noncurrent liabilities on the statement of net position. This amount is an estimate of the 
projected difference between future retiree claims and the premiums to be charged for 
retiree coverage and is based on the actuarial assumptions identified in Note 16. 

Note 12 - Other current liabilities 

PILOT taxes 
In connection with the Public Housing Program, YCH is obligated to make annual payments 
in lieu of property taxes ("PILOT") to the County of Yolo based on the lesser of the 
assessable value of owned housing, times the current tax rate; or 10% of the dwelling rents 
collected, net of utilities expense. In an agreement dated April 2, 2009, the County of Yolo 
and YCH agreed to use only the 10% of shelter rent calculation for PILOT for fiscal years 
ending 2003, and 2005-2012. This agreement also forgave the payment of PILOT for the 
fiscal years ended 2003 and 2005 and set up a repayment agreement for the PILOT owed 
for the fiscal years ended 2006-2008. During the year ended June 30, 2018, $120,247 was 
incurred and $119,849 remains payable as of June 30, 2018 and is included in other 
current liabilities in the statement of net position. 

CARE discount  
California Alternate Rates for Energy (“CARE”) program provides discounts to qualifying 
low-income families. YCH holds CARE reserves and a related liability on behalf of the 
tenants for each of the migrant centers. As of June 30, 2018, the CARE discount liability is 
$253,568 and is included in other current liabilities in the statement of net position. 

Accrued liabilities 
Construction costs payable related to various construction contracts in progress totaled 
$2,341,601 as of June 30, 2018 and is included in other accrued liabilities in the statement 
of net position. 

Note 13 - Other liabilities 

Unearned revenue  
Unearned revenue on the statement of net position represents development fees from 
affordable housing partnerships in the amount of $376,859 of which $240,366 is classified 
as current liability. 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

44 

Lease liability 
On June 5, 2017, YCH entered into a master equity lease agreement with Enterprise FM 
Trust to lease vehicles. The yield of the lease payments ranges from 6.7% to 10.7%.  

The leases are accounted for as capital leases and, therefore, have been recorded at the 
net present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the delivery date of each 
vehicle. The following is a schedule of leased vehicles under the capital leases which have 
been placed in service between the months of August 2017 to February 2018 and are 
reflected as capital assets being depreciated on the statement of net position: 

Vehicles 319,217$          
Less accumulated depreciation (29,911)             

Net vehicles 289,306$          

 

Following is a schedule of future minimum lease payment requirements through the term of 
the lease agreements noted above subsequent to June 30, 2018: 

Total future 
required 

payments

Less  amount 
representing 

interest

Present value of 
minimum future 
lease payments

2019 56,822$            (21,357)$           35,465$            
2020 56,822              (17,868)             38,954              
2021 56,822              (14,022)             42,800              
2022 56,822              (9,783)               47,039              
2023 73,054              (3,618)               69,436              

Total 300,342$          (66,648)$           233,694$          

 

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

45 

Note 14 - Net position 

Net investment in capital assets 
Net investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2018 consist of the following: 

Capital assets, net of depreciation 22,599,200$     
Long-term debt (5,885,477)        
Current portion of long-term debt (687,889)           
Accrued interest on long-term debt (114,817)           
Capital lease liability net of current portion (198,229)           
Current portion of capital lease liability (35,465)             
Accrued liabilities - construction (1,931,155)        
Solar Array - funds held in escrow 1,782,298         
AMPs - EPC loans - funds held in escrow 571,153            

Net 16,099,619$     

 
Restricted net position 
Net position is reported as restricted when constraints placed on the net position use are 
either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments; or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
YCH has reported the following as restricted net position: 

Excess HAP funding - Housing Choice Voucher -$                  
Madison Migrant Center replacement reserve 82,837              
Madison Migrant Center operating reserve 185,619            
Davis Migrant Center replacement reserve 176,289            
Davis Migrant Center operating reserve 79,261              
Dixon Migrant Center operating reserve 176,308            

Total 700,314$          

 
The excess HAP restricted reserves represent funds received from HUD in excess of the 
amounts expended by YCH for HAP. Based on HUD directive, these funds may only be 
used for future HAP payments and any excess received must be restricted in its use. In 
May 2009, HUD advised all housing authorities that a portion of the excess HAP reserve 
may be recaptured through reduced funding. YCH had no excess HAP funding recaptured 
during fiscal year 2018 and there is no excess HAP funding as of June 30, 2018. 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

46 

Net position 
A detailed schedule of all YCH's programs' net position as of June 30, 2018 is as follows: 

Net investment 
in capital 
assets

Restricted net 
position

Unrestricted 
net position

Total net 
position

Central Office Cost Center 5,813,615$     -$                400,192$        6,213,807$     
NHCDC - RHCP - Cottonwood (672,318)         -                  1,227,295       554,977          
Public Housing 9,540,278       -                  (90,670)           9,449,608       
Housing Choice Vouchers 6,591              -                  (454,296)         (447,705)         
Ross Grant -                  -                  (2,522)             (2,522)             
Migrant - Madison Housing Center -                  268,456          (244,110)         24,346            
Migrant - Davis Housing Center -                  255,550          (236,535)         19,015            
Migrant - Dixon Housing Center -                  176,308          (179,026)         (2,718)             
Esparto Development 343,724          -                  (461,723)         (117,999)         
ADMH 602,751          -                  (39,898)           562,853          
USDA - Davis Solar 129,772          -                  30,281            160,053          
Pacifico -                  -                  (52,965)           (52,965)           
IGT House (Buckeye) 335,206          -                  (2,515)             332,691          
Getting to Zero Grant -                  -                  (2,133)             (2,133)             

Total 16,099,619$   700,314$        (108,625)$       16,691,308$   

 
Note 15 - Pension plan 

Plan description 
YCH contributes to CalPERS, a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension 
plan (the "Plan"). The Plan consists of a miscellaneous pool and a safety pool (referred to 
as "risk pools"), which are comprised of individual employer miscellaneous and safety rate 
plans, respectively. Individual employers may sponsor more than one miscellaneous and 
safety rate plan. CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living 
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. CalPERS acts as a 
common investment and administrative agent for participating public entities within the 
State of California. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by 
contract with CalPERS in accordance with the provisions of the Public Employees 
Retirement Law. A menu of benefit provisions and other requirements are established by 
State statutes within the Public Employees' Retirement Law. YCH selects optional benefit 
provisions from the benefit menu by contract with CalPERS and adopts those benefits 
through Board Approval. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial 
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of 
the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 
400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 95814. 

The California Legislature passed and the Governor signed the "Public Employees' 
Pension Reform Act of 2013" ("PEPRA") on September 12, 2012. PEPRA contained a 
number of provisions intended to reduce future pension obligations. PEPRA primarily 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

47 

affects new pension plan members who are enrolled for the first time after December 2012. 
Benefit provisions and other requirements are established by State statute. 

Benefits provided 
The benefits for the Plan are based on members' years of service, age, final compensation, 
and benefit formula. Benefits are provided for disability, military service credits, death, and 
survivors of eligible members or beneficiaries. Members become fully vested in their 
retirement benefits earned to date after five years of credited service.  

The PEPRA created two benefit levels for YCH’s employees who qualify for membership in 
CalPERS. They are outlined below: 

  
Current 

Members* New Members** 
Retirement Formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 62 
Retirement 
Contribution 

7% 
50% of Annual 
Normal Cost*** 

Final Compensation  
 Method 

Highest 1 Year 
Average 

Highest 3 Year 
Average 

 
*Current Member is defined as anyone who is or has been a member of CalPERS or 
another recognized public retirement system and who has not had more than a six-month 
break in service. 

**New Member is defined as anyone who is or has been a member of CalPERS or another 
recognized public retirement system and who has not had more than a six-month break in 
service and was hired by the Authority after January 1, 2013. 

***Annual Normal cost for New Members is determined annually by CalPERS and is 
dependent on the benefit levels, actuarial assumptions, and demographics of each plan. 
The Authority’s New Member contribution for 2018 was 6.5%. 

Funding policy 
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the 
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by 
the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The 
total plan contributions are determined through the CalPERS' annual actuarial valuation 
process. For public agency cost-sharing plans covered by either the Miscellaneous or 
Safety risk pools, the Plan's actuarially determined rate is based on the estimated amount 
necessary to pay the Plans' allocated share of the risk pool's costs of benefits earned by 
employees during the year, and any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is required to 
contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate 
of employees. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the active employee contribution 
rate is 6.250% of annual pay and the average employer's contribution rate is 12.487% of 
annual payroll. Employer contributions rates may change if plan contracts are amended. It 
is the responsibility of the employer to make necessary accounting adjustments to reflect 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

48 

the impact due to any Employer Paid Member Contributions or situations where members 
are paying a portion of the employer contribution. 

Net pension liability 
As of June 30, 2018, YCH reported net pension liability for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability of $3,702,470. 

The YCH net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net 
pension liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2018, and 
the total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016 rolled forward to June 30, 2018 
using standard update procedures. GASB 68 requires cost sharing employers to establish 
an approach to allocate the net pension liability and pension expense to the individual 
employers within the risk pool. Pools where contribution rates within the pool are based on 
separate relationships, the proportional allocation should reflect those relationships. The 
allocation method utilized by CalPERS determines the employer's share by reflecting these 
relations through the plans they sponsor within the risk pool. Plan liability and asset-related 
information are used where available, and proportional allocations of individual plan 
accounts as of the valuation date are used where not available. YCH's proportionate share 
of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2018 for all members was 0.08344%. 

Pension expense and deferred outflows/Inflows of resources related to pensions 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, YCH recognized pension expense (revenue) of 
$585,428. At June 30, 2018, YCH reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred outflows 
of resources

Deferred inflows 
of resources

Differences between actual and expected 
experience 4,633$                66,382$              
Changes in assumptions 574,903              43,836                
Net differences between projected and actual 
earnings on plan investments 130,019              -                      
Contributions made subsequent to measurement 
date 151,664              -                      

Total 861,219$            110,218$            

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

49 

The $151,664 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions made 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ending June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as 
follows: 

Year ended 
June 30 Amounts

2019 34,966$             
2020 48,861              
2021 327,008            
2022 188,502            

599,337$            

 
Actuarial assumptions 
For the measurement period ended June 30, 2017 (measurement date), the total pension 
liability was based on the following actuarial method and assumptions: 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Discount Rate 7.15%
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases Varies (1)

Payroll Growth  3.00%
Mortality(2) CalPERS' Membership Data
Post Retirement Benefit Increase Up to 2.75%(3)

 
(1) Depending on entry age and service 
(2) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS specific data. Pre-retirement and Post-

retirement mortality rates include 5 years of projected mortality improvement using Scale AA 
published by the Society of Actuaries. 

(3) Contract COLA up to 2.75% until Purchasing Power Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power 
applies, 2.75% thereafter  

 

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the 
results of an actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 to 2011, including updates 
to salary increase, mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Study report can be 
obtained at CalPERS website under Forms and Publications. 

Discount rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15%. To determine 
whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for 
each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that 
would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none 
of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the discount rate of 7.15% is adequate and 
the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

50 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both 
short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund 
cash flows. Such cash flows were developed assuming that both members and employers 
will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. Using 
historical returns of all the funds' asset classes, expected compound returns were 
calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11 - 60 years) using a 
building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-
term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of 
return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same 
present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and 
long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single 
equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one 
percent. 

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate 
of return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the 
discount rate and asset allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses. 

Asset class
 New strategic 

allocation 

Real return 
years 1 - 10

(a)

Real return 
years 11+

(b)

Global equity 47% 5.25% 5.71%
Global fixed income 19% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation sensitive 6% 0.45% 3.36%
Private equity 12% 6.83% 6.95%
Real estate 11% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and forestland 3% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2% -0.55% -1.05%

100%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% is used for this period
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% is used for this period

 
Sensitivity of YCH’s proportionate share of net pension liability to changes in the 
discount rate  
The following presents YCH's proportionate share of the net pension liability of the Plan as 
of the measurement date, calculated using the discount rate of 7.15%, as well as what 
YCH's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.15%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.15%) 
than the current rate: 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

51 

 Discount rate 
-1% (6.15%) 

 Current 
discount rate

(7.15%) 
 Discount rate 
+1% (8.15%) 

Net pension liability 5,768,351$         3,702,470$         1,995,122$         

 
Pension plan fiduciary net position 
Detailed information about each pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the 
separately issued CalPERS financial reports. 

Payable to the pension plan 
At June 30, 2018, YCH reported a payable of $21,469 for the outstanding amount of 
contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

Note 16 - Other Post-Employment Benefits ("OPEB") 

Plan description 
The OPEB provided by YCH is medical plan coverage. YCH offers its retired 
employees/commissioners health insurance through CalPERS. To be eligible for this 
benefit, the former employee/commissioner must be fifty years of age, have five years of 
credited service, and retire from YCH. The employee cannot terminate employment before 
meeting the age condition and be entitled to receive benefits. The plan provides the same 
benefit to its retired employees as it does for its active employees. The plan provides for 
100% of the medical premium for retired employees and spouses and 40% of the medical 
premium for retired commissioners and their spouses. A separate financial report is not 
prepared for the OPEB Plan. 

Employees covered 
As of the measurement date of June 30, 2017, there are 14 retirees receiving benefits 
under the program and 1 other retiree who is currently waiving coverage but assumed to 
re-enroll in the plan at age 65. At the same measurement date, YCH had 32 active 
employees of which 25 were enrolled in the medical program and 7 were waiving coverage.  

Contributions  
YCH contributions to the OPEB Plan occur as benefits are paid to retirees and/or to the 
OPEB trust. The annual contribution is based on the actuarially determined contribution. 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Authority’s cash contributions were $328,202 in 
payments to the trust and the estimated implied subsidy was $38,617 resulting in total 
payments of $366,819. YCH has a trust with the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust 
(CERBT) for the purpose of prefunding OPEB obligations for past services.  

Net OPEB liability  
YCH’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 and the total OPEB liability 
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated 
June 30, 2017 based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions. 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

52 

Actuarial assumptions 
For the measurement period ended June 30, 2017 (measurement date), the total pension 
liability was based on the following actuarial method and assumptions: 

Funding Method: Entry-Age Normal Cost, level percent of pay  
 
Asset Valuation Method: 

 
Market value of assets  

 
Long Term Return on Assets: 
 
 

 
6.00% net of plan investment fees and 
including inflation 

 
Discount Rates: 6.00%  

Participants Valued: 
 
 
 

 
Only current active employees and retired 
participants and covered dependents are 
valued. No future entrants are considered in 
the valuation 

 
Salary Increases: 
 
 

 
3.25% per year; since benefits do not depend 
on pay, this is used only to allocate the cost 
of benefits between service years 

 
Assumed Wage Inflation: 
 
 

 
3.0% per year; used as a component of 
assumed salary increases 

General Inflation Rate: 
 
 

2.75% per year 

Mortality Rate(1): 
 
 

Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data 
for all funds 

Pre-Retirement Turnover(2): 
 
 

Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data 
for all funds 

Healthcare Trend Rate: 
 
 

7.00% HMO / 7.5% PPO decreasing to 4.5% 
HMO / 4.5% PPO 

(1) Pre-Retirement mortality information was derived from data collected during 1997 to 2011 CalPERS 
Experience Study dated January 2014 and post-retirement mortality was derived from the 2007 to 
2011 CalPERS Experience Study. The Experience Study Reports may be accessed on the 
CalPERS website www.calpers.ca.gov under Forms and Publications. 

 
(2) The Pre-Retirement turnover information was developed based on CalPERS specific data. For more 

details, please refer to the 2007 to 2011 Experience Study Report. The Experience Study Report 
may be accessed on the CalPERS website www.calpers.ca.gov under Forms and Publications. 

 
 

http://www.calpers.ca.gov/
http://www.calpers.ca.gov/


Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

53 

Discount rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.00 percent. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that YCH contributions will be 
made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those 
assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make 
all projected OPEB payments for current active and inactive employees and beneficiaries. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan assets was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 

Changes in the OPEB liability 
The changes in the net OPEB liability for the OPEB Plan are as follows: 

 Total OPEB 
liability 

 Fiduciary net 
position 

 Net OPEB 
liability 

Balance at June 30, 2017 3,610,305$       1,949,547$       1,660,758$       
Changes recognized for the 
measurement period

Service cost 188,747            -                    188,747            
Interest cost 224,186            -                    224,186            
Expected investment income -                    124,473            (124,473)           
Employer contributions -                    375,223            (375,223)           
Benefit payments (125,223)           (125,223)           -                    
Investment experience -                    80,452              (80,452)             

Net changes during the year 287,710            454,925            (167,215)           

Balance at June 30, 2018 3,898,015$       2,404,472$       1,493,543$       

 
Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate  
The following presents YCH's net OPEB liability if it were calculated using a discount rate 
that is one percent point lower or one percent point higher than the current rate as of the 
measurement date: 

 Changes in discount rate  Net OPEB liability 

1% Decrease (5.00%) 2,072,308$          
Current Discount Rate (6.00%) 1,493,543            
1% Increase (7.00%) 1,020,988            

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

54 

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the Healthcare cost trend rates  
The following presents YCH's net OPEB liability if it were calculated using healthcare cost 
trend rates that are one percent point lower or one percent point higher than the current 
rate as of the measurement date: 

 Changes in Healthcare Cost Trend Rates Net OPEB liability 

1% Decrease 963,613$             
Current Trend 1,493,543           
1% Increase 2,155,356           

 
Recognition of deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources  
Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are 
recognized in OPEB expense systematically over time. 

Amounts are first recognized in OPEB expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The 
remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future OPEB expense. 

The recognition period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss: 

 Net differences between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments 
are recognized over a 5-year period using the straight-line method. 

 All other amounts are recognized over the expected average remaining service 
lifetime ("EARSL") of all members that are provided with benefits, determined as of 
the beginning of the measurement period. 

OPEB expense and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to OPEB 
Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are 
recognized in OPEB expense systematically over time. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, YCH recognized OPEB expense of $272,000. As 
of June 30, 2018, YCH reported deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to OPEB 
from the following sources: 

Deferred outflows 
of resources 

 Deferred
 inflows of 
resources 

Contributions made subsequent to the 
measurement date 366,819$             -$                       
Net differences between projected and actual 
earnings on plan investments -                       64,362                    

Total 366,819$            64,362$                 

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

55 

The $366,819 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions made 
subsequent to the June 30, 2017 measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of 
the net OPEB liability during YCH next fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as 
expense as follows: 

 Fiscal year 
ending June 30: 

 Deferred outflows/
(inflows) of 
resources 

2019 (16,090)$                
2020 (16,090)                  
2021 (16,090)                  
2022 (16,092)                  

(64,362)$                

 
Note 17 - Deferred compensation plan 

YCH offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457, State and Local Government Deferred Compensation 
Plans. The plan is administered by the ICMA Retirement Corporation. The plan, available to 
all regular employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The 
deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or 
unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all 
property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those 
amounts, property, or rights are held in trust for the exclusive benefits of participants and 
their beneficiaries.  

As of June 30, 2018, the funds are being held by the ICMA Retirement Corporation on 
behalf of YCH's employees. These funds are not recorded as assets of YCH since they are 
held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries and are not 
subject to claims of YCH's general creditors.  

Note 18 - Risk management 

Worker's compensation 
YCH is a member of the California Housing Worker's Compensation Authority ("CHWCA"), 
which provides worker's compensation insurance. CHWCA provides employer liability 
coverage to its members, in the amount of $500,000 each accident. CHWCA has 
purchased excess insurance coverage from $1,000,000 to statutory, for all of its members.  

CHWCA is a joint powers authority consisting of 31 public housing authorities, housing 
commissions, and agencies organized under a joint powers agreement to fund a self-
insurance program for worker's compensation. Each member has equal representation on 
the Board of Directors. The Board elects a seven-member Executive Committee for a two-



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

56 

year term which has the responsibility for overseeing all operations of CHWCA. The Board 
of Directors has total responsibility for all actions of CHWCA.  

Annual premiums and assessments are approved by the Board of Directors and are 
adjusted each year based on the following criteria:  

 Each member's incurred losses; 

 Each member's share of such losses and other expenses as a proportion of all 
members' such losses; 

 Each member's contribution to reserves, including reserves for incurred but not 
reported losses; and 

 Each member's share of costs to purchase excess insurance and any additional 
coverage. 

If CHWCA is dissolved, the remaining assets, after all premiums and assessments have 
been paid and final disposition of all claims has been determined, will be distributed to 
members proportionate to each member's cash contributions made during the life of 
CHWCA. Until dissolution, however, no member has identifiable equity. 

Property and liability insurance 
YCH procured insurance beginning June 1, 2009 through the Housing Authority Insurance 
Group (“HAI Group”) with the Housing Authority Risk Retention Group and Travelers. The 
limits for property and liability insurance are $5 million for both YCH and the Dixon Housing 
Authority, with deductibles of $25,000 per occurrence. The limits for automobile insurance 
are $5 million for owned autos, $1 million for non-owned hired autos, and $1 million for 
uninsured motorist. The limit for employee benefit administration liability is $1 million, with a 
deductible of $1,000.  

Note 19 - Economic dependency  

YCH receives the majority of its funding from HUD. HUD is subject to the federal budget 
appropriation process each year. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, YCH's budget 
included $15,461,075 of estimated HUD funding. A reduction in funding from HUD could 
significantly change the services provided by YCH.  

Note 20 - Commitments and contingencies  

Grants and contracts 
YCH has received funds from various federal, state and local grant programs. It is possible 
that at some future date it may be determined that YCH was not in compliance with 
applicable grant requirements. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be 
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time although YCH does 
not expect such disallowed amounts, if any, to have a material effect on the financial 
statements.  



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

57 

Lawsuits and claims 
YCH is subject to lawsuits and claims which arise out of the normal course of its activities. 
It is the opinion of YCH’s management, based upon the opinion of legal counsel, that the 
disposition of such matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition 
of YCH. Management is aware of one lawsuit filed during the year, the status of which is 
described below.  

On August 25, 2017, a lawsuit was filed against YCH that was served on YCH on October 
16, 2017, alleging dangerous conditions of public property and negligence arising from 
events that occurred on or around July 11, 2016. The lawsuit seeks $12.5 million in 
damages. YCH is represented by a law firm retained by HAI Group, YCH’s property and 
liability insurer. Current liability coverage is in the amount of $5 million dollars resulting in 
$7.5 million in potential exposure. This total potential exposure may be higher due to the 
possibility of a limitation of coverage in the amount of $250,000 resulting from an Athletic 
Sports Liability Sub-Limit. As of the date of this report, the case is in discovery stage, the 
law firm has not yet completed its evaluation of relevant factual and legal issues and an 
opinion cannot be expressed on the probability of a successful defense or estimate of the 
potential amount of a damages award.  

Note 21 - Blended component unit 

YCH has one blended component unit, NHCDC. NHCDC is a nonprofit corporation created 
to develop affordable housing and community development based economic development 
ventures. NHCDC's primary business activity is the operation of the Cottonwood Meadows 
Senior Apartments. A summary of the financial statements of NHCDC as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2018 are included as supplementary information in the combining 
schedules. 

Note 22 - Discretely presented component unit 

YCH has one discretely presented component unit, Crosswood, Crosswood is a limited 
partnership with the purpose to invest in real estate and to provide low-income housing 
through the acquisition, construction, rehabilitation, operation, and leasing of a 48-unit 
apartment complex located in Woodland, California, operating under the name of 
Crosswood Apartments. Crosswood has a December 31 fiscal year-end. 

Deferred costs and amortization 
Tax credit fees of $32,077 are being amortized using the straight-line method over the tax 
credit compliance period. As of December 31, 2017, accumulated amortization is $5,702. 
Estimated annual amortization expense for each of the next five years subsequent to 
December 31, 2017 is $2,138 per year. 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

58 

Capital assets 
A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2017 is as 
follows: 

Balance,
December 31, 

2016 Additions
Transfers / 

Retirements

Balance,
December 31, 

2017 

Capital assets, not being 
depreciated

Land 90,000$          -$                -$                 90,000$          
Buildings 2,822,733       27,483           -                  2,850,216       
Building improvements 3,017,870       -                 -                  3,017,870       
Land improvements 324,504          -                 -                  324,504          
Furniture and fixtures 5,647              -                 -                  5,647              

Total assets 6,260,754       27,483           -                  6,288,237       

Less accumulated depreciation (328,570)         (169,465)        -                  (498,035)         

Total capital assets, net 5,932,184$     (141,982)$       -$                 5,790,202$     

 
Mortgages and notes payable 
Mortgages and notes payable consist of the following at December 31, 2017: 

Lender Interest rate Maturity
Principal balance as 

of 12/31/17

Monthly principal 
and interest or 

other 
repayments 

terms

CBRE HMF, Inc. 3.39% 09/01/49 3,202,570$             13,736$             
PNC Bank 2.50% 02/26/17 -                         (*)

3,202,570               
Less debt issuance costs (214,194)                

Total 2,988,376$             

(*) Montly installments of interest only until maturity. The loan was paid in full in September 2017 out
of the proceeds from the capital contributions of the investor limited partner of the Partnership.

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

59 

Estimated future principal payments on the above mortgages and notes payable for each of 
the next five years and thereafter subsequent to December 31, 2017 are as follows: 

CBRE HMF, Inc. YCH Total

2018 57,152$              -$                    57,152$              
2019 59,119                -                      59,119                
2020 61,155                -                      61,155                
2021 63,261                -                      63,261                
2022 65,439               -                    65,439                
Thereafter 2,896,444           775,000              3,671,444           

Subtotal 3,202,570           775,000              3,977,570           
Less debt issuance 
costs (214,194)             -                      (214,194)             

Total 2,988,376$        775,000$           3,763,376$         

 
Crosswood owes YCH $775,000 which is expected to be paid out of available cash flow of 
the partnership. 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents consist of the following at June 30, 2018: 

Security deposits 13,930$              
Replacement reserve 152,769             
Operating reserve 100,169             
Escrow deposits 10,164               

Total 277,032$            

 
Note 23 - Other matters 

YCH is a co-general partner in one tax credit property known as Eleanor Roosevelt Circle. 
YCH ownership interest is .003% in the partnership and the other general partners are 
responsible for the partnership and its management. The majority of each project is owned 
by the limited partner, National Equity Fund, a tax credit syndicator.  

NHCDC is a managing general partner of two tax credit partnerships known as Cesar 
Chavez Plaza and Rochdale Grange. Additionally, NHCDC is a co-developer and co-
general partner of Mercy New Hope, L.P., a California Limited Partnership, known as West 
Beamer Place. NHCDC's ownership is .003% in each partnership and the other general 
partners are responsible for the partnership and its management. The majority of each 
project is owned by the limited partner tax credit investor.  



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

60 

YCH owns the land on which West Beamer Place is being developed in Woodland, 
California. On May 26, 2017, YCH entered into a ground lease agreement with Mercy New 
Hope, L.P., a California Limited Partnership to lease the land for the total amount of $1, 
which was received during the year ended June 30, 2018. The lease term is 99 years. 

Note 24 - Related party transactions  

YCH receives legal services from the County of Yolo, Office of the County Counsel. 
Services are billed based on hours of service provided and totaled $30,122 for the year 
ended June 30, 2018. 

Note 25 - Subsequent events  

Events that occur after the date of the statement of net position but before the financial 
statements were available to be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. 
The effects of subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the 
date of the statement of net position are recognized in the accompanying financial 
statements. Subsequent events which provide evidence about conditions that existed after 
the date of the statement of net position require disclosure in the accompanying notes 
Management evaluated the activity of YCH through November 29, 2018, the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued, and concluded that no subsequent events 
have occurred that would require recognition in the financial statements or disclosure in the 
notes to financial statements. 

 



 

   

Supplementary Information



Yolo County Housing 
 

Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
Schedule of The Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

 
As of June 30, 2018 Last 10 Years* 

 
 

62 

2018 2017 2016 2015

Plan's Proportion of the Net Penion Liability 0.09392% 0.11627% 0.09046% 0.03839%

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net 
Pension Liability 3,702,470$        3,189,698$        2,481,845$        2,388,659$           

Plan's Covered Payroll 2,267,847$       2,105,558$       2,039,281$        1,971,841$          

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Penion 
Liability as a Percentage of its Covered 
Payroll 163% 151% 122% 121%

Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary 
Net Position as a Percentage of the Plan's 
total Pension Liability 0.08344% 0.08581% 0.08973% 0.08973%

Plan's Proportionate Share of Aggregate 
Employer Contributions 299,433$           255,771$           202,527$           190,807$              

 
Notes to Schedule 

Changes of benefit terms. In 2018, there were no changes to the benefit terms. 

Changes in assumptions. In 2018, the discount rate was reduced from 7.65% to 7.15%. 

* Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation of GASB 68, therefore only four 
years are shown.  

 

 

  

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
Schedule of Contributions 

 
As of June 30, 2018 Last 10 Years* 

 
 

63 

2018 2017 2016 2015

Contractually required contribution 299,433$          255,771$          202,527$           190,807$             

Contributions in relation to the contractually 
required contribution (299,433)           (255,771)           (202,527)           (190,807)              

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                 -$                 -$                  -$                    

Authority's covered payroll 2,267,847$       2,105,558$       2,039,281$        1,971,841$          

Contributions as a percentage of covered 
payroll 13.20% 12.15% 9.93% 9.68%

 
Notes to schedule 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal 
Actuarial Assumptions: 
Inflation 2.75%

Salary Increases Varies (1)

Payroll Growth 3.0% (2)

Investment Rate of Return 7.2% 
Retirement Age 2010 Experience Study(3)

Mortality(3) 2010 Experience Study(4)

 
(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment. 
(2) Net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses, including inflation. 
(3) The probabilities of Retirement are based on the 2010 CalPERS Experience Study for the period

from 1997 to 2007. 
(4) The probabilities of Retirement are based on the 2010 CalPERS Experience Study for the period

from 1997 to 2007. Pre-retirement and Post-retirement mortality rates include 5 years of projected
mortality improvement using Scale AA published by the Society of Actuaries. 

 

* Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation of GASB 68, therefore only four years 
are shown.  

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
Last 10 Fiscal Years (1) 

 
 

64 

2018 

Total OPEB liability
Service cost 188,747$          
Interest on total OPEB liability 224,186            
Changes of assumptions -                   
Differences between expected and actual experience -                   
Benefit payments (125,223)           

Net change in total OPEB liability 287,710             

Total OPEB liability - beginning 3,610,305          

Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 3,898,015$        

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions from employer 375,223$          
Net investment income 124,473            
Benefit payments (125,223)           
Investment experience 80,452              

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 454,925             

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 1,949,547          

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 2,404,472$        

Net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b) 1,493,543$       

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total OPEB liability 61.68%

Covered payroll 2,267,847$        

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll 65.86%
 

 
Note to Schedule 

(1) Fiscal year 2018 is the first year of implementation of GASB 75, therefore only one year is 
shown.



Yolo County Housing 
 

Schedule of OPEB Plan Contributions 
Last 10 Fiscal Years (1) 

 
 

65 

 2018 

Actuarily Determined Contributions (ADC) 305,531$          
Contributions in relation to the ADC (366,819)          

Contributions deficiency (excess) (61,288)$          

Covered payroll 2,267,847$        
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 16.17%

 
Notes to Schedule of OPEB Plan Contributions 

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for the 
fiscal year 2018 contribution rates are as follows:  

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Cost Method 

Amortization 
Method/Period  Level percent of payroll over a closed rolling 15-year period 

Asset Valuation Method Market value of assets. 

Inflation 2.75% 

Salary Increases 3.25% per year; since benefits do not depend on pay, this is 
covered only to allocate the cost of benefits between service 
years 

Payroll Growth 3.0% per year; used as a component of assumed salary 
increases 

Investment Rate of 
Return  6.00% net of plan investment fees and including inflation 
Healthcare cost trend 
rates 

7.5% initial, then decreasing 0.5% per year to trend rate that 
reflects medical price inflation 

Retirement age Tier 1 employees - 2.5% @55 and Tier 2 employees - 2.0% 
@62.  The probabilities of Retirement are based on the 2014 
CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2011. 

Mortality  The probabilities of Mortality are based on the 2014 CalPERS 
Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2011 except for 
(a) point retirement base used for 3 employees and (b) a 
different basis used to project future mortality improvements.  
Pre-retirement and Post-retirement mortality rates include 20 
years of projected mortality improvements using Scale BB 
published by the Society of Actuaries 

(1) Fiscal year 2018 is the first year of implementation of GASB 75, therefore only one year is 
shown. 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Combining Schedule of Net Position 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

66 

 Business activities  Federal funds  State funds  Eliminations 
 Primary 

Government  Component Unit 

Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 991,193$                   1,501,894$        719,106$           -$                   3,212,193$        88,056$             
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (Notes 3, 4) 1,812,520                  750,503             1,207,452          -                     3,770,475          277,032             
Accounts receivable - HUD 2,338                         248,684             -                     -                     251,022             -                     
Accounts receivable - tenant, net 716                            15,166               11,117               -                     26,999               4,720                 
Accounts receivable - other 121,329                     16,839               -                     -                     138,168             -                     
Accounts receivable - funding source (Note 5) 87,346                       4,041                 470,829             -                     562,216             -                     
Note receivable and due from component unit (Note 7) 44,141                       -                     -                     -                     44,141               -                     
Interprogram due from (Note 9) 904,663                     -                     -                     (904,663)            -                     -                     
Inventories, net -                             27,045               -                     -                     27,045               -                     
Prepaid items and other assets 51,444                       166,421             62,774               -                     280,639             20,931               

Total current assets 4,015,690                  2,730,593          2,471,278          (904,663)            8,312,898          390,739             

Noncurrent assets
Note receivable and due from component unit (Note 7) 1,552,502                  -                     -                     -                     1,552,502          -                     
Capital assets not being depreciated (Note 6) 6,257,105                  3,901,705          472,403             -                     10,631,213        90,000               
Capital assets being depreciated, net (Note 6) 3,656,535                  7,372,402          939,050             -                     11,967,987        5,700,202          
Other assets, net 38,544                       -                     -                     (38,395)              149                    27,743               

Total noncurrent assets 11,504,686                11,274,107        1,411,453          (38,395)              24,151,851        5,817,945          

Total assets 15,520,376$              14,004,700$      3,882,731$        (943,058)$          32,464,749$      6,208,684$        

Deferred outflows of resources - Pensions (Note 15) 297,530$                   415,245$           148,444$           -$                   861,219$           -$                   
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB (Note 16) 135,723                     176,073             55,023               -                     366,819             -                     

Deferred outflows of resources 433,253$                   591,318$           203,467$           -$                   1,228,038$        -$                   

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Combining Schedule of Net Position 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

67 

 Business activities  Federal funds  State funds  Eliminations 
 Primary 

Government  Component Unit 

Liabilities

Current liabilities
Accounts payable - vendors 193,932$                  -$                  223,719$           -$                  417,651$          33,486$            
Accounts payable - funding source (Note 8) -                           -                   266,224            -                   266,224           -                   
Accrued compensated absences - current portion 33,182                     13,474             6,717                -                   53,373             -                   
Accrued interest payable (Note 10) 87,844                     26,973             -                   -                   114,817           9,060               
Accrued liabilities - other (Note 12) 1,522,185                683,567           203,678            -                   2,409,430        15,061             
Interprogram due to (Note 9) 17,114                     286,671           600,878            (904,663)          -                   -                   
Notes payable - current portion (Note 10) 653,575                   34,314             -                   -                   687,889           57,152             
Note payable and due to Primary Government (Note 7) -                           -                   -                   -                   -                   38,907             
Deposits payable 21,810                     163,127           53,292              -                   238,229           13,930             
Unearned revenue - current portion (Note 13) 366                          -                   240,000            -                   240,366           2,654               
Capital lease liability - current portion (Note 13) 32,269                     3,196               -                   -                   35,465             -                   
Other current liabilities (Note 12) 11,491                     119,849           267,031            -                   398,371           8,922               

Total current liabilities 2,573,768                1,331,171        1,861,539         (904,663)          4,861,815        179,172           

Non-current liabilities
Accrued compensated absences - net of current portion 99,548                     40,424             20,150              -                   160,122           -                   
Notes payable - net of current portion (Note 10) 4,294,976                1,590,501        -                   -                   5,885,477        2,931,224        
Note payable and due to Primary Government (Note 7) -                           -                   -                   -                   1,558,954        
Family self sufficiency escrows -                             18,863               -                     -                     18,863               -                     
Unearned revenue - net of current portion (Note 13) 136,493                     -                     -                     -                     136,493             -                     
Capital lease liability - net of current portion (Note 13) 183,468                     14,761               -                     -                     198,229             -                     
Net OPEB liability (Note 16) 539,188                   716,291           238,064            -                   1,493,543        -                   
Net pension liability (Note 15) 1,296,424                1,771,583        634,463            -                   3,702,470        
Other liabilities (Note 11) 13,900                     18,530             375,852            (38,395)            369,887           -                   

Total liabilities 9,137,765$               5,502,124$       3,130,068$        (943,058)$         16,826,899$     4,669,350$       

Deferred inflows of resources - Pensions (Note 15) (17,282)$                   94,513$            32,987$             -$                  110,218$          -$                  
Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB (Note 16) 64,362                     -                   -                   -                   64,362             -                   

Deferred inflows of resources 47,080$                     94,513$             32,987$             -$                   174,580$           -$                   

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets (Note 14) 5,141,297$               9,546,869$       1,411,453$        -$                  16,099,619$     -$                  
Restricted (Note 14) -                           -                   700,314            -                   700,314           1,745,091        
Unrestricted (Note 14) 1,627,487                (547,488)          (1,188,624)        -                   (108,625)          (205,757)          

Total net position 6,768,784$               8,999,381$       923,143$           -$                  16,691,308$     1,539,334$       
 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

68 

 Business 
activities  Federal funds  State funds  Eliminations 

 Primary 
Government 

 Component 
Unit 

Operating revenue
Rental income 512,610$        1,915,922$     93,819$          (128,718)$       2,393,633$     485,419$        
Fee revenue 2,120,140       -                  -                  (2,120,140)      -                  -                  
Other revenue 536,674          42,202            149,003          -                  727,879          4,709              

Total operating revenue 3,169,424       1,958,124       242,822          (2,248,858)      3,121,512       490,128          

Operating expenses
Administrative expenses 2,047,236       2,832,815       603,064          (1,496,154)      3,986,961       123,428          
Tenant services 804                 317,635          33,532            -                  351,971          27,427            
Maintenance 666,720          1,180,765       2,432,720       (752,704)         3,527,501       68,317            
Utilities 77,880            639,545          468,894          -                  1,186,319       47,351            
Insurance and taxes 56,640            135,409          138,320          -                  330,369          16,178            
Housing assistance payments -                  11,588,727     -                  -                  11,588,727     -                  
Depreciation 192,652          515,469          35,150            -                  743,271          169,465          
Amortization -                  -                  -                      -                  -                  2,138              

Total operating expenses 3,041,932       17,210,365     3,711,680       (2,248,858)      21,715,119     454,304          

Net operating income (loss) 127,492          (15,252,241)    (3,468,858)      -                  (18,593,607)    35,824            

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

69 

Business 
activities  Federal funds  State funds  Eliminations 

Primary 
Government 

Component 
Unit 

Nonoperating revenue (expenses)
Grant revenue 36,802            13,955,039    3,563,287      -                17,555,128    -                
Gain (loss) on disposition 29,636            42,746           (28)                 -                72,354           -                
Interest income 29,999             4,839               229                  -                  35,067             338                  
Interest expense (75,088)          -                (147,915)       -                (223,003)       (188,830)       

Total nonoperating revenue 21,349            14,002,624    3,415,573      -                17,439,546    (188,492)       

Change in net position before 
capital grants and transfers 148,841           (1,249,617)      (53,285)           -                  (1,154,061)      (152,668)         

Capital grants -                  1,506,036        -                  -                  1,506,036        -                  
Capital contributions -                 -                -                 -                -                2,007,790      

Change in net position before 
transfers 148,841           256,419           (53,285)           -                  351,975           1,855,122        

Operating transfers in 328,604          994,759         -                 (1,323,363)    -                -                
Operating transfers out 182,673          (1,506,036)    -                 1,323,363      -                -                

Change in net position 660,118          (254,858)       (53,285)         -                351,975         1,855,122      

Net position - beginning of year 6,538,131        9,826,768        1,167,626        -                  17,532,525      (315,788)         
Prior period adjustment (429,465)         (572,529)         (191,198)         -                  (1,193,192)      -                  

Net position - end of year 6,768,784$     8,999,381$     923,143$        -$               16,691,308$   1,539,334$     

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Combining Schedule of Cash Flows 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

70 

 Business 
activities  Federal funds  State funds  Eliminations 

 Primary 
Government 

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from tenants 510,975$          1,917,497$       93,121$            -$                  2,521,593$       
Other operating cash received 625,566           42,202             149,003            -                   816,771           
Cash payments for general and administrative expenses (2,894,854)       (5,118,705)       (3,304,085)        2,120,140        (9,197,504)       
Cash payments for housing assistance expenditures -                   (11,588,727)     -                    -                   (11,588,727)     
Fees received from other programs 2,120,140        -                   -                    (2,120,140)       -                   

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 361,827             (14,747,733)       (3,061,961)         -                     (17,447,867)       

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Principal paid on notes payable (586,094)          -                   -                    -                   (586,094)          
Proceeds from new debt and notes 3,039,675        1,624,815        -                    -                   4,664,490        
Cash received from capital grants -                   1,280,087        -                    -                   1,280,087        
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 29,636             42,746             -                    -                   72,382             
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,431,731)       (1,582,073)       (409,382)           -                   (3,423,186)       
Interest paid (73,822)            -                   (147,915)           -                   (221,737)          

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related 
financing activities 977,664             1,365,575          (557,297)            -                     1,785,942          

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Cash received from HUD operating grants -                   1,408,274        -                    -                   1,408,274        
Cash received from Housing Choice Voucher program -                   12,892,886      -                    -                   12,892,886      
Cash received from other programs 36,802             -                   -                    -                   36,802             
Cash received from (paid to) other programs 511,277           (511,277)          -                    -                   -                   
Cash received from other grants -                   -                   3,304,168         -                   3,304,168        

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 548,079             13,789,883        3,304,168          -                     17,642,130        



Yolo County Housing 
 

Combining Schedule of Cash Flows 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

71 

 Business 
activities  Federal funds  State funds  Eliminations 

 Primary 
Government 

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest income 29,999               4,839                 229                    -                     35,067               

Net cash provided by investing activities 29,999               4,839                 229                    -                     35,067               

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,917,569          412,564             (314,861)            -                     2,015,272          

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year 886,144 1,839,833 2,241,419 -                     4,967,396

End of year 2,803,713$        2,252,397$        1,926,558$        -$                   6,982,668$        

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Combining Schedule of Cash Flows 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

72 

Business 
activities Federal funds State funds  Eliminations 

 Primary 
Government 

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by 
(used in) operating activities

Operating income (loss) 127,492$          (15,252,241)$    (3,468,858)$      -$                  (18,593,607)$    
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net 
cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 192,652             515,469             35,150               -                     743,271             
Change in pension expense (5,489)                (7,313)                (2,442)                -                     (15,244)              
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Decrease (increase) in assets
Tenant  accounts receivable (716)                 8,530               (698)                  -                   7,116               
Other receivables 101,335           (222,852)          30,750              -                   (90,767)            
Inventories -                   (7,834)              -                    -                   (7,834)              
Prepaid items and other assets 15,924             (44,628)            (9,888)               -                   (38,592)            

Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable (43,873)            -                   56,684              -                   12,811             
Accounts payable - funding sources -                   -                   -                    -                   -                   
Other post-employment benefits 74,869             99,808             33,333              -                   208,010           
Accrued compensated absences 2,279               12,733             20,595              -                   35,607             
Deposits payable 203                  (16,582)            1,839                -                   (14,540)            
Unearned revenue (16,449)            -                   -                    -                   (16,449)            
Due to/from other programs (444,254)          108,653           335,601            -                   -                   
Other liabilities 357,854           58,524             (94,027)             -                   322,351           

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 361,827$           (14,747,733)$     (3,061,961)$       -$                   (17,447,867)$     

Noncash investing and noncapital financing activities
Accrued liabilities included in capital assets 1,135,766$        579,599$           -$                   -$                   1,715,365$        
Capital leases payable included in capital assets 215,737$           17,957$             -$                   -$                   233,694$           

Accrued interest included in capital assets 85,768$             26,973$             -$                   -$                   112,741$           



Yolo County Housing 
 

Combining Schedule of Net Position - Business Activities 
June 30, 2018 

 
 

73 

 New Hope 
Corporate 

Commercial 
development 

Project 
 Cottonwood 

Meadows Project  Eliminations 
 Total New Hope 

CDC 

COCC and 
Administrative 

Building  Eliminations 
 Total Business 

Activities 
Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 
(Note 3) 376,610$            -$                    202,669$            -$                    579,279$            411,914$            -$                    991,193$            
Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents (Notes 3, 4) -                      -                      19,966                -                      19,966                1,792,554           -                      1,812,520           
Accounts receivable - HUD -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      2,338                  -                      2,338                  
Accounts receivable - other 97,147                -                      -                      -                      97,147                24,182                -                      121,329              
Accounts receivable - funding 
source (Note 5) -                      -                      14,258                -                      14,258                73,088                -                      87,346                
Accounts receivable - tenant, net -                      -                      716                     -                      716                     -                      -                      716                     
Note receivable and due from 
component unit (Note 7) 44,141                -                      -                      -                      44,141                -                      -                      44,141                
Interprogram due from (Note 9) 125,497              -                      961,086              (1,086,583)          -                      904,663              -                      904,663              
Inventories, net -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Prepaid items and other assets 1,765                  -                      8,751                  -                      10,516                40,928                -                      51,444                

Total current assets 645,160              -                      1,207,446           (1,086,583)          766,023              3,249,667           -                      4,015,690           

Noncurrent assets
Note receivable and due from 
component unit (Note 7) 683,434              -                      -                      -                      683,434              869,068              -                      1,552,502           
Capital assets not being 
depreciated (Note 6) -                      -                      258,411              -                      258,411              5,998,694           -                      6,257,105           
Capital assets being depreciated, 
net (Note 6) -                      -                      1,003,905           -                      1,003,905           2,652,630           -                      3,656,535           
Other assets, net 149                     -                      -                      -                      149                     38,395                -                      38,544                

Total noncurrent assets 683,583              -                      1,262,316           -                      1,945,899           9,558,787           -                      11,504,686         

Total assets 1,328,743$         -$                   2,469,762$        (1,086,583)$       2,711,922$        12,808,454$      -$                   15,520,376$      

Deferred outflows of resources 
(Notes 15 and 16) -$                    -$                    13,933$              -$                    13,933$              419,320$            -$                    433,253$            

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Combining Schedule of Net Position - Business Activities  
June 30, 2018 

 
 

74 

 New Hope 
Corporate 

Commercial 
development 

Project 
 Cottonwood 

Meadows Project  Eliminations 
 Total New Hope 

CDC 

COCC and 
Administrative 

Building  Eliminations 
 Total Business 

Activities 
Liabilities

Current liabilities
Accounts payable - vendors -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    193,932$            -$                    193,932$            
Accrued compensated absences - 
current portion 456                     -                      291                     -                      747                     32,435                -                      33,182                
Accrued interest payable 
(Note 10) -                      -                      2,076                  -                      2,076                  85,768                -                      87,844                
Accrued liabilities - other -                      -                      4,953                  -                      4,953                  1,517,232           -                      1,522,185           
Interprogram due to (Note 9) 1,118                  1,004,167           98,412                (1,086,583)          17,114                -                      -                      17,114                
Notes payable - current portion 
(Note 10) -                      -                      49,025                -                      49,025                604,550              -                      653,575              
Deposits payable -                      -                      18,660                -                      18,660                3,150                  -                      21,810                
Unearned revenue (Note 13) -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      366                     -                      366                     
Capital lease liability - current 
portion (Note 13) -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      32,269                -                      32,269                
Other current liabilities -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      11,491                -                      11,491                

Total current liabilities 1,574                  1,004,167           173,417              (1,086,583)          92,575                2,481,193           -                      2,573,768           

Noncurrent liabilities
Accrued compensated absences - 
net of current portion 1,369                  -                      873                     -                      2,242                  97,306                -                      99,548                
Notes payable - net of current 
portion (Note 10) -                      -                      1,883,533           -                      1,883,533           2,411,443           -                      4,294,976           
Unearned revenue - net of current 
portion (Note 13) 136,493              -                      -                      -                      136,493              -                      -                      136,493              
Capital lease liability - net of 
current portion (Note 13) -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      183,468              -                      183,468              
Other post-employment benefits 
(Note 16) -                      -                      17,040                -                      17,040                522,148              -                      539,188              
Net pension liability (Note 15) -                      -                      38,232                -                      38,232                1,258,192           -                      1,296,424           
Other liabilities (Note 11) -                      -                      440                     -                      440                     13,460                -                      13,900                

Total liabilities 139,436$            1,004,167$        2,113,535$        (1,086,583)$       2,170,555$        6,967,210$        -$                   9,137,765$        

Deferred inflows of resources (Notes 
15 and 16) -$                    -$                    323$                   -$                    323$                   46,757$              -$                    47,080$              



Yolo County Housing 
 

Combining Schedule of Net Position - Business Activities  
June 30, 2018 

 
 

75 

   

 New Hope 
Corporate 

Commercial 
development 

Project 
 Cottonwood 

Meadows Project  Eliminations 
 Total New Hope 

CDC 

COCC and 
Administrative 

Building  Eliminations 
 Total Business 

Activities    
Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 
(Note 14) -$                    -$                    (672,318)$           -$                    (672,318)$           5,813,615$         -$                    5,141,297$         
Restricted (Note 14) -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Unrestricted (Note 14) 1,189,307           (1,004,167)          1,042,155           -                      1,227,295           400,192              -                      1,627,487           

Total net position 1,189,307$         (1,004,167)$       369,837$           -$                   554,977$           6,213,807$        -$                   6,768,784$        

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Business Activities  
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

76 

 New Hope 
Corporate 

 Commercial 
development 

Project 

 Cottonwood 
Meadows 

Project  Eliminations 
 Total New 
Hope CDC 

 COCC and 
Administrative 

Building  Eliminations 
 Total Business 

Activities 

Operating revenue
Dwelling rental income -$                -$                345,956$        -$                345,956$        164,064$        -$                510,020$        
Fee revenue - interfund -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  2,120,140       -                  2,120,140       
Other revenue 44,730            -                  7,306              -                  52,036            487,228          -                  539,264          

Total operating revenue 44,730            -                  353,262          -                  397,992          2,771,432       -                  3,169,424       

Operating expenses
Administrative expenses 30,059            -                  109,973          -                  140,032          1,907,204       -                  2,047,236       
Tenant services -                  -                  804                 -                  804                 -                  -                  804                 
Maintenance -                  -                  65,037            -                  65,037            601,683          -                  666,720          
Utilities -                  -                  43,577            -                  43,577            34,303            -                  77,880            
Insurance and taxes 1,787              -                  9,588              -                  11,375            45,265            -                  56,640            
Depreciation -                  -                  35,182            -                  35,182            157,470          -                  192,652          
Amortization -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total operating expenses 31,846            -                  264,161          -                  296,007          2,745,925       -                  3,041,932       

Net operating income (loss) 12,884            -                  89,101            -                  101,985          25,507            -                  127,492          

Nonoperating revenue 
(expenses)

Grant revenue -                  -                  27,583            -                  27,583            9,219              -                  36,802            
Interest income 33                   -                  626                 -                  659                 29,340            -                  29,999            
Interest expense -                  -                  (57,728)           -                  (57,728)           (17,360)           -                  (75,088)           
Gain(loss) on disposition -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  29,636            -                  29,636            
Miscellaneous financial 
expenses -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total nonoperating revenue 
(expenses) 33                   -                  (29,519)           -                  (29,486)           50,835            -                  21,349            

Change in net position before 
transfers 12,917            -                  59,582            -                  72,499            76,342            -                  148,841          

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Business Activities  
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

77 

 New Hope 
Corporate 

 Commercial 
development 

Project 

 Cottonwood 
Meadows 

Project  Eliminations 
 Total New 
Hope CDC 

 COCC and 
Administrative 

Building  Eliminations 
 Total Business 

Activities 

Operating transfers in (2,162)             -                  (180,511)         -                  (182,673)         511,277          -                  328,604          
Operating transfers out 2,162              -                  180,511          -                  182,673          -                  -                  182,673          

Change in net position 12,917            -                  59,582            -                  72,499            587,619          -                  660,118          

Net position - beginning of year 1,176,390       (1,004,167)      323,839          -                  496,062          6,042,069       -                  6,538,131       
Prior period adjustment (13,584)           (13,584)           (415,881)         (429,465)         

Net position - end of year 1,189,307$     (1,004,167)$    369,837$        -$                554,977$        6,213,807$     -$                6,768,784$     

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Supplemental Schedule of Public Housing Capital Fund Grants  
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

78 

Below is a schedule summarizing the status of the capital fund grants of the entity: 

Modernization 
Project No:

Grants 
Authorized

Prior 
Expenses

2018 Current 
Year 

Expenses
Cumulative 
Expenses

Unexpended 
Balance

Date of Final 
Drawdown

CA30-P044-501-14 737,360$     669,915$     67,445$       737,360$     -$             7/19/2017
CA30-P044-501-15 729,115       270,119       458,996       729,115       -               6/25/2018
CA30-P044-501-16 741,046       362,398       378,648       741,046       -               7/10/2018
CA30-P044-501-17 799,787       -               600,947       600,947       198,840       n/a

3,007,308$  1,302,432$  1,506,036$  2,808,468$  198,840$     

 



 
 

79 

Submission Type: 

10.427 Rural 
Rental Assistance 

Payments

14.871 Housing 
Choice Vouchers

6.2 Component 
Unit - Blended

2 State/Local
1 Business 
Activities

COCC Subtotal ELIM Total

$41,437 $489,527 $579,279 $677,668 $411,915 $3,272,780 $3,272,780

$1,137,790 $1,782,297 $3,183,189 $3,183,189

$13,055 $14,318 $10,256 $65,098 $65,098

$3,598 $19,966 $51,747 $255,536 $255,536

$571,153 $571,153

$45,035 $502,582 $599,245 $1,881,523 $0 $2,204,468 $7,347,756 $0 $7,347,756

$0 $0

$2,338 $251,023 $251,023

$4,042 $14,258 $470,830 $73,088 $562,218 $562,218

$759 $141,288 $0 $24,182 $175,941 $175,941

$823 $17,654 $45,609 $45,609

-$107 -$6,533 $0 -$13,884 -$13,884

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

$6,369 $6,369

$0 $0

$0 $4,801 $156,262 $481,951 $0 $99,608 $1,027,276 $0 $1,027,276

$0 $0

$1,971 $34,003 $10,516 $60,804 $40,917 $301,560 $301,560

$27,045 $27,045

$0 $0

$1,070,587 $1,606,588 $2,677,175 -$2,677,175 $0

$47,006 $541,386 $1,836,610 $2,424,278 $0 $3,951,581 $11,380,812 -$2,677,175 $8,703,637

$40,839 $239,463 $265,060 $3,528,120 $7,349,138 $7,349,138

$423,182 $1,607,425 $1,001,350 $4,794,819 $42,614,365 $42,614,365

$77,110 $221,557 $221,557

$87,789 $6,723 $537,054 $669,458 $669,458

$0 $0

-$334,249 -$63,242 -$680,630 -$157,956 -$2,679,241 -$25,837,193 -$25,837,193

$18,947 $166,504 $125,974 $2,344,599 $3,372,070 $3,372,070

$129,772 $24,547 $1,262,315 $1,281,681 $125,974 $8,525,351 $28,389,395 $0 $28,389,395

$683,434 $869,075 $1,552,509 $1,552,509

$0 $38,395 $66,138 -$38,395 $27,743

$149 $149 $149

$129,772 $24,547 $1,945,898 $1,281,681 $125,974 $9,432,821 $30,008,191 -$38,395 $29,969,796

$2,178 $225,704 $13,934 $201,290 $419,318 $1,228,038 $1,228,038

$178,956 $791,637 $3,796,442 $3,907,249 $125,974 $13,803,720 $42,617,041 -$2,715,570 $39,901,471 290  Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources $13,782,436 $21,943 $6,208,684

 200  Deferred Outflow of Resources $365,614

 

 180  Total Non-Current Assets $11,249,553 $0 $5,817,945

 

 174  Other Assets $0 $27,743

 176  Investments in Joint Ventures $0 $0

 172  Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Non Current - Past Due

 173  Grants Receivable - Non Current

 

 171  Notes, Loans and Mortgages Receivable - Non-Current $0

 168  Infrastructure

 160  Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation $11,249,553 $0 $5,790,202

 166  Accumulated Depreciation -$21,423,840 -$498,035

 167  Construction in Progress $716,046

 164  Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Administration $32,245 $5,647

 165  Leasehold Improvements $0

 162  Buildings $28,594,999 $6,192,590

 163  Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Dwellings $144,447

 

 161  Land $3,185,656 $90,000

 145  Assets Held for Sale

 150  Total Current Assets $2,167,269 $21,943 $390,739

 143.1  Allowance for Obsolete Inventories $0

 144  Inter Program Due From $0

 142  Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets $132,418 $20,931

 143  Inventories $27,045

 132  Investments - Restricted

 135  Investments - Restricted for Payment of Current Liability

 

 131  Investments - Unrestricted $0

 129  Accrued Interest Receivable $0

 120  Total Receivables, Net of Allowances for Doubtful Accounts $257,991 $21,943 $4,720

 128  Fraud Recovery

 128.1  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Fraud

 126.2  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Other $0 $0 $0

 127  Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Current $6,369

 126  Accounts Receivable - Tenants $22,412 $4,720

 126.1  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -Tenants -$7,244 $0

 124  Accounts Receivable - Other Government

 125  Accounts Receivable - Miscellaneous $9,712

 121  Accounts Receivable - PHA Projects $0

 122  Accounts Receivable - HUD Other Projects $226,742 $21,943

 100  Total Cash $1,749,815 $0 $365,088

 

 114  Cash - Tenant Security Deposits $166,295 $13,930

 115  Cash - Restricted for Payment of Current Liabilities $571,153

 112  Cash - Restricted - Modernization and Development $263,102

 113  Cash - Other Restricted $27,469

Project Total

14.870 Resident 
Opportunity and 

Supportive 
Services

6.1 Component Unit 
- Discretely 
Presented

 111  Cash - Unrestricted $1,012,367 $0 $60,587

Housing Authority of the County of Yolo  (CA044)

WOODLAND, CA
Entity Wide Balance Sheet Summary

 Audited/Single Audit          Fiscal Year End:  06/30/2018

 



 
 

80 

$0 $0

$249,610 $569,609 $825,222 $825,222

$27,483 $27,483

$77 $9,811 $747 $6,640 $32,435 $53,363 $53,363

$2,076 $85,768 $96,904 $96,904

$266,224 $386,073 $386,073

$3,595 $18,660 $49,697 $3,150 $252,159 $252,159

$4 $136,492 $240,000 $366 $376,862 $376,862

$49,025 $604,550 $837,558 $837,558

$17,957 $267,032 $227,235 $512,224 $512,224

$761 $24,474 $5,392 $183,216 $1,155,015 $2,046,479 $2,046,479

$4,290 $161,263 $1,087,701 $596,590 $701,921 $2,677,175 -$2,677,175 $0

$8,727 $213,505 $1,300,093 $1,859,009 $0 $3,380,049 $8,617,410 -$2,677,175 $5,940,235

$1,883,533 $0 $2,411,443 $8,816,701 -$38,395 $8,778,306

$0 $0

$18,863 $369,665 $388,528 $388,528

$231 $29,433 $2,242 $19,919 $97,306 $160,123 $160,123

$0 $1,558,954 $1,558,954

$9,555 $940,816 $55,272 $862,970 $1,780,339 $5,196,011 $5,196,011

$9,786 $989,112 $1,941,047 $1,252,554 $0 $4,289,088 $15,594,409 -$38,395 $15,556,014

$18,513 $1,202,617 $3,241,140 $3,111,563 $0 $7,669,137 $24,211,819 -$2,715,570 $21,496,249

$390 $36,725 $323 $32,599 $46,755 $174,580 $174,580

$129,772 $6,591 -$672,318 $1,281,681 $125,974 $5,854,384 $16,099,619 $16,099,619

$0 $700,314 $2,445,405 $2,445,405

$30,281 -$454,296 $1,227,297 -$1,218,908 $0 $233,444 -$314,382 -$314,382

$160,053 -$447,705 $554,979 $763,087 $125,974 $6,087,828 $18,230,642 $0 $18,230,642

$178,956 $791,637 $3,796,442 $3,907,249 $125,974 $13,803,720 $42,617,041 -$2,715,570 $39,901,471

 

 508.4  Net Investment in Capital Assets $9,373,535

 

 400  Deferred Inflow of Resources $57,788

 

 300  Total Liabilities $4,275,034 $24,465 $4,669,350

 357  Accrued Pension and OPEB Liabilities $1,545,060 $1,999

 350  Total Non-Current Liabilities $2,619,597 $3,047 $4,490,178

 355  Loan Liability - Non Current $0 $1,558,954

 356  FASB 5 Liabilities

 353  Non-current Liabilities - Other

 354  Accrued Compensated Absences - Non Current $9,944 $1,048

 351  Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenue $1,590,501 $2,931,224

 352  Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Operating Borrowings $0

 310  Total Current Liabilities $1,655,437 $21,418 $179,172

 

 347  Inter Program - Due To $104,341 $21,069

 348  Loan Liability - Current

 345  Other Current Liabilities

 346  Accrued Liabilities - Other $677,621

 343  Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenue $61,287 $122,696

 344  Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Operating Borrowings

 341  Tenant Security Deposits $163,127 $13,930

 342  Unearned Revenue $0

 332  Account Payable - PHA Projects

 333  Accounts Payable - Other Government $119,849

 325  Accrued Interest Payable $9,060

 331  Accounts Payable - HUD PHA Programs

 322  Accrued Compensated Absences - Current Portion $3,304 $349

 324  Accrued Contingency Liability

 313  Accounts Payable >90 Days Past Due $27,483

 321  Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable

 311  Bank Overdraft $0

 312  Accounts Payable <= 90 Days $6,003

 511.4  Restricted Net Position $0 $1,745,091

 512.4  Unrestricted Net Position $76,079 -$2,522 -$205,757

 513  Total Equity - Net Assets / Position $9,449,614 -$2,522 $1,539,334

 

 600  Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Equity - Net $13,782,436 $21,943 $6,208,684

 
 
 
 



 
 

81 

Submission Type: 

10.427 Rural 
Rental Assistance 

Payments

14.871 Housing 
Choice Vouchers

6.2 Component 
Unit - Blended

2 State/Local
1 Business 
Activities

COCC Subtotal ELIM Total

$47,950 $345,956 $7,590 $164,065 $2,936,169 -$128,718 $2,807,451

$801 $2,590 $37,478 $71,604 $71,604

$48,751 $0 $348,546 $45,068 $0 $164,065 $3,007,773 -$128,718 $2,879,055

$12,558,518 $13,955,039 $13,955,039

$511,278 $1,506,036 $1,506,036

$972,644 $972,644 -$972,644 $0

$80,040 $80,040 -$80,040 $0

$164,700 $164,700 -$164,700 $0

$894,676 $894,676 -$894,676 $0

$8,998 $8,998 $8,998

$2,121,058 $2,121,058 -$2,112,060 $8,998

$27,583 $3,563,288 $9,218 $3,600,089 $3,600,089

$144 $1,276 $660 $3 $29,342 $35,326 $35,326

$1,164 $0 $1,164 $1,164

$9,798 $49,445 $149,436 $477,760 $2,730,178 $2,730,178

$817 $29,636 $72,382 $72,382

$85 $85 $85

$48,895 $12,571,573 $426,234 $3,757,880 $9,218 $3,333,139 $27,029,130 -$2,240,778 $24,788,352

$5,481 $391,550 $30,255 $82,010 $790,685 $1,603,343 $1,603,343

$531 $11,682 $9,754 $4,249 $5,310 $84,300 $84,300

$4,960 $223,902 $228,048 $1,000,483 -$972,644 $27,839

$126,608 $164,701 -$164,700 $1

$3,161 $4,386 $4,386

$4,845 $263,884 $36,088 $75,931 $516,766 $1,182,584 $1,182,584

$1,862 $218,875 $13,773 $90,175 $221,072 $884,075 -$287,705 $596,370

$95 $30,610 $72,177 $72,177

$5,001 $3,283 $10,810 $27,075 $27,075

$323 $55,031 $68,497 $68,497

$18,002 $1,244,663 $89,870 $538,822 $0 $1,575,253 $5,091,621 -$1,425,049 $3,666,572

$19,320 $9,000 $80,040 -$80,040 $0

$15,078 $104,909 $104,909

$5,456 $25,865 $61,567 $61,567

$5,010 $6,042 $45,289 $45,289

$0 $25,544 $0 $31,907 $0 $0 $211,765 $0 $211,765

$6,440 $15,811 $129,176 $3,496 $413,293 $413,293

$70 $5,304 $165,152 $27,827 $298,678 $298,678

$80 $694 $45,095 $1,990 $61,462 $61,462

$4,530 $21,768 $118,348 $990 $460,234 $460,234

$11,120 $0 $43,577 $457,771 $0 $34,303 $1,233,667 $0 $1,233,667

 93800  Other Utilities Expense

 93000  Total Utilities $639,545 $0 $47,351

 93600  Sewer $292,088 $22,510

 93700  Employee Benefit Contributions - Utilities

 93400  Fuel

 93500  Labor

 93200  Electricity $96,044 $4,281

 93300  Gas $8,579 $5,024

 

 93100  Water $242,834 $15,536

 92400  Tenant Services - Other $6,810 $27,427

 92500  Total Tenant Services $48,613 $78,274 $27,427

 92200  Relocation Costs

 92300  Employee Benefit Contributions - Tenant Services $5,293 $24,953

 92000  Asset Management Fee $51,720

 92100  Tenant Services - Salaries $36,510 $53,321

 91000  Total Operating - Administrative $1,499,474 $9,697 $115,840

 

 91810  Allocated Overhead

 91900  Other $13,143

 91700  Legal Expense $36,848 $4,624

 91800  Travel $5,512 $2,469

 91500  Employee Benefit contributions - Administrative $284,738 $332

 91600  Office Expenses $316,249 $5,971 $16,098

 91310  Book-keeping Fee $38,093

 91400  Advertising and Marketing $348 $877

 91200  Auditing Fees $39,174 $13,600

 91300  Management Fee $515,733 $27,840

 

 91100  Administrative Salaries $262,779 $925 $39,658

 72000  Investment Income - Restricted

 70000  Total Revenue $4,294,272 $89,663 $2,498,256

 71500  Other Revenue $31,240 $2,012,499

 71600  Gain or Loss on Sale of Capital Assets $41,929

 71310  Cost of Sale of Assets

 71400  Fraud Recovery

 71200  Mortgage Interest Income

 71300  Proceeds from Disposition of Assets Held for Sale

 70800  Other Government Grants

 71100  Investment Income - Unrestricted $3,563 $338

 70700  Total Fee Revenue

 

 70740  Front Line Service Fee

 70750  Other Fees

 70720  Asset Management Fee

 70730  Book Keeping Fee

 70610  Capital Grants $994,758

 70710  Management Fee

 

 70600  HUD PHA Operating Grants $1,306,858 $89,663

 70400  Tenant Revenue - Other $30,735

 70500  Total Tenant Revenue $1,915,924 $0 $485,419

Project Total

14.870 Resident 
Opportunity and 

Supportive 
Services

6.1 Component Unit 
- Discretely 
Presented

 70300  Net Tenant Rental Revenue $1,885,189 $485,419

Housing Authority of the County of Yolo  (CA044)

WOODLAND, CA
Entity Wide Revenue and Expense Summary

 Audited/Single Audit          Fiscal Year End:  06/30/2018

 



 
 

82 

$206,925 $381,493 $600,680 -$47,982 $552,698

$7,109 $637 $17,283 $32,850 $9,632 $280,080 $280,080

$22,692 $1,894 $47,616 $205,300 $75,570 $1,371,349 -$687,707 $683,642

$233 $109,890 $112,025 $222,148 $222,148

$29,801 $2,764 $64,899 $554,965 $0 $578,720 $2,474,257 -$735,689 $1,738,568

$0 $0

$137 $14,243 $22,963 $40,549 $40,549

$8 $8

$0 $0 $137 $14,243 $0 $22,963 $40,557 $0 $40,557

$1,603 $5,862 $105,811 $2,577 $218,767 $218,767

$384 $5,883 $5,128 $12,438 $478 $40,101 $40,101

$23 $4,620 $386 $12,087 $35,180 $65,513 $65,513

$1,621 $6,006 $7,030 $22,197 $22,197

$2,010 $12,124 $11,376 $136,342 $0 $45,265 $346,578 $0 $346,578

$2,679 $3,015 $31,592 $8,882 $320,284 $385,545 $385,545

-$73 $8,415 -$754 $20,668 $3,034 $35,610 $35,610

$120,247 $120,247

$804 $1,628 $47,387 $47,387

$2,606 $11,430 $31,642 $31,178 $0 $323,318 $588,789 $0 $588,789

$56,462 $127,282 $127,282

$147,915 $17,360 $283,285 $283,285

$1,266 $3,404 $3,404

$0 $0 $57,728 $147,915 $0 $17,360 $413,971 $0 $413,971

$63,539 $1,296,525 $318,549 $1,922,143 $0 $2,597,182 $10,481,245 -$2,240,778 $8,240,467

-$14,644 $11,275,048 $107,685 $1,835,737 $9,218 $735,957 $16,547,885 $0 $16,547,885

$1,839,231 $93 $1,839,324 $1,839,324

$11,539,861 $11,539,861 $11,539,861

$48,866 $48,866 $48,866

$14,409 $9,506 $35,182 $20,741 $157,470 $912,737 $912,737

$77,948 $12,894,758 $353,731 $3,782,115 $0 $2,754,745 $24,822,033 -$2,240,778 $22,581,255 90000  Total Expenses $4,226,479 $89,123 $643,134

 97700  Debt Principal Payment - Governmental Funds

 97800  Dwelling Units Rent Expense

 97500  Fraud Losses

 97600  Capital Outlays  - Governmental Funds

 97350  HAP Portability-In

 97400  Depreciation Expense $505,964 $169,465

 97200  Casualty Losses - Non-capitalized

 97300  Housing Assistance Payments

 

 97100  Extraordinary Maintenance $0

 

 97000  Excess of Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses $573,757 $540 $2,024,587

 

 96900  Total Operating Expenses $3,720,515 $89,123 $473,669

 96730  Amortization of Bond Issue Costs $2,138

 96700  Total Interest Expense and Amortization Cost $0 $0 $190,968

 96710  Interest of Mortgage (or Bonds) Payable $0 $70,820

 96720  Interest on Notes Payable (Short and Long Term) $118,010

 96000  Total Other General Expenses $180,258 $769 $7,588

 

 96600  Bad debt - Other

 96800  Severance Expense

 96400  Bad debt - Tenant Rents $44,955

 96500  Bad debt - Mortgages

 96210  Compensated Absences $3,551 $769

 96300  Payments in Lieu of Taxes $120,247

 

 96200  Other General Expenses $11,505 $7,588

 96140  All Other Insurance $7,540

 96100  Total insurance Premiums $122,900 $383 $16,178

 96120  Liability Insurance $15,790

 96130  Workmen's Compensation $5,800 $383 $7,034

 

 96110  Property Insurance $93,770 $9,144

 95500  Employee Benefit Contributions - Protective Services

 95000  Total Protective Services $2,044 $0 $1,170

 95200  Protective Services - Other Contract Costs $2,044 $1,162

 95300  Protective Services - Other $8

 

 95100  Protective Services - Labor $0

 94500  Employee Benefit Contributions - Ordinary Maintenance

 94000  Total Maintenance $1,175,961 $0 $67,147

 94200  Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Materials and Other $187,517 $25,052

 94300  Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts $988,444 $29,833

 94100  Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Labor $0 $12,262

 



 
 

83 

$0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

-$29,053 -$323,185 $72,503 -$24,235 $9,218 $578,394 $2,207,097 $0 $2,207,097

$0 $0 $50,491 $1 $0 $604,550 $821,395 $821,395

$191,108 $92,751 $496,060 $976,519 $116,756 $5,925,316 $17,216,737 $17,216,737

-$2,002 -$217,271 -$13,584 -$189,197 -$415,882 -$1,193,192 -$1,193,192

-$447,705 -$447,705 -$447,705

$0 $0 $0

84 20919 564 1920 0 0 29235 29235

80 17055 543 1829 0 0 25144 25144

-$1,022,265 -$1,022,265

$0 $0 $0

$128,397 $1,793,093 $1,793,093

$0 $0 $0

$245,550 $245,550 $245,550

$0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 13901  Replacement Housing Factor Funds $0

 11660  Infrastructure Purchases $0

 13510  CFFP Debt Service Payments $0

 11640  Furniture & Equipment - Administrative Purchases $0

 11650  Leasehold Improvements Purchases $0

 11620  Building Purchases $1,664,696

 11630  Furniture & Equipment - Dwelling Purchases $0

 11270  Excess Cash -$1,022,265

 11610  Land Purchases $0

 11190  Unit Months Available 5172 0 576

 11210  Number of Unit Months Leased 5075 0 562

 

 11180  Housing Assistance Payments Equity

 11100  Changes in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Other

 11170  Administrative Fee Equity

 11080  Changes in Special Term/Severance Benefits Liability

 11090  Changes in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Dwelling Rents

 11060  Changes in Contingent Liability Balance

 11070  Changes in Unrecognized Pension Transition Liability

 11040  Prior Period Adjustments, Equity Transfers and Correction of Errors -$355,256 $0

 11050  Changes in Compensated Absence Balance

 11020  Required Annual Debt Principal Payments $34,314 $0 $132,039

 11030  Beginning Equity $9,737,077 -$3,062 -$315,788

 10000  Excess (Deficiency) of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses $67,793 $540 $1,855,122

 

 10100  Total Other financing Sources (Uses) $0 $0 $0

 

 10093  Transfers between Program and Project - In

 10094  Transfers between Project and Program - Out

 10091  Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer In

 10092  Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer Out

 10070  Extraordinary Items, Net Gain/Loss

 10080  Special Items (Net Gain/Loss)

 10050  Proceeds from Notes, Loans and Bonds

 10060  Proceeds from Property Sales

 10030  Operating Transfers from/to Primary Government

 10040  Operating Transfers from/to Component Unit

 10010  Operating Transfer In $0

 10020  Operating transfer Out

 
 
 
 
  





Yolo County Housing 
 

Single Audit Reports 
 

June 30, 2018 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Index 
 
 

1 

Page 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards  2 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 
and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 4 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 7 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 8 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 10 

 

 



 

2 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and  
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Housing Commission 
Yolo County Housing 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of Yolo County Housing ("YCH"), a component unit of the County of Yolo, 
California, and its discretely presented component unit, which comprise the statement of net 
position as of June 30, 2018, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes 
in net position, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 29, 2018. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered YCH's internal 
control over financial reporting ("internal control") to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of YCH's 
internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of YCH's 
internal control.   

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material 
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during 
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 



 

3 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether YCH's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's 
internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose.  

 
 
Sacramento, California 
November 29, 2018 
 



 

4 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and on  
Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance and Report on the 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
 
 

To the Housing Commission 
Yolo County Housing 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Yolo County Housing ("YCH")'s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of YCH's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
YCH's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.  

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms 
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of YCH's major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
("Uniform Guidance"). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
YCH's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances.  

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of YCH's 
compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, YCH complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018.  

 



 

5 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of YCH is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered YCH's internal control over compliance with 
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal 
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test 
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of YCH's internal 
control over compliance.  

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than 
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of our testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose.  

Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of Yolo County Housing and its discretely presented component unit, as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated November 29, 2018. Our audit was performed for the purpose 
of forming an opinion on the financial statements of YCH as a whole. The accompanying 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis 
as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 



 

6 

financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
This report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is intended solely for the 
information and use of the Housing Commission and YCH management, and federal awarding 
agencies and pass-through entities, and is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
 
Sacramento, California 
November 29, 2018 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards  
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
 

7 

Federal Grantor / Pass-through Grantor Program Title:

Federal 
CFDA 

Number

Agency or 
Pass-Through 

Number

Federal 
Expenditures 

Amount

Indirect Programs
Passed through the City of Woodland

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Community Development Block Grants / State's 
program 14.228

City of 
Woodland 9,219$            

Total - Indirect Programs 9,219$            

Direct Programs

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Public and Indian Housing 14.850 N/A 1,306,858

Housing Voucher Cluster
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 (1) N/A 12,558,518

Public Housing Capital Fund 14.872 N/A 1,506,036

Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services 14.870 N/A 89,663

Total - Direct Programs 15,461,075$   

Total - Federal Awards 15,470,294$   

(1) Audited as a major program

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

8 

Note 1 - Reporting Entity 

Yolo County Housing ("YCH") was established pursuant to the State Health and Safety 
Code in 1950 by the Yolo County Board of Supervisors. YCH is a public entity organized 
under the laws of the State of California's Health and Safety Code to provide housing 
assistance to low- and moderate-income families at rents they can afford. 

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation 
The expenditures included in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the 
"Schedule") presents the federal awards activity of YCH under programs of the federal 
government. Federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal 
awards passed through from nonfederal agencies or other organizations are included in the 
Schedule. The information in the Schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards ("Uniform 
Guidance"). As the Schedule presents only the federal awards activity of YCH, it is not 
intended to and does not present the financial position, change in net position or cash flows 
of YCH as a whole. 

Significant Accounting Policies 
The expenditures included in the Schedule are reported under the accrual basis of 
accounting. The expenditures are recognized in accordance with the cost principles 
contained in the Uniform Guidance. YCH has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis 
indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

Note 3 - Reconciliation from the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net 
position to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

The amounts reported in the Schedule are reconciled to the amounts reported in the 
financial statements of YCH as follows: 

Grant revenue 17,555,128$     
Capital grants 1,506,036
Less grants from state and local governments (3,590,870)        

15,470,294$     

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 
 

9 

Note 4 - Discrete Component Unit Federal Expenditures 

YCH has one discretely presented component unit, New Hope Crosswood Associates LP, 
whose federal expenditures are excluded from the Schedule because its federal 
expenditures are separately audited and reported to HUD. The federal expenditures for 
programs of New Hope Crosswood Associates LP for the year ended December 31, 2017 
are as follow: 

Federal Grantor / Passthrough Grantor Program Title:

Federal 
CFDA 

Number

Agency or 
Pass-Through 

Number

Federal 
Expenditures 

Amount

Direct Programs

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Federal Housing Administration - Insured loans
under Section 207 and 223(f) 14.155 CA30M000858 3,202,570$    

Housing Voucher Cluster
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 N/A 297,283         

Total 3,499,853$    

 

 

 

 



Yolo County Housing 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs  
June 30, 2018 

 
 

10 

A. Summary of Auditor's Results  

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued on the financial statements: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

*Material weakness(es) identified?    Yes X No 

*Significant deficiency(ies) identified?  Yes X None reported 

Noncompliance material to the financial 
statements noted?  Yes X No 

 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

*Material weakness identified?  Yes X No 

*Significant deficiency identified?  Yes X None reported 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: 
CFDA Numbers  Type of Opinion 
14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers  Unmodified 

 

 
Any audit findings disclosed that are 
required to be reported in accordance with 
section 510(a) of OMB Circular?  Yes X No 
 
Identification of major programs: 
 
CFDA Numbers(s)  Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
14.871  Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 
 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and 
Type B programs: $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee  Yes X No 
 





Yolo County Housing 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs  
June 30, 2018 

 
 

11 

B. Findings - Financial Statements Audit 

 None reported 

C. Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Programs Audit 

 None reported 

 
 



 

Yolo County Housing 
 

Report to the Housing Commission  
 

June 30, 2018 



 

1 

November 29, 2018 
 
 
To the Housing Commission 
Yolo County Housing 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Yolo County Housing ("YCH"), a component unit of the 
County of Yolo, California, and its discretely presented component unit as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated November 29, 2018.  

Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit: 

 Our responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards, Government Auditing 
Standards and Uniform Guidance. 

 Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

 Significant Audit Findings 

 Other Matters 

Our comments regarding these issues as they relate to the audit of YCH as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2018 are presented in the Attachment to this letter. We will be pleased to review these items 
at your request. 

Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
CohnReznick LLP 

 
 

 
 



 

2 

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards, Governmental Auditing 
Standards and OMB Uniform Guidance 

As stated in our engagement letter dated June 28, 2018, our responsibility, as described by 
professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, 
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement and are fairly presented in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Because an 
audit is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance and because we did not perform a 
detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements may exist and not be 
detected by us. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your 
responsibilities. 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Yolo County Housing’s internal control over 
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial 
reporting. We also considered internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for 
the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance. 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether YCH’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit. Also in accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance, we 
examined, on a test basis, evidence about YCH’s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the “Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards” (OMB 
Uniform Guidance”) applicable to each of its major federal programs for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on YCH’s compliance with those requirements. While our audit provides a reasonable basis for 
our opinion, it does not provide a legal determination on YCH’s compliance with those requirements. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to the 
management of YCH. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance 
with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of 
accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies used by YCH are 
described in note 2 to the financial statements.  Also all new significant GASB accounting standards 
adopted by YCH during the year ended June 30, 2018 are disclosed at Note 2 to the financial 
statements. The adoption of GASB Statement 75 during the year ended June 30, 2018 had a significant 
effect on the financial statements of YCH and resulted in the recording of a prior period adjustment of 
$1,193,192 and the recognition of a net OPEB liability of $1,493,543. The application of existing 
policies was not changed during the year ended June 30, 2018. We noted no transactions entered into 
by YCH during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant 
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.  



 

3 

Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions 
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their 
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them 
may differ significantly from those expected.  

The most significant estimates reflected in the financial statements include: 

 Allowances for accounts receivable and inventories 

 Developer fees revenue recognition 

 Depreciation estimates for capital assets including depreciation methods and useful lives 
assigned to the depreciable assets 

 Accrued compensated absences 

 Other post-employment benefit plans (“OPEB”)’ employer and employee disclosures and 
contributions requirements, net OPEB liability, and deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
related to OPEB 

 Net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions. 

Management’s estimates and judgments were based on the following: 

 Estimated allowances for losses on accounts receivable and inventories were based upon 
historical collection experience for accounts receivable and management’s assessment of 
the physical inventory items at the end of the year.  

 Developer fees are recognized as revenue using the percentage of completion method and 
the likelihood of collection of the fees due based upon the expected future cash flows of the 
projects available for the payment of deferred developer fees which have been discounted 
to record the present value of future collections as developer fees receivable. 

 Useful lives and method of depreciation for capital assets were determined by management 
based upon the nature of the capital assets and their expected service lives. 

 Accrual and disclosures of compensated absences were based on accrued eligible hours of 
vacation and sick leave at current pay rates for eligible employees. 

 OPEB plans’ employer and employee contribution requirements and disclosures, net OPEB 
liability, and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to OPEB were based on the 
GASB 75 actuarial valuation reports. 

 Net pension liability and the deferred inflows/outflows of resources related to pensions were 
based upon the June 30, 2017 GASB 68 Accounting Valuation Report prepared by 
CalPERS. 

For all significant estimates made by management, we evaluated the key factors and assumptions used 
to determine that the estimates are reasonable in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 



 

4 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to 
financial statements users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements are 
included in Notes 1 through 25 to the financial statements. The disclosures in these notes are neutral, 
consistent and clear.  

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during 
the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. Management provided significant adjustments after the initial trial balance was provided 
to us. All such adjustments have been included in the audited financial statements. The attached 
schedule summarizes the uncorrected misstatements that have not been included in the financial 
statements. Management has determined that the uncorrected misstatements on the attached schedule 
are immaterial both individually and in the aggregate to the financial statements as a whole.  

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could 
be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such 
disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated November 29, 2018. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to YCH’s financial statements or a determination of the 
type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards 
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant 
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as YCH’s auditor. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not 
a condition to our retention.  

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to the Management Discussion & Analysis, the Cost Sharing 
Defined Benefit Pension - Plan Schedule of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 
Liability, the Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan – Schedule of Contributions, the Schedule of 
Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, and Schedule of OPEB Plan Contributions, which is 



 

5 

required supplementary information ("RSI") that supplements the basic financial statements. Our 
procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
RSI. 

We were engaged to report on the combining schedules of net position, revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position and cash flows, and the Financial Data Schedule, and the Schedule of Public 
Housing Capital Fund Grants which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect 
to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, 
content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it 
has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to 
our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to 
the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves. 

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Housing Commission and management of YCH 
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours,  
 
 
 
CohnReznick LLP 
Sacramento, California 



Yolo County Housing GF3. 9
Year End: June 30,2018 Prepared by Detail Fairness
PASSED JOURNAL ENTRIES ND 9/24/2018 HJM 10/5/2018
Date:  7/1/2017  To  6/30/2018 Partner Concurring

AAB 11/28/2018 ACK 11/26/2018

Number    Date    Name    Account No    Reference Annotation Debit Credit Recurrence Misstatement

PAJE 1 6/30/2018 Fund Balance 101.2806.00.000.000 101 15-7 61,973
PAJE 1 6/30/2018 AMP Management Fees 101.4400.01.000.000 101 15-7 61,973
PAJE 1 6/30/2018 Fund Balance 310.2806.00.000.000 310 15-7 61,973
PAJE 1 6/30/2018 AMP Management Fees 310.3400.01.000.000 310 15-7 61,973

To pass on retroactive AMP fee
adjustments

PAJE 2 6/30/2018 Fund Balance 310.2806.00.000.000 310 135,052
PAJE 2 6/30/2018 Prior Period Adjustments 310.6010.00.000.000 310 135,052
PAJE 2 6/30/2018 Fund Balance 501.2806.00.000.000 501 61,381
PAJE 2 6/30/2018 Prior Period Adjustments 501.6010.00.000.000 501 61,381
PAJE 2 6/30/2018 Fund Balance 502.2806.00.000.000 502 22,627
PAJE 2 6/30/2018 Prior Period Adjustments 502.6010.00.000.000 502 22,627
PAJE 2 6/30/2018 Fund Balance 503.2806.00.000.000 503 9,658
PAJE 2 6/30/2018 Prior Period Adjustments 503.6010.00.000.000 503 9,658

To pass on running PPA through
current year Net Income

352,664 352,664

Net Income (Loss) 310,590

11/28/2018
4:36 PM Page 16




	Agenda
	Swearing In of New Commissioners
	5Election of Officers
	5ATT_Staff Report
	6Selection of January Meeting Date
	7Minutes
	7ATT_Att. A. October 10, 2018 Minutes
	8Housing Choice Voucher Payment Program
	8ATT_Staff Report
	8ATT_Att. A. Resolution
	9Correspondence
	9ATT_Att. A. Letter from John Carmody
	9ATT_Att. B. Letter from Dono Mitchell
	10YCH a National Voucher High Performer
	10ATT_Staff Report
	10ATT_Att. A. Correspondence from HUD
	11Recognizing Angel Barajas
	11ATT_Staff Report
	11ATT_Att. A. Resolution
	12Mark Johannessen Resolution
	12ATT_Staff Report
	12ATT_Att. A. Resolution
	13Helen Thomson Resolution
	13ATT_Staff Report
	13ATT_Att. A. Resolution
	14Revised ACOP for the Low Rent Public Housing Program
	14ATT_Staff Report
	14ATT_Att. A. Draft Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy and Resolution
	14ATT_Att. B. Resolution
	19YCH Emergency Operations Plan
	19ATT_Staff Report
	19ATT_Att. A. YCH Emergency Operations Plan Basic Plan
	19ATT_Att. B. YCH Emergency Operations Plan Annex
	20FEMA Grant
	20ATT_Staff Report
	20ATT_Att. A. Resolution
	21Winter Emergency Housing
	21ATT_Staff Report
	21ATT_Att. A. License Agreement
	22Solar Power
	22ATT_Staff Report
	22ATT_Att. A. YCH Solar Array Pro-forma Analysis
	232017-18 Audit Reports for YCH
	23ATT_Staff Report
	23ATT_Att. A. Basic Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report
	23ATT_Att. B. Single Audit Reports on Internal Controls and Program Compliance
	23ATT_Att. C. Report to the Housing Commission

